
 AGENDA PACKET 

 

DECEMBER 20, 2016 MEETING 

 CAL# PAGE 

AGENDA   4 

   

“SILVERMINE PRESERVE,” SILVERMINE DRIVE & LOCKWOOD ROAD, 

SOUTH SALEM 

Cal#03-13PB Cal# 03-16WP 

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated December 14, 2016  6 

Cover letter, Evans Associates, dated November 15, 2016  10 

Plans and Plat, Evans Associates/ Bibbo Associates, dated November 14, 2016  13 

Westchester Land Trust Silvermine Land Management Summary, dated June 29, 2016  25 

Westchester Land Trust summary, dated May 24, 2016  29 

Westchester Land Trust Old Church Preserve Management Summary, dated January 

2014 
 32 

Notice of Public Hearing  62 

Certified Mailing/Sign Posting Information  63 

   

MCPHILLIPS RESIDENCE, 4 ROBINS COURT, SOUTH SALEM Cal #52-16 WP  

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated December 14, 2016  72 

Wetland application, dated October 18, 2016  74 

Sketch/drawings, Michael Lombardi, dated October 4, 2016  77 

   

LAKE KITCHAWAN ASSOCIATION, 166 LAKE KITCHAWAN DRIVE, SOUTH 

SALEM 

Cal #55-16 WP 

 

 

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated December 14, 2016  81 

Wetland application, dated November 7, 2016  83 

Sketch/drawings, Michael Lombardi, dated October 11, 2016  86 

    

WEISBERG RESIDENCE, 25 BENEDICT ROAD, SOUTH SALEM Cal #58-16WP  

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated December 14, 2016  91 

CAC Memo, dated December 10, 2016  94 

Cover letter and site development plan application including EAF and previous permits, 

JMC Planning Engineering, dated  November 18, 2016 
 95 

Plans, JMC Planning Engineering, dated September 16, 2016/October 20, 2016  137 



WILDER BALTER PARTNERS, NY STATE ROUTE 22, GOLDENS BRIDGE Cal# 10-15 PB  

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated November 30, 2016  140 

Cover letter, Tim Miller Associates, dated December 12, 2016  142 

Revised Noise Assessment, Tim Miller Associates, dated December 12, 2016  144 

   

VERIZON AT LEON LEVY PRESERVE, SOUTH SALEM Cal #6-16PB  

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated December 14, 2016  160 

Cover letter, Snyder & Snyder, dated November 17, 2016  163 

Special Use Permit application and support memo, dated November 11, 2016   165 

Cover letter; Structural Consulting Services, P.C.; dated November 7, 2016  174 

Various FCC licenses, granted in 2007 and 2008  176 

Radio Frequency (RF) Site Compliance Report, Pinnacle Telecom Group, dated  June 

30, 2016 
 185 

EAF, dated  November 17, 2016   203 

Plans and Elevations; Structural Consulting Services, P.C.; dated June 2, 2016   209 

   

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM, NASH ROAD, GOLDENS BRIDGE Cal# 8-16PB Cal# 61-16WP 

Kellard Sessions Review Memo, dated December 14, 2016  211 

Cover letter, Hazen and Sawyer, dated November 29, 2016  213 

Site Development Plan application (Steps I and II), dated November 22, 2016  224 

Wetland Activity Permit application, dated  November 22, 2016  227 

Engineering Plans, Hazen and Sawyer, dated October 2015 (except Civil Site Plan is 

dated November 2016) 
 242 

Previous Town of Lewisboro permits and resolutions (4-15PB, 51-14WP, 6-15WP, 54-

15WP) 
 256 

Cover letter, Department of the Army, dated April 28, 2016  272 

Cover letter, NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation, dated March 

23, 2015 
 276 

NYSDOH Letter To NYSDEC Emergency use Well #4, dated September 6, 2016  278 

NYSDEC Emergency Authorization to use Well #4, dated October 13, 2016  280 

Site Photographs  282 

Wetland Delineation Report, Hazen and Sawyer, dated July 2014  293 

Appendix A National Wetlands Inventory Classification Descriptions  308 

Appendix B NYSDEC Environmental Resource Mapper  313 



Appendix C Hydrologic Soil Groups for Westchester County, New York  315 

Appendix D Soil Series Descriptions  319 

Appendix E USACE Wetland Determination Data Forms  332 

Appendix F Photograph Log  345 

EAF Form, dated November 22, 2016  352 

Engineer’s Report, Hazen and Sawyer, dated August 2016  357 

Groundwater Exploration and Pumping Test Program; Leggette, Brashears & Graham, 

Inc.; dated August 2016 
 374 

Appendix I WCDH – Well Site Approvals  402 

Appendix II Well Completion Reports  408 

Appendix III Pumping Wells  413 

Appendix IV 180-Day Water-Level Projections  447 

Appendix V Onsite Well Monitoring Wells   451 

VI Piezometers  470 

VII Offsite Monitoring Wells  497 

Appendix VIII Stream Gaging  510 

Appendix IX Water Quality  519 

Appendix X Physical Parameters  686 

   

JACOBSON RESIDENCE, 1208 ROUTE 35, SOUTH SALEM Cal #3-15WV  

No new materials    

MOGIL RESIDENCE, 92 WACCABUC ROAD, GOLDENS BRIDGE Cal # 1-16WV     

No new materials    

PALOMINO RESIDENCE, 292 WACCABUC ROAD, GOLDENS BRIDGE Cal# 2-16WV     

No new materials   

   

MCGUINNESS RESIDENCE, 17 SCHOOLHOUSE ROAD, SOUTH SALEM Cal# 3-16WV     

Board letter to Building Inspector, dated December 6, 2016  712 

   

HOMELAND TOWERS, LLC AND NEW CINGULAR,  117 WACCABUC ROAD, 

GOLDENS BRIDGE 

Cal #5-12 PB Cal #85-13 WP 

Request for extension of time to submit Wetland Mitigation Status Report due 

December 1, 2016, emailed November 21, 2016 

 713 

 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
TOWN OF LEWISBORO 

            Westchester County, New York 
        

                                                                                                                                                                                               
      

            Planning Board        Tel:  (914) 763-5592 
PO Box 725        Fax: (914) 763-3637 
Cross River, New York 10518      Email: planning@lewisborogov.com                       

                                                                                                        AGENDA 
 

Tuesday, December 20, 2016       Cross River Plaza, Cross River 
 

Note: Meeting will start at 7:30 p.m. and end at or before 11:30 P.M. 
 

 

I. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Cal# 3-13PB, 03-16WP 

“Silvermine Preserve,” Silvermine Drive & Lockwood Road, South Salem, NY, 10590 Sheet 48, Block 10057, Lot 

15 and Sheet 51, Block 10051, Lot 104  (Ridgeview Designer Builders, Inc. & Daniel Higgins, owners of record)-  

Applications for Subdivision, Wetland Activity and Stormwater Permits for the construction of a 13-lot subdivision. 

 

 

II. EXTENSION OF TIME REQUEST 
 

Cal #5-12 PB, #85-13 WP 

Homeland Towers, LLC and New Cingular – 117 Waccabuc Road, Goldens Bridge, NY 10526, Sheet 0011, Block 

11137, Lots 35 and 39 (Francis Coyle, owner of record) and Sheet 0011, Block 11137, Lot 52 (Ash Tree 

Development, owner of record) - Extension of time to submit Wetland Mitigation Status Report due December 1, 2016 

per Condition #41 in resolution granting Special Use Permit and Wetland Activity Permit dated December 11, 2012 

 

 

III. PROJECT REVIEW 

 

Cal #52-16 WP 

McPhillips Residence, 4 Robins Court, South Salem, NY 10590, Sheet 53, Block 9834, Lot 151 (David and Autumn 

McPhillips, owners of record) - Application for Wetland Activity Permit for renovation of a dry hydrant 

 

Cal #55-16 WP 

Lake Kitchawan Association, 166 Lake Kitchawan Drive, South Salem, NY 10590, Sheet 42, Block 10287, Lot 22 

(Lake Kitchawan Association , owner of record) - Application for Wetland Activity Permit for renovation of a dry 

hydrant 

 

Cal #58-16WP (previously Cal #56-13WP) 

Weisberg Residence, 25 Benedict Road, South Salem, NY, Sheet 33, Block 11155, Lot 153 (Tracey Weisberg, 

owner of record)  - Application for Wetland Permit Approval to replace wood dam with stone and concrete dam at same 

elevation 

 

 

IV. SKETCH  PLAN REVIEW 

 

       Cal #10-15 PB  

Wilder Balter Partners, NY State Route 22, Goldens Bridge, NY 10526, Sheet 5, Block 10776, Lots 19, 20 & 21 

(Property Group Partners, LLC, owner of record) – Application for a 46 unit MF development on a ±35.4 acre parcel 

 

Cal #7-16PB 

Verizon at Leon Levy Preserve, 1411 Route 35, South Salem, NY, Sheet 40, Block 10263, Lot 62A (American 

Tower, owner of record) – Application for Special Use Permit for equipment and antenna upgrade   

 

Cal# 8-16PB, Cal# 61-16WP 

Wild Oaks Water System, Nash Road, Goldens Bridge, NY, Sheet 8, Block 11137, Lot 123 (New York American 

Water, owner of record)  - Application for permanent installation of Well #4 and Well #6. 

 

 

V. WETLAND VIOLATIONS 

 

Cal #3-15WV 

Jacobson Residence, 1208 Route 35, South Salem, NY 10590  Sheet 31, Block 10805, Lot 42 (Kenneth Jacobson, 

owner of record) 

 

Cal# 2-13WV 

Alderman Residence, 11 Birch Spring Road, South Salem, 10590  Sheet 42A, Block 10545, Lot 24 (Kenneth 
and Patricia Alderman, owners of record) 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Cal#1-16WV, Cal#51-16WP 

Mogil Residence, 92 Waccabuc Road, Goldens Bridge, NY 10526, Sheet 10, Block 11152, Lot 6 (Arthur Mogil and 

Mary McCarty Mogil, owners of record)    

 

Cal#2-16WV    

Palomino Residence, 292 Waccabuc Road, Goldens Bridge, NY 10526, Sheet 7C, Block 12668, Lot 20 (Gustavo 

Palomino, owner of record)   

 

Cal#3-16WV    

McGuinness Residence, 17 Schoolhouse Road, South Salem, NY 10590, Sheet 22, Block 10802, Lot 35 (Annette 

and Peter McGuinness, owners of record)   

 

VI. CORRESPONDENCE AND GENERAL BUSINESS 

 Revision of Town Wetland Law 

 

2017 Meeting Dates 

 

 

VII. MINUTES OF March 15, 2016;  MINUTES OF April 19, 2016; MINUTES OF May 4, 2016; MINUTES OF May 

17, 2016; MINUTES OF June 21, 2016; MINUTES OF August 16, 2016; MINUTES OF September 13, 2016; 

MINUTES OF September 20, 2016; MINUTES OF October 25, 2016 and MINUTES OF November 15, 2016. 

 









































 
 
June 29, 2016 

 
 
Memo To: Jerome Kerner, Chairman, and Members 
  Town of Lewisboro Planning Board 
From:  David M. Emerson, Land Project Manager 
Subject: Silvermine Subdivision – Open Space Parcel  
====================================================== 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide additional information about the management of 
Westchester Land Trust (WLT) preserves in response to a request for information from the 
Planning Board’s meeting held on June 21. The open space parcel proposed to be created as 
part of the Silvermine Estates subdivision would, if ownership is transferred to WLT, be 
managed, maintained and made available for public use the same way as WLT’s current 
preserves in Lewisboro and in other communities in Westchester and Putnam Counties. 
 
Access and Passive Recreation 
 
The open space lot is accessible from Silvermine Road, a public road owned and maintained 
by the Town of Lewisboro. The development plan provides for alternative access, including 
designated parking spaces and an “Open Land Access Path,” from the proposed new private 
roadway connecting to Lockwood Road.  
(Drawings MP-1/MP-2, dated: 10/8/ 2012, revised 5/2016 & attached Concept Drawing)  
 
One vehicle for memorializing proposed access, which would be noted on the final plat and 
in the certificate of approval, could be an access easement.  
 
Motorized vehicles (including ATV’s) and camping are prohibited on WLT preserves as 
noted in the summary document presented previously and dated May 24, 2016.  
 
Passive recreation on WLT preserves encompasses outdoor recreational activities, such as 
nature observation, hiking, and riding (where appropriate) that require a minimum of 
facilities or development and that have minimal environmental impact on the site. No WLT 
preserve currently has trails suitable or open for bicycles. Use of trails by mountain bikers 
would depend on an assessment of site conditions during the management planning process 
and a determination that such use would be appropriate. The size, geometry, and terrain of 
the Silvermine open space do not appear suitable for bicycle use. 
 
Select WLT preserves are accessible to horses with trails maintained in cooperation with 
local equestrian groups including the Lewisboro Horsemen’s Association (Frederick P. Rose 
Preserve and Rock Shelter Preserve) and the Bedford Riding Lanes Association (Guard Hill 
Preserve). Use of trails by horses would depend on an assessment of site conditions during 
the management planning process and a determination that such use would be appropriate. 
The size, geometry, and terrain of the Silvermine open space do not appear suitable for 
equestrian use. 
 
There are no open space parcels, or trail linkages adjoining or proximate to this site, so 
connectivity to enhance recreation opportunities are not available at this time. 



Access and Passive Recreation (Cont.) 
 
Dogs are allowed on WLT preserves in accordance with local ordinances. In Lewisboro, that 
means dogs must be on leash or under voice control of owner. (The rationale is that local 
animal control can only take action, should a complaint be received, consistent with the 
provisions of the Town Code.) If fragile habitat or wildlife susceptible to disturbance were 
found to be present, WLT would be more restrictive and require dogs to be leashed. 
 
WLT preserves with trails are open to all visitors, and not restricted to the residents of the 
town(s) in which they are located. However, most preserves function as neighborhood 
amenities due to small size, parking constraints, absence of notable significant features, 
plethora of alternative sites, and so forth.  
 
The Silvermine open space parcel is suitable for hiking, and in fact has a history of such use, 
and the formalizing of at least one loop trail accessing all corners of the property is easily 
achievable thanks to an existing network of informal pathways. These pathways would be 
the foundation for a marked and mapped initial trail as described in the summary document 
submitted previously and dated May 24, 2016. 
 
Maintenance of Open Space Lands 
 
As a WLT preserve, the Silvermine open space would be maintained by WLT staff working 
with local volunteers and others. In Lewisboro, WLT shares volunteers and expertise with 
the Open Space Preserves Advisory Committee and the Lewisboro Land Trust. Maintenance 
protocols are detailed in the May 24 summary. 
 
Stewardship Plan 
 
A Stewardship Plan (or Comprehensive Management Plan), such as will be created for the 
Silvermine open space parcel when ownership is transferred to WLT, follows a format that 
includes: 
 
INTRODUCTION 
A. About the Westchester Land Trust; Significance of property to WLT’s Conservation Mission 
B. Management Planning Guidance  
 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION  
A. Property Profile  
B. Regional Setting & History (land use history and cultural resources) 
C. Conservation Values 
 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS  
A. Physical and Natural Resources  
B. Cultural & Historical Resources  
C. Threats, Issues and Opportunities  
 
STEWARDSHIP GOALS & MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS  
A. Boundary Posting  
B. Public Use (Passive Recreation), Access and Parking  
C. Trails & Signage 
D. Critical Habitats 
E. Habitat Management for Wildlife 
F. Invasive Species & Native Plants  
G. Conservation Programs 
  



 
 
Stewardship Plan (Cont.) 
 
IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 
A. Chart depicting Stewardship Priority Projects, Timeline and Budget 
B.  Development and Acquisitions Strategies 
 
APPENDICES 
 
APPENDIX A –  List of Selected Flora  
APPENDIX B –  List of Fauna  
APPENDIX C –  Site Location Map 
APPENDIX D –  Orthological Photo Map 
APPENDIX E –  Surrounding Open Space Map 
APPENDIX F –  Environmental Features Map 
APPENDIX G –  Soils Map 
APPENDIX H –  Watershed Drainage Map 
APPENDIX I –  Trail Map 
APPENDIX J -   Map of Key Abutters and Properties with Development  

and Acquisition Potential 
 

A Comprehensive Management Plan will be completed by WLT staff within six months of 
acquisition with input from all existing and potential stakeholders as well as local naturalists 
and others. 
 
 
 
Attachment: Silvermine Estates Trails Concept Map 





 
 
 
May 24, 2016 
 
About the Westchester Land Trust 
 
Founded in 1988 by dedicated residents, Westchester Land Trust works with public and private 
partners to preserve land in perpetuity, and to protect and enhance the natural resources in 
our communities. Countywide, the Land Trust has preserved more than 8,000 acres through 
accepting the donations of conservation easements, or by accepting the donation of parcels of 
land by the transfer of ownership. WLT’s conservation efforts impact the long-term health of 
our cities, towns and villages through protection of watersheds, wildlife, air quality, and local 
food supply.  
 
Westchester Land Trust has worked to protect properties of high conservation value in 
Westchester County and eastern Putnam County and to maintain them to the highest 
standards.  To ensure these standards are met, a program of careful planning and sound 
management is essential.   
 
In Lewisboro, Westchester Land Trust owns eight properties encompassing 184 acres. Of these 
properties, five are open to the public and have established marked trails that are maintained 
by WLT staff working with local volunteers. Preserves with trails are: 
 

• Frederick P. Rose Preserve (Cross River) – 85.6 acres, 1.7 miles of trails 
• Rock Shelter Preserve (Cross River) – 26 acres, 0.8 miles of trails 
• Love Preserve (Vista) – 11 acres, 1.1 miles of trails 
• Pine Croft Meadow Preserve – 9.1 acres, 0.5 miles of trails 
• Old Church Lane Preserve (South Salem) – 30.8 acres, 0.7 miles of trails* 

*Old Church Lane Preserve is similar to Silvermine Estates in physical features and natural character, 
surrounding residential neighborhood, management characteristics, and potential users. 

 
Westchester Land Trust follows practices articulated in its Land Policy Manual, a document 
adopted by its Board of Directors and accepted by the Land Trust Alliance (LTA) as part of WLT’s 
accreditation by the LTA. For fee-owned properties (land donated or transferred), the following 
practices apply: 
 
WLT accepts a major stewardship responsibility when it accepts fee simple ownership. When 
WLT accepts any property interest it develops a comprehensive stewardship plan for 
monitoring (seasonal visits and visits after major storm events or reports of damage or other 
problems), enforcing against encroachment or trespass, facilitating public access and use where 
appropriate, and implementation of habitat enhancement. Fee donations or ownership 
transfers are approved by the Executive Committee on behalf of the Board of Directors. 
(Silvermine Resolution of committee approval - dated May 2, 2016.) 
  



 
 
At the time of closing, at a minimum, a general written statement about the management 
goals/needs for the property (Management Summary* document) must be completed.  The 
final comprehensive management plan must be completed no later than six months after 
closing. 
 
Within six months of acquisition, a Comprehensive Management Plan* will be completed by the 
Director of Stewardship and stewardship staff. 
 
Within six months of acquisition, Director of Stewardship assures boundaries are marked, and 
monitoring and stewardship activity schedules are established. 
 
*Management planning and preserve management are undertaken at the staff level with no Board approval 
required. 
 
Management Planning Guidance 
 
The Westchester Land Trust is entrusted with the responsibility to care for the properties that it 
owns. The land trust will strive to maintain each property to the highest standard practicable 
and appropriate to its unique character as catalogued in the comprehensive management plan 
document prepared for the preserve. 
 
Given resource constraints, WLT must prioritize preserve management and land stewardship 
efforts based on key criteria including: public accessibility and opportunity for public 
engagement, quality of conservation values and the severity of their threats, financing 
opportunities, and potential efficacy of management.  In other words, those WLT’s preserves 
that are small, out of the way, difficult to access and that consist of unthreatened conservation 
values may not be prioritized for management and stewardship.   
 
Preserve management pertains to the legal, ethical and ‘good-neighbor’ aspects of responsible 
land ownership and includes activities such as posting property boundaries; mitigating unsafe 
conditions; corresponding and meeting with neighbors; maintaining good ‘curbside appeal’; 
and securing or facilitating safe access where appropriate.   
 
Land stewardship pertains to actively enhancing the natural and cultural values of the land and 
includes activities such as increasing the longevity of a forest; protecting a rare species; 
removing or mitigating threats to biodiversity; and maintaining historic vistas.  Both preserve 
management and land stewardship are carried out by WLT’s Stewardship Department.   
Restrictions on Use of Preserves   
 
General Preserve Policy 
 
As a general policy, WLT preserves are open to the public for hiking or passive recreation, 
where possible and practical. Motorized vehicles, camping, fires, littering, alcoholic beverages, 
and removal or disturbance of plants, wildlife, soils, and rocks are prohibited on all WLT 
preserves. Scientific studies on fee lands are allowed only with permission. 
  



 
Silvermine Estates Preserve 
 
The Silvermine open space parcel will be maintained and managed by the Westchester Land 
Trust as a nature preserve with priority given to forest health, water quality protection, habitat 
enhancement, passive recreation, and neighbor outreach and engagement.  
 
Existing trails provide a foundation for more formal trail layout and development and provide a 
head start for facilitating public access particularly continued historic use and access (albeit 
without formal permission) by residents within the surrounding neighborhood. An initial mile-
long loop trail is both feasible and achievable. At present, there are no existing off-site trails to 
provide potential connections. 
 
The parcel is in a key location within a drinking water supply watershed, and contiguous with 
expansive undeveloped woodland, not all of which is protected. WLT presence will help 
facilitate discussions with landowners toward possible future donations of land or conservation 
easements. 
 
 



COMPREHENSIVE CONSERVATION & MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 

OLD CHURCH LANE PRESERVE 
Town of Lewisboro, Westchester County, New York 

 

 

 
 

Management Plan Incorporates the Field Assessment Report by: 
James Nordgren, Consulting Naturalist – July 2012 

 

 
and was compiled by: 

Taylor Bushell, Land Steward 
Westchester Land Trust 

Bedford Hills, New York 10507 
January 2014 

 
 

Funding for the preparation of this management plan was provided, in part, by a grant from the New York State Conservation Partnership Program administered 
by the Land Trust Alliance. 

 
 

 
 

  



 Page - 2 - 

 
Table of Contents – 
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
 
A. About the Westchester Land Trust 

Significance of Old Church Lane Preserve to WLT’s Conservation Mission 
B. Management Planning Guidance 
 
II. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION  
 
A. Property Profile  
 1. Parcels 
 2. Coordinates 
 3. Acquisition history 
 4. Directions 
B. Regional Setting & History (land use history and cultural resources) 
C. Conservation Values 
 1. Public recreation and education 
 2. Natural features and habitats 
 3. Open space and natural buffers 
 4. Drinking water protection 
 
III. SITE CHARACTERISTICS  
 
A. Physical and Natural Resources  

1. Climate 
2. Geology  
3. Topography 
4. Hydrology 
5. Soils 
6. Vegetation Communities and Habitats 

a. Open wetland 
b. Riverine wetland 
c. Dry upland forest 

 e. Invasive plants 
7. Wildlife 
 a. Mammals 
 b. Birds 
 c. Reptiles and amphibians   

B. Cultural & Historical Resources  
C. Threats, Issues and Opportunities  
  



 Page - 3 - 

 
 
 
IV. STEWARDSHIP GOALS & MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
A. Boundary Posting  
B. Invasive species management  
C. Outreach to neighbors 
 
V. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 
 
A. Chart depicting Stewardship Priority Projects, Timeline and Budget 
B.  Development and Acquisitions Strategies 
 
VI. APPENDICES 
 

APPENDIX A –  List of Selected Flora  
APPENDIX B –  List of Selected Fauna  
APPENDIX C –  Site Location Map  
APPENDIX D –  Orthological Photo Map 
APPENDIX E –  Surrounding Open Space Map  
APPENDIX F –  Environmental Features Map  
APPENDIX G –  Soils Map  
APPENDIX H –  Watershed Drainage Map 
APPENDIX I –  Trail Map 
  

  



 Page - 4 - 

INTRODUCTION 
 
About the Westchester Land Trust 
 
Founded in 1988 by dedicated residents, Westchester Land Trust (WLT) works together with 
public and private partners to preserve land in perpetuity, and to protect and enhance the natural 
resources in our communities. Our conservation work spans both Westchester and eastern Putnam 
Counties, and the Land Trust has preserved 7,500 acres through accepting the donations of 
conservation easements, or by accepting or facilitating the donation of parcels of land by the 
transfer of ownership. WLT’s conservation efforts impact the long-term health of our cities, towns 
and villages through protection of watersheds, public water supply, wildlife, air quality, and local 
food supply.  
 
Westchester Land Trust has worked to protect properties of high conservation value in 
Westchester County and eastern Putnam County and to maintain them to the highest standards.  
To ensure these standards are met, a program of careful planning and sound management is 
essential.   
 
Significance of Old Church Lane Preserve to WLT’s conservation mission 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is one of Westchester Land Trust’s property holdings with trails, 
parking, and active programing. The preserve is dedicated to the conservation of its natural 
resources and is in a key watershed location with significant expanses of open space and 
undeveloped lands – both protected and otherwise – nearby.  
 
Several factors have guided the planning effort and will continue to inform and determine the 
active ongoing management of the Old Church Lane Preserve and all of WLT’s lands.  This 
framework includes: 
 
First, Westchester Land Trust’s mission: 
 
Westchester Land Trust works together with public and private partners to preserve land in 
perpetuity, and to protect and enhance the natural resources in our communities. 
 
Second, management will support the pertinent initiatives from the list of priorities outlined in 
Westchester Land Trust’s Conservation Plan including the following: 
 

• Protection of water resources, particularly drinking water resources; √ 
• Protection of wildlife habitats – contiguous (non‐fragmented) areas and corridors  

(connections between habitats); √  
• Preservation of land available for passive recreation; √ 
• Preservation of existing farmland or land that has potential for use as farmland 

in the future; √ 
• Preservation of scenic vistas and viewsheds. √ 

  



 Page - 5 - 

 
Third, several principles will guide WLT’s work at the Old Church Lane Preserve.  These 
guiding principles will be applied when carrying out work at all WLT properties.  They are 
value statements that may also provide a source of criteria for determining goals and 
recommended actions. 

 
1. Westchester Land Trust will continue to adapt its management based on experience, 

newly gained knowledge, and available human and financial resources. 
 

2. We consider resource protection to be WLT’s fundamental responsibility.  Only by 
protecting the significant resources of our land holdings can we attain our visitor 
experience goals – a good visitor experience is derived from our preserves being in 
excellent condition.  
 

3. We will apply the best available management practices to protect and conserve the 
Old Church Lane Preserve’s outstanding features.  
 

4. Successful management of the property relies on sound financial management.  To be 
the best possible stewards of our precious financial and human resources, we nurture 
a culture of innovation, financial discipline and thriftiness. 
 

5. Through good communication and collaboration, WLT will confirm and strengthen 
its partnership with the local community, supporters, volunteers, and other 
conservation partners to achieve its long-term goals for the property.  We view 
ourselves as a community partner, investing in creative initiatives to build shared 
values, perspectives and skills among diverse constituencies. 

 
Management Planning Guidance 
 
The Westchester Land Trust is entrusted with the responsibility to care for the properties that it 
owns, and will own forever. The land trust will strive to maintain each property to the highest 
standard practicable and appropriate to its unique character as catalogued in this comprehensive 
management plan. 
 
The process of assessing the key attributes of each parcel begins with a detailed description of 
natural (plant and animal communities), physical (land and water), and cultural (scenic, historical, 
archaeological) resources comprising its unique character. The work product is a descriptive 
report, and a listing of recommendations for management tasks that includes a schedule for 
implementation and a summary of costs. Identified actions necessary to the protection of 
resources, or to the safety of neighbors or visitors, are given priority. 
  



 Page - 6 - 

OLD CHURCH LANE PRESERVE 
 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
A. Property Profile - 
 
1. - Parcels: Section-Block-Lot (Acres) – Donor; Date -- 
45A-9827-69 (30.78 acres) – Open Space Institute, Inc.; 9/9/2003 (Control Number 432250243) 
 
2. – Coordinates: Longitude/Latitude: 73° 31' 54.823"W/41° 14' 3.209"N 
 
3. - Acquisition History Narrative: 
The Old Church Lane Preserve was acquired by the Westchester Land Trust from the Open Space 
Institute (OSI) in September, 2003.  The land on which the preserve sits was originally part of a 45 
acre lot owned by OSI.  The 45 acres was subdivided into three parcels: the 30 acre Old Church 
Lane Preserve and two smaller parcels to the east (5 and 9.5 acres) that were sold to Putnam Realty 
and developed for residential purposes.  Westchester Land Trust holds a conservation easement 
(encompassing approximately 8.3 acres) on the two residential parcels created by the subdivision.  
Sometime between 2004 and 2007 a house was built outside of the conservation easement area on 
each of the smaller parcels.   
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is a part of the Siscowit watershed which is part of the drinking 
water supply system operated by the Aquarion Water Company of Connecticut.  
 
No donation(s) toward stewardship, or property-tax payment, were received. This preserve has no 
endowment.  
 
A Conservation Easement for Old Church Lane Preserve is held by the Open Space Institute and 
was donated to our conservation partner by WLT in 2004 (Control No. 440920264  - 4/29/2004).  
 
4. - Directions: Old Church Lane Preserve is located in Lewisboro, New York.  To get there from 
Rte. 35 turn onto Rte. 123, make a right onto Kitchawan Rd., and a left onto Old Church Lane.  Just 
south of the intersection of Kitchawan Rd and Old Church lane there is a small pull-off on the left 
side of the road for parking.   
 
B. Regional Setting and History   
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is in the southwestern part of Lewisboro, near the 
Lewisboro/Pound Ridge border. This comprehensive management plan report describes the 30.78 
acres of land along the east side of Old Church Lane that is owned by the Westchester Land Trust.  
Old Church Lane Preserve is adjacent to the 22,000 acre Eastern Westchester Biotic Corridor, which 
has been described by local scientists (the Metropolitan Conservation Alliance) as having some of 
the highest levels of native biodiversity found anywhere in the northeastern United States. In 2004, 
the Town of Lewisboro and the adjoining municipalities of Pound Ridge and North Salem entered 
into an inter-municipal agreement to protect the corridor through integrated land-use planning.  A 
portion of the defined corridor was subsequently extended into the Town of Bedford.   
  



 Page - 7 - 

 
While the Old Church Lane Preserve is not technically within the boundaries of the Eastern 
Westchester Biotic Corridor, its proximity to it (<2000 feet) is notable and suggests that the 
preserve shares the corridor’s characteristic benefit to local biodiversity.    
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is geographically situated among many undeveloped and/or 
protected parcels.  To the east of the preserve is the 14 acre Open Space Institute conservation 
easement held by the Westchester Land Trust; directly to the northwest are 23 acres subject to a 
conservation easement held by the Westchester Land Trust and still further west is the 828 acre 
Aquarion Water Company land holding, which surrounds Trinity Lake and the Mill River 
Reservoir.  Adjacent to the north, west and south sides of the Aquarion Water Company land are 
many permanently protected parcels (nature preserves and conservation easements).    
 
The preserve is a mix of dry upland and wet lowland forests with considerable conservation value.  
Within the preserve is a loop trail and access opportunities for the general public are facilitated by 
parking on Old Church Lane. The abutting properties are privately owned, although the abutting 
property to both the east and the northwest are subject to the provisions of a conservation 
easement held by Westchester Land Trust.  
 
During the Revolutionary War, the population of Westchester was depleted. In 1788, the county 
was divided into 20 towns. In 1798, the first federal census recorded a population of 24,000, with 
the primary occupation farming. Extensive farming activity led to increased forest clearing for 
agriculture. Continued economic and agricultural development in the early 1800s and the arrival of 
the railroad in the 1830s and 40s resulted in a population of 99,000 by 1860. 
 
With the expansion of railroads and the New York City water system, the population of 
Westchester County continued to grow.  In the late 1800s, manufacturing interests grew, 
particularly along the Hudson River. During this period, many New York City residents migrated 
to Westchester County, thus increasing the population and placing greater pressures on the 
county’s landscape and natural ecosystems. By 1920, the population of Westchester County was 
350,000.  In 2010, the population of Westchester County was 949,113.  
 
Today, many parts of Westchester County remain relatively rural, including large areas within the 
Town of Lewisboro. In 2010, the population of Lewisboro was 12,411, with a population density of 
430 persons per square mile. This compares with a population density of 1,898 persons per square 
mile in Westchester County as a whole. Open space is a valued commodity locally, and recognized 
as important to the quality of life of residents as articulated in the Lewisboro Town Master Plan,  
May 24, 1985. 
  



 Page - 8 - 

 
C. Conservation Values – 
 
1. – Public Recreation and Education: 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve has the potential for meaningful public recreation and education. 
There is parking for visitors, and a short, very accessible and easily negotiated loop trail 
approximately 0.5 miles in length. The preserve is an attraction to birdwatchers, lovers of other 
wildlife, photographers, botanists and others. The location of the preserve within a water supply 
watershed, its variety of wooded wetlands and its part of a large undeveloped and protected 
landscape are all subjects for study and programming.   
 
2. – Natural Features and Habitats: 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is located adjacent the Eastern Westchester Biotic Corridor, an open 
space corridor designated in the 2009 New York Open Space Plan for special preservation. It 
contains a diversity of plant communities and habitat types most notable of which are the Old 
Church Lane Preserve’s State-designated wetlands.    
 
3. – Open Space and Natural Buffers: 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is adjacent to an 8.3 acre, WLT-held easement to the northwest and 
a 14 acre, WLT-held conservation easement to the east.  Significant protected open space parcels 
are found nearby.  
 
4. – Drinking Water and Surface Water Protection: 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is within a public drinking water supply watershed, and also 
contributes to the protection of surface water quality of downstream lakes and ponds.  
 
 
  



 Page - 9 - 

SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 

A. Physical and Natural Resources 
 
1. Climate: 
 
The Westchester County Region is characterized by moderately cold winters and warm summers.  
The Old Church Lane Preserve is located just far enough from the coastline to be unaffected by the 
moderating influence of Long Island Sound and the Atlantic Ocean.  It is unlikely that the nearby 
Trinity Lake and other proximate water bodies have a moderating influence on climate conditions 
affecting mean temperature, depths of snow, and humidity levels. Regional weather data are 
recorded at the Westchester County Airport. Local weather data is collected and reported through 
Weather Underground at weather stations in Waccabuc and Goldens Bridge (Westchester County), 
New York, and in Ridgefield and at the Danbury Airport (Fairfield County), Connecticut. 
 
The average winter temperature is 26 degrees with occasional extreme lows approaching -5 
degrees.  In summer, temperatures average 84 degrees to 86 degrees with 100 degrees exceeded on 
occasion. The growing season is approximately 170 – 190 days in length and extends from mid-
April to mid-October. Average annual precipitation is 42 - 48 inches including an average – but 
highly variable – annual snowfall of 35 – 45 inches (10 inches of snow will melt into one inch of 
water). 
 
The prevailing winds are from the southwest with an average velocity of seven miles-per-hour.  
Northwesterly winds are frequent during the winter, with the highest average wind speed of 14 
miles-per-hour encountered during the month of February. The region experiences two dozen or 
so thunderstorms each year, the majority of which occur in summer, and a periodic hurricane 
during the storm season from late summer through early fall. The most recent major hurricane to 
strike the southeastern New York area was “Bob” during August 1991. The more commonly 
occurring ice storms, wind storms,  and snow storms associated with so-called “nor’ easters” are 
the more consequential weather events affecting the landscape as are tropical storms such as 
“Irene” in August 2011, “Bob” in October 2011, and “Sandy” in October 2012. 
 
Why look at climate? – 
 
A region’s climate, in combination with its topography and underlying geology, has a significant 
impact on water resources, soils, vegetation patterns, and wildlife. 
 
Precipitation falling on the surface of the land, for example, will return to the atmosphere as water 
vapor through the processes of evaporation and evapotranspiration (the pumping of water back 
into the air by plants); will infiltrate or move downward through the soil to the water table as 
ground water and may re-surface as a spring or seep; or will flow downhill over the surface of the 
ground as surface-water runoff.  This water wets the soils, flows in the streams and rivers, and fills 
ponds and lakes. 
  



 Page - 10 - 

 
The elements of climate that most affect soil formation are temperature and precipitation.  These 
factors act directly on exposed bedrock and on so-called “parent” material (parent material is the 
term used to describe the mineral fragments from which different soils develop) resulting from the 
weathering of bedrock, and indirectly on the various biological populations – bacteria, molds and 
fungi, lichens, mosses, herbaceous plants, earthworms, and other living organisms – that also 
modify rocks and minerals. 
 
Temperature influences the indigenous and introduced vegetation, as does water within the soil.  
Where slopes face to the south or north, the radiant energy of the sun warms and dries the former, 
and leaves the latter in the cool moist shade.  Where slopes face east, the soils tend to stay moist. 
Where they face west, they tend to be drier. 
 
Within the Old Church Lane Preserve the terrain rises and falls sharply in some place and 
smoothly in others; the highest elevation of 700’ above mean sea level is found along the rocky 
slopes in the eastern part of the preserve which drops to an elevation of 595’ above mean sea level 
in the shrub wetland.  
 
The species of animals that inhabit an area are those that are adapted, or well suited, to deal with 
its seasons, temperature ranges, availability of water, the chemical and physical nature of its soils, 
and the food and shelter provided by its plant communities. 
 
While the climate of an area is generally uniform, local variations in the landscape produce 
singular conditions that give a specific geographical area a distinctive character.  The Old Church 
Lane Preserve exhibits a modest array of these complex microclimates, the most prominent being a 
contrast between moist lowland habitats and dry upland habitats. These physical conditions affect 
plant composition, wildlife inhabitants, water quality, and the potential for a variety of uses, 
management strategies, and conservation initiatives. 
 
2. Geology: 
 
The geology of New York is fascinating because of its diversity. The discussion of a region’s 
geology requires placing the area in both an historical context (time), and in a geographical context 
(place).  Attention may then be directed to documenting, interpreting, and understanding the 
various features encountered – beginning from the “bottom” or bedrock, and proceeding upwards 
to the surface.  The geological history of the Old Church Lane Preserve spans a period of 
approximately 1.2 billion - 570 million years, and is encompassed within a geographic region of the 
state known to geologists as the Hudson Highlands within the Manhattan Prong.  
 
The underlying bedrock within the site is granitic in nature and composed of gneiss and other 
metamorphic rocks. Generally, the bedrock within the region follows a pattern of long ridges and 
adjoining valleys trending in the direction of the glaciers that scoured the area repeatedly as they 
advanced from Canada toward Long Island.   
  



 Page - 11 - 

 
The glaciers had a profound impact on the shape and character of the landscape we see today.  
Several episodes – at least four and perhaps as many as 10 – of glaciation, advances and retreats of 
massive sheets of ice more than a quarter-mile thick, have occurred in southeastern New York 
during the past two million years.  The last glacial advance took place between 16,000 and 23,000 
years ago. 
 
Twenty thousand years ago, the land comprising the preserve and environs was devoid of plants 
and animals and buried under a mass of ice more than 1,000 feet in thickness that had extended as 
far south as Long Island and would persist for thousands of years as warming temperatures 
slowly melted it back to the north and northwest. 
 
The ice sheets smoothed hills, scoured valleys, and ground and churned rock fragments of all sizes 
and deposited them in new locations as “glacial till.”  Rivers of meltwater sorted through much of 
the material and carried silts and sands down valleys as “outwash”; heavier gravels were left 
farther upstream and light silts and clays were deposited in the still waters of glacial lakes as 
deltas.  It is important to know that the glaciers did not create the landscape.  The basic foundation 
is the bedrock, and the form of the pre-glacier terrain was created by previous stream erosion of 
the various types of bedrock with some types more resistant to weathering and erosion than 
others.  The glaciers did, however, move and shape the looser materials that had eroded from high 
areas and were carried to low areas by moving water and, to a lesser extent by wind. 
 
The glaciers modified the shapes of the hilltops and valleys, and pushed loose material from one 
place to another.  Erosion and deposition are ongoing processes that continue to modify the 
landscape.   
 
Within a half mile of the preserve there is a significant geological feature. This general area is 
located within a band of Inwood Marble, a bedrock deposit of calcareous limestone that stretches 
from the reservoirs in northern Pound Ridge and Vista north to the three lakes area of Lewisboro. 
When water collects in low areas within areas containing calcareous soil, the wooded wetlands 
and wet meadows exhibit a unique array of plant communities because the reduced acidity 
prevents valuable nutrients from leaching from the soil. The resulting growing conditions are 
more hospitable to flora and fauna than the more typical acidic conditions. Limestone is also 
associated with the area’s major aquifer, the source of drinking water for the bulk of the residents 
that depend on individual wells. Because of the rich biodiversity found in limestone areas and the 
important role that limestone plays in filtering drinking water found in aquifers, limestone areas 
are a conservation priority.  
 
There is no evidence that the low-lying areas of the Old Church Lane Preserve are underlain by 
limestone, but further investigation would be of interest.  
 
Of significance within the Old Church Lane Preserve is the predominance of a uniform and 
shallow blanket of glacial till – unsorted materials from silts and sands to gravels and stones – that 
was pressed into the bedrock by the weight of the ice mass during glaciation. Areas of glacial till 
are characterized by compacted soils that do not readily hold water. 
  



 Page - 12 - 

 
 
3. Topography: 
 
One of the important features of an area’s topography is the influence that the character of the land 
has on the flow – both in direction and in speed – of surface and ground water.  Water that falls as 
rain or snow on one side of a hillside is pulled downward by gravity.  Water that falls on the other 
side of the hillside flows in a different direction.  The highest points in the landscape are called 
“divides”; they are the topographic features that divide the falling precipitation.  Water may flow 
over the surface of the ground as runoff, or it may percolate through the underlying sands, silts, 
gravels, and/or fractured rock and move down slope as ground water. All of the land that directs 
water to a common outlet point is called a “watershed.”  The watershed is named after the major 
surface-water feature that collects and carries the water within it. 
 
The topography of the preserve site ranges from 528 feet to 568 feet above mean sea level and 
drains into the Mill River/Siscowit reservoir system. 
 
In addition to its significance in forming the visual character of the landscape, and its effect on the 
direction and rate of water flow, an area’s topography is one of the determining factors on 
vegetation patterns.  Slopes are alternately in sun or shadow for varying times of the day 
depending on their orientation.  Southerly facing slopes are exposed to sunlight throughout the 
day and throughout the seasons, and northerly facing slopes are always in the cool moist shade.  
Larger trees are subject to damage from ice in winter and from wind-throw during storms 
funneled through valleys to a greater or lesser extent depending on orientation. 
 
The examination of an area’s topography, or its “relief,” is an examination of its surface features.  
The relief of an area is greatly influenced by the underlying bedrock geology. The drainage basins 
and climate determine hydrology, and the cultural features within the area of interest reflect the 
history of human uses.   
 
Accordingly, the discussion of topography follows that of Regional Setting, History, Climate, and 
Geology, and precedes Hydrology, Soils, Vegetation, and Wildlife. 
 
4. Hydrology: 
 
The ridges of the Old Church Lane are intersected by a stream that runs north to south throughout 
the parcel and a minor watercourse that runs from the eastern boundary into the wetlands, exiting 
under a stream channel beneath Old Church Lane at the western boundary. Runoff eventually is 
carried into reservoirs to the south that provide drinking water supplied by the Aquarion Water 
Company of Connecticut.   
 
Precipitation falling on the surface of the land will return to the atmosphere as water vapor 
through the processes of evaporation and evapotranspiration; will infiltrate through porous soils 
and fragmented rock to the water table as groundwater; or will flow downhill over the surface of 
the ground as surface-water runoff.   
  



 Page - 13 - 

 
Evaporation can be measured directly, but evapotranspiration – the combined loss of water vapor 
to the atmosphere from evaporation and transpiration (a result of the water-transporting metabolic 
processes of plant life that may be simply described as growing plants actively pumping water 
from the ground into the air) cannot.  Evapotranspiration rates must be derived from water-budget 
studies. Generally, however, water loss to the atmosphere from evapotranspiration in southeastern 
New York is estimated at approximately 21 – 23 inches per year. 
 
Recharge, or infiltration of water through the soil and fractured rock into the water table may 
range from 7 – 12 inches per year but is highly variable depending upon the type and depth of soil, 
the slope or steepness of the land, the type and extent of vegetation cover, the intensity of the 
rainfall, and the weather conditions.  
 
The remaining balance of precipitation will flow over the surface of the ground, pulled downhill 
by gravity in a direction that is perpendicular to the contour of the land as runoff, and will form 
streams, rivers, lakes, and ponds.  This is the water most readily available for use, and the most 
susceptible to contamination.  Since much of the landscape of the preserve is characterized by 
moderately to steeply sloping terrain with well-drained and somewhat excessively drained soils, it 
may be concluded that much more than half of the annual precipitation finds its way into its 
wetlands and drainage ways as surface runoff.  Since land uses within the drainage area(s) are 
restricted, water quality is protected. 
 
No significant groundwater-recharge sites are found within the preserve due to the nature and 
glacial-till origin of most of the soils, presence of hardpan, and absence of any extensive deposits of 
sands and gravels.  
 
5. Soils: 
 
The soils of an area are the consequence of its geological history, its climate, and its topography.  In 
turn, the soils greatly influence the area’s hydrology and vegetation, and its suitability for various 
uses from woodland management and the production of crops, to the siting of houses and 
roadways. 
 
Soils provide a substrate for plants and a home for many animals.  They are the site of much 
decomposition of organic matter and the reclaiming of the nutrients necessary to the growth of 
plants.  Soils influence water movement and water chemistry, and they are greatly responsible for 
determining the availability of water within the ecosystem.  The composition, depth, water-storage 
qualities, and stoniness are just some of the qualities of soils that determine the suitability of an 
area for various uses.  
 
Soils are classified on the basis of the specific combination of the following four factors: 
 
1) The original parent or rock material from which they were derived.  Soils develop from the 
“bottom” or base rock up, not from the top down (even though we look at soils from their surface). 
Stockbridge marble, for example, is a very different parent material than Bedford gneiss; 
  



 Page - 14 - 

 
2) The climatic conditions that the soils are subject to – especially precipitation and temperature; 
 
3) The living organisms that affect the soil chemically and structurally, and are especially 
significant in determining its organic content; 
 
4) The length of time that has transpired as formation proceeded from the initial weathering of the 
parent material. 
 
Mineral soils are formed by the physical, chemical, and biological weathering of primary minerals 
in the bedrock and overlying glacial deposits.  When these soils are derived primarily from 
material weathered from granitic gneiss they are acidic in nature. When they are derived from 
limestone and sandstone, they are calcareous in nature.  Topography is also an important factor as 
soils are eroded or washed from the slopes into the bottomlands. 
 
The Old Church Land Preserve has four general associations of mineral soils: Chatfield-Hollis-
Rock Outcrop Complex (10%); Charlton - Chatfield Complex (45%); Chatfield- Charlton Complex 
(5%); and Sun Loam (40%). Chatfield-Hollis soils are shallow, rocky and very dry soils formed in a 
thin mantle of till derived mainly from gneiss, schist, and granite and are found along the rocky 
outcroppings at the parcel’s northern edge. Chatfield-Charlton soils are moderately deep and very 
dry formed in till overlying granite, gneiss, or schist bedrock. They occupy the area between the 
rocky outcroppings at the northern edge. Charlton-Chatfield soils - acidic loamy tills derived from 
granite, gneiss, or schist bedrock - are found in the parcel’s central and eastern portions. Sun Loam 
soil is very deep and is formed in glacial till derived primarily from limestone and sandstone. The 
sun soils are found in the two wetlands and the low areas in the center of the parcel and are 
considered soils of farmland importance.   
 
Note: Soils information, and the identification of wetland areas, provided by government agencies for general 
information purposes is not a substitute for a detailed identification of soils types by a qualified professional 
undertaking a comprehensive field survey. 
 
Westchester County’s soils have been classified and mapped by the U.S.D.A.  Soil Conservation 
Service in cooperation with the Cornell University Agricultural Experiment Station. 
 
Detailed descriptions and other information about soils may be found at the United States 
Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Services website: 
http://soils.usda.gov/technical/classification/, United States Department of Agriculture Soil 
Survey of Putnam and Westchester Counties, and Table 8 (New York Soils Hydrologic Groups) 
listed on the New York and Cornell University Crop and Soil Sciences website: 
http://nmsp.css.cornell.edu/publications/index.asp   
 
The online resource of choice for site-specific general soils information is the Web Soil Survey found at: 
http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx.       
  

http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/app/WebSoilSurvey.aspx


 Page - 15 - 

 
6. Vegetation: 
 
The “flora” of an area – its inhabitant plant life – consists of the sum total of all of the species of 
plants that are found within its designated boundaries.  Each type of plant, or species, counts 
equally; relative abundance is of lesser importance.  In contrast, the “vegetation” of an area is 
described in terms of the mosaic – or combination or pattern –of species that dominate a plant 
community. Less abundant individual species are of limited importance, and may even be ignored. 
 
A cataloguing of the flora lends itself to the production of lists of plants.  A description of an area’s 
vegetation lends itself to interpreting the interacting environmental factors that influence a 
particular site.  These environmental factors include temperature, moisture, sunlight, soil type, and 
influences of resident wildlife. Study of an area’s vegetation leads to the formulation of a holistic 
understanding of the natural systems comprising that bit of the landscape that is the object of the 
study. 
 
There are nearly 4,000 species of vascular plants in New York State and slightly more than 1,000 
species in Westchester County.  The compilation of an all-inclusive and definitive list of a specific 
area’s plants would, of necessity, be an ongoing task spanning each season and every year; the 
investigator would have an ever-changing catalogue of plant life.  (Learn more about the 
cataloguing on New York’s plant life by linking to the New York Flora Atlas project - 
http://newyork.plantatlas.usf.edu/.) 
 
A description of an area’s vegetation, in contrast, provides a measure by which the history of an 
area can be inferred, and the future anticipated.  A look at species composition and distribution 
within one area provides a means of comparison with other areas. 
 
The specific plant communities, or associations of different plants that grow together in a 
particular area, are the consequence of a variety of factors that include the following: 
 
Physical factors – resulting from wind, available light, seasonal temperatures, moisture, available 
nutrients, soil structure, chemistry, and drainage; 
 
Biological factors – such as disease and the impact of wildlife; 
 
Cultural factors – resulting from human uses and activities. 
 
The vegetation of an area is not only the consequence of these and other factors, it is a readily 
visible indication of what conditions are like within that area.  For example, early settlers often 
looked for lands vegetated with moist-forest trees such as beech, hickory, and ash as an indication 
of rich soils that would be ideal for agricultural.  A red maple community indicates poor drainage 
and swamp conditions.  Oaks grow in areas where the soils are drier, well drained, and often 
nutrient poor.  Hemlock and beech will be found in areas that have been free of fire since both 
species are particularly susceptible to damage because of shallow root systems and thin bark.   
  

http://newyork.plantatlas.usf.edu/.)


 Page - 16 - 

 
Diseases such as the chestnut blight, and now ash wilt, have dramatic effects on an area’s 
vegetation as does insect damage from pests such as the gypsy moth, wooly adelgid, and emerald 
ash borer.  Browsing deer can change the composition of species over time as choice food plants 
are eaten repeatedly giving less palatable plants an advantage. Beaver can have a dramatic effect 
on vegetation as they change drainage conditions when they dam watercourses to create shallow 
impoundments, and gnaw down trees for food and building materials. Non-native earthworms 
quickly recycle organic material within woodlands releasing excess nutrients, and some species of 
invasive plants either change soil chemistry (autumn olive), or exude compounds that inhibit the 
growth of other plants (garlic mustard), or both (Japanese Stiltgrass). 
 
Another reason to look at vegetation is because the type of plant community present – woodland, 
marsh, swamp, etc. – is an indication of the type of wildlife that may inhabit that area.  Ecologists 
define habitat on the basis of the plant community, and can infer much about resident wildlife by 
looking at the plants.  
 
The vegetation of an area may be described in a variety of ways: 
 
The vegetation may be described in terms of Forest Cover Types such as mixed hardwoods (no 
fewer than 60 percent hardwoods); swamp hardwoods (hardwood species found on sites 
underlain by poorly drained soils); mixed conifers-hardwoods (at least 60 percent conifers); stands 
(dominated by one species such as hemlock, beech, pine, or cedar); plantations (a managed 
monoculture such as a Christmas tree plantation); regeneration area (woodland areas that have 
been cut, or fields that have been abandoned); and fields (where pasturing, mowing, or other 
management practices restrict the regeneration of woody plants). 
 
Alternatively, the vegetation of a site may be described in terms of the structure of the community 
– tree canopy, shrub layer or understory, and herbaceous layer or ground cover – and its position 
on the land – crest or ridge top, mid slope, lower slope/cove,  
or swamplands/bottomlands. 
 
Arial photographs of the Old Church Lane Preserve reveal second growth woodland surrounding 
an open wetland in the northwest section and a forested wetland corridor running north-south 
through the center of the parcel. 
   
The preserve’s vegetation follows a topographic gradient and is made up of upland mixed 
hardwoods (uplands) and swamp hardwoods (lowlands). The woodlands include a rich variety of 
tree species, but a limited distribution of age classes; a young age class (1-30 years old) is generally 
missing among the trees. The tree canopy varies from closed and shady in most areas to partially 
open and sunny in the western wetland. The understory is sparse in most of the western portion 
but is very dense in the eastern portion where thickets of mountain laurel dominate. 
   
The southwest portion of the property is dominated by oaks including chestnut, black and white 
oak with black birch as an associate species. One large white oak is at least three feet in diameter 
and the sole white pine on the parcel is located here. It is at least five feet in diameter with what 
may be a raptor nest located against the trunk approximately thirty feet off the ground.  
  



 Page - 17 - 

 
The understory is sparse. Deer rubs on saplings indicating the presence of white tail deer which 
account for the lack of understory. White pine seedlings are numerous, moderately shade tolerant 
and show no evidence of deer browse.  All this indicates that a cohort of white pine will inherit 
this small corner of the parcel.  
   
A.  Open Wetland- A New York State Wetland  The open wetland in the northwest corner of the 
parcel exhibits an open canopy. Ample sunshine allows sweet pepperbush, high-bush blueberry, 
winterberry, swamp azalea, willows, alders and viburnums to flourish here. At the northern edge 
of the wetland is a large, three foot diameter black oak. Basal scars indicate that this area may have 
once been logged. Large droppings indicate that raptors use the branches for perching. The 
preserve’s only hemlock tree is here but with a thinning canopy is showing signs of infestation by 
the hemlock wooly adelgid. 
   
B.  Riverine wetland- A New York State Wetland  This wetland is a mix of red maple, white ash 
(possibility of some black ash), tulip poplar and yellow. Most trees are relatively young, 
approximately 18 inches in diameter and fifty to seventy feet in height. The exception are several 
impressive tulip poplars, some of which are nearly three feet in diameter and nearly ninety feet 
tall. Gaps in the canopy are the result of several downed oak trees, probably victims of the October 
2011 snowfall that weighed down on the still-attached oak leaves. This wetland may serve as 
breeding areas for wood frogs, spring peepers, tree frogs and spotted salamanders.   
   
C.  Dry upland forest  Rising from both wetlands are upland woodlands that dominate the 
southwest, center and eastern edge of the property.  This is a high-diversity forest with white, red, 
black and chestnut oak, sassafras, American beech, black birch, serviceberry, mountain laurel, tulip 
poplar, American elm, shagbark hickory, pignut hickory, flowering dogwood, red maple, white 
ash and muscle-wood.  This diversity is not heterogeneously distributed across the preserve.  
Alternatively, pockets of individual species (or associations) can be found.  The understory is 
primarily made up of serviceberry, witch hazel and mountain laurel.  A lone, dead red cedar may 
indicate that this area was open pasture at one time. 
     
E.  Invasive plants  Fortunately, the Old Church Lane Preserve has mostly small/newly 
established patches of invasive plants.  This differs from many other forested parcels in northeast 
Westchester County.  Japanese barberry and Asiatic bittersweet only grow in a small handful of 
easy-to-access places and can be easily removed.  Phragmites grows along Old Church Lane (along 
with multiflora rose) and in the southern portion of the shrub wetland.  Silt grass may be present 
in the preserve in two locations and further field investigations will confirm its presence and 
absence.   
 
In most instances at the preserve invasive plant control should be prioritized because of the 
general ease with which they can be handled and the relatively large impact of early control 
efforts.          
 
  



 Page - 18 - 

7. Wildlife: 
Most of an area’s wildlife inhabitants are visible only to the frequent visitor and patient observer, if 
they are visible at all.  The compiling of a complete inventory of the fauna of a site is an endeavor 
that will never be completed with certainty.  Just as changes in the time of day and the seasons of 
the year bring animals to an area, change in the nature of the area itself over time is an ongoing 
and sometimes unpredictable process. As the habitats change, some species will move elsewhere – 
just as new species will move in.  It is a dynamic process worthy of careful long-term study. 
 
A study of an area’s wildlife begins with a cataloguing of its habitat types through aerial-photo 
interpretation and field visits.  Since many species are habitat limited, the identification of a site’s 
habitats helps narrow the possibilities; the investigator would not search for bobolinks, for 
example, if no meadowlands were found within or near the site.   
 
Existing information may be available from a variety of sources including local universities, area 
nature centers and naturalist clubs; the pertinent divisions of State and Federal agencies; species-
atlas projects; and historical records of sightings. Field techniques include trapping mammals, 
hair/fur snares, direct observation of the animals themselves by sight and sounds, or the indirect 
observation of the animals by signs such as tracks, scats, or pellets.  Birds are most readily 
catalogued during the active nesting season. 
 
“Speculative” animals are not to be forgotten.  Within the Old Church Lane Preserve, for example, 
one might speculate on the presence of mammals such as bobcat and fisher.   
 
The more time spent searching, the more complete the survey of resident and transient wildlife 
will be.  The diversity of the fauna is the consequence of the diversity of the vegetation 
communities, the readily availability of water, and the character of surrounding lands.  A list of 
observed and anticipated wildlife species is found in Appendix 2. 
    
A. Mammals -  Gray squirrels, eastern chipmunks, white-tailed deer, raccoons, deer mice, and 
coyotes are likely to be the most commonly observed mammals within the preserve.  Deer are 
especially abundant as evidenced by numerous well-worn trails, bedding areas and abundant 
droppings.  The wooded swamp bottomlands environment may be home for mink while the 
larger, cavity prone trees may support southern flying squirrel.  Existing mammal populations are 
well represented by species that would be considered common and readily observed within 
northern Westchester County.  
 
B. Birds – The Old Church Lane Preserve contains both upland and lowland wooded 
habitats and most likely supports a variety of bird species associated with these habitats.  
The shrubs found in the western, open wetland may provide cover and/or food to 
migrating and/or nesting songbirds, while the closed canopy forests are likely to support a 
large host of forest birds (woodpeckers, raptors, songbirds and turkey).   
 
C. Reptiles and Amphibians - Many reptile and amphibian species require both wetland and 
upland habitats for breeding and non-breeding activities. It is likely that wood frogs, spring 
peepers, spotted salamander, eastern garter snake, American toad and wood turtles live in the Old 
Church Lane Preserve.    
  



 Page - 19 - 

 
 
 

B. Cultural and Historical Resources – 
 
The cultural resources of a site include archeological features – rock shelters, middens, camps and 
other evidence of use by Native Americans, foundations of houses and outbuildings, farm dumps, 
wells and root cellars/stone chambers, livestock pens, and stone walls. 
 
The are no notable cultural resources within the preserve with two exceptions: a stone wall and an 
old engine.  The stone wall was constructed by early settlers looking to clear fields for agriculture 
and corral their livestock.  Stone walls have been likened to “archeological ruins”, a term often 
attributed to geologist and University of Connecticut professor Robert Thorson.  This old stone 
wall, built as pasture boundaries and to mark property lines, date back 150 years or more and are 
preserved within the woodlands and along the fringes of wetland areas. Stone structures and 
remnant foundations are found nearby on adjoining properties. 
 

 
A large metal engine found on the trail north of the shrub wetland 
 
C. Threats, Issues and Opportunities – 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is generally free from purposeful encroachments such as the 
dumping of yard debris from the adjoining residential properties. However, possible lawn/yard 
encroachment is possible as the preserve directly abuts multiple residential parcels and an active 
roadway.  Easy access from the roadway could invite random dumping. 
 
The Old Church Lane Preserve helps to tie together parts of an undeveloped landscape; the 
preserve is situated between a small conservation easement to the east and another conservation 
easement to the northwest, which in turn lies adjacent to a large intact forested property 
surrounding Trinity Lake (Aquarion Water Company of Connecticut, 828 acres).  Large swaths of 
undeveloped land provide habitat for wildlife with high area requirements and ecological process 
that occur at large spatial scales.  The placement of the Old Church Lane Preserve among this 
connected landscape gives the Westchester Land Trust the opportunity to positively influence 
large scale conservation.       
  



 Page - 20 - 

 
 
STEWARDSHIPS GOALS AND MANAGEMENT RECOMENDATIONS 

 
The Old Church Lane Preserve is owned by the Westchester Land Trust and is managed for habitat 
protection, wildlife-conservation, water quality protection, recreation and scenic purposes. The dominant 
features of the landscape of note are two wooded wetlands and a diverse hardwood forest.  A 0.5-mile trail 
offers access to visitors.    
 
The following stewardship goals and management recommendations address seven categories 
(A – C) as listed in the Table of Contents: 
 
A. - Posting of perimeter boundaries, which have not been surveyed, proximate to the property 
lines. There are key property lines shared with abutting residential properties that need 
identification and posting. While there have been no boundary disputes with the owners of 
these properties to date, ownership(s) will change over time.  High priority - $2,000 for 
approximate boundary. Cost will be more substantial should the services of a professional land surveyor 
be required. 

 
B. - Measures to control the spread of invasive plants through purposeful and intelligent 
containment and removal.  Many instances of invasive plants on Old Church Lane Preserve are 
newly established and/or easily removed; luckily colonization by most invasive plants is 
minimal, making their control all the more important. 
 
Along Old Church Lane (the western most side of the preserve), multiflora rose, Asiatic 
bittersweet and phragmites dominate multiple sections of a 100-foot stretch.  The bittersweet 
vines can easily be cut but permanent removal of the phragmites and rose may be difficult 
because of its proximity to the road and its associated disturbances.  Moderate  priority – $800.  
  
Two small clumps of phragmites are present in the southern part of the shrub wetland and can 
be cut in the summer.  High priorty – $800 for cutting and cover plantings such as climbing boneset. 
 
A small clump of Japanese barberry and multiflora rose are present at the location where the 
foot trail crosses the northern end of the riverine wetland.  These shrubs are small enough to 
remove by hand.  High priorty – $800 for cutting and cover plantings such as winterberry. 
 
Japanese siltgrass was preliminarily identified along the creek that flows into the preserve from 
the north (winter identification was inconclusive).  A visual confirmation will be made during 
the growing season and in the event of positive identification an eradication plan will be put 
into place to stop the further spread of stiltgrass into the preserve.   
High priorty – $800 for cutting and cover plantings as appropriate.    
 
Dumping by a neighbor (along with associated siltgrass introduction) might be occurring at 
one location on the western border of the preserve.  Winter evidence was inconclusive and will 
be revisited during the growing season.  If occurring, dumping will be addressed and, if 
identified, stiltgrass will be eradicated. High priority – summer 2014.   

  



 Page - 21 - 

 
  
C. - Outreach to owners of adjoining and proximate private properties to foster support and 
awareness of the value of protected lands dedicated to conservation purposes, and to engender 
a conservation/stewardship ethic.  High priority – ongoing. 

 
 

IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE 
 
A. Chart Depicting Stewardship Priority Projects, Timeline and Budget 
Intentionally left blank ….. 
 
B. Development and Funding Strategies 
Intentionally left blank ….. 
 

  



 Page - 22 - 

Appendix - 1: List of Flora 
 
 
Trees  
red maple Acer rubrum 
sugar maple Acer saccharum 
serviceberry Amelanchier arborea 
black birch Betula lenta  
gray birch Betula populifolia 
yellow birch Betula alleghaniensis 
ironwood Carpinus caroliniana  
pignut hickory Carya glabra  
shagbark hickory Carya ovata  
flowering dogwood Cornus florida 
American beech Fagus grandifolia  
white ash Fraxinus americana  
eastern red cedar juniperus virginiana 
tulip tree Liriodendron tulipifera 
white pine Pinus strobus  
white oak Quercus alba 
red oak Quercus rubra  
black oak Quercus velutina 
willows Salix spp. 
sassafras Sassafras albidum 
hemlock Tsuga canadensis  
 
Shrubs  
sweet pepperbush Clethra alnifolia  
witch-hazel Hamamelis virginiana  
spicebush Lindera benzoin  

maleberry Lyonia ligustrina 
honeysuckle Lonicera spp.  
highbush blueberry Vaccinium corymbosum  
arrowood viburnum Viburnum recognitum  
nannyberry Viburnum lentago 
speckled alder Alnus rugosa 
mountain laurel Kalmia latifolia 
Japanese barberry Berberis thunbergii 
multiflora rose Rosa multiflora 
 
Grasses and forbs  
sedges Carex spp.  
tussock sedge Carex stricta  
sensitive fern Onoclea sensibilis  
cinnamon fern Osmunda cinnamomea  
common reed Phragmites australis  
christmas fern Polystichum  
sphagnum moss Sphagnum spp.  
skunk cabbage Symplocarpus foetidus  
 
Vines  
poison ivy Rhus radicans 
wild grape Vitis spp. 
Asiatic bittersweet Celastrus orbiculatus 
 
 
 
 

  



 Page - 23 - 

 
Appendix – 2: List of Select Fauna 

 
Mammals-expected to be observed  
eastern chipmunk Tamias striatus  
gray squirrel Sciurus carolinensis  
southern flying squirrel Glaucomys volans  
white-footed mouse Peromyscus leucopus  
raccoon Procyon lotor  
mink Mustela vison  
white-tailed deer Odocoileus virginianus  
 
Birds-expected to be observed 
wild turkey Meleagris gallopavo  
red-tailed hawk Buteo jamaicensis  
red shouldered hawk Buteo lineatus 
great horned owl Bubo virginianus  
common flicker Colaptes auratus  
red-bellied woodpecker Melanerpes carolinus  
downy woodpecker Picoides pubescens  
eastern phoebe Sayornis phoebe  
eastern wood pewee Contopus virens  
American crow Corvus brachyrhynchos 
blue jay Cyanocitta cristata  
black-capped chickadee Parus atricapillus  
tufted titmouse Parus bicolor  
white-breasted nuthatch Sitta carolinensis  
brown creeper Certhia americana  
carolina wren Thryothorus ludovicianus  
wood thrush Hylocichla mustelina  
gray catbird Dumetella carolinensis  
American robin Turdus migratorius 
veery Catharus fuecescens 
cedar waxwing Bombycilla cedrorum  

European starling Sturnus vulgaris  
warbling Vireo Vireo gilvus  
red-eyed vireo Vireo olivaceous 
black and white warbler Mniotilta varia  
yellow warbler Dendroica petechia  
chestnut-sided warbler Dendroica pensylvanica 
ovenbird Seiurus aurocapillus  
American redstart Setophaga rutcilla  
common yellowthroat Geothlypis trichas 
red-winged blackbird Agelaius phoeniceus 
common grackle Quiscalus quiscula  
scarlet tanager Piranga olivacea  
northern cardinal Cardinalis cardinalis  
rose-breasted grosbeak Pheucticus ludovicianus  
house finch Carpodacus mexicanus  
American goldfinch Cardeulis tristis  
chipping sparrow Spizella passerina  
song sparrow Melospiza melodia  
 
Amphibians and Reptiles-expected to be observed 
American toad Bufo americanus 
spring peeper Hyla crucifer 
green frog Ranas clamitans 
wood frog Rana sylvatica  
eastern garter snake Thamnophis sirtalis 
 
 
  

 
 



 Page - 24 - 

 



 Page - 25 - 

 
  



 Page - 26 - 

 

 



 Page - 27 - 

 
 
  



 Page - 28 - 

 
 



 Page - 29 - 

 
 



 Page - 30 - 

 
 



 

 

TOWN OF LEWISBORO 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Planning Board of the Town of Lewisboro, Westchester County, 

New York will convene a Public Hearing on December 20, 2016  at 7:30 p.m., or soon thereafter, at the 

Town Offices @ Orchard Square Plaza, Lower Level,  Cross River, New York, regarding the following: 

 

Cal# 3-13PB and Cal# 03-16WP 

Applications for Preliminary Subdivision Plat Approval and Wetland Activity Permit Approval for 

Silvermine Preserve, Silvermine Drive and Lockwood Road, South Salem, New York, owners of record, 

Ridgeview Designer Builders, Inc. & Daniel Higgins, to permit the construction of a 13-lot cluster 

subdivision.  The property is located between Silvermine Drive and Lockwood Road, consists of 

approximately 58 acres of land, and is located within the Town’s R-2A Zoning District.  A copy of 

materials and proposed site documents may be inspected at the office of the Planning Board Secretary, 20 

Orchard Square, Suite L, Cross River, New York during regular Planning Board hours.  Persons wishing 

to object to the application should file a notice of objection with the Planning Board together with a 

statement of the grounds of objection prior to the closing of the Public Hearing.  All interested parties are 

encouraged to attend the Public Hearing and all will be provided an opportunity to be heard. 

 

PLANNING BOARD 

TOWN OF LEWISBORO 

By:   Jerome Kerner 

Chairman 

 

Dated November 21, 2016 

 

The Town of Lewisboro is committed to equal access for all citizens.  Anyone needing accommodations to 

attend or participate in this meeting is encouraged to notify the Secretary to the Planning Board in 

advance.  

 



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

IN THE MATTER OF APPLICATIONS FOR PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL AND WETlAND 

ACfIVITY PERMIT APPROVAL FOR SILVERMINE PRESERVE, SILVERMINE DRIVE AND LOCKWOOD ROAD, 

SOUTH SALEM, NEW YORK, OWNERS OF RECORD, RIDGEVIEW DESIGNER BUILDERS, INC. & DANIEL 

HIGGINS, TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 13-LOT CLUSTER SUBDIVISION. THE PROPERTY IS 

LOCATED BETWEEN SILVERMINE DRIVE AND LOCKWOOD ROAD, CONSISTS OF APPROXIMATELY 58 

ACRES OF LAND, AND IS LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN'S R-2A ZONING DISTRICT. THE PROPERTY IS 

DESIGNATED ON THE TAX MAP AS SHEET 48, BLOCK 10057, LOT 15 AND SHEET 48, BLOCK 10057, LOT 

104. 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

COUNTY OF NEW HAVEN 

ELIZABETH EVAI\lS, being duly sworn says that on I\lovember 21, 2016, I notified the neighbors as defined 

to me by the Tax Assessor's Office, via Certified Return Receipt U.S. Mail, noticing the December 20, 

2016 Planning Board Public Hearing. 

Sworn before me this G? cf'J-., 
Day of NDJe.vrk.£2016. 

Elizabeth Evans 

My Commission ExpIres Feb. 28, 2017 



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

IN THE MADER OF APPLICATIONS FOR PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL AND WETLAND 

ACTIVITY PERMIT APPROVAL FOR SILVERMINE PRESERVE, SILVERMINE DRIVE AND LOCKWOOD ROAD, 

SOUTH SALEM, NEW YORK, OWNERS OF RECORD, RIDGEVIEW DESIGNER BUILDERS, INC. & DANIEL 

HIGGINS, TO PERIVIIT THE CONSTRUCTIOI\l OF A 13-LOT CLUSTER SUBDIVISION. THE PROPERTY IS 

LOCATED BETWEEN SILVERMINE DRIVE AND LOCKWOOD ROAD, CONSISTS OF APPROXIMATELY 58 

ACRES OF LAND, AND IS LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN'S R-2A ZONING DISTRICT. THE PROPERTY IS 

DESIGNATED ON THE TAX MAP AS SHEET 48, BLOCK 10057, LOT 15 AND SHEET 48, BLOCK 10057, LOT 

104. 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

COUNTY OF NEW HAVEN, SS: Bethany 

EVA SZIGETI, being duly sworn says that on December 1,2016, 'notified the neighbors as defined to me 

by the Tax Assessor's Office, via Certified Return Receipt U.S. Mail, noticing the December 20" 2016 

Planning Board Public Hearing. 

Sworn before me this Jsf-

Dayof DEC, ,2016. 

//-..JJ..tt..:t:A .) J2,. r..u.J.t « LR 
Her+J"o.. fJ. j('", sel J 

Notary Public Eva Szigeti 



U.S. Postal Servicem 
...D CERTIFIED MAILn! RECEIPT rn 

(DomestIc Mall Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) ...D 

ITl ~~~!II!mI!~~m:m!II. 
l:() 

~ 
0;

12/01/2016

Lfl '--_---:=--_--'::...,....::..-=:...-::;,..,::........;-=::;:::.-_..:..::::.__....=:;:=--_...J 

Return Redept Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

f------,;..;...:..;.m---l 
Restricted DeIlv8!Y Fee

(Endorsement Required) 

SO. "'"""-----1 
Tola! Postage & F&e':I ---J 

ITl


[J'"' 

ITl 
CJ 

CJ 
o 
CJ
Lfl 
rl 
ITl 

~ 

n.J 
IT $6.4-1--------'-------, 

o 
KELVIN CHONG AND GRACE DAN JIN
 

l' 
CJ 

StiNl 
orM 7 RESERVOIR ROAD 

SOUTH SALEM, NY 10590 

PS Fnnn 3800, June 2002 Seo Reve,se 10' Inslruellon. 

U.S. Postal Servicen~ 
[J'"' CERTIFIED MAILnl RECEIPT 
n.J 
...D (Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) 

ITl 

[J'"' 

ITl 
o 
CJ 
o 
CJ
Lfl 
r1 
ITl 
n.J
 
CJ rse;;jf""---LQ&.:t.L---------l:i~


:~~~~~~~~-~.ji. 
Lfl'--------...:'---=-,---=---=:........::~.....:....~-~~=..::-~---.J 

Relum Reclopt Foe 
(Endorsement Required) 

f----lt"ft---M,..---l
Restricted Delivery Fee 

(Endorsement Required) 
SO. h--------l 

Total Postage & Fees 
~-----.J 

...~---..., 

CJ ROGER AND BARBARA ANN HOLMESl'  siii6 
or PC 9 RESERVOIR ROAD 

SOUTH SALEM, NY 10590 
PS Form 3800, June 2002 See Roverse fo, I"struclions 

U.S. Postal ServiceTI,l 
l..fl 
CJ 

CERTIFIED MAILrM RECEIPT 
...D (Domestic Mall Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) 

ITl ~~~~mmJm~~"l:() 

ITl

Certl1iedFee 

YOUNG JA LEE 

r-=;;;----~~~-------'-.......=r~--__.

I----.,nr...,;,,:,r--T~:;'I 

SO .........------1
-l 

Lfl L.-_---::...-_---:;..,.--=--=:...-::....;:.....::-=::;:::.-_.:......:..---=c..::......-==--_--l
 
'[J'"' 

ITl
 
CJ
 
o
CJ Relurn Redept F1I8
 

(Endollement Required)
 

CJ Restr1eted DeUvery Fee
Lfl (Endorsement Required) 
rl 
ITl To1aI Postage & Fees l-.:':.. 

n.J 
CJ
 
CJ
 
l'  Slit 

orf 10 RESERVOIR ROAD 
Cit} SOUTH SALEM, NY 10590 

PS Fo,m 3800, June 2002 Sec Rever.e for Instruotlons 

U.S. Postal ServiceTl~ 
rn 
:::r CERTIFIED MAILTM RECEIPT 
...D (Domestic Mall Only; No Insurance Coverage ProvIded) 

:~~m!IIi~~ii~iijiiiii ••iiii 
ITl 
l..fl'-----....:..---=---=T-~~~=----~~--:=::.~=:.-~----J 
[J'"' 

I p525 
, 10rn 

CJ a ' 
o i("lPostmatko Retum Reclept 

CertJfied Fee

Delivery Fee 1-----,H,.::.Nr-.H

r-.------...:lJ..,,'-.SO.

Fee
 
(Endorsement Required)
 \ He'" 

,/o ~

Lfl (Endorsemenl ReqUired)
 ~ 
rl 'd' rn 

Total F'osIage & F&e':I 12/0112016
$6.~~7~----ln.J no::::::-...::-

CJ 0
 

CJ
 RAYMOND AND STEPHANIE D'URSO 
l'- ~C4Pi:
 

or PO Box 107 LOCKWOOD RD
 
c.'tY:-Silii,;; i..... 

SOUTH SALEM, NY 10590 

PS Form 3800, June 2002 Sec Reverse lor Instruollons 

u.s. Postal Service11.' 
n.J CERTIFIED MAIL", RECEIPT rl
 
...D (Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided)
 

:~~~~.~~~iii!iii.iii 
rn 
LflL.--....:.--=-.......::-.~~~~~_~~:.:.....!~_---J
 
[J'"' . 

ITl 
o 
CJ 
o 
o 
l..fl
 
rl
 
ITl 

n.J Senlo 
o 
l'- sire. BARBARA AND JOHN Mc KAy 

orP> 12 RESERVOIR ROAD 

SOUTH SALEM, NY 10590 

Poslfniltk 
Here / 

12/01/2016 

Return Reclapt Fee 
(Endon;ement Required) 

Restrlcted DelIvery Fee t---.o.-rr:....rm..---l 
(Endorsement ReqUired) 

$0.1,--,-------1 
TOtel Postage & Fees '=-=-- ...J 

U.s. Postal ServiceTM 
[J'"' 

IT" 
CERTIFIED MAlLn.. RECEIPT 

Lfl (Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage PrOVided) 

:~~~~~~!IE.!I~~ •••••• 
ITl 
l..flL.--~--=---=.-,-=--=--=---=-.::....::::;:.--=:-:-:.-==---...J 
IT" 

ITl 
o 
CJ 
o 
,0
Lfl 
rl 

Retum Reolopt Fee
(Endorsement Requirlld) 

I---,;..,;.::..;.m---l 
Restrfctad Delivery Fee 

(Endorsement Required)
$0. ~------,,-f 

ITl TOtal Postage &Fees $ 
ru $6. +\-=7=--------1 
CJ enl 
o 
l'  "$1"-

or PO P. O. Box 27 
CJ,y,-1 NORWALK, CT 06852 

NORWALK CITY FIRST TAXING DISTRICT 

PS Form 3800, Juno 2002 See Reve,se lor Inslrucllons 









AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

IN THE MATTER OF APPLICATIONS FOR PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT APPROVAL AND WETLAND 
ACTIVITY PERMIT APPROVAL FOR SILVERMINE PRESERVE, SILVERMINE DRIVE AND LOCKWOOD ROAD, 
SOUTH SALEM, NEW YORK, OWNERS OF RECORD, RIDGEVIEW DESIGNER BUILDERS, INC. & DANIEL 
HIGGINS, TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 13-LOT CLUSTER SUBDIVISION. THE PROPERTY IS 
LOCATED BETWEEN SILVERMINE DRIVE AND LOCKWOOD ROAD, CONSISTS OF APPROXIMATELY 58 

ACRES OF LAND, AND IS LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN'S R-2A ZONING DISTRICT. THE PROPERTY IS 
DESIGNATED ON THE TAX MAP AS SHEET 48, BLOCK 10057, LOT 15 AND SHEET 48, BLOCK 10057, LOT 

104. 

STATE OF NEW YORK 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER 

tf/"1 \ dt~ 
ERIC MOSS, being duly sworn says that on November ~ 2016, I posted signs provided to me by the 
Lewisboro Planning Department at the end of the Silvermine Drive cul-de-sac and at the driveway to 
105 Lockwood Road noticing the December 20, 2016 Planning Board Public Hearing. 

Sworn before me this t"~ ~ 
Day of J>?®Y>I>eC 2016. 

Eric Moss 

SAMANTHA L INCLEDON 
Notary Public - State of New York 

No. 011N6304669 
Qualifi.ed.ln Westchester County. ' 

My CommIssion Expires June 2, 20~ 



Page 1 of 1 

https://gml.ggpht.com/d-7QXWQ918gIqtiIU42ryvZ9-L9RrUlyJCkPShTargrb6IpAmj7xB... 12/7/2016 



Page 1 of 1 

https://gm1.ggpht.comIBKxUzwyk1dktfLrVCyx-JOrXyOc4rnfrtY51mpOhYyCEnBQvzGq... 12/7/2016 







--------

f wetland/wetland buffer disturbance):_~~l4_----.:l,,-U.4V:..lo.,J:~'--lI;::~.:..::..:...=..:~-'-

APPlica?fn No.: 5 QI, - I~ v.J f' 
Fe: Date: loll~1J~ 

TOWN OF LEWISBORO
 

WETLAND PERMIT APPLICATION
 

Town Otlices @ Orchard Square. uite L (Lower Level). 20 North Salem Road, ross River. Y 10518
 
Phone: (914) 76-' -3060
 

Fax: (91 )533-0097
 
Project Information 

Project Address: r- .:.-vb'-t\ 5 ( ~ ':." ~	 _ 

heet(JJ5:!2 BIOCk:~ Lot( );J6l
Project Description (identify the improvements proposed within 
approximate amount 

Owner's Information 

Phone: l' r. f J-'). 'l.}) '/Owner's Name:_----":.....- aJ--	 _ 

wner's Address:__t.....;('--'-__--"'- ··_r	 Email: d (f\':f~ , 

Applicant's information (if different) 

Applicant's Name:~A ~Zc~\ S+i2. t :1 Phone: -:J_3_··_2_7_2_1_ 
~77 SoM I~ Kl D~tE" i2J.... 

pplicant's Address: o...rTt-' ~-.A c..e-""" AJ' ( ( ,",'6'~ 0 Email:

Authorized Agent's information (if applicable) 

gent's Name:	 Phone: _ 

Agent's Adress:	 Email: _ 

To Be Completed Bv Owner/Applicant 

I.	 What type of Wetland Permit i required? (see §_17-5C and §217-5D of the Town Cod) 

XAdministrative 0 Planning Board 

..., 
Is the project located within the NYCDEP Watershed? 0 Yes 0 l) 

3.	 Total area of proposed disturbance: )« 5.000 s.f. o 5.000 s.f. - < 1 acre o ~I acre 

4.	 Does the proposed action require an other permits/approvals from other agencies/departments? 
(Planning Board, Town Board. Zoning Board of Appeals. Building Department, Town Highway. 
ACARC. NYSDEC. YCDEP. WCDOH. NYSD T. etc): Identify all other permits/approvals 
required:	 _ 

ote: Initially. all applications shall be submitted with a plan that illustrates the existing conditions and 
pr posed improvements. Said plan must include a line which encircles the total area of proposed land 
disturbance and the approximate area of disturban e must be alculated (square feet). The Planning 
Board and/or Town Wetland Inspector may require additional mat rial, information, reports and plans. as 
determined necessary, to revi wand evaluate the pr posed action. If the proposed action requires a 
Planning Board Wetland Permit. the application materials outlined under §2 J7-7 of the Town ode must 
be submitted, unle s waived by the Planning Board. The Planning Board may establish an initial escrow 
deposit to cover the cost of application/plan review and inspections conducted by the Town' onsultants. 

For administrative wetland permit, see attached Administrative Wetland Permit Fee Schedule. 

<" .• 
Owner/Applicant Signatur :_-__-eS"----==-- _	 Date: 

-~~'-'----

( 



PAGE 01/0110/13/2015 11:21 7533537 LEI,.,I I SBORO 

TOWN OF LEWISBORO PLANNING BOARD 

PO Bnx 725, ZII North Sillcm Rn~d, lross Hiver, NY lOS] IJ
 

Email: p.lil.nni~@IJ:.l.ld.S1J.unl.l:.UY.WlID
 
Tel: (914J 7(,1·5592 FBX: (1)14) 7h:l·3(,17 

Tax Payment Affidavit RequiJ'ement 

Thisform must accompany (Iff applicaUons to the Plal1ning Board. 

Under n!,9lJlatiOllS adopted by the 1'awn afLewisharn, the Planning Bnm'd may lIot accept any applicatiQIl rmless an 

affidavit/ram the Town af l.ewislJDI"O Receiver of Tuxes is (111 file in the Plr.lIJllill.q l1oo,.d office, The affidavit: must sllolV 
thaI all amounts due to tile Town of LeWisboro as real estote wxes ond special aSSessment!; nil tile tutal urea 
encompassed by tlJe uppliration, togetllc/' WitTl (1// pena/(ies (lnd intel'cst thereon, !Jove lJeen paid. 

lJllder Ni!W Yor/( Stote low, tile Wesl:chester [()lint)' Clc/'k moy /lot accept emy sLllJdivisioll map forfilillg unless the some 

type Ofaffidavit from the Town Df l.ewisl)()ro Ueceiver of 7'axe,,, i," submitted by tile applicant attlle time offilinll' 

This form must be r.nmpleted by the applicant and must: aCCDlllpilny all FlfJplicfltions to the Planning Board, UpOll n:cc:ipl, rhe 
IJI'lIlning Bo;)rd Sccretary will send the forll1ll) the Receiver ofT8XIlS for slgnatuJ't· and notilri;>:al·iOl'l. rfpreferred, the appliclnl 

1ll.1)' directly oh\";:Jin tfw slgni\t\Jrp Ollhc Rccciv8r OI'Te1>;')S ilnd 110lMil<itioll' prior to Sllhll1issio/l. 

To Be Completed by Applicant 
rPle,lsc lype or print) 

--- ..b~~ M(L~T!(r'CL_ .. 
Name uj'Applicanl 

Vr.D... _. . ......• 

Pm/eo NO/lie 

E!:.QpJ~rlJ.:. Description 

TelX 1310ck(s): __0 "1 ~ .5_±_..__ 
-r;)X I.ot(s): I S-/ 

'lax Shcct(s): 5..3 

,_~__I 2~tJl!......'L..:/(p~ 

The undersigned, being duly sworn depo,~e,~ and Sill'S l'bill d search uFthe ta>: records in the office of the f{ewivcl'o(Taxcs, 
TLlwn of 1.,r;wiSboro, reve::Jls th;)1: all ::JmnlJnts dllc 10 the Town of Lewishoro ,JS I'cal estate t;Jxes ;:)nd speci;:)i assesSmenls, 
log~·ther with all pen.1Itie~ ;l11CI interest tlle:r,. 1, (lFfccung lllE' prerni,es rJe,;cl'i\.1pd below, h3VL' heen 11<lid. 

Signature· Receiver of Taxes: 

Sworn 1:0 before me thiS 

/3 ~y O[_+->.-&-+--)&l~ 
JANET L. DONOHUE 

NOTARY PUBUC, STATE OF NEW YORK 
No. 01006259627 

Qualified in Westchester County 
Commission Expires April 16, 2020 

= 



TOWN OF LE\J\fISBORO PLANNING BOARD 

PO Box 725, 20 Nonh Salem Road, Cross River, NY 10518
 
Email: planning@lewisboroeov.com
 

Tel: (914) 763-5592
 
Fax: (914) 763-3637
 

Affidavit of Ownership 

State of. 

Countyof: 

, State of ill the (ounty of 

resides (1t 

and that he/she is (check one) _/ the (J\vner, or __ the_ 

Tille 
01 _ 

Name uFcur/JOmtion, /70rtnelship, or other h:pa/ enUly 

vvhich is the owner, in fee 01 Cliithat certain log, piece or parcel oflCiIld situated, lying and being in the 

'j'ovvn of Lewisboro, Nevv YOI-k, afolesaid clnd know and designated on the Tax Map in lhe Town of 

Lewisboro as: 

Block 0 I B34: /5/ , on Sheet __53 _, Lot ----"

~----
OIVl7e,'S Signature 

Sworn to before me this SAMANTHA L INCLEDON 
Notary Public· State of New York 

No 011N6304669 
Qualified In Westchester County /([ 

My Commission Expires June 2, 20--l.Q.. 

Notary Public - affix stamp 















lin 

approximate amount of w tland/wetLand buffer disturbance):_=...li.-lot---\,.~LJ:-~...::..:....---.:--=c..:....:..~~o.L.L~ 

Appli atrtNO': 5S ..,-{'o wP 
Fee: Date: If /7 71'~ 

TOWN OF LEWISBORO
 
WETLAND PERMIT APPLICATION
 

Town Offices @ Orchard Square, uit L (Lower Level). 10 orth alem Road. ro River. NY 10518
 
Phon : (914) 763-3060
 

Fax: (914)533-0097
 
Project Information 

Project AddIess: ...:...lI-..:~=--- _ 

heet: L; 2. 
__~~~---:~~___!:.::::::.~=-....::~....::u:::.~....:..":.I,~l~£l:...:'<~L..J:.:~::==___=]j:::...._=_y...:...·c

Project Description (identify the improv ments propo ed WI. 

--=_.".-_=--_----=---,--,,

Owner's Information 

tt_>_IJ_C_,t(,._,-r_I_..;_.......,_ Phone: '1 I~- 765-K~ / 

_A~~~~~~~~~~~~~..fL,~.... Email: t1 /l..Jk-v(jj., ~-tt;l1er 
A!Y /O~90 

AppLi ant's	 Phone:'1IL.! 33 -2727 
:::-:==:--:-=--=---:-:-....,.....,..--..-:-;~-==~;::=-:--:::.:~----

--=-=----~_.....:........=...:....:._.:.......::.-~~~::..--_Em.il:--.kP"~
@ VtslJ.-~.~ 
Authorized Ae.ent's Information (ifapplicabl )
 

Agent's Nam :_---'-"--1::....--=-.e---L.../?_h_--<..M_c_-'_/._.J Phone:
 

Agent's dr ss: 27 C~ I ..J 12:f 50, J~ tU..y Email: n/J/~($Jaff.hcf 

To Be Completed By Owner/Applicant 

I.	 What type of W tland Permit is required? ( e §217-5C and §217-5D of the Town ode) 

.xAdministrative 0 Planning Board 

the project located within the NYCDEP Water hed? 0 Yes 0 0 

3.	 Total area of proposed disturbance: )i1r< 5,000 s.f. o 5.000 s.f. - < I acre 02:1 acre 

4.	 Does the propo ed action require any other permit /approvals from other agencies/departments? 
(Planning Board, Town Board, Zoning Board of Appea!s. Building Department. To n Highw8,. 
ACARC. YSDEC. YCDEP. WCDOH. NY DOT. tc): Ldentify all other permits/approvals 
required:	 _ 

Not: Initially. all application shall be submitted with a plan that illustrate the ex.i ting onditions and 
proposed improvements. aid plan nlll t include a line which n ircles the total area of propo ed land 
disturbance and the approximate area of disturbance must be alculated ( quare feet). The Planning 
Board and/or Town Wetland In peetor may reqllir additi nal materials. information. reports and plans a 
determined necessary. to J"i view and evaluate rhe proposed action. If the propo ed actiOn requir a 
Planning Board Wetland Permit, rhe application material outlined under §217-7 of the Town Code must 
be submitted. unless waived by the Planning Board. The Planning Board may establish an initial escrow 
deposit to cover the cost ofapplicationJplan re iew and in pectioll conducted by the Town's consultants. 

For administrative wetlan 

ignature:-/--r-

Administrative Wetland Permit Fee Schedule. 

Owner!Applicant _	 Dat: 11/7;/0
,/ 



TOWN OF LEWISBORO PLANNING BOARD 

PO Box 725,20 North Salem Road, Cross River, NY 10518
 
Email: planning@lewisborogov.com
 

Tel: (914) 763-5592 Fax: (914) 763-3637
 

Tax Payment Affidavit Requirement
 

This form must accompany all applications to the Planning Board.
 

Under regulations adopted by the Town ofLewisboro, the Planning Board may not accept any application unless an 

affidavit from the Town of Lewisboro Receiver of Taxes is on file in the Planning Board office. The affidavit must show 
that all amounts due to the Town ofLewisboro as real estate taxes and special assessments on the total area 
encompassed by the application, together with all penalties and interest thereon, have been paid. 

Under New York State law, the Westchester County Clerk may not accept any subdivision map for filing unless the same 
type ofaffidavit from the Town of Lewisboro Re,ceiver of Taxes is submitted by the applicant at the time offiling. 

This form must be completed by the applicant and must accompany all applications to the Planning Board. Uron receipt, the 
Planning Board Secretary will send the form to the Receiver of Taxes for signature and notarization. lfpreferred, the applicant 
may directly obtain the signature of the Receiver of Taxes and notarization prior to submission. 

t-t,A.y /::';.1ch.t(l4.( J4s~() c 
Name ofApplicant 

Property Description
 

Tax Block(s):
 

Tax Lot(s):
 

To Be Completed by Applicant 
(Please type or print) 

t:!Y',,"If. 1 lZe re..y v---f ,'" ~ 

prope'tYASSessz~tMtv~'1)~ l/k.c, 

Name vtJo 8rrX I 

The undersigned, being duly sworn deposes and says that a search of the tax records in the office of the Receiver of Taxes. 
Town of Lewisboro, reveals that all amou s due to the Town of Lewisboro as real estate taxes and special assessments, 
together with all penalties and interest the on, affecting the premises described below, have been paid. 

Sworn to before me this 

~ day of __-Ifl-=----~ --' 2 0 I f..a 

JANET l. DONOHUE 
NOTARY PUBlIC, STATE OF NEW YORK 

No. 01D06259627 
Qualified in Westchester County 

Commission Expires April 16, 2020 

Address? 
Tax Sheet(s): 

City 



TOWN OF LEWISBORO PLANNING BOARD 

PO Box 725, 20 North Salem Road, Cross River, NY 10518
 
Email: planning@lewisborogov.com
 

Tel: (914) 763-5592
 
Fax: (914) 763-3637
 

Affidavit of Ownership 

State of J'ltw ~cI'l 
Coun ty of:-.1lf'.>...l'-.J.'j~\-L--->,\,......kt",""~\-I-){,,,,-I_I _ 

~ OS-eo /? h Md'!V ,being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she 

resides at 2...7 &r4..h~VI 't'!...J R".~ tJu.-itl 4.J~I 

. ,State of_)J.in the County of 045 ~ h-~ t.ev __'-'V'-, _ 
./ ~"e~ ;£e1i.rand that he/she is (check one) __ the owner, or_V_tthhe __-,-r_' _ 

of The ~ Ice IG·+ch..c(-,~~ A 'J,uciiiA,,,.!:.itle 

Name of corporation, partnership, or other legal entity 

which is the owner, in fee of all that certain log, piece or parcel of land situated, lying and being in the 

Town of Lewisboro, New York, aforesaid and know and designated on the Tax Map in the Town of 

Lewisboro as: 

Block 1(J~~£l- , La t _--=~,------=9-- ,on Shee t 4.:......·...::...2-:>0...__ 

owner'SSignatur~~j~ 
bvj~ ~~r' .?t.. /) ~ ;/' VI e { ( . ./ 

Sworn to before me this - ( L 4... ~ t1:.,te ha.. ua.... a'S· (K'~ flVl,.. 

\-\. 1\ f r • 
__-" day of _--L-~..1J--OV",-~c......:.fl\-::f2,{::....:..:(~· , 2 0 I~ 

SAMANTHA L INCLEOON 
Notary Public - State of New York 

No.011N6304669 
Qualified In Westchester County, t-

My Commission Expires June 2, 20....I...::

f{cvlsed 6·20 IS 



















 
 

 
 

TO: Town of Lewisboro Planning Board 
 

FROM: Lewisboro Conservation Advisory Council 
 
SUBJECT: Weisberg Residence Dam, Cal #58-16PB 

Sheet 33, Block 11155, Lot 153 
25 Benedict Rd South Salem, NY 10590 

   
DATE: 12/10/2016 
 
The Conservation Advisory Council has reviewed the materials submitted for wetland 
activity permit for the Weisberg property at 25 Benedict Road. The applicant plans to 
replace a wooden dam with a concrete and stone dam. The size of the impounded pond 
is not given but appears to be about 160’ by 110’ and less than 4’ deep.    
 
The plans appear to be to build a coffer dam to enable construction, which limit our 
concerns about downstream flooding from lowering the pond levels.  It also appears that 
the applicant is not intending to deepen or dredge the pond as part of this application.  
The CAC would appreciate confirmation that we understand the scope of the application 
correctly.   
  
The applicant has planned mitigation which consists of removing invasive plants and 
planting mostly native plants. Some of these plants will be planted in the pond. Water 
garden plants like Nymphaea odorata, Nuphar luteum, and Ponterderia cordata, 
although native, have been known to harbor invasive plants and animals in their root 
balls. We understand that this risk can be minimized by rinsing the roots free of soil over 
an upland portion of land that does not flow into a wetland. The CAC asks that this 
approach, or an approach that the Town’s consultants might advise, be followed to limit 
the risk of any transport of invasives with these beneficial plantings.  
 
The outflow of this pond feeds into the upper section of a stream that is used by both 
white sucker and brook trout for spawning purposes. The suckers spawn in the April 
time frame when water temperature is at 37-45 degrees and the brook trout spawn in 
the October time frame when water temperatures are between 40 and 47 degrees.   
Therefore, to minimize the danger of silting at spawning periods we would like to see 
this work done during low water periods and away from spawning periods. By mid May 
the sucker eggs will have hatched and they will have grown to be fingerlings and out of 
danger from silting. Therefore, we would suggest that the work be done between mid 
May and early September if possible.  





















































































































L-1

L-2

L-3

Tim Miller Associates, Inc.,10 North Street, Cold Spring, New York 10516 (845) 265-4400 Fax (845) 265-4418

Figure 1: Noise Monitoring Location Plan
WB Lewisboro Affordable Housing

Town of Lewisboro, Westchester County, New York
Base Map: Insite Engineering, Surveying & Landscape Architecture, P.C.

Approx. Scale: 1” = 115’

File 15038 10/03/16

Site

Site Property Boundary



























































































































Hazen and Sawyer 
498 Seventh Avenue 11th Floor __z--- New York, NY 10018 • 123.345.8765 

November 29,2016 

Ms. Ciorsdan Conran 
Planning Board Secretary 
Town of Lewisboro 
20 North Salem Road 
PO Box 725 
Cross River, NY 10518 

RE:	 New York American Water Wild Oaks Water System, Lewisboro, NY 
Application for Site Development Permit and Wetland Activity Permit 
Well #4 and Well #6 
Block 11137, Lot 123, Sheet 8 

Dear Ms. Conran: 

Please find enclosed in this submittal an application package containing materials for Site Development 
Approval and a Wetland Activity Permit per the proposed plan outlined during the November 15,2016 Planning 
Board Meeting. During this meeting, it was determined that New York American Water (NYAW) should apply 
for these approvals prior to the December Planning Board meeting in order to expedite compliance with the 
Town of Lewisboro and to complete the upgrades of the Wild Oaks Water System. 

The Wild Oaks Water System is a small water system servicing approximately 610 customers in the Town of 
Lewisboro. Up until the summer of 2016, the drinking water in this system was supplied by two shallow sand 
and gravel wells (Well #1 and Well #2). Due to the age of these wells and the declining water quality, NYAW 
initiated a project in 2014 to drill two deep bedrock test wells with the intent of establishing new permanent 
drinking water supply wells. NYAW drilled these new test wellsin January and May 2015 (Well #4 and Well 
#5, respectively). After pump testing was completed, only Well #4 achieved a suitable yield for a permanent 
well. Well #5 was therefore abandoned from all further plans. NYAW drilled a third well (Well #6) in May, 
2016 and after pump testing, Well #6 did yield enough for a permanent well. Construction to establish Well #4 
as a permanent well and connection with the existing treatment and distribution system began in October, 2016 
(A.ttachment 6 - Sheet CIa). 

In July 2016, drought conditions caused a drop in the surface water elevation of the two small ponds adjacent to 
the Wild Oaks wells. This resulted in a negative effect on Well #1 and Well #2, reducing their pumping volume 
and further reducing water quality. The filters on these wells had to be replaced weekly and water needed to be 
trucked into the Wild Oaks storage tank located on Fairmount Road. These emergency conditions prompted 
NYAW to seek emergency approval from New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
(NYSDEC) and Westchester Department of Health (WCDOH) to utilize water from Well #4. After these 
approvals were granted, NYAW installed a temporary at grade connection to Well #4 and began using Well #4 
water. Additional details can be found in the enclosed Project Description. 

NYAW had previously been issued a Resolution by the Planning Board in June 2015 to convert the permitted 
test wells into permanent drinking water wells, however this Resolution lapsed prior to the emergency conditions 
that prompted the temporary connection of Well #4. Additionally, this Resolution only covered Well #4 and 
Well #5. This new application is intended to retroactively cover Well #4 and to grant permission for Well #6. 



zen
 

To facilitate your review of this application, the following items are enclosed: 

Attachment 1. Site Plan Development 1 and 2 Application Forms and $710 Check;
 
Attachment 2. Wetland Activity Permit Application Form and $255 Check;
 
Attachment 3. Project Description;
 
Attachment 4. Westchester County Affidavit of Ownership;
 
Attachment 5. Tax Payment Affidavit;
 
Attachment 6. Project Drawings;
 
Attachment 7. Previous Approvals:
 

o	 Attachment 7a. Cal. 51-14 W.P. Wetland Activity Permit for Wells #4 and #5; 
o	 Attachment 7b. Cal. 4-15 P.B. and Cal. 6-15 W.P: Expired Planning Board Resolution for Site 

Development Plan and Wetland Activity Permit; 
o	 Attachment 7c. Cal. 54-15 W.P. Wetland Activity Permit for Well #6; 
o	 Attachment 7d. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line 

Activities; 
o	 Attachment 7e. New York State Historic Preservation Office Correspondence; 
o	 Attachment 7f. NYSDEC Emergency Authorization of Well 4; 

Attachment 8. Site Photographs;
 
Attachment 9. Wetland Delineation Report;
 
Attachment 10. Short Environmental Assessment Form;
 
Attachment I I. Engineer's Report;
 
Attachment 12. 72 Hour Pump Tests for Well #4, Well #5, and Well #6.
 

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at (212) 539-7074. 

Very Truly Yours, 

Kristen Barrett, P.E. 
Senior Associate 

cc:	 NYAW: Richard Ruge 
H&S: Ross Diamond, David Braun 

2
 



Haze
 
Wild Oaks Water System
 

Lewisboro, NY
 
Description of Proposed Project
 

INTRODUCTION 

New York American Water (NYAW) operates the Wild Oaks Water System, a drinking water 
system composed of two sand and gravel groundwater supply wells (Well I and Well 2) and on
site treatment that serves approximately 610 customers in Lewisboro, NY. The Wild Oaks Water 
System is located on Nash Road, on Sheet 8, Block 11137, Lot 123 ofthe Town of Lewisboro Tax 
Maps. In 2014, NYAW initiated a project to drill two deep bedrock test wells with the intent of 
establishing new permanent drinking water supply wells. NYAW drilled these new test wells in 
January and May, 2015 (Well #4 and Well #5, respectively) (Attachment 7a). After pump testing 
was completed, only Well 4 achieved a suitable yield for a permanent well. Well 5 was therefore 
abandoned from all further plans. NYAW drilled a third well (Well #6) in May, 2016 (Attachment 
7c) and after pump testing (Attachment 12), Well #6 also yielded enough for a permanent well. 

NYAW received a Resolution from the Town of Lewisboro Planning Board in June, 2015 
(Attachment 7b) that would authorize the disturbance of wetland buffer area to make Wells #4 
and #5 permanent by installing pipe in the ground that would connect the wells to the on-site 
treatment and distribution systems. NYAW planned to modify the original application for the Site 
Development Permit and Wetland Activity Permit to include Well #6 following the Well #6 pump 
testing. However, Well #6 took longer than anticipated (7-months) to drill due to unfavorable site 
conditions. NYAW did not request an extension to the Resolution, and therefore the Resolution 
was allowed to expire. The difference between the initial planning board submittal and this 
submittal is that Well #6 shares almost all the same infrastructure as Well #4 and as a result, there 
is less total disturbance to the site due to the proximity of Well #4 and Well #6 to one another. 

In July, 2016, drought conditions caused a drop in the surface water elevation of two small ponds 
adjacent to the Wild Oaks wells. This resulted in a negative effect on Well #1 and Well #2, 
reducing their pumping volume and further reducing water quality. These emergency conditions 
prompted NYAW to seek emergency approval from New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and Westchester Department of Health (WCDOH) to 
utilize water from Well #4. After these approvals were granted (Attachment 7t), NYAW installed 
a temporary connection to Well #4 and began using Well #4 water. 

NEED FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT 

New water supply wells are needed in the Wild Oaks Water System to replace the existing sand 
and gravel wells. The currently existing sand and gravel wells are approximately 40-feet deep. 
This shallow depth means the wells are directly influenced by surface water and runoff, which 
can transport contaminants from the surface due to the natural process of groundwater recharge. 
Replacement of these wells with bedrock wells will reduce the influence of surface water on the 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Pennits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



azen
 
water supply and increase the raw water quality in the system, increasing the quality and 
resilience of the water supply system. 

In July 2016, low-precipitation conditions resulted in greatly reduced volume and quality of the 
water being pumped from Wells #1 and #2. Wells #1 and #2 have historically been known to be 
affected by drops in the surface water elevation, and they have been reconstructed in the past to 
attempt to address sedimentation in the water supply. However, the drought-like conditions in 
July, 2016 exacerbated the condition to levels not previously seen in the Wild Oaks Water 
System. To continue to operate the water system, the treatment system's 1 and 5-micron filters 
needed to be replaced every 1-2 days and the wells produced much less than their rated capacity 
and system demand. The water storage tank located on Fairmount Road had to be refilled with 
trucked-in water. Entrained air was observed in the water. New bedrock wells would alleviate 
these conditions and prevent them from occurring during future droughts. 

The temporary connection to Well #4 is a hose that runs overland to the existing pump house 
may freeze during cold winter conditions since the well is not continuously pumped. Therefore, 
Well #4 will not be able to reliably pump water for the Wild Oaks Water System throughout the 
winter. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS AT THE PROPOSED PROJECT SITE 

The Wild Oaks Water System is currently accessed via a gravel road with a swing gate off of 
Nash Road in Lewisboro, NY close to the border with North Salem, NY (Figure 1). The gravel 
road crosses an unnamed stream and leads to the existing pump house, a small structure that 
receives water from two currently existing sand and gravel wells (Attachment 6 - Sheet Cl). 
The pump house treats the water with cartridge filters, chlorine, and UV light before distributing 
it into the wider system. Two ponds are located on either side of the pump house, a small pond to 
the east and a larger pond to the west. Between the two ponds is a narrow strip of maintained 
land that is used to access other areas of the property. 

Test Well #4 is located approximately 230 feet south from the existing pump house, within the 
maintained land between the two ponds. Test Well #6 is located approximately 10-feet west of 
Test Well #4 (Attachment 6 - Sheet Cl). Prior to the construction of Well #4, the Wild Oaks 
Water System site had been historically disturbed, evidenced by remnant dumping, structures, 
culverts in the unnamed stream, power lines, and mowing. 

Construction on Well #4 was initiated in October 2016 in response to the emergency conditions 
of Well #1 and Well #2. Silt fencing was installed along the strip ofland between the two ponds 
and a trench that would hold the permanent iron piping was dug. This iron pipe that would 
connect Well #4 and Well #6 to the pump house was lain and the trench filled in. This pipe was 
also connected to the existing pump house. During this process Well #1 was decommissioned 
from service. 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Permit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Permits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



aze
 
llNFINISHED CONSTRUCTION 

To complete construction of Well #4 and Well #6, the following items need to be completed: 
•	 A trench for the electrical and instrumental conduits that would enable the permanent 

operation of the wells would need to be dug. Only one trench for both wells is required 
(Attachment 3 - Sheet Cta). 

•	 The utilities would need to be connected to equipment at the wells and at the well house. 
•	 The pitless adapter for Well #6 would need to be completed. Pitless adapters enable the 

well pump discharge to connect to the transmission main below grade. 
•	 The permanent pump for Well #6 would need to be installed and the cap cut and
 

completed.
 
•	 The pitless adapter for Well #4 would need to be installed in conjunction with a
 

temporary shutdown of pumping from Well #4.
 

Waters of the United States and New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation Regulated Tidal Wetlands 

The unnamed stream that runs through the Wild Oaks Water System property is a New York 
State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) Class C stream. According to 
NYSDEC New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Part 701.8, "The best usage of 
Class C waters is fishing. These waters shall be suitable for fish, shellfish, and wildlife 
propagation and survival. The water quality shall be suitable for primary and secondary contact 
recreation, although other factors may limit the use for these purposes." The unnamed Class C 
stream flows east to west, running adjacent to the small pond and has inflows into and out of the 
larger pond (Figure 2). This stream will not be disturbed under the proposed project. 

The NYSDEC Environmental Resources Mapper was consulted and there are no NYSDEC
regulated freshwater wetlands proximate to the Wild Oaks Water System, however, there is 
freshwater wetland checkzone in and around most of the Wild Oaks Water System property 
(Figure 2). A freshwater wetland checkzone is an area that NYSDEC suggests be checked for 
the presence of wetlands prior to any project to ensure that the proposed project does not 
encroach on any NYSDEC regulated wetlands or the regulated 100-foot buffer zone. United 
States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) National Wetland Inventory (NWI) maps were also 
consulted for the presence ofNWI wetlands in the vicinity of the proposed project. The two 
ponds on the site are classified as PubHh, or a Palustrine wetland with an unconsolidated bottom 
that is permanently flooded and is impounded (Figure 2). 

On May 8th 
, 2014, a wetland delineation was performed within the NYSDEC checkzone areas 

proximate to the proposed project. The wetland delineation was conducted in accordance with 
the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Wetlands Delineation Manual (USACE, 
1987) and the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: 
Northcentral and Northeast Region (USACE, 2012). The results of the wetland delineation are 
shown in Figure 3 and the complete wetland delineation report is provided in Attachment 9. 
Two freshwater wetlands were identified: Wetland A consists of a small 0.28 acre emergent 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Permits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



Hazen
 
wetland. This wetland occurs at the fringe of the eastern and smaller approximately 0.44 acre 
freshwater pond. Together, they are an approximately 0.72 acre freshwater wetland. Wetland B 
is a 1.0+ acre forested floodplain wetland in the northern area of the Wild Oaks Water System 
property, adjacent to the bank of the unnamed Class C stream. Wetland B is outside of the 
proposed limits of disturbance for this project. The entirety of the remaining project area, 
including the existing pump house are within ISO-feet of a wetland feature, and are thus 
considered within the regulated Town of Lewisboro ISO-foot wetland buffer area. 

IMPACTS FROM THE PROPOSED PROJECT AND PROPOSED RESTORATION 

The proposed project will involve the temporary disturbance of approximately 0.041 acres of 
freshwater wetlands from the installation of the pipe trench. Approximately 0.056 acres of 150
foot wetland buffer area will be temporarily disturbed. No trees or woody vegetation will be 
removed. An electrical box near Well #4 and Well #6 will be installed. Additionally, both wells 
will have their wellheads present at the surface for access. There is no concrete associated with 
the wellheads. These appurtenances are necessary for the long tenn function and protection of 
the new wells. Each appurtenance will consist of the smallest possible footprint «10 square feet 
total) and will not pose significant adverse impacts to wetland or wetland buffer function. At the 
end of the proposed project, all temporarily disturbed areas will be restored to pre-construction 
conditions. No equipment, erosion controls, wetland matting, or debris will be left in the wetland 
or wetland buffer area. Temporarily disturbed freshwater wetland areas will be seeded with a 
native wetland seed mix (Attachment 6 - Sheet C2). 

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 

The No-Action alternative to this project consisted of not constructing the bedrock wells and 
continuing to rely on currently operational sand and gravel groundwater wells. This alternative is 
not considered viable, as the reliability of these shallow sand and gravel wells has declined with 
time and more frequent summer droughts would result in more frequent emergency conditions. 

Alternative B to this project would be to find another suitable location for bedrock wells on the 
Wild Oaks property. This alternative was not pursued because all other locations on Wild Oaks 
Property would require more extensive disturbance to either one of the ponds or to the unnamed 
Class C stream rumling through the property. Alternative alignments for the proposed pipe also 
were considered, such as turning the pipe westward to avoid the delineated wetland boundary. 
This alignment was not pursued because there is mature shrubby vegetation along the bank of the 
large pond. This shrubby vegetation would have to be disturbed or removed to accommodate the 
machinery required for installation of the proposed pipe. Disturbance to this vegetation could 
cause disturbance to the bank of the freshwater pond and cause erosion. Additionally, the mature 
shrubby vegetation is providing ecological benefits such as food and cover for wildlife. The 
freshwater wetland where the pipe is proposed is currently disturbed and mowed, limiting its 
ecological function. 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Pennits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



Hazen
 
SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES 

All construction activities would be subject to and performed in accordance with NYSDEC's 
technical standards for erosion and sediment control (e.g., utilizing silt fences and hay bales). Silt 
fencing will be erected around the limits of disturbance so as to minimize any sediment transport 
to either of the ponds or the unnamed Class C stream. If dewatering is required for any part of the 
trenching then an approved method such as a filter bag or settling tank will be utilized. Native soils 
that are cut for pipe trenching will be re-used as fill. 

REGULATORY APPROVALS REQUIRED FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT 

U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS NATIONWIDE PERMIT PROGRAM 

Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line Activities 

The construction of the Wild Oaks Water System Well #4 and Well #6 would be covered under 
Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line Activities, which authorizes "the construction, maintenance, 
or repair of utility lines, including outfall and intake structures, and the associated excavation, 
backfill, or bedding for the utility lines, in all waters of the United States, provided there is no 
change in pre-construction contours." The utility line for the proposed project would be a 4-inch 
diameter RJDI pipe to convey drinking water. Nationwide Permit 12 also states that in wetlands, 
material removed within the top 6-12 inches should be backfilled into the trench. The proposed 
project would comply with this permit condition. 

The project was also reviewed for consistency with proposed changes to Nationwide Permit 12 
that USACE anticipates to issue in 2017. No proposed changes to Nationwide Permit 12 would 
affect the activities for this project, therefore this project would continue to be authorized under 
Nationwide Permit 12 and no further coordination with USACE is required. 

As per the NYSDEC document entitled "Water Quality Certification for the 2012 Nationwide 
Permits (NWPs)" which became effective March 19,2012, Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line 
Activities is granted blanket 401 Water Quality Certification as long as the NWP General 
Conditions and the following Special Condition are adhered to: 

"Materials resulting from trench excavation that are temporarily sidecast into waters of the 
United States must be used to backfill the trench or removed within 30 days of deposition." 

The proposed project would comply with all General and Special Conditions. Therefore, the 
proposed project will meet the conditions for blanket 401 Water Quality Certification. 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Pennits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



I 
P""hury 

II· 

fl 

'I J 

1'11'111 \/.1 ( "1<1 

SCALE 
o 400 800 ___.ii::=== 1.200 1.600Iii::==:=::JIFeel USGS Croton Falls 

Figure 1 

HAzEN AND SAWYER Wild Oaks Water System 
Environmental Engineers & Scientists Town of Lewisboro Wetland Activity 



SCALE· NYSDEC Classifed Surface Waters, 
o 160 320 460 640 NYSDEC Freshwater Wetlands Checkzone, and USFWS NWI ___II::::===-__-===:::::JIFeel 

Figure 2 

Wild Oaks Water System HAzE AND SAWYER 
Environmental Engineers & SCientists Town of Lewisboro Wetland Activity 



Delineated Wetlands 

Delineated Wetland Boundary 

o Study Area 

SCALE 
90 180 270 360 Wetland Delineation ___==::::ii__iil::::::=~IFeet 

Figure 3 

HAzEN AND SAWYER Wild Oaks Water System 
Environmental Engineers & SCientists Town of Lewisboro Wetland Activity 



 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 1 
Site Plan Development 1 and 2 Application Forms and 

$710 Check 
 

 







 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 2 
Wetland Activity Permit Application Form and $255 

Check





 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 3 
 

Project Description



Haze
 
Wild Oaks Water System
 

Lewisboro, NY
 
Description of Proposed Project
 

INTRODUCTION 

New York American Water (NYAW) operates the Wild Oaks Water System, a drinking water 
system composed of two sand and gravel groundwater supply wells (Well I and Well 2) and on
site treatment that serves approximately 610 customers in Lewisboro, NY. The Wild Oaks Water 
System is located on Nash Road, on Sheet 8, Block 11137, Lot 123 ofthe Town of Lewisboro Tax 
Maps. In 2014, NYAW initiated a project to drill two deep bedrock test wells with the intent of 
establishing new permanent drinking water supply wells. NYAW drilled these new test wells in 
January and May, 2015 (Well #4 and Well #5, respectively) (Attachment 7a). After pump testing 
was completed, only Well 4 achieved a suitable yield for a permanent well. Well 5 was therefore 
abandoned from all further plans. NYAW drilled a third well (Well #6) in May, 2016 (Attachment 
7c) and after pump testing (Attachment 12), Well #6 also yielded enough for a permanent well. 

NYAW received a Resolution from the Town of Lewisboro Planning Board in June, 2015 
(Attachment 7b) that would authorize the disturbance of wetland buffer area to make Wells #4 
and #5 permanent by installing pipe in the ground that would connect the wells to the on-site 
treatment and distribution systems. NYAW planned to modify the original application for the Site 
Development Permit and Wetland Activity Permit to include Well #6 following the Well #6 pump 
testing. However, Well #6 took longer than anticipated (7-months) to drill due to unfavorable site 
conditions. NYAW did not request an extension to the Resolution, and therefore the Resolution 
was allowed to expire. The difference between the initial planning board submittal and this 
submittal is that Well #6 shares almost all the same infrastructure as Well #4 and as a result, there 
is less total disturbance to the site due to the proximity of Well #4 and Well #6 to one another. 

In July, 2016, drought conditions caused a drop in the surface water elevation of two small ponds 
adjacent to the Wild Oaks wells. This resulted in a negative effect on Well #1 and Well #2, 
reducing their pumping volume and further reducing water quality. These emergency conditions 
prompted NYAW to seek emergency approval from New York State Department of 
Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) and Westchester Department of Health (WCDOH) to 
utilize water from Well #4. After these approvals were granted (Attachment 7t), NYAW installed 
a temporary connection to Well #4 and began using Well #4 water. 

NEED FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT 

New water supply wells are needed in the Wild Oaks Water System to replace the existing sand 
and gravel wells. The currently existing sand and gravel wells are approximately 40-feet deep. 
This shallow depth means the wells are directly influenced by surface water and runoff, which 
can transport contaminants from the surface due to the natural process of groundwater recharge. 
Replacement of these wells with bedrock wells will reduce the influence of surface water on the 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Pennits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



azen
 
water supply and increase the raw water quality in the system, increasing the quality and 
resilience of the water supply system. 

In July 2016, low-precipitation conditions resulted in greatly reduced volume and quality of the 
water being pumped from Wells #1 and #2. Wells #1 and #2 have historically been known to be 
affected by drops in the surface water elevation, and they have been reconstructed in the past to 
attempt to address sedimentation in the water supply. However, the drought-like conditions in 
July, 2016 exacerbated the condition to levels not previously seen in the Wild Oaks Water 
System. To continue to operate the water system, the treatment system's 1 and 5-micron filters 
needed to be replaced every 1-2 days and the wells produced much less than their rated capacity 
and system demand. The water storage tank located on Fairmount Road had to be refilled with 
trucked-in water. Entrained air was observed in the water. New bedrock wells would alleviate 
these conditions and prevent them from occurring during future droughts. 

The temporary connection to Well #4 is a hose that runs overland to the existing pump house 
may freeze during cold winter conditions since the well is not continuously pumped. Therefore, 
Well #4 will not be able to reliably pump water for the Wild Oaks Water System throughout the 
winter. 

EXISTING CONDITIONS AT THE PROPOSED PROJECT SITE 

The Wild Oaks Water System is currently accessed via a gravel road with a swing gate off of 
Nash Road in Lewisboro, NY close to the border with North Salem, NY (Figure 1). The gravel 
road crosses an unnamed stream and leads to the existing pump house, a small structure that 
receives water from two currently existing sand and gravel wells (Attachment 6 - Sheet Cl). 
The pump house treats the water with cartridge filters, chlorine, and UV light before distributing 
it into the wider system. Two ponds are located on either side of the pump house, a small pond to 
the east and a larger pond to the west. Between the two ponds is a narrow strip of maintained 
land that is used to access other areas of the property. 

Test Well #4 is located approximately 230 feet south from the existing pump house, within the 
maintained land between the two ponds. Test Well #6 is located approximately 10-feet west of 
Test Well #4 (Attachment 6 - Sheet Cl). Prior to the construction of Well #4, the Wild Oaks 
Water System site had been historically disturbed, evidenced by remnant dumping, structures, 
culverts in the unnamed stream, power lines, and mowing. 

Construction on Well #4 was initiated in October 2016 in response to the emergency conditions 
of Well #1 and Well #2. Silt fencing was installed along the strip ofland between the two ponds 
and a trench that would hold the permanent iron piping was dug. This iron pipe that would 
connect Well #4 and Well #6 to the pump house was lain and the trench filled in. This pipe was 
also connected to the existing pump house. During this process Well #1 was decommissioned 
from service. 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Permit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Permits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



aze
 
llNFINISHED CONSTRUCTION 

To complete construction of Well #4 and Well #6, the following items need to be completed: 
•	 A trench for the electrical and instrumental conduits that would enable the permanent 

operation of the wells would need to be dug. Only one trench for both wells is required 
(Attachment 3 - Sheet Cta). 

•	 The utilities would need to be connected to equipment at the wells and at the well house. 
•	 The pitless adapter for Well #6 would need to be completed. Pitless adapters enable the 

well pump discharge to connect to the transmission main below grade. 
•	 The permanent pump for Well #6 would need to be installed and the cap cut and
 

completed.
 
•	 The pitless adapter for Well #4 would need to be installed in conjunction with a
 

temporary shutdown of pumping from Well #4.
 

Waters of the United States and New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation Regulated Tidal Wetlands 

The unnamed stream that runs through the Wild Oaks Water System property is a New York 
State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) Class C stream. According to 
NYSDEC New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Part 701.8, "The best usage of 
Class C waters is fishing. These waters shall be suitable for fish, shellfish, and wildlife 
propagation and survival. The water quality shall be suitable for primary and secondary contact 
recreation, although other factors may limit the use for these purposes." The unnamed Class C 
stream flows east to west, running adjacent to the small pond and has inflows into and out of the 
larger pond (Figure 2). This stream will not be disturbed under the proposed project. 

The NYSDEC Environmental Resources Mapper was consulted and there are no NYSDEC
regulated freshwater wetlands proximate to the Wild Oaks Water System, however, there is 
freshwater wetland checkzone in and around most of the Wild Oaks Water System property 
(Figure 2). A freshwater wetland checkzone is an area that NYSDEC suggests be checked for 
the presence of wetlands prior to any project to ensure that the proposed project does not 
encroach on any NYSDEC regulated wetlands or the regulated 100-foot buffer zone. United 
States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) National Wetland Inventory (NWI) maps were also 
consulted for the presence ofNWI wetlands in the vicinity of the proposed project. The two 
ponds on the site are classified as PubHh, or a Palustrine wetland with an unconsolidated bottom 
that is permanently flooded and is impounded (Figure 2). 

On May 8th 
, 2014, a wetland delineation was performed within the NYSDEC checkzone areas 

proximate to the proposed project. The wetland delineation was conducted in accordance with 
the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Wetlands Delineation Manual (USACE, 
1987) and the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: 
Northcentral and Northeast Region (USACE, 2012). The results of the wetland delineation are 
shown in Figure 3 and the complete wetland delineation report is provided in Attachment 9. 
Two freshwater wetlands were identified: Wetland A consists of a small 0.28 acre emergent 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Permits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



Hazen
 
wetland. This wetland occurs at the fringe of the eastern and smaller approximately 0.44 acre 
freshwater pond. Together, they are an approximately 0.72 acre freshwater wetland. Wetland B 
is a 1.0+ acre forested floodplain wetland in the northern area of the Wild Oaks Water System 
property, adjacent to the bank of the unnamed Class C stream. Wetland B is outside of the 
proposed limits of disturbance for this project. The entirety of the remaining project area, 
including the existing pump house are within ISO-feet of a wetland feature, and are thus 
considered within the regulated Town of Lewisboro ISO-foot wetland buffer area. 

IMPACTS FROM THE PROPOSED PROJECT AND PROPOSED RESTORATION 

The proposed project will involve the temporary disturbance of approximately 0.041 acres of 
freshwater wetlands from the installation of the pipe trench. Approximately 0.056 acres of 150
foot wetland buffer area will be temporarily disturbed. No trees or woody vegetation will be 
removed. An electrical box near Well #4 and Well #6 will be installed. Additionally, both wells 
will have their wellheads present at the surface for access. There is no concrete associated with 
the wellheads. These appurtenances are necessary for the long tenn function and protection of 
the new wells. Each appurtenance will consist of the smallest possible footprint «10 square feet 
total) and will not pose significant adverse impacts to wetland or wetland buffer function. At the 
end of the proposed project, all temporarily disturbed areas will be restored to pre-construction 
conditions. No equipment, erosion controls, wetland matting, or debris will be left in the wetland 
or wetland buffer area. Temporarily disturbed freshwater wetland areas will be seeded with a 
native wetland seed mix (Attachment 6 - Sheet C2). 

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 

The No-Action alternative to this project consisted of not constructing the bedrock wells and 
continuing to rely on currently operational sand and gravel groundwater wells. This alternative is 
not considered viable, as the reliability of these shallow sand and gravel wells has declined with 
time and more frequent summer droughts would result in more frequent emergency conditions. 

Alternative B to this project would be to find another suitable location for bedrock wells on the 
Wild Oaks property. This alternative was not pursued because all other locations on Wild Oaks 
Property would require more extensive disturbance to either one of the ponds or to the unnamed 
Class C stream rumling through the property. Alternative alignments for the proposed pipe also 
were considered, such as turning the pipe westward to avoid the delineated wetland boundary. 
This alignment was not pursued because there is mature shrubby vegetation along the bank of the 
large pond. This shrubby vegetation would have to be disturbed or removed to accommodate the 
machinery required for installation of the proposed pipe. Disturbance to this vegetation could 
cause disturbance to the bank of the freshwater pond and cause erosion. Additionally, the mature 
shrubby vegetation is providing ecological benefits such as food and cover for wildlife. The 
freshwater wetland where the pipe is proposed is currently disturbed and mowed, limiting its 
ecological function. 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Pennits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



Hazen
 
SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL MEASURES 

All construction activities would be subject to and performed in accordance with NYSDEC's 
technical standards for erosion and sediment control (e.g., utilizing silt fences and hay bales). Silt 
fencing will be erected around the limits of disturbance so as to minimize any sediment transport 
to either of the ponds or the unnamed Class C stream. If dewatering is required for any part of the 
trenching then an approved method such as a filter bag or settling tank will be utilized. Native soils 
that are cut for pipe trenching will be re-used as fill. 

REGULATORY APPROVALS REQUIRED FOR THE PROPOSED PROJECT 

U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS NATIONWIDE PERMIT PROGRAM 

Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line Activities 

The construction of the Wild Oaks Water System Well #4 and Well #6 would be covered under 
Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line Activities, which authorizes "the construction, maintenance, 
or repair of utility lines, including outfall and intake structures, and the associated excavation, 
backfill, or bedding for the utility lines, in all waters of the United States, provided there is no 
change in pre-construction contours." The utility line for the proposed project would be a 4-inch 
diameter RJDI pipe to convey drinking water. Nationwide Permit 12 also states that in wetlands, 
material removed within the top 6-12 inches should be backfilled into the trench. The proposed 
project would comply with this permit condition. 

The project was also reviewed for consistency with proposed changes to Nationwide Permit 12 
that USACE anticipates to issue in 2017. No proposed changes to Nationwide Permit 12 would 
affect the activities for this project, therefore this project would continue to be authorized under 
Nationwide Permit 12 and no further coordination with USACE is required. 

As per the NYSDEC document entitled "Water Quality Certification for the 2012 Nationwide 
Permits (NWPs)" which became effective March 19,2012, Nationwide Permit 12 - Utility Line 
Activities is granted blanket 401 Water Quality Certification as long as the NWP General 
Conditions and the following Special Condition are adhered to: 

"Materials resulting from trench excavation that are temporarily sidecast into waters of the 
United States must be used to backfill the trench or removed within 30 days of deposition." 

The proposed project would comply with all General and Special Conditions. Therefore, the 
proposed project will meet the conditions for blanket 401 Water Quality Certification. 

Attachment 3 - Project Description 
Pennit Application for Site Development and Wetland Activity Pennits 

New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System 
Town of Lewisboro, NY 



I 
P""hury 

II· 

fl 

'I J 

1'11'111 \/.1 ( "1<1 

SCALE 
o 400 800 ___.ii::=== 1.200 1.600Iii::==:=::JIFeel USGS Croton Falls 

Figure 1 

HAzEN AND SAWYER Wild Oaks Water System 
Environmental Engineers & Scientists Town of Lewisboro Wetland Activity 



SCALE· NYSDEC Classifed Surface Waters, 
o 160 320 460 640 NYSDEC Freshwater Wetlands Checkzone, and USFWS NWI ___II::::===-__-===:::::JIFeel 

Figure 2 

Wild Oaks Water System HAzE AND SAWYER 
Environmental Engineers & SCientists Town of Lewisboro Wetland Activity 



Delineated Wetlands 

Delineated Wetland Boundary 

o Study Area 

SCALE 
90 180 270 360 Wetland Delineation ___==::::ii__iil::::::=~IFeet 

Figure 3 

HAzEN AND SAWYER Wild Oaks Water System 
Environmental Engineers & SCientists Town of Lewisboro Wetland Activity 



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 4 
 

Westchester County Affidavit of Ownership



~~0\e-

e.,'"
r 

p~ rA 

"?\C"-V'\ V\ \~ 

\ "" V\ \:::>C;; / 

d~ 

TO F LEWISBORO PLANNING RD 

PO Box 725, 20 North Salem Road, Cross River, NY 10518
 
Email: plaonjne@!ewjsboroeoy.com
 

Tel: (914) 763-5592 Fax: (914) 763-3637
 

Tax Payment Affidavit Requirement 

This form must accompany all applications to the Planning Board. 

Under regulations adopted by the Town ofLewisboro, the Planning Board may not accept any application unless an 
affidavit from the Town ofLewisboro Receiver ofTaxes is on file in the Planning Board office. The affidavit must show 
that all amounts due to the Town ofLewisboro as real estate taxes and special assessments on the total area 
encompassed by the application, together with all penalties and interest thereon, have been paid. 

Under New York State law, the Westchester County Clerk may not accept any subdivision map for filing unless the same 
type ofaffidavit from the Town ofLewisboro Receiver ofTaxes is submitted by the applicant at the time offiling. 

This form must be completed by the applicant and must accompany all applications to the Planning Board. Upon receipt, the 
Planning Board Secretary will send the form to the Receiver of Taxes for signature and notarization. If preferred, the applicant 
may directly obtain the signature of the Receiver of Taxes and notarization prior to submission. 

Richard Ruge 

Name ofApplicant 

Property Description 

-W-r'
Tax Black(s): 

Tax Lat(s): 

Tax Sheet(s): 1H 

Il/'S2 

To Be Completed by Applicant 
(Please type or print) 

Wild Oaks Storage Tank 

Property Assessed to: 

New York American Water 

Name .
260 Hamson Ave. 

Project Name 

City 

Address Harrison, NY 10528 

1t;,'IJ. (}fl~ Lltilff to . 
Q2) AlYit~~ DTi-f/ 

ZipState 

The undersigned, being duly sworn deposes and says that a search of the tax records in the office of the Receiver of Taxes, 
Town of Lewisboro, reveals that all amounts due to the Town of Lewisboro as real estate taxes and special assessments, 
together with all penalties and interest thereo affecting the premises described below, have been paid. 

Sworn to before me this 

_~1~aYOf~Iq,t.UI:~~ t1f5.2 

JANET L. DONOffiJE 
NOTARY PUBUC. STATE OF NEWYORK 

Registration No, 0]006259627 
Qualifled in Westchester County 

ColllJllisgion Expires April 16,2016 



TOWN 0 LEWISBORO PLANNIN BOARD 

PO Box 725, 20 North Salem Road, Cross River, NY 10518
 
Email: plannin&:@lewisborogov.com
 

Tel: (914) 763-5592
 
Fax: (914) 763-3637
 

Affidavit of Ownership 

New York State of: 

Westchester County County of: 

Brian Bruce __________________--', being duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she 

resides at _ 

New Yorkin t he County 0 f . State 0 f _ 

I /I
 Presidentand that he/she is (check one) __D the owner, or _v_ the _ 
Title 

of New York American Water 

Name ofcorporation, partnership, or other legal entity 

which is the owner, in fee of all that certain log, piece or parcel of land situated, lying and being in the 

Town of Lewisboro, New York, aforesaid and know and designated on the Tax Map in the Town of 

Lewisboro as: 

11139Block _0_23 ----'. Lot 0004 . on Shee t _ 

~1
 ? e.£.S.
 IV~ A,-J 
Sworn to before me this 

fQiL- day of A (A8~lX:i«::.:>.

ROSE M. SIMPSON 
Notary Public. State of New York 

NO.01S15031048 . 
, Qualified in Nassau County 1.0 
Commission Expires July 25. 201.0 

..-:::::;....:'---_-', 2~~~ 



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 5 
 

Tax Payment Affidavit



PAGE 01/01 
11/23/2015 13:05 7533537 -.A -~~~-----...-.... -''' .-..- ...-__e__ -- . 

TAX PAYMENT AFFIDAVIT REQUIREMENT 

Under regltlations adopted by the Town of Lewisboro, the Planning Board may not accept any application unless 
an affidavit from the Town of Lewisboro Receiver ofT<lxes fS on file in the Planning Board Office. The affidavit must 
show that all amounts due to the Town of lewisboro as real estilte taxes and special assessments on the total area 
cilcompllssed by the application, together with ali penalties and interest thereon, have been paid. I 

Under Ne\v York State Law, the Westche,ster County Clerk.m, ay nol accept any subdivision map for filing unless the same I 
_~ype ~!.~ffida.vlt from the T~wn of~~wisboro Recei~;!~!..~~~sis s.~.bm!!~ed by the applicant_at the ti~.e of filing. ~.~ 

INSTRUCTIONS 

The <lpplicant is to complete the information box below and return to: Receiver of Taxes., Tpwn of lewisbQro, 11 Main 
Street, South S:;Jlem, New York 10590. 

For Planning Board applic<:Itions, the Receiver of Taxes will return this form and the affidavit to the Planning Board 
Office. For flline actions with the Westchester County Clerl<, DivisiOn of land Records, the Receiver of Taxes will return 
this form ilnd the affidavit to the applicant by mall if a stamped and self-addressed envelope is submitted with tliis form. 

II: ANY TAXES ARE FOUND TO SE DUE ON THF. PROPERTY RELATING TO THE APPLICATION, THEN THAT APPLICATION 
CAN NOT BE A.CCE1'TED BY THE PLANNING BOARD UNTil THE TAXES ARE PAID. 

TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT 
r--'~---'-~"-------'--------' --~""---

(PLEASE TYI"E O~ PRllIIT) --"---'~""--"--'l 
New York American Water	 Wild Oaks Water System--_.._------_.- ----	 '~----' 

name of l:Ipplicant	 project nome 

property description: prope·rty assessed to: ,. American WaterS G.c .
 
WX slJeete....-s _
 ncrme - ••.•----•••. ----•••..- ..•••••- - --•••• 

11137 260 Harrison Avenue black	 address 

Harrison, NY 10528 123lot 

appliccJl'lOIJ type (cllcc-k one) 

__._ SKetch Plan Review _~ Prelimlhary Subdivision Plat _~f1nat Subdivision ~Iat 

--...:..._ Site Development Plan _~ Sped;;1 Permit US£! ~_ Waiver of site Plan Procedures 

x 
-== Wetl~nd!i P.,:rmit -.----. ~~~~c;-- f.mng with The westt~~ster CIOll.ln/tvc:,:~_ 0:~ 

NO OUTSTANDING TAXES ARE DUE:	 _~--"----~ I!> ~ e-
R ceiver Taxes Date
 I 

C1;t
Sworn before me this 

d"w/"Of \ 2,_'0.__~~1H1 JANET L. DONOHUE 
ARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK 

IcK
J
 

No. 01006259627
 
!	 Qualified In Westchester County 

Commission Expires April 16, 2020 



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 6 
 

Project Drawings

























WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7 
 

Previous Approvals 
 

• Attachment 7a. Cal. 51-14 W.P. Wetland Activity Permit for Wells #4 and #5 
• Attachment 7b. Cal. 4-15 P.B. and Cal. 6-15 W.P: Expired Planning Board Resolution 

for Site Development Plan and Wetland Activity Permit 
• Attachment 7c. Cal. 54-15 W.P. Wetland Activity Permit for Well #6 
• Attachment 7d. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide Permit 12 – Utility Line 

Activities 
• Attachment 7e. New York State Historic Preservation Office Correspondence 
• Attachment 7f. NYSDEC Emergency Authorization of Well 4 

 
 



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7a 
 

Cal. 51-14 W.P. Wetland Activity Permit for Wells #4 
and #5









WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7b 
 

Cal. 4-15 P.B. and Cal. 6-15 W.P. Expired Planning 
Board Resolution for Site Development Plan and 

Wetland Activity Permit



















WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7c 
 

Cal. 54-15 W.P. Wetland Activity Permit for Well #6







WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7d 
 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide Permit 12 – 
Utility Line Activities



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
NEW YORK DISTRICT, CORPS OF ENGINEERS

JACOB K. JAVITS FEDERAL BUILDING
26 FEDERAL PLAZA

NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10278-0090

APR 282015

SUBJECT: Permit Application Number NAN-201 5-00301 -WOM
by New York American Water

New York American Water
C/o Mr. Richard Ruge
260 Harrison Avenue
Harrison, New York 10528

Dear Mr. RUge:

On March 10, 2015, the New York District of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
received a request for Department of the Army authorization to facilitate the proposed
connection of a New York American Water drinking water supply well to the existing pump
house. The site is located in the Town of Lewisboro, Westchester County, New York.

A submittal entitled “Wild Oaks Water System” prepared by Hazen and Sawyer,
dated March 3, 2015, and a supplemental information submittal, dated April 17, 2015,
indicate that the proposed work would consist of converting two test wells (BRW1 and
BRW2) into permanent water supply wells. Both wells are located in uplands. Temporary
trenches would be dug to run the necessary utilities connecting the wells to the pump
house, also in uplands. The utilities for BRW2 would cross through a wetland, though,
resulting in a temporary impact of approximately 172 linear feet (0.041 acres) from the
trenching. The trench itself would be approximately four feet deep and a 4-inch diameter
restrained-joint ductile iron pipe would be placed in the trench. Wetland matting would be
placed prior to any mechanical trenching or pipe installation within wetland boundaries.
After completion of the utility connection, the trench would be filled with the excavated soils.
All disturbed areas of the wetland would be restored to pre-construction conditions and re
vegetated with a native wetland seed mix.

It should be noted that the proposed project area also contains two ponds and a
stream. Although these waterbodies would not be disturbed by the work, sediment and
erosion control measures, such as silt fences and hay bales, would be placed around all
areas of access and construction to minimize any erosion or sediment transport to the
waters. In addition to the trenching work, the access road, which crosses the stream,
would be stabilized by placement of gravel; however, no disturbance to the stream bed and
banks, or the existing culverts, would occur. At the completion of the work, all temporary
construction barriers associated with the work, including but not limited to silt fences and
hay bales, would be removed.

Based on the information submitted to this office, our review of the project indicates
that an individual permit is not required. It appears that the activities within the jurisdiction

Regulatory Branch



-2- APR 282075

of this office could be accomplished under Department of the Army Nationwide General
Permit Number 12. The nationwide permits are prescribed as a Reissuance of Nationwide
Permits in the Federal Register dated February 21, 2012 (77 FR 10184). The work may be
performed without further authorization from this office provided the activity complies with
the permit conditions listed in Section B, No. 12, Section C, any applicable New York
District regional conditions, the following special conditions, and any applicable regional
conditions added by the State of New York, copies enclosed.

Special Conditions

(A) The permittee shall undertake the authorized filling activities in a manner aimed
at reducing impacts upon the general environment. In addition, the permittee
shall not stockpile fill or other materials in a manner conducive to erosion, or in
areas likely to cause high turbidity runoff during storm events. All exposed soils
shall be re-vegetated in a timely manner to further reduce potential effects. The
permittee shall also fence off all wetlands and other sensitive ecological areas
during construction periods to prevent equipment and personnel from entering
those areas.

(B) At the completion of the work, the permittee shall remove all temporary
construction barriers, including but not limited to silt fences and hay bales,
associated with the work.

This determination covers only the work described in the submitted material. Any
major changes in the project may require additional authorizations from the New York
District.

Care should be taken so that construction materials, including debris, do not enter
any waterway to become drift or pollution hazards. You are to contact the appropriate state
and local government officials to ensure that the subject work is performed in compliance
with their requirements.

Please note that this nationwide permit (NWP) verification is based on a preliminary
jurisdictional determination (JD). A preliminary JD is not appealable. If you wish, prior to
commencement of the authorized work you may request an approved JD, which may be
appealed, by contacting the New York District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for further
instruction. To assist you in this decision and address any questions you may have on the
differences between preliminary and approved jurisdictional determinations, please review
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Regulatory Guidance Letter No. 08-02, which can be found
at: http://www.usace.army.mil/Portals/2/docs/civilworks/RGLS/rq108-02. pdf

This verification is valid until March 18, 2017, unless the nationwide permit is
modified, reissued, or revoked. This verification will remain valid until March 18, 2017, if
the activity complies with the terms of any subsequent modifications of the nationwide
permit authorization. If the nationwide permits are suspended, revoked, or modified in such
a way that the activity would no longer comply with the terms and conditions of a
nationwide permit, and the proposed activity has commenced, or is under contract to



APR 28 2015

commence, the permittee shall have 12 months from the date of such action to complete
the activity.

Within 30 days of the completion of the activity authorized by this permit and
any mitigation required by this permit, you are to sign and submit the attached
compliance certification form to this office.

In order for us to better serve you, please complete our Customer Service Survey
located at http://www.nan.usace.army.mil/Missions/Requlatory/CustomerSurvey.aspx.

If any questions should arise concerning this matter, please contact Melanie
O’Meara, of my staff, at (917) 790-8417.

Sincerely,

Rosita Miranda
Chief, Western Section

Enclosures

cc: NYSDEC - Region 3
Town of Lewisboro
Kristen Barrett, FE, Hazen and Sawyer



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7e 
 

New York State Historic Preservation Office 
Correspondence



Deputy Commissioner for Historic Preservation
Ruth L. Pierpont

Sincerely,

If further correspondence is required regarding this project, please be sure to refer to the OPRHP Project 
Review (PR) number noted above.

Based upon this review, the New York SHPO has determined that no historic properties will be affected by 
this undertaking.

Thank you for requesting the comments of the State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). We have reviewed 
the project in accordance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966. These comments 
are those of the SHPO and relate only to Historic/Cultural resources. They do not include potential 
environmental impacts to New York State Parkland that may be involved in or near your project.  Such 
impacts must be considered as part of the environmental review of the project pursuant to the National 
Environmental Policy Act and/or the State Environmental Quality Review Act (New York Environmental 
Conservation Law Article 8).

March 23, 2015

www.nysparks.com

518-237-8643

Peebles Island, PO Box 189, Waterford, New York 12188-0189

Division for Historic Preservation

Commissioner

Rose Harvey

Governor
Andrew M. Cuomo

Re:

Mr. Richard Ruge
New York American Water
260 Harrison Avenue
Harrison, NY 10528     

USACE
New York American Water - Wild Oaks Water System
Nash Road, Lewsisboro, NY
15PR01226

Dear Mr. Ruge:



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 7f 
 

NYSDEC Emergency Authorization of Well #4



NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION 

Division of Environmental Permits, Region 3 
21 South Putt Corners Road, New Paltz, NY 12561·1620 

P: (845} 256-3054 I F: (845) 255-4659 

www.dec.ny.gov 

October 13, 2016 

Stacy Stieber 
Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. 
4 Research Drive, Suite 204 
Shelton, CT 06484 

RE: DEC No. 3-5530-00103/00004 
Well #4 Wild Oaks Water System, New York American Water 
Town of Lewisboro, Westchester County 

EMERGENCY AUTHORIZATION RENEWAL 

Ms. Stieber: 

On August 15, 2016 the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 
(DEC) received correspondence, from Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc., on behalf 
of New York American Water, notifying the DEC of the emergency use of "Well 4" of 
the Wild Oaks Water System (Wild Oak). According to the notification, the emergency 
use of Well #4 was required due to the inability of the three permitted wells 
(Production Wells 1 and 2 and bedrock Well 3) to meet the system's demand. 

The August 15th notification contained insufficient information for the DEC to make a 
finding of an emergency as per NYS Uniform Procedures Act (6 NYCRR Part 621.12). 
On August 16, 2016, as per 621.12(d)(5), DEC staff requested additional information 
to make a determination on a finding of an emergency. 

On September 13, 2016, the DEC received a response to this information request 
including documentation, dated September 6, 2016 from Delroy Taylor, Westchester 
County Department of Health (WCDH). The documentation contained confirmation of 
Wild Oak's inability to provide an adequate quantity of water at an adequate pressure 
for the system's 610 residents, constituting a potential health hazard in accordance 
with Part 5, Subpart 5-1 of the New York State Sanitary Code. 

On September 13, 2016 the DEC made a determination that an emergency exists in 
accordance with the requirements of 6 NYCRR Part 621.12 and issued an emergency 
authorization with an expiration date of October 13, 2016. 

On October 11, 2016 the DEC received a request from Leggette, Brashears & 
Graham, Inc., on behalf of New York American Water, for a 30-day extension of the 
September 13th, 2016 emergency authorization to continue use of Well #4 of the Wild 
Oak's well field. Based upon the review of this September 13, 2016 renewal request, 

11Page 



Wild Oaks Water System Emergency Authorization 
October 13, 2016 
Page 2 

New York American Water is hereby authorized to continue use of Well #4 of Wild 
Oak as an emergency water supply source for an additional 30 days. This emergency 
authorization will expire on November 12, 2016. Therefore, on or before November 
13, 2016, the project must be concluded or a complete application submitted to the 
Department. 

If you have any questions on the extent of work authorized or New York American 
Water's obligations under this Emergency Authorization, please contact me at (845) 
256-3801. 

Sincerely, 

Daniel Whitehead 
Regional Permit Administrator 
Region 3 

ecc: Richard Ruge, New York American Water 
Delroy Taylor, P.E., WCDH 
E, Kim, NYS DEC DOW 
S. Karimipour, Regional Water Engineer, NYS DEC 





 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 8 
 

Site Photographs



 

Photo 1 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing northwest. Dump truck on construction entrance.   

 

 

Photo 2 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing south. Temporary matting placed in construction area. 



 

Photo 3  

 Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing west. Temporary matting and silt fence. 

 

 

 

Photo 4 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing east. Temporary matting and silt fence. 



 

Photo 5 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing southeast. Blue temporary hose connects Well #4 to the pump house and Test Well #6 

located to the right without a pump housing. 

 

 

 

Photo 6 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing north. Truck and pump house visible in distance. 



 

Photo 7 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing east. Silt fence near pump house.  

 

 

 

Photo 8 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing east. Close-up of silt fence. 



 

Photo 9 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing north. Construction entrance. 

 

 

 

Photo 10 

Photo taken 11/21/2016 facing west. Construction entrance and temporary matting. 

 

  



 

Photo 11 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing south, standing at pump house. Strip of land between two freshwater ponds. 

 

Photo 12 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing east. Southern end of Wetland A. Drainage channel in center and vehicle ruts in 

foreground. 



 

Photo 13  

 Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing south. Drainage channel on uphill, northerly facing slope. South of study area. 

 

Photo 14 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing north, uphill slope. Confluence of drainage channel with disturbed access path and 

beginning of fringe in foreground. Purple wetland flags showing southerly boundary of Wetland A. 



 

Photo 15 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing east, upstream of unnamed stream. 

 

Photo 16 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing west, downstream of unnamed stream. Culverted section just north of pump house. 



 

Photo 17 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing east on smaller pond, from mowed strip. Fringe vegetation.  

 

Photo 18 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing east. Wetland B. Power line and dumping evident. 



 

Photo 19 

Photo taken 5/8/2014 facing north. Wetland B. Microtopographic relief evident. Depressions showing surface water and 

in drier conditions, water-stained leaves. 



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 9 
 

Wetland Delineation Report



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WETLAND DELINEATION REPORT 

 
FOR 

 

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER’S  

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

 

 
 

July 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: 

 

 

 

 
 

 



Page 2 of 7 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION.............................................................................................................. 3 

2.0 METHODOLOGY ............................................................................................................ 3 

3.0 STUDY AREA .................................................................................................................... 3 

4.0 RESULTS ........................................................................................................................... 3 

4.1 Wetland A ....................................................................................................................... 4 

4.2 Wetland B........................................................................................................................ 5 

5.0 CONCLUSION .................................................................................................................. 5 

6.0 REFERENCES ................................................................................................................... 5 

7.0 FIGURES ............................................................................................................................ 6 

FIGURE 1. UNITED STATES GEOLOGIC SURVEY (USGS) CROTON 

FALLS QUADRANT 

FIGURE 2. SITE LOCATION DIAGRAM 

FIGURE 3. USFWS NATIONAL WETLANDS INVENTORY 

FIGURE 4. NYSDEC FRESHWATER WETLANDS  

FIGURE 5. USDA NRCS SOIL SERIES 

FIGURE 6. WETLAND DELINEATION RESULTS 

 

8.0 APPENDICES .................................................................................................................... 7 

APPENDIX A. NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY 

CLASSIFICATIONS 

APPENDIX B. NYSDEC ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES MAPPER 

APPENDIX C. HYDROLOGIC SOIL GROUPS FOR WESTCHESTER 

COUNTY, NEW YORK 

APPENDIX D. SOIL SERIES DESCRIPTIONS 

APPENDIX E. USACE WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORMS 

APPENDIX F. PHOTOGRAPH LOG 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 7 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

New York American Water (NYAW) is proposing the expansion of the Wild Oaks Water System, 

an existing water-supply area located on Nash Road in The Town of Lewisboro, Westchester 

County, NY (Figure 1). NYAW requested that Hazen and Sawyer (H&S) perform a wetland 

delineation and inventory for a study area within the Wild Oaks Water System (Figure 2).   

 

 

2.0 METHODOLOGY 

A desktop review of the study area was conducted to assess the potential presence of wetlands 

using the United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) National Wetland Inventory maps 

(Figure 3 and Appendix A) and New York State Department of Environmental Conservation 

(NYSDEC) freshwater wetlands maps (Figure 4 and Appendix B). The United States Department 

of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service (USDA NRCS) Web Soil Survey was 

consulted for a list of soils in the local area (Figure 5) and cross referenced with the list of 

Hydrologic Soil Groups: Westchester County, New York (Appendix C) (USDA NRCS, 2012). 

Descriptions of all soil series in the vicinity of the study area were generated from the USDA 

NRCS Web Soil Survey, Soil Report tool (Appendix D). 

 

Following the desktop review, an on-site wetland delineation was performed in accordance with 

the three-parameter approach (vegetation, soils, and hydrology) outlined in the 1987 United States 

Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) “Wetlands Delineation Manual” (USACE, 1987) and the 

“Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral and 

Northeast Region” (USACE, 2011). Wetland and upland data were recorded on USACE 

Northcentral and Northeast Region Wetland Determination Data Forms (Appendix E) (USACE, 

2011) and the wetland/upland boundary and additional data point geographic locations were 

recorded in a Trimble Global Positioning Unit (GPS) model GEO XH with sub-meter accuracy. 

 

3.0 STUDY AREA 

The study area contains a mowed strip of land that abuts two freshwater ponds. To the south of 

these ponds are ascending slopes and to the north of the ponds is an unnamed stream and floodplain 

forest.  An existing well pump house is located at the northern end of the mowed strip and is 

accessible from Nash Road via an unpaved access road. Photographs of the study area are provided 

in Appendix F. 

 

4.0 RESULTS 

The desktop analysis shows that the potential for wetlands in the study area are high. The study 

area is low-lying and several areas 200 to 300 feet vertically higher drain towards the study area. 

There is an approximately 6-foot wide perennial unnamed stream running through the study area 

that feeds into the western pond. This stream was close to bank-full conditions at the time of the 

delineation. In the vicinity of the existing pump house, the stream passes underneath the existing 

access road via four, 24-inch corrugated metal culverts. The unnamed tributary is a NYCRR Part 

701 Class C fresh surface water body with fishing best usage (NYSDEC, 1991). The surface water 



Page 4 of 7 

shall be suitable for fish, shellfish, and wildlife propagation and survival. The water quality shall 

be suitable for primary and secondary contact recreation, although other factors may limit the use 

for these purposes. The NYSDEC freshwater wetlands check-zone encompasses the entire study 

area between the two freshwater ponds. The freshwater wetlands check-zone is an area around 

mapped freshwater wetlands that should be checked for actual wetlands. This is required because 

mapped wetlands boundaries are not always accurate. Additionally, several of the USDA NRCS 

soil series in the general vicinity of the study area are on the National List of Hydric Soils.  

 

A wetland delineation was conducted on May 8th, 2014 within the study area. Weather conditions 

were cloudy with intermittent light to moderate rain. There was also rain during several days 

preceding the site-visit. Three distinct vegetative communities were identified: one on the upland, 

rocky hillside south of the study area, one along the pond fringe and one forested floodplain area 

north of the unnamed tributary. The grassy area along the pond fringe was subject to disturbance 

in the form of mowing/maintenance and light vehicle access. The forested floodplain area was 

identified in the northern portion of the study area and extended east, upstream to the unnamed 

tributary and outside of the study area boundary. The westernmost boundary of this wetland 

community was delineated.  

 

Wetland delineation resulted in one approximately 0.3-acre wetland (Wetland A) located in the 

study area in the strip of land between the two freshwater ponds. Wetland A is a palustrine 

emergent wetland along the fringe of the eastern pond. A second, approximately 1+ acre wetland 

(Wetland B), located primarily outside of the study area, is a palustrine forested floodplain wetland 

north of the unnamed tributary. Both of these areas show signs of current or historical disturbance 

by human activities including clearing, mowing, vehicle operation, and the presence of existing 

infrastructure. 

4.1 Wetland A 

Wetland A is an approximately 0.3-acre palustrine emergent wetland located on the fringe of the 

eastern pond in the study area (Figure 6). Wetland A also has a scrub-shrub component and a few 

trees at the southwestern corner of the pond outside of the mowed access area. A drainage channel 

from the slope in the southern portion of the study area meets the pond in a mucky area 

immediately south of the eastern pond. The un-mowed perimeter of the pond is dominated by rice 

cutgrass (Leersia oryzoides) and tussock sedge (Carex stricta) with small amounts of Japanese 

barberry (Berberis thunbergii) and multiflora rose (Rosa multiflora). One red maple (Acer rubrum) 

was also present in the sampling plot. The upper 8 inches of the soil profile was dominated by low 

chroma colors and a depleted soil matrix, which are indicative of hydric soils and periodic 

inundation. Redoximorphic features, or areas where the saturation of water has caused the iron and 

manganese present in the soil to migrate, concentrate, and then oxidize, are present within the soil 

profile below 8-inches in depth. Hydrologically, this area had a high water table, surface water, 

and soil saturation at the time of the delineation. Due to the rain preceding the delineation, some 

of these indicators have the potential to be atypical under normal weather circumstances, however 

given the geographic position, obligate wetland vegetation and hydric soil indicators, the observed 

hydrologic indicators are likely to be present throughout the growing season.  

 



Page 5 of 7 

4.2 Wetland B 

Wetland B is a palustrine floodplain forest to the north of the unnamed tributary and extends 

beyond the study area boundaries. The western-most boundary of Wetland B was delineated and 

is depicted on Figure 6. Skunk cabbage (Symplocarpus foetidus) and purple pitcher plant 

(Sarracenia purpurea) are the dominant herbaceous vegetation and red maple (Acer rubrum) and 

slippery elm (Ulmus rubra) are the dominant trees. The upper 6 inches of the soil profile was made 

up of soils with a low chroma matrix and signs of depletion, which are indicative of hydric soils. 

Hydrologically, microtopographic relief was present as a result of tussock forming grasses/sedges 

and mosses. Water-stained leaves, or leaves whose colors have been stripped and whose 

biodegradation has been slowed as a result of saturation, were present within depressions in the 

topography. Surface water, high ground-water table, and soil saturation were also present. 

 

5.0 CONCLUSION 

A wetland field delineation was conducted on May 8th, 2014, in accordance with methods outlined 

in the USACE 1987 “Wetlands Delineation Manual”. Wetlands and waterways in the project area 

were identified, flagged, and recorded via GPS. Two separate wetlands, one approximately .3-acre 

and one 1+ acre wetlands were identified.  Wetland vegetation, soils and hydrology were 

inventoried for these two wetlands and have been outlined within this report and its appendices.  

 

6.0 REFERENCES 

Lichvar, R.W., M. Butterwick, N.C. Melvin, and W.N. Kirchner. 2014. The National Wetland 

Plant List: 2014 Update of Wetland Ratings. Phytoneuron 2014-41: 1-42 

 

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC). 1991. New York Code 

of Rules and Regulations Part 701.8 Class C fresh surface water. Accessed from 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/regs/4592.html#15987 

 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 1987. Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation 

Manual Technical Report Y-87-1 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Waterways Experiment Station, 

Vicksburg, Miss 

 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 2011. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers 

Wetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral and Northeast Region (Version 2.0), ed. J. S. 

Wakeley, R. W. Lichvar, C. V. Noble, and J. F. Berkowitz. ERDC/EL TR-12-1. Vicksburg, MS: 

U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center. 

 

U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural Resource Conservation Service (USDA NRCS). 2012. 

Hydrologic Soil Groups: Westchester County, New York. Accessed from 

http://efotg.sc.egov.usda.gov/references/public/NY/hsg_westchester.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.dec.ny.gov/regs/4592.html#15987
http://efotg.sc.egov.usda.gov/references/public/NY/hsg_westchester.pdf


Page 6 of 7 

7.0 FIGURES 

 

FIGURE 1. UNITED STATES GEOLOGIC SURVEY (USGS) CROTON FALLS 

QUADRANT 

 

FIGURE 2. SITE LOCATION DIAGRAM 

 

FIGURE 3. USFWS NATIONAL WETLANDS INVENTORY 

 

FIGURE 4. NYSDEC FRESHWATER WETLANDS  

 

FIGURE 5. USDA NRCS SOIL SERIES 

 

FIGURE 6. WETLAND DELINEATION RESULTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 7 

8.0 APPENDICES 

 

APPENDIX A. NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY CLASSIFICATIONS 

 

APPENDIX B. NYSDEC ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES MAPPER 

 

APPENDIX C. HYDROLOGIC SOIL GROUPS FOR WESTCHESTER COUNTY, NEW 

YORK 

 

APPENDIX D. SOIL SERIES DESCRIPTIONS 

 

APPENDIX E. USACE WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORMS 

 

APPENDIX F. PHOTOGRAPH LOG 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Copyright:© 2013 National Geographic Society, i-cubed

USGS Croton Falls
Figure 1

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 400 800 1,200 1,600
Feet

SCALE

Study Area



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Site Location
Figure 2

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 90 180 270 360
Feet

SCALE

Study Area

Existing Pump House

Nash Road



PUBHh

PFO1/SS1E

PUBHh

PUBHx

PFO1C

PFO1E

PUBHh

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

USFWS National Wetlands Inventory
Figure 3

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 180 360 540 720
Feet

SCALE

Nash Road

Unnamed NYSDEC Class C Stream
Study Area

USFWS National Wetlands Inventory
NWI Classification

PFO1/SS1E
PFO1C
PFO1E
PUBHh
PUBHx

See Appendix A for
descriptions of NWI Classificiations



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

NYSDEC Freshwater Wetlands
Figure 4

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 180 360 540 720
Feet

SCALE

Nash Road

Unnamed NYSDEC Class C Stream
NYSDEC Freshwater Wetlands Checkzone
Study Area



PnD

W

SuA Ff

PoD

LcA

RhD

RgB

ClC

WdC

W

ChD

ClD

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

USDA NRCS Soil Survey
Figure 5

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 180 360 540 720
Feet

SCALE

Study Area
USDA NRCS Soil Series
Soil Series Found on National Hydric Soils List

See Appendix D for 
Descriptions of Soil Series



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Wetland Delineation
Figure 6

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 90 180 270 360
Feet

SCALE

Data Points
Delineated Wetlands
Delineated Wetland Boundary
Study Area

Wetland A

Wetland B
Wetland
Continues

Existing Pump House

Nash Road

DP-1

DP-4

DP-3

DP-2



Page 7 of 7 

8.0 APPENDICES 

 

APPENDIX A. NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY CLASSIFICATIONS 

 

APPENDIX B. NYSDEC ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES MAPPER 

 

APPENDIX C. HYDROLOGIC SOIL GROUPS FOR WESTCHESTER COUNTY, NEW 

YORK 

 

APPENDIX D. SOIL SERIES DESCRIPTIONS 

 

APPENDIX E. USACE WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORMS 

 

APPENDIX F. PHOTOGRAPH LOG 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

National Wetlands Inventory Classification Descriptions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PFO1/SS1E 

P System PALUSTRINE: The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by 

trees, shrubs, emergents, mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal 

areas where salinity due to ocean derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. Wetlands lacking such 

vegetation are also included if they exhibit all of the following characteristics: 1. are less 

than 8 hectares ( 20 acres ); 2. do not have an active wave-formed or bedrock shoreline 

feature; 3. have at low water a depth less than 2 meters (6.6 feet) in the deepest part of 

the basin; 4. have a salinity due to ocean-derived salts of less than 0.5 ppt. 

Subsystem : 

FO Class FORESTED: Characterized by woody vegetation that is 6 m tall or taller. 

1 Subclass Broad-Leaved Deciduous: Woody angiosperms (trees or shrubs) with relatively 

wide, flat leaves that are shed during the cold or dry season; e.g., black ash (Fraxinus 

nigra). 

   --------- 

P System PALUSTRINE: The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by 

trees, shrubs, emergents, mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal 

areas where salinity due to ocean derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. Wetlands lacking such 

vegetation are also included if they exhibit all of the following characteristics: 1. are less 

than 8 hectares ( 20 acres ); 2. do not have an active wave-formed or bedrock shoreline 

feature; 3. have at low water a depth less than 2 meters (6.6 feet) in the deepest part of 

the basin; 4. have a salinity due to ocean-derived salts of less than 0.5 ppt. 

Subsystem : 

SS Class SCRUB-SHRUB: Includes areas dominated by woody vegetation less than 6 m (20 

feet) tall. The species include true shrubs, young trees (saplings), and trees or shrubs 

that are small or stunted because of environmental conditions. 

1 Subclass Broad-Leaved Deciduous: Woody angiosperms (trees or shrubs) with relatively 

wide, flat leaves that are shed during the cold or dry season; e.g., black ash (Fraxinus 

nigra). 

Modifier(s): 

E WATER REGIME Seasonally Flooded/Saturated: Surface water is present for extended 

periods especially early in the growing season and when surface water is absent, 

substrate remains saturated near the surface for much of the growing season. 

 

 

 



PFO1C  

P System PALUSTRINE: The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by 

trees, shrubs, emergents, mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal 

areas where salinity due to ocean derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. Wetlands lacking such 

vegetation are also included if they exhibit all of the following characteristics: 1. are less 

than 8 hectares ( 20 acres ); 2. do not have an active wave-formed or bedrock shoreline 

feature; 3. have at low water a depth less than 2 meters (6.6 feet) in the deepest part of 

the basin; 4. have a salinity due to ocean-derived salts of less than 0.5 ppt. 

Subsystem : 

FO Class FORESTED: Characterized by woody vegetation that is 6 m tall or taller. 

1 Subclass Broad-Leaved Deciduous: Woody angiosperms (trees or shrubs) with relatively 

wide, flat leaves that are shed during the cold or dry season; e.g., black ash (Fraxinus 

nigra). 

Modifier(s): 

C WATER REGIME Seasonally Flooded: Surface water is present for extended periods 

especially early in the growing season, but is absent by the end of the growing season in 

most years. The water table after flooding ceases is variable, extending from saturated 

to the surface to a water table well below the ground surface. 

 

PFO1E 

P System PALUSTRINE: The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by 

trees, shrubs, emergents, mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal 

areas where salinity due to ocean derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. Wetlands lacking such 

vegetation are also included if they exhibit all of the following characteristics: 1. are less 

than 8 hectares ( 20 acres ); 2. do not have an active wave-formed or bedrock shoreline 

feature; 3. have at low water a depth less than 2 meters (6.6 feet) in the deepest part of 

the basin; 4. have a salinity due to ocean-derived salts of less than 0.5 ppt. 

Subsystem : 

FO Class FORESTED: Characterized by woody vegetation that is 6 m tall or taller. 

1 Subclass Broad-Leaved Deciduous: Woody angiosperms (trees or shrubs) with relatively 

wide, flat leaves that are shed during the cold or dry season; e.g., black ash (Fraxinus 

nigra). 

Modifier(s): 



E WATER REGIME Seasonally Flooded/Saturated: Surface water is present for extended 

periods especially early in the growing season and when surface water is absent, 

substrate remains saturated near the surface for much of the growing season. 

 

PUBHh 

P System PALUSTRINE: The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by 

trees, shrubs, emergents, mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal 

areas where salinity due to ocean derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. Wetlands lacking such 

vegetation are also included if they exhibit all of the following characteristics: 1. are less 

than 8 hectares ( 20 acres ); 2. do not have an active wave-formed or bedrock shoreline 

feature; 3. have at low water a depth less than 2 meters (6.6 feet) in the deepest part of 

the basin; 4. have a salinity due to ocean-derived salts of less than 0.5 ppt. 

Subsystem : 

UB Class UNCONSOLIDATED BOTTOM: Includes all wetlands and deep-water habitats with 

at least 25% cover of particles smaller than stones (less than 6-7 cm), and a vegetative 

cover less than 30%. 

Subclass : 

Modifier(s): 

H WATER REGIME Permanently Flooded: Water covers the land surface throughout the 

year in all years. 

h SPECIAL MODIFIER Diked/Impounded: These wetlands have been created or modified 

by a man-made barrier or dam which obstructs the inflow or outflow of water. The 

descriptors ‘diked’ and ‘impounded’ have been combined into a single modifier since 

the observed effect on wetlands is similar. They have been combined here due to image 

interpretation limitations. For clarification of the extent of impoundment see discussion 

of Lacustrine System limits. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PUBHx 

P System PALUSTRINE: The Palustrine System includes all nontidal wetlands dominated by 

trees, shrubs, emergents, mosses or lichens, and all such wetlands that occur in tidal 

areas where salinity due to ocean derived salts is below 0.5 ppt. Wetlands lacking such 

vegetation are also included if they exhibit all of the following characteristics: 1. are less 

than 8 hectares ( 20 acres ); 2. do not have an active wave-formed or bedrock shoreline 

feature; 3. have at low water a depth less than 2 meters (6.6 feet) in the deepest part of 

the basin; 4. have a salinity due to ocean-derived salts of less than 0.5 ppt. 

Subsystem : 

UB Class UNCONSOLIDATED BOTTOM: Includes all wetlands and deepwater habitats with at 

least 25% cover of particles smaller than stones (less than 6-7 cm), and a vegetative 

cover less than 30%. 

Subclass : 

Modifier(s): 

H WATER REGIME Permanently Flooded: Water covers the land surface throughout the 

year in all years. 

x SPECIAL MODIFIER Excavated: Lies within a basin or channel that have been dug, 

gouged, blasted or suctioned through artificial means by man. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix B 

NYSDEC Environmental Resource Mapper 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Please set your printer orientation to "Landscape".

Freshwater Wetlands - NYSDEC Environmental Resource Mapper

MinX: 612105, MaxX: 613081, MinY: 4573584, MaxY: 4572916

Visible Layers

Disclaimer:This map was prepared by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
using the most

current data available. It is deemed accurate but is not guaranteed. NYS DEC is not responsible for
any inaccuracies

in the data and does not necessarily endorse any interpretations or products derived from the data.

[print page] [close window]

Page 1 of 1Map Output

7/1/2014http://www.dec.ny.gov/resource-app/resource?ServiceName=erm&ClientVersion=3.1&For...



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix C 

Hydrologic Soil Groups for Westchester County, New York 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Map Unit 
Symbol Map Unit Name Component Name Hydrologic 

Soil Group
Ce Carlisle muck Carlisle A/D

ChB Charlton loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes Charlton B
ChC Charlton loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes Charlton B
ChD Charlton loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes Charlton B
ChE Charlton loam, 25 to 35 percent slopes Charlton B
ClB Charlton loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony Charlton B
ClC Charlton loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes, very stony Charlton B
ClD Charlton loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes, very stony Charlton B
ClE Charlton loam, 25 to 35 percent slopes, very stony Charlton B
ClF Charlton loam, 35 to 45 percent slopes, very stony Charlton B
CrC Charlton-Chatfield complex, rolling, very rocky Charlton B
CrC Charlton-Chatfield complex, rolling, very rocky Chatfield B
CsD Chatfield-Charlton complex, hilly, very rocky Chatfield B
CsD Chatfield-Charlton complex, hilly, very rocky Charlton B
CtC Chatfield-Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, rolling Chatfield B
CtC Chatfield-Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, rolling Hollis D
CtC Chatfield-Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, rolling Rock outcrop
CuD Chatfield-Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, hilly Chatfield B
CuD Chatfield-Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, hilly Hollis D
CuD Chatfield-Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, hilly Rock outcrop
DAM Dam Dam

Ff Fluvaquents-Udifluvents complex, frequently flooded Fluvaquents A/D
Ff Fluvaquents-Udifluvents complex, frequently flooded Udifluvents A
Fr Fredon silt loam Fredon B/D
Fr Fredon silt loam Fredon B/D

HnB Hinckley gravelly loamy sand, 3 to 8 percent slopes Hinckley A
HnC Hinckley gravelly loamy sand, 8 to 15 percent slopes Hinckley A
HnD Hinckley gravelly loamy sand, 15 to 25 percent slopes Hinckley A
HrF Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, very steep Hollis D
HrF Hollis-Rock outcrop complex, very steep Rock outcrop
Ip Ipswich mucky peat Ipswich A/D

KnB Knickerbocker fine sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes Knickerbocker A
KnC Knickerbocker fine sandy loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes Knickerbocker A
LcA Leicester loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes, stony Leicester A/D

December 2012                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
[This table of hydrologic soil group data will be updated on eFOTG  as needed, in order to maintain consistency with the official SSURGO soil survey data.]

Hydrologic Soil Groups                                                                                                                                                                                    
Westchester County, New York

rdiamond
Highlight

rdiamond
Highlight

rdiamond
Text Box
Highlighted Soil Series indicate soil series present in the vicinity of the proposed project and are on the National List of Hydric Soils

rdiamond
Highlight



Map Unit 
Symbol Map Unit Name Component Name Hydrologic 

Soil Group
LcA Leicester loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes, stony Leicester A/D
LcB Leicester loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes, stony Leicester A/D
LcB Leicester loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes, stony Leicester A/D
LeB Leicester loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony Leicester A/D
LeB Leicester loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony Leicester A/D
Pa Palms muck Palms A/D
Pc Palms and Carlisle soils, ponded Palms A/D
Pc Palms and Carlisle soils, ponded Carlisle A/D

PnB Paxton fine sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes Paxton C
PnC Paxton fine sandy loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes Paxton C
PnD Paxton fine sandy loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes Paxton C
PoB Paxton fine sandy loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony Paxton C
PoC Paxton fine sandy loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes, very stony Paxton C
PoD Paxton fine sandy loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes, very stony Paxton C
Pt Pits, gravel Pits, gravel
Pv Pits, quarry Pits, quarry
Pw Pompton silt loam, loamy substratum Pompton B/D
Ra Raynham silt loam Raynham C/D

RdA Ridgebury loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes Ridgebury B/D
RdA Ridgebury loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes Ridgebury B/D
RdB Ridgebury loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes Ridgebury B/D
RdB Ridgebury loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes Ridgebury B/D
RgB Ridgebury loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony Ridgebury B/D
RgB Ridgebury loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony Ridgebury B/D
RhA Riverhead loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes Riverhead A
RhB Riverhead loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes Riverhead A
RhC Riverhead loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes Riverhead A
RhD Riverhead loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes Riverhead A
RhE Riverhead loam, 25 to 50 percent slopes Riverhead A
SbB Stockbridge silt loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes Stockbridge C
Sh Sun loam Sun C/D
Sm Sun loam, extremely stony Sun C/D
SuA Sutton loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes Sutton B
SuB Sutton loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes Sutton B
Ub Udorthents, smoothed Udorthents B
Uc Udorthents, wet substratum Udorthents A/D

UdB Unadilla silt loam, 2 to 6 percent slopes Unadilla B
Uf Urban land Urban land

UhB Urban land-Charlton complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Urban land
UhB Urban land-Charlton complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Charlton B

rdiamond
Highlight

rdiamond
Text Box
Highlighted Soil Series indicate soil series present in the vicinity of the proposed project and are on the National List of Hydric Soils

rdiamond
Highlight



Map Unit 
Symbol Map Unit Name Component Name Hydrologic 

Soil Group
UhC Urban land-Charlton complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes Urban land
UhC Urban land-Charlton complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes Charlton B
UhD Urban land-Charlton complex, 15 to 25 percent slopes Urban land
UhD Urban land-Charlton complex, 15 to 25 percent slopes Charlton B
UlC Urban land-Charlton-Chatfield complex, rolling, very rocky Urban land
UlC Urban land-Charlton-Chatfield complex, rolling, very rocky Charlton B
UlC Urban land-Charlton-Chatfield complex, rolling, very rocky Chatfield B
UlD Urban land-Charlton-Chatfield complex, hilly, very rocky Urban land
UlD Urban land-Charlton-Chatfield complex, hilly, very rocky Charlton B
UlD Urban land-Charlton-Chatfield complex, hilly, very rocky Chatfield B

UmC Urban land-Chatfield-Rock outcrop complex, rolling Urban land
UmC Urban land-Chatfield-Rock outcrop complex, rolling Chatfield B
UmC Urban land-Chatfield-Rock outcrop complex, rolling Rock outcrop
UpB Urban land-Paxton complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Urban land
UpB Urban land-Paxton complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Paxton C
UpC Urban land-Paxton complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes Urban land
UpC Urban land-Paxton complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes Paxton C
UpD Urban land-Paxton complex, 15 to 25 percent slopes Urban land
UpD Urban land-Paxton complex, 15 to 25 percent slopes Paxton C
UrB Urban land-Ridgebury complex, 1 to 8 percent slopes Urban land
UrB Urban land-Ridgebury complex, 1 to 8 percent slopes Ridgebury B/D
UrB Urban land-Ridgebury complex, 1 to 8 percent slopes Ridgebury B/D
UvB Urban land-Riverhead complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Urban land
UvB Urban land-Riverhead complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Riverhead A
UvC Urban land-Riverhead complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes Urban land
UvC Urban land-Riverhead complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes Riverhead A
UwB Urban land-Woodbridge complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Urban land
UwB Urban land-Woodbridge complex, 2 to 8 percent slopes Woodbridge C
W Water Water

WdA Woodbridge loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes Woodbridge C
WdB Woodbridge loam, 3 to 8 percent slopes Woodbridge C
WdC Woodbridge loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes Woodbridge C

rdiamond
Text Box
Highlighted Soil Series indicate soil series present in the vicinity of the proposed project and are on the National List of Hydric Soils

rdiamond
Highlight

rdiamond
Highlight



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix D 

Soil Series Descriptions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Natural Resource Conservation Service 

(NRCS) 

 Web Soil Survey 

Detailed Soil Map Units Report 

 

The USDA NRCS Web Soil Survey is a digitized collection of soil surveys 

completed by the National Cooperative Soil Survey (NCSS). The NCSS is a 

nation-wide partnership of federal, state, and local agencies and institutions that 

conduct soil surveys for the purposes of understanding, managing, and 

conserving the nation’s soil resources.  This report was generated by inputting 

the project area into the Web Soil Survey and downloading one of the subsequent 

reports. This report, “Map Unit Description”, is a brief description of the 

characteristics of the soil series present in the project area. 

 

Detailed Soil Map Units 

The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the soils or 

miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions in this report, along with the 

maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit. 

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more major kinds 

of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named according to the taxonomic 

classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic class there are precisely defined limits 

for the properties of the soils. On the landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and 

they have the characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 

observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. Areas of soils 

of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without including areas of other 

taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made up of the soils or miscellaneous areas 

for which it is named and some minor components that belong to taxonomic classes other than 

those of the major soils. 

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the map unit, 

and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called noncontrasting, or similar, 

components. They may or may not be mentioned in a particular map unit description. Other 

minor components, however, have properties and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to 

affect use or to require different management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, 

components. They generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of 

the scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas are 

identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a given area, the 

contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit descriptions along with some 

characteristics of each. A few areas of minor components may not have been observed, and 

consequently they are not mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so 

complex that it was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 

miscellaneous areas on the landscape. 



The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the usefulness or 

accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate pure taxonomic classes but 

rather to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that have similar use and 

management requirements. The delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient 

information for the development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, 

however, onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas. 

An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. Each 

description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil properties and qualities. 

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a soil series. All the soils of a series have 

major horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement. Soils of a given 

series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, salinity, degree of erosion, and 

other characteristics that affect their use. On the basis of such differences, a soil series is divided 

into soil phases. Most of the areas shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The 

name of a soil phase commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, 

Alpha silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series. 

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. These map units 

are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups. 

A complex consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate pattern or in 

such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. The pattern and proportion of 

the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 

percent slopes, is an example. 

An association is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or miscellaneous areas 

that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present or anticipated uses of the map units in 

the survey area, it was not considered practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous 

areas separately. The pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are 

somewhat similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example. 

An undifferentiated group is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas that could be 

mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar interpretations can be made for 

use and management. The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped 

area are not uniform. An area can be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous 

areas, or it can be made up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an 

example. 

Some surveys include miscellaneous areas. Such areas have little or no soil material and support 

little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example. 

Additional information about the map units described in this report is available in other soil 

reports, which give properties of the soils and the limitations, capabilities, and potentials for 

many uses. Also, the narratives that accompany the soil reports define some of the properties 

included in the map unit descriptions. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Minor map unit components are excluded from this report. 

Westchester County, New York 

 

Map Unit: ChD—Charlton loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes 

Component: Charlton (80%) 

The Charlton component makes up 80 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 15 to 25 percent. This 

component is on hills, ridges, till plains. The parent material consists of acid loamy till derived 

mainly from schist, gneiss, or granite. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. 

The natural drainage class is well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is 

moderately high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is 

low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. There is no zone of water saturation within a depth 

of 72 inches. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 4 percent. Nonirrigated land 

capability classification is 4e. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Paxton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Paxton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Chatfield (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Chatfield soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Sutton (4%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sutton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Knickerbocker (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Knickerbocker soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Riverhead (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Riverhead soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Charlton, very stony (1%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 



Component: Hollis (1%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Hollis soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

Map Unit: ClC—Charlton loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes, very stony 

Component: Charlton (80%) 

The Charlton component makes up 80 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 8 to 15 percent. This 

component is on till plains, ridges, hills. The parent material consists of acid loamy till derived 

mainly from schist, gneiss, or granite. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. 

The natural drainage class is well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is 

moderately high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is 

low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. There is no zone of water saturation within a depth 

of 72 inches. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 4 percent. Nonirrigated land 

capability classification is 6s. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Chatfield (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Chatfield soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Paxton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Paxton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Sutton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sutton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Riverhead (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Riverhead soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Knickerbocker (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Knickerbocker soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Charlton, extremely stony (1%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 



Map Unit: ClD—Charlton loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes, very stony 

Component: Charlton (80%) 

The Charlton component makes up 80 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 15 to 25 percent. This 

component is on hills, ridges, till plains. The parent material consists of acid loamy till derived 

mainly from schist, gneiss, or granite. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. 

The natural drainage class is well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is 

moderately high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is 

low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. There is no zone of water saturation within a depth 

of 72 inches. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 4 percent. Nonirrigated land 

capability classification is 6s. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Paxton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Paxton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Sutton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sutton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Chatfield (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Chatfield soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Knickerbocker (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Knickerbocker soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Riverhead (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Riverhead soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Charlton, extremely stony (1%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

Map Unit: Ff—Fluvaquents-Udifluvents complex, frequently flooded 

Component: Fluvaquents (50%) 

The Fluvaquents component makes up 50 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 0 to 3 percent. This 

component is on flood plains. The parent material consists of alluvium with highly variable 

texture. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. The natural drainage class is 

poorly drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is moderately low. Available water 



to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is low. This soil is frequently flooded. 

It is frequently ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is at 0 inches during January, 

February, March, April, May, June, October, November, December. Organic matter content in 

the surface horizon is about 3 percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 5w. This soil 

meets hydric criteria. 

Component: Udifluvents (35%) 

The Udifluvents component makes up 35 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 0 to 3 percent. This 

component is on flood plains. The parent material consists of alluvium with a wide range of 

texture. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. The natural drainage class is 

well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is moderately low. Available water to 

a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is low. This soil is frequently flooded. It 

is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is at 48 inches during January, February, 

March, April, May, November, December. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 

2 percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 5w. This soil does not meet hydric 

criteria. 

Component: Sun (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sun soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Riverhead (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Riverhead soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Ridgebury (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Ridgebury soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Hinckley (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Hinckley soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Leicester (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Leicester soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Knickerbocker (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Knickerbocker soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Carlisle (1%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Carlisle soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Palms (1%) 



Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Palms soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

Map Unit: LcA—Leicester loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes, stony 

Component: Leicester, poorly drained (50%) 

The Leicester, poorly drained component makes up 50 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 0 to 3 

percent. This component is on depressions. The parent material consists of loamy acid till 

derived mostly from schist and gneiss. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. 

The natural drainage class is poorly drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is 

moderately high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is 

low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is at 6 inches 

during January, February, March, April, May, November, December. Organic matter content in 

the surface horizon is about 5 percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 6s. This soil 

meets hydric criteria. 

Component: Leicester, somewhat poorly drained (35%) 

The Leicester, somewhat poorly drained component makes up 35 percent of the map unit. Slopes 

are 0 to 3 percent. This component is on depressions. The parent material consists of loamy acid 

till derived mostly from schist and gneiss. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 

inches. The natural drainage class is somewhat poorly drained. Water movement in the most 

restrictive layer is moderately high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-

swell potential is low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water 

saturation is at 12 inches during January, February, March, April, May, November, December. 

Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 5 percent. Nonirrigated land capability 

classification is 6s. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Sun (7%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sun soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Sutton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sutton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Leicester, very stony (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Leicester soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

 



Map Unit: PnD—Paxton fine sandy loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes 

Component: Paxton (85%) 

The Paxton component makes up 85 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 15 to 25 percent. This 

component is on till plains, drumlinoid ridges, hills. The parent material consists of acid loamy 

till derived mainly from crystalline rock. Depth to a root restrictive layer, densic material, is 18 

to 40 inches. The natural drainage class is well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive 

layer is moderately low. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell 

potential is low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is 

at 24 inches during February, March, April. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is 

about 4 percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 4e. This soil does not meet hydric 

criteria. 

Component: Charlton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Woodbridge (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Woodbridge soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Ridgebury (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Ridgebury soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Paxton, very stony (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Paxton soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

Map Unit: PoD—Paxton fine sandy loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes, very stony 

Component: Paxton (85%) 

The Paxton component makes up 85 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 15 to 25 percent. This 

component is on hills, drumlinoid ridges, till plains. The parent material consists of acid loamy 

till derived mainly from crystalline rock. Depth to a root restrictive layer, densic material, is 18 

to 38 inches. The natural drainage class is well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive 

layer is moderately low. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell 

potential is low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is 

at 24 inches during February, March, April. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is 

about 4 percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 6s. This soil does not meet hydric 

criteria. 

Component: Woodbridge (5%) 



Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Woodbridge soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Charlton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Ridgebury (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Ridgebury soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Paxton, non-stony (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Paxton soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

Map Unit: RgB—Ridgebury loam, 2 to 8 percent slopes, very stony 

Component: Ridgebury, somewhat poorly drained (50%) 

The Ridgebury, somewhat poorly drained component makes up 50 percent of the map unit. 

Slopes are 2 to 8 percent. This component is on hills, drumlinoid ridges, till plains. The parent 

material consists of loamy till derived mainly from granite, gneiss, and schist. Depth to a root 

restrictive layer, densic material, is 14 to 30 inches. The natural drainage class is somewhat 

poorly drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is moderately low. Available water 

to a depth of 60 inches is low. Shrink-swell potential is low. This soil is not flooded. It is not 

ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is at 12 inches during January, February, March, 

April, May, November, December. Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 6 

percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 6s. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Ridgebury, poorly drained (35%) 

The Ridgebury, poorly drained component makes up 35 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 2 to 

8 percent. This component is on drumlinoid ridges, hills, till plains. The parent material consists 

of loamy till derived mainly from granite, gneiss, and schist. Depth to a root restrictive layer, 

densic material, is 14 to 30 inches. The natural drainage class is poorly drained. Water movement 

in the most restrictive layer is moderately low. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is low. 

Shrink-swell potential is low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water 

saturation is at 6 inches during January, February, March, April, May, November, December. 

Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 6 percent. Nonirrigated land capability 

classification is 6s. This soil meets hydric criteria. 

Component: Woodbridge (7%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Woodbridge soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Sun (5%) 



Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sun soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Ridgebury, bouldery (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Ridgebury soil is a 

minor component. 

 

 

Map Unit: RhD—Riverhead loam, 15 to 25 percent slopes 

Component: Riverhead (85%) 

The Riverhead component makes up 85 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 15 to 25 percent. 

This component is on terraces, deltas. The parent material consists of loamy glaciofluvial 

deposits overlying stratified sand and gravel. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 

inches. The natural drainage class is well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer 

is high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is low. Shrink-swell potential is low. This soil is 

not flooded. It is not ponded. There is no zone of water saturation within a depth of 72 inches. 

Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 3 percent. Nonirrigated land capability 

classification is 4e. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Pompton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Pompton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Charlton (4%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Hinckley (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Hinckley soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Knickerbocker (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Knickerbocker soil is a 

minor component. 

 

Map Unit: SuA—Sutton loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes 

Component: Sutton (85%) 

The Sutton component makes up 85 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 0 to 3 percent. This 

component is on hills, till plains, ridges. The parent material consists of loamy till derived mainly 

from crystalline rock. Depth to a root restrictive layer is greater than 60 inches. The natural 

drainage class is moderately well drained. Water movement in the most restrictive layer is 



moderately high. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. Shrink-swell potential is 

low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water saturation is at 24 inches 

during January, February, March, April, November, December. Organic matter content in the 

surface horizon is about 5 percent. Nonirrigated land capability classification is 2w. This soil 

does not meet hydric criteria. 

Component: Leicester (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Leicester soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Charlton (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Charlton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Woodbridge (3%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Woodbridge soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Sutton, very stony (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sutton soil is a minor 

component. 

 

 

Map Unit: W—Water 

Component: Water (100%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major soil components. The Water is a 

miscellaneous area. 

 

Map Unit: WdC—Woodbridge loam, 8 to 15 percent slopes 

Component: Woodbridge (80%) 

The Woodbridge component makes up 80 percent of the map unit. Slopes are 8 to 15 percent. 

This component is on till plains, hills, drumlinoid ridges. The parent material consists of loamy 

acid till derived mainly from crystalline rock. Depth to a root restrictive layer, densic material, is 

18 to 38 inches. The natural drainage class is moderately well drained. Water movement in the 

most restrictive layer is moderately low. Available water to a depth of 60 inches is moderate. 

Shrink-swell potential is low. This soil is not flooded. It is not ponded. A seasonal zone of water 

saturation is at 24 inches during January, February, March, April, May, November, December. 

Organic matter content in the surface horizon is about 4 percent. Nonirrigated land capability 

classification is 3e. This soil does not meet hydric criteria. 

 



Component: Paxton (8%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Paxton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Ridgebury (5%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Ridgebury soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Woodbridge, very stony (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Woodbridge soil is a 

minor component. 

Component: Sun (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sun soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Sutton (2%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Sutton soil is a minor 

component. 

Component: Urban land (1%) 

Generated brief soil descriptions are created for major components. The Urban land soil is a 

minor component. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E 

USACE Wetland Determination Data Forms 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix F 

Photograph Log 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Photograph Key

±

Wild Oaks Water System
Wild Oaks Wetland Delineation

0 50 100 150 200
Feet

SCALE

Existing Pump House


















 Study Area
Photo Location/Direction



Photo 1

Southern facing, standing at pump house. Strip of land between two freshwater ponds.

Photo 2

Southern end of Wetland A. Facing east. Drainage channel in center and vehicle ruts in foreground.



Photo 3

Facing south. Drainage channel on uphill, northerly facing slope. South of study area.

Photo 4

Facing north, uphill slope. Confluence of drainage channel with disturbed access path and beginning of fringe in

foreground. Purple wetland flags showing southerly boundary of Wetland A.



Photo 5

Facing east, upstream of unnamed stream.

Photo 6

Facing west, downstream of unnamed stream. Culverted section just north of pump house.



Photo 7

Facing east on smaller pond, from mowed strip. Fringe vegetation.

Photo 8

Facing east. Wetland B. Power line and dumping evident.



Photo 9

Facing north. Wetland B. Microtopographic relief evident. Depressions showing surface water and in drier conditions,

water-stained leaves.



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 10 
 

Short Environmental Assessment Form











WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 11 
 

Engineer’s Report



*
NEW YORK

AMLRILAN WAI U&

WILD OAKS GROUNDWATER
WELL REPLACEMENT

Engineer’s Report

May 2015
Revised Atigtist 2016

Hazen



Table of Contents

1.0 Introduction 1-1

1.1 Purpose ofReport 1-1

1.2 Background 1-1

1.3 System Demands 1-2

2.0 Existing Water Supply System 2-2

2.1 Introduction 2-2

2.2 Existing System Configuration 2-3

2.3 Existing Groundwater Wells 2-3

2.4 Existing Water Treatment System 2-3

3.0 Proposed System Upgrades 3-4

3.1 Wet/Cap 3-4

3.2 Pttmp Selection 3-4

3.3 Piping Connection 3-4

3.4 Electrical 3-5

4.0 Appendices 4-5

Appendices
Hydraulic Calculations Appendix A
Well Pump Cutsheets and Curves Appendix B



1.0 Introduction

1.1 Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to present the basis of design for the construction of two new
groundwater wells at the Wild Oaks Water System. The report provides a description of
the existing water treatment system at the Wild Oaks well house, a description of the two
new welt pumps and proposed modifications to connect the two new wells to the existing
water treatment system. The well construction plans were submitted under a previously
approved submittal (Log No.: C14-021). This report is an update to the report dated May
2015, and has been revised to provide updated information on the additional well drilled
and pumping equipment proposed for the two production wells.

1.2 Background

New York American Water (NYAW) currently owns and operates the Wild Oaks
groundwater system in the Town of Lewisboro, Westchester County, New York. The
existing water system is supplied by two sand and gravel wells, each permitted for 75 gpm.
The existing wells (Well #1 and Well #2) are housed within a well house which also
provides treatment: cartridge filtration, IJV treatment and chemical addition (sodium
hypochlorite and orthophosphate) of the groundwater prior to distribution. Well #1 cannot
be used due to low production and poor water quality.

New York American Water is currently planning to replace the two shallow wells by
drilling and developing two new bedrock welts at the Wild Oaks property (submitted under
previously approved submittal (Log No.: C14-021). To date, three test wells have been
drilled. Pump testing and water quality testing for wells #4 and #5 has been completed and
was previously approved (Log No.: C 15-018). Two wells (#4 and #5) were drilled initially;
however, pump testing of Well #5 revealed that it would be unable to furnish the anticipated
flow necessary to satisfy the design requirements ($0 gpm) to be redundant to Well #4. As
a result, a third well (#6) was drilled adjacent to Well #4. Approval for the construction of
Well #6 was previously provided (Log No.: C14-031). Preliminary results of the 72-hour
testing has indicated that Well #6 will be capable of producing the design flow of $0 gpm.
The results of the Well #6 pump test and water quality report will be provided under a
separate cover.

The scope of this project will include the following items:
• Completion of two bedrock wells (Well #4 and Well #6);
• Installation of buried pitless adapters and flood-proof well caps;
• Installation of two new submersible pumps;
• Decommissioning of Well #1
• Installation of new 4-inch diameter pipes from the new wells’ discharge piping to

the existing treatment system;
• Necessary electrical components to accommodate new pumps and motors.

Wild Oaks Well Replacement Engineer’s Report
I-IS 90185-000 1



The piping, pitless adapter and pump will not be installed for Well #5 and this well will
not be placed into service.

The existing sand and gravel shallow wells are designated Groundwater Under the Direct
Influence of Surface Water (GUDISW) due to their depth and proximity to surface waters.
The existing water treatment system consists of two treatment trains (one duty and one
standby). Each train consists of two cartridge filters in series (5 micron and 1 micron,
respectively) UV disinfection, secondary disinfection (with sodium hypochiorite) and
corrosion control (with orthophosphate). No changes are being proposed to the existing
treatment system.

The new bedrock wells will draw groundwater from a significantly greater depth than the
existing wells and from a different aquifer formation. The new source is expected to exhibit
water quality improvement from the existing sand and gravel wells. After construction and
once approved (under a separate submittal), the new bedrock welts #4 and #6 will be
brought online and the water will be treated via the existing treatment system. Due to the
depth of the new groundwater wells, future testing to determine if the new wells are under
the direct influence of surface water may be performed. The new groundwater source will
continue to undergo treatment, until a conclusion is made regarding its status as
groundwater under direct influence of surface water. A subsequent sampling program and
GWUDI study will be performed in the future and are not part of this submittal.

1.3 System Demands

The Wild Oaks system serves 610 customers through 223 service connections. Recent
demand data for the Wild Oaks System is summarized below:

Table 1: Selected System Demand Data
Year Average Day Average Day Maximum Day Maximum Day

(gallons) (gpm) (gallons) (gpm)
2010 16,098 11.2 86,300 59.9
2013 52,727 36.6 114,400 79.4
2014 43,200 30.0 $9,080 61.9

The existing ground 125,000-gallon water storage tank provides water for peak demands
and fire flow.

2.0 Existing Water Supply System

2.1 Introduction

This section discusses the existing wells, treatment system, and current operating
conditions at the Wild Oaks well station. The review was developed through on-site

Wild Oaks Well Replacement Engineer’s Report
HS9OI$5-000 2



inspection of facilities and discussion with New York American Water personnel,
including operating staff.

2.2 Existing System Configuration

The existing water supply system consists of two shallow 75 gpm groundwater wells, two-
train water treatment system (duty, standby), an $-inch treated water distribution main, the
distribution network, and an existing 125,000 gallon storage tank. The well pumps are
sized to provide a TDH of 334 feet at 75 gpm. The storage tank, which is located within
the distribution network, is used as a balancing reservoir. A new 143,000 gallon storage
tank is under construction adjacent to the existing storage tank located at the same
hydraulic grade and is anticipated to be on-line in September 2016. After new tank is
approved, the existing tank will be taken out of service, demolished and removed.

2.3 Existing Groundwater Wells

Each of the two existing sand and gravel wells (Wells #1 and #2) is permitted at 75 gpm
by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYS DEC). The wells
are located within the footprint of the well house structure. This supply is designated as
groundwater under direct influence of surface water, and therefore requires treatment prior
to distribution. See Section 2.4 for more details.

Wells #1 and #2 are currently equipped with 10 HP submersible pumps, which were
installed in 2011 to accommodate the additional pressure required to operate the UV units
which were also installed in 2011. The existing pumps are rated to deliver 75 gpm at a
total dynamic head of 334 feet. Wells are duty-standby operation, such that only one well
is in operation at a time. Well #1 cannot be used due to low production and poor water
quality. Well #1 will be decommissioned as part of this project.

The Wild Oaks system also has a third existing well (Well #3) located near Nash Rd. Use
of this well has been discontinued, and is not part of this project scope.

2.4 Existing Water Treatment System

The existing water treatment system is as described in the March 2011 Engineer’s Report
prepared by Dvirka and Bartilucci Consulting Engineers and as was approved by
NYSDOH in 2011. Each of the two parallel trains includes the following:

• Two Cartridge filters (i’ and 1t)
• Atlantium UV Reactor
• Sodium hypochlorite for secondary disinfection and chlorine residual
• Zinc Orthophosphate for corrosion control

Wild Oaks Well Replacement Engineer’s Report
HS9O1$5-000 3



There are no changes to the existing treatment system under this project.

3.0 Proposed System Upgrades

This section discusses the proposed facilities required for the replacement of the existing
wells with the new bedrock wells. The scope of the improvements described in this report
includes the well cap, well pump selection, raw water piping, connection to the existing
water treatment system, electrical service, and instrumentation and controls. The well
construction is described in the June 26, 2014 application to drill and construct two
bedrock test wells. The application was approved by Westchester County DOH in a
letter dated September 17, 2014 (Log No.: C14-021).

3.1 Well Cap

New wells #4 and #6 are not located within the FEMA 100-year floodplain. The 10 State
Standards recommends that the top of the well casing terminate at least three feet above
the known flood elevation. In accordance with these recommendations, the well cap shall
be raised to an elevation 4 feet above grade, such that the well would be protected during
a flood event. The ground surface around the well cap shall be sloped away from the
well at a 1% slope to divert water away from the well.

3.2 Pump Selection

The new bedrock wells are significantly deeper than the existing sand and gravel wells
and therefore will require larger horsepower pumps. Based on preliminary well testing
results, both Well #4 and Well #6 are capable of producing up to 80 gpm. The new
pumps will be sized to deliver these flow rates at 550 - 610 ft TDH. Calculations of the
preliminary pump TDH are provided in Appendix A. The flow condition of $0 gpm
satisfies the maximum day demand recorded in 2013 and presented in Table 1.
Manufacturer’s pump curves and product cut sheets are presented in Appendix B.

The well pumps will be submersible pumps fitted with variable speed drives. The pumps
will be operated as one duty and one standby. The new well pumps will be controlled
based on pump run time or water level in the storage tank.

3.3 Piping Connection

In each well, a pitless adapter unit shall be field welded to the inner diameter well casing
to connect a horizontal 4-inch diameter ductile iron pipe. The horizontal pipe shall be
buried at least four feet below grade, below the frost line. The discharge piping from
Well #4 and Welt#6 shall meet at a tee adjacent to the wells before running northward
and entering the treatment building, as shown on the proposed site plan on Drawing C-1.

Wild Oaks Well Replacement Engineer’s Report
HS9OI$5-000 4



Gate valves shall be installed on each of the influent sides of the tee to allow isolated
operation of each pump during maintenance.

Approximately 2 feet from entering the existing concrete block building, the pipe will
rise to approximately 1 foot above grade before penetration of the existing well pump
building wall. The elevation and alignment of the pipe above grade shall match the
elevation of the existing pipe in the building where the connection is proposed.

The pipe shall be heat traced and insulated with polyurethane jacket from one foot from
the inside of the building wall to a depth of four feet below grade. The heat tracing shall
be wrapped with an aluminum jacket for weather protection. The ends of the aluminum
jacket and wall penetration shall be capped and sealed to prevent water intrusion.

Inside the building, the proposed pipe shall be connected to the existing 3-inch cross
joining at the location that Well #1 currently is located.. Ball valves and check valves
shall be installed to isolate the new connection.

3.4 Electrical

Electrical service shall be provided to the two new well pumps. As previously
mentioned, the preliminary well pumping test indicated similar productive yields from
Well #4 and #6. As such, each well would be equipped with similar pump and motor
sizes. Each well would require a new 20 hp motor. There are two spare breakers in the
power distribution panel which shall be dedicated to the proposed pumps. Each motor
shall be provided with a new starter, wall mounted inside the chemical building. NEMA
4X disconnect switches shall be installed outdoors, adjacent to the pumps at an elevation
at least 3 feet above the maximum recorded flood level.

4.0 Appendices

Appendix A:
Pump TDH Calculations

Appendix B:
Manufacturer’s Pump Curve and Product Data (see attachments)

• Well #4 and Well #6: Grundfos $5 $200

Wild Oaks Well Replacement Engineer’s Report
HS9OI$5-000 5



Appendix A

Hydraulic Calculations



O
O

0
0
O

N
M

O
N

T
A

L
9
0
2
2
0
0
0
0
0
0

£
0
1
0
9
9
3
3
0
9
9

0
3
0
1
2
2
0
.2

4
4
0
4
6
-4

0
.1

4
7

’*
.4

N

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

T
..

1
1
8
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

W
3
1
9
1
0
0
.1

4
2
.2

4
0
4
0
0
-0

i4
9
w

l
i
p
.

10
0o

02
d6

7
04

69
.0

90
00

3
0
.
1
2
p
.
8
0
1
9
1
2
.
.
b
d

_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

1
4

.á
.1

6
y

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

4
6

1

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

P
V

h
io

to
o

0
0

-1
20

09
7

,1
8

3
1

p
.

4
0
0

9
2
9
.2

7
4
0
4
0
0
1
..

..
.

3
1

0
2

0

9
1
9
.0

0
0
1
1
0
0
0
.

3
4

1
*

2
1

9
9
.

8
0

2
4

0

T
.a

2
9

o
1

9
4

1
97

13
$

_
_
_
_
_
_

—
—

3
0
4
0
1
fl

.
4

9
9
fl

2
-.

.
0.

02
1!

02
49

.2
)

6
7

.o
2

g
T

2
2

2
0

0
1

1
0

2
0

)
)Q

4
0
2
.0

)

O
0
1

1
1
0
2
)0

.r
.2

4
!0

d
3
3
l

0
9
e
E

b
..

1
0
.g

2
1
,,

.l
I

‘0
0
.o

lO
O

&
g

..
..

d
.)

II ‘4
0
2
_
7
_

06
0

.a
o
..
(2

3
&

r.
..
o
fr

l

‘9
0
o

7
20

0
3
T

h
.J

9
.r

4
.,

o
th

..
)

O
o
&

2
7
r

11 20
0

2
7

r

0
2
—

—
9
0
2
1
0

V
V

2
9
4

9
..
.r

n
4

4
P

P
0

)
V

)2
)

W
1
8
2
-V

Z
3
V

O
o

2
9

0
0

4
0

0
7

L
II

0
1

3
1

0
2

2
0
2

9
3
2
3

I
0
2
0

22
9
3
0

9
9

..
(0

.p
b

o
o

.f
l.

0
1
2
2

2
0

3
1

0
0
4

0
2

0
0
0

0
0
4

9
9
4
4

0
2
2

29
2

3
0
4
7
3
0
4

1
0
2

4
0

0
3

0
0
4

0
1

‘9
9

1
1

23
0
2
6

30
0

0
m

..
q
0
.o

.4
.o

l
0.

03
3

2
0
0

0.
23

0
4

2
2

0
0
3
3

0
9
2
9

2
9
1

9
0
0
3
.0

0
2

7
,.

0
1

3
3

0
0

1
0

2
4

0-
3

09
3.

11
0

0
4
9

34
9
3
0
0
1
.0

.(
0
.3

0
2
2
4
2
1
.a

0
.6

)
0

1
2

2
0.

01
0

2
2

9.
2

.0
2

0
1
0

0
9
9
1
1

1
2
2

30
9

9
0
0
.’

7
,.

0
1

0
0.

01
0

2
4

0.
2

‘0
1.

11
0
3

0
0
0

07
0

2
9
0

0
,7

0
0

2
0
2
4

0.
0

1
0
9
4
9

I
0
2
0

10
9

9
3

0
1

1
0

.w
A

,d
.o

)
3
2
2

0.
3

2
0
2

4
0
3

19
91

1
0
2
0

39
0
2

o
3
1
,0

.
0.

31
1
0

6
0
0

I
i

0
0
0

4
0
0
0
2

1
2
2
)2

3
4
2
0
9
0
3
1
0
)4

)
8
0
4

0.
0

‘0
4

4
0.

09
2.

0
8
0
7

9
2
0

1
9
9
2
3

9
2
0

04
3
2
.4

9
0
7
,8

0,
44

0.
30

0.
00

1
0

6
1
2

47
0

.4
.(

4
2

&
j4

.4
.,
0

).
)

0,
32

0.
02

0.
00

1
4

‘.
2
2

4
00

9
0
4

0
1
1

0.
30

00
.1

1

44
0
8
.1

0
1

7
3

0
8

0.
01

4.
02

0.
04

0
4

2
3
3
4
3

0.
0

‘J
o

74
9

0
3
0
1
4
0

(0
1
9
4
2
5

9
4
4
..
)

0,
21

4.
02

0
3
4

0
2

‘4
4

o
il

00
9.

23

30
0
4
.4

9
0

7
,.

1
0
1

8
0
2

0
0
0

1
2

00
2.

24
4
7

0.
04

34
40

00
01

17
30

8
1
2
2

2
1
4
4

1
4
4

0
2

29
9.

20
I
i

0,
00

0
0

0
.2

1
(
2
0
&

w
..
.,
j1

)
0

0
3

2
0
0
2

0
0

0
0
4

0
4
9

4
0.

03
1
0

1
9
7

0
0
9

(9
9

1
1

3
6
2
0
2

4
7

0
0

.
0

1
0

4
1
3
0

1
3

1
2
3

0
0
’

0
7

0.
30

11
9
3
3
0
1
4
0
4
0
.9

0
2
0
1
0
4
.1

)
4

2
4

4
1

0
3

0
3

1
1
4

0
%

0
0
0

60
0

7
9
0
.2

s
2
3
&

o
..
0
)
.)

4
0
2

4
2
2
2

0
4

9
1
0

0
0
0

0
0
2
9

1
9

4
4
6

0
0
9

60
0

62
0

2
.1

0
0
,7

,.
1
0
2

0
0
0
4

0
1

7
1
9

0
1
1

2
1
3
0

0
-
f
l
4
3
2
p
.0

—
0

3
4

0
2
9
0
4
4
0

1
1
1
0
3

6
9

•
,
2

0
0
4
3
3
4
W

.9
.0

0
9
-1

0
9
.1

0
4
0
9
9
6
4
0
4
9
2
4
2

I
0

2
0
1
’
F

6
4
1
l
7
0
0
0
1

F
-

22
6

•
49

42
00

98

o
il

0
9
—

f
l
2
2
1
9
9
9
0
0
5
5
4
.
0
6

9
1

0
4

0



*
t

W
%

O
.%

W
*

-W
o
1
4

P
*

ja
N

.
7
3
*
1
0
.

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

W
I
O

H
J
*

.
.
C

.
6

*
k

%
*

.
F

i
%

,
,
.
I
I
0

C
*
.
o
,
%

2
W

0
*
.
0
,
.
0

D
.
o
3
*
*
2
I
I
0

1
6
0
0
0
6
4

_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

L
6

.,
6

*
ly

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

O
IL

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

-0
0

0
2

0
0
0
1
..
I
*
*

4.
00

O
O

I.
o
0
4
o
o
o
o

02
4.

00
0
1
*

II
I

*9
2

O
*
%

1
D

7
4
0
0
0
0
4
0
*
.

‘O
W

—

Q
%

**
o

—

,*
od

2.
o6

7*
0

0
7
—

0
7
%

—
—

—
0
7
1
0
0

I
0

0
6
d
,I

P
*

0
1
2

1
0

0
1

0
%

1
0

0
7

0
6

00
4

0
%

4
%

E
b

*
*

)7
*

9
4

.*
*

*
I*

*
l

0
1
2

4
0
%

0
%

1
0

0
%

0
%

I
I
I

O
X

I
P

%
2

9
7

*
2

I7
%

%
4

4
L

1
6

0
0

2
I)

00
0.

12
4

0
0
9

9
%

1
0

0
%

0
4
2

I
I
I

0.
01

I
0

0
4

.9
2

1
1

6
*

0
1
0

4
0
%

0
%

1
9

0
0
1

0
%

0
3
9

0
2
0
1
L

*
*
1
9
.r

*
0
6
..
4
4
%

1
0
1
2

2
0
%

0
%

1
0

0
%

L
%

L
II

0-
01

I
1
1
9
X

*
.3

0
4
7
*
..
.1

*
*
I

L
II

4
0
%

0
%

1
0

0
7
0

1
%

L
II

0.
0]

II
90

06
*0

0)
I0

&
09

4*
0*

4O
4)

L
IZ

4
0

0
1

0.
00

1
0

0
%

4
1
0
9

0
0

L
1
4

L
II

17
.0

6
0.

21

II
%

T
h
4
.(

0
*
p
k
l%

1
0
4
1

L
IZ

0
L

O
S

2
%

1
0

0
%

L
%

07
.0

0
0
%

14
0

0
..
9

2
1

7
,*

L
IZ

0
0
%

0
%

1
2

2
7

%
I
i

0
4
4

II
0

*
6
4
.(

2
0
&

r*
*
.,
9
2
I

L
IZ

0
L

%
1
0
0

0
4

‘.
0
0

1
0.

07
1
0

L
II

0
1
0

1
1

0
%

L
II

II
o

o
..
r
I
r
€

L
IZ

2
0
%

0
2
0

0
1

9
0
%

2
0
%

00
%

7
0
h
4
.*

0
4
4
0
9
.I

I4
d
.4

*
)

L
II

0
L

%
0
%

0
2

‘0
2

1
%

19
0.

04
0
2
1

21
0
o
..
9
2
2
P

.
L

IZ
0

0
%

0
%

0
2

1
9
7
%

I
0
2
0

II
9
0
7

*
h

..
(0

*
1

0
1

&
..

6
..

.)
L

IZ
0

0
%

0
%

0
2

1
0
4

0
%

9
0
%

O
il

0
4

2
0

2
9

2
2

7
9

0
L

IZ
1

0
%

1
%

0
2

1
9

0
%

L
I

L
II

2
7
%

.9
2
I
?
.

L
IZ

4
0
%

0
0

4
I

0
0
%

I
0
3
0

OS
%

4
9
4
.
.
.
2
.
4
.
)

L
IZ

0
0
%

0
%

0
3

1
%

9
%

9
0
%

9
3
1

90
0

2
I
9

9
0

0
)2

0
0
0
1

0
%

0
2

0
0
%

I
i

0
2
2

00
W

fl
.o

)0
2
9
.á

O
I%

I%
l

9
1
2

2
0
%

2
6

4
9
2

1
%

6
%

0
7

%
0
2
1

OS
0

2
0

.9
2

4
1

0
2

9
1
2

2
0
%

0
%

4.
2

7
0
%

I
0
2
0

12
l0

tL
.o

(0
3
g
4
h
II

0
2
l

L
b

I
1
%

0
%

L
I

00
6
0
0

0
7

%
O

Il

1
0

9
4

6
9

2
1

7
9

4
L

b
0

L
%

0
%

L
I

0
0

%
0
1

0.
10

14
%

0
6

1
..

o
o

o
L

b
0

4
%

0
%

9
2

1
%

00
10

01
0

1
0

1
7

0
0

0
4
9
2
1
7
9
0

1
1
0
4

0
%

L
I

1
9
9
%

I
1
2
0

14
7

7
*
1

0
4

0
0

0
O

%
2

0
.1

4
6

2
I)

0
1
0
2

2
0

4
9
0

5
%

0
%

0
9

%
0
2
1

17
0

0
0
0
1
7
7
0

4
L

O
S

L
%

1
0

0
0
1

I
i

L
II

47
0
o

0
4
4
.o

O
O

&
ro

o
.*

d
4
1

2
0
%

L
%

9
3

I
I
I

4
L

%
1
0

1
0
7

9
0
9

0
9
4
0

0
3

9

4
4

0
0

9
*
9
2
1
7
7
0

L
IZ

0
L

0
7

L
O

S
1
0

0.
91

47
0

0
4

4
%

L
b

O
O

%
7

0
6

%
d

4
)

L
II

2
1
%

1
%

0
4

1
%

4
0.

10
2
3

0
0
7

L
II

07
.0

4

4
7

0
0

4
4
4
7
1
7
7
4

L
II

2
1
%

0
%

0
2

19
7.

04
0
7

1
2

0

00
%

7
L

4
o
IR

o
g
4
o
..

d
6
0
)

L
II

2
1

0
2

0
0
4

0
2

1
%

0
1
0

10
0.

00

II
7

0
.4

9
2

1
7

*
4

0
1

0
2

1
0

2
0
%

9
3

07
.0

0
4
7

0.
94

0
0

0
0

4
4
7
4
2
7
.

L
IZ

I
L

%
0
%

0
2

9
7

1
1

I
i

L
II

07
R

.á
..

o
1

4
0

&
w

*
.0

0
*

4
)

L
II

0
6
%

L
%

0
2

1
%

4
0
2
0

1
0

L
9

7
0
0
0

1
9

7
%

5
6

1
1

4
4

7
1

1
7

0
L

II
4

0
%

0
%

L
I

0
0
1

9
3

0
%

17
S

O
%

L
4
..
b
L

I%
h
1
1
4
2
%

I
0

1
0

4
1
%

0
%

L
I

L
%

0
%

0
0
1

09
2
4
6
0
0
(2

0
&

9
0
0
.4

0
6
l

0
1
1

4
0
%

0
%

L
I

0
%

9
0
3
0

0
5

L
%

0
4
0

O
Il

2
4

1
0

4
4
4
7
1
7
7
0

O
Il

I
0
%

L
IT

L
I

0
%

0
L

%

2
-1

7
0
0
4
4
%

0
1
0
0
4
1

—
0

0
1

0
1

4
1

1
—

6
4

0
20

9.
24

o
L

4
I
I
0
0
%

%
1
2
0
f
l
%

P
.
9
0
0
0

1
0

2
.0

0

V
V

2
6

9
O

O
S*

2b
4*

..0
4

1
*

9
—

7*
4

1
)2

)
0
7
I7

3
1
4
5
4
%

g

06
0

70
.9

9

01
%

fl
.0

0

9
47

I
4
9
4
4
b
.6

0
0
1
0
%

.0
.%

..
1
0
7
4
4
.%

0
0
1
4
4
0
%

*
l,

9
3
%

%
%

7
1



9,
44

.0
4

W
1
U

O
á
.W

d
.-

W
4
1
6

99
44

30
99

4
1
.4

0
9
9
4

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

W
d
3
o
o
4
C

*
6
9
4
-F

1
1
4
o
9
.I

4
.9

4
i

C
o
4
4
0
4
4
0
7

0
o
0
2
2
o
3
0

0
*
4

4
,2

0
l6

C
4

o
b

4

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

4
4

0
4

0
0

1
6

4

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

8
.4

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

?
W

4
5

0
2

L
0

9
0

I
-2

2
0

1
0

4
6

9
4

0
4

4
.4

4
9

4
0
0

0
0
4
0
4
4
4
.0

..
.

26
4.

40
70

40
m

s.
0
4
2
9
4
2

T
.4

4
0

7
0

%
0

1
6

.4
4

—
3

4
4

4
9

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

-
—

—
—

—

3
2

4
0
6
4
2
1
1
9
9

4
o

2
4

1
4

.2
3

o
o

.0
6

..
0

1
6

o
)

2
P

4
1
9
4
)4

4
0
4
4
2
9
0
4
4
)4

4
4
4
1
1
4
)

7
4
8
9

4
2

1
1

4
3

0
9

9
9
4
0
0
4
4
6
1
..
)

4
9
2
4
4
4
2
9
)4

1
4
4
0
4
6
1
4
4
)

10
R

o
&

.8
)4

4
&

o
..

..
9
4
4
)

4
3
o
i4

2
,P

.

9
6

4
0

1
4
4
)3

0
4
0
9
*
4
0
.4

4
)

29
92

04
42

24
44

*

00
9
f
l4

4
o
g
o
h
,4

4
4
4
)

9
9
4
4
2
)7

9
9

11
9
0
9

9
4

.,
q

O
o

g
o

4
2

,0
1

4
0

6
)

24
4
3
P

4
4

o

9
.4

9
4
9

o
6
9

24
s
4

2
P

.
0.

34
4

0
0

2
4
0
4

0
2

2
3
2
1
1

I
0
2
0

00
9
2

°2
4

.*
)O

o
g

lo
.,

.4
0

..
)

4
2
4

4
0-

0
4
0
4

0.
2

04
0
4
4

9
9

1
1

4
2
)

4
9

4
2

6
4

4
4

4
9

2
4

)2
2

2
2

0
9

2
0.

2
3
4
9
1
1

33
92

4

34
4
0

9
9
4
9
9
(%

o
rl

..
,0

1
.o

4
)

0
)2

2
0
0

0
0

4
0.

2
3
1
1

0
4
4

3
9
4
1
1

42
)

3)
4
9
4

4
4
4
7
4
4
9

0
1
2

0
0
0
2

0
0

4
0-

2
34

0.
11

3
4
2
2

32
9
2

4
1

4
.o

)b
to

h
lo

&
o

)
0
1
2

2
0.

02
0.

04
1
4

2.
04

0
3
4

10
9.

11
0
2
3

34
94

04
42

39
44

9
0.

32
2

0.
42

3.
11

0.
4

1
4
9
1
1

0
3

4.
24

37
3
8
.6

4
2

3
3

9
9

4,
32

2
4.

00
0.

4.
2

14
9.

11
3

3
2
3

30
9

7
°3

0
4
9
)0

4
4
2
.1

,0
6
6
2
4
)

0,
92

2
0.

04
0

4
2

1
3

4
0
4
9

1
3
9
1
1

0.
33

79
79

96
42

17
44

2
4
2
2

4
0.

09
0.

4
0

6.
4)

3
0.

0)

40
00

04
20

24
20

&
27

96
00

44
9)

3
3
2

2
6
4
2

0
4
3

3
8

4
4

6
4
9

2.
0

0
2
7

1
3
9

1
3
9
1
1

0
3

0

42
9
4

2
I
P

4
o

—
1

4
’

0
9
9

0
0
4

—
—

—
-

6
0
1

9
9

C
O

O
—

4
4
4
3

f
l
)

—
—

2
3

44
7
8
.6

4
2

3
3

9
2

1
3
3

0
1
0
9

6.
44

1
0

4.
01

C
O

4
9
9

4
9

0
0

8
1
0
6
.3

4
2
3

4
3
2
7

0
0
0

1
0

1
0
2

0
4
0

6
4
)

00
64

4
7
4
6
4

0
6
9
)4

3
4
0
9
*
4
0
0
2
4
4
)

4
3
2

2
3
0
2

3
1
1

3
2

1.
34

4
0.

40
1
2

0
3
7

2
0
4

‘0
3

3
3

0
3

4

44
3
0
0
6
4
2
3
3
9
9

6
2
2

2
4

0
2

1
0
4

1
2

94
.1

1
4
2

1
3

0

90
9

0
’4

4
6
)3

.4
6
1
4
3
3
0
4
’0

4
)

3
4
2

2
4
0
2

4
0
4

4
3

1
0

4
0
3
0

99
.2

3
0
4
7

II
4

8
.4

2
1

7
4

4
4

3
4
2

2
6
0
2

4
0
0

4
2

99
.1

1
4
7

6
9
4

90
33

06
42

14
44

9
4
4
2

2
6
0
2

4
1
1

4
4

99
.1

1
1
3

0
3
0

97
9
6
0

6
5
9
)4

0
&

4
9
0
9
.9

1
9
)

4
2
0

2
4

0
2

0
0
4

0
2

.0
4

4
0.

09
1
0

0
9
7

0
3
9

39
0.

11
0

3
4

44
34

04
42

’P
44

o
3
9
2

4
7.

49
6

0
0

1
2

0
0
)

0
3

4
4
4

11
23

°6
49

11
90

40
44

33
44

62
0)

0
9
0

4
0
4
9

6
0

0
1
0

6
4

0
4
2

6
0
)

0.
00

70
0
9

4
0
6
8
2
0
d
.4

9
..

4
4
o
)

0
1
2

4
0
0
0

1
0

9
1
0

2
%

4
0
3
0

6
7

0
0
6

1
3
7

6
4
)

0
0

0

0
4

0
2

0
4

4
2

)7
4

4
6

0
)2

4
4
3
0

0
”

3
7

1
1

1
2

6
0
0

69
9
7
9

4
6

9
0

9
o

4
,0

1
6

6
1

—
0
)2

4
0
3
9

9
)7

0
7

0
0
2

—
9
9
0

-
0

2
3

—
1
0
°

3
.6

V
9

4
2

1
g

3
6
1
)9

)
4

0
)
2

)
9
9
9

9
9

2
4

2
.3

2
1

1
)9

o

0
3
1

3
0
3
4

0
7

3
4

9
—

0
4
0
3
%

W
’
l
0
4
9

•
4
9

•
9
9

“4
0—

—
—

6
-0

7
o

9
4

3
o

o
4

4
0

2
9

6
2

1
1

1
T

O
O

—
4
4
0
9
9
6
0
0



IH
.1

,W
i6

.o
0
-0

2
6
.4

0
9
)

F0
00

00
oo

P
n
4
:

W
4

4
0

0
4

.W
.0

.-
W

4
1

6
P

o
*
0
0
N

..

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

W
d
)H

..
i.

.2
2
4
0
4
1
0
0
..

-0
il

e
,0

0
9

2
0
p

2
2

o
p

I%
1

h
y

K
i.

2
..
O

o
.9

3
9

3
,2

,
3

,l
y

2
0

I6
36

4,
64

4

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

C
6
.á

.d
b
y

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_

3
,2

,

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

9
2

4
o

W
4
,,

L
0
0
4

-2
60

.0
0

0
0
6
0
4
)
..

4
0
0

3
.0

4
9
4
6
0
..

1
..
..

,
00

5.
60

f
l.

,.
4
..
0
..
..
.

26
4.

00
02

,.,
02

0
)2

‘S
d

T
h
0
.0

D
0
4
0
6
2
.4

0
o

34
9.

61

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_

3
3
2
..

,,

,.
o
d

..
6

0
0
3
6
.6

6
,

60
44

o
V

V
’2

Ig
0
.i

m
(2

)
00

0.
72

)
3
(2

)
)V

2
’2

.V
2
’2

2
g

62
.

0
.0

6
07

3
60

0

0,
20

4
0
0
9

O
24

.ig
4O

P
ip

.
4

00
’2

16
02

4)
R

,0
01

.,2
o&

2,
)

5
0
.0

V
.6

2,
6

0
.

0
T

1
0

(0
4

2
0

4
2

,S
5

))
Q

6
3

2
0)

I
2

s6
’

02
9’

0
0

W
E

2
(,

4
4

)0
,9

d
i,

,5
0

6
9

0
)

O
0

0
’0

2
6

0
,2

O
.r

d
I6

,S
th

l6
)

20
0
.4

.,
.,
a
0
d
.r

..
.3

6
.)

22
5
0
’1

2
S

$
5

0
..

22
C

6
.,

O
V

.)
,,

20
0
,4

V
.)

,.
24

50
22

66
49

19
.

20
C

,.
..

26
O

S
d

..
.)

O
O

&
r.

..
’s

k
(

20
0
9
0
6
0
.,
)0

.9
4
0
0
5
6
4
.)

22
o
’
p
’

II
0

0
’f

l4
).

)0
o

’d
0

0
s&

d
.)

20
52

52
0(

00
74

24
2

,4
0

2
.,

..
,.

)4
2(

)1
00

01
I

20
.

Il
L

Il
L

0
2

2

0.
2)

0.
2)

0,
24

0,
23

0,
32

2.
23

0.
33

0,
23

0.
23

0.
23

0.
23

0.
22

0.
22

0.
22

0.
22

0.
22

0.
20

0.
02

0.
06

3
6

0,
00

0.
00

2
1

0.
00

0.
00

2.
0

0.
00

0
0

0
2.

0

0.
09

0
0

0
2
2

0.
00

0.
00

2.
0

0
0

2
26

0
2%

0,
09

20
4

4
2

0
0

3
2

0
6

2.
0

0,
00

0
0

6
0%

0.
02

0,
04

0
1

0.
00

0.
04

0
3

0.
06

00
6

00
6

0.
06

0.
20

02
0

0
2
2

0
2
0

0
2
0

2.
04

0
2
7

0
2
0

0
3
0

0
2
0

0
2
0

2.
22

0
3
0

0
1
0

0
2

3

0
2
0

1
2

0

27
64

32
4

0.
96

60
2

0
0

2

6.
03

00
2

00
2

70
0

2
2

6

60
2

0,
22

2
7
6
6

0
0

2
27

66
02

0

21
,6

6
0
0
0

27
66

20
0

27
66

2
2

27
,9

6
00

4
29

3.
21

0.
32

29
52

3
0,

02
20

52
3

0,
26

29
51

3
2

0
2
0

(9
3

2
3

01
2

29
22

3
I

0.
20

29
0.

73
01

2

29
52

3
0.

0
0.

26

0.
05

0.
60

0.
25

0.
70

O
w

00
40

00
20

01
01

01
31

0
1
6
0

0
1
6
4

01
73

01
30

05
23

45
.2

0

04
.2

5
25

.0
0

0
1
fl

3
0

2
0

0
0

2
0

00
.6

0

4
0
2
0

40
.6

5
4
0
3
5

4
1
0
0

60
.0

3

6
1
6
6

41
05

“
2

3
66

24

0.
22

20
O

i
6

s
2

.
0.

22
2

0
0
2

0
0

4
0
2

2,
04

0
2
0

20
32

3
02

2

21
5

fl
5

IN
p

.
0
1
2

2
0,

22
06

4
0
2

.
26

52
3

2
0
2
0

20
90

73
26

,%
99

,5
.I

.1
,0

44
.)

0.
22

2
0
0
2

0
0

4
0
2

2,
04

0
1
0

29
22

3
03

2

09
0

0
.2

0
(0

0
,.

0.
22

2
0
0
2

0
0

4
0
2

(9
5
2
3

23
0

1
6

30
20

’E
20

64
,7

2.
g4

1.
,2

.à
40

(
0,

22
2

0
0
2

2
0

4
0
1

2,
04

0
3
0

(9
2.

21
03

2

32
22

52
06

2
O

p
.

1
2
2

2
0
0
2

0
7

4
0
2

2
0
5
2
]

2
0

2
0

32
5

0
’0

l6
4

.9
1

.g
d

b
.,

0
4

4
.)

1
2
2

2
0
0
2

0
0

4
0
2

26
4

0
2
0

2
0
5
2
]

03
2

37
20

21
o0

2
02

00
0,

22
2

0,
02

2
0

4
0
2

20
52

0
0
1

0
1

0

74
7

4
d

2
.l

0,
2’

‘
0.

0’
00

0
02

20
4

22
4

29
22

3
20

4

37
01

60
0

0.
22

4
0
0
2

2
0

’
0
2

29
0
3
,

0.
3

23
,2

0
0

0
0

36
0
4
6
4
0
..

..
.

0.
22

2
1
0
2

0.
04

0
2

(.
04

0
2
0

29
32

3
12

2

37
S

0
.l

g
0
3
0
p
,

0
2
2

2
0.

02
0.

04
0
2

29
32

3
I

0
1

0

30
O

0
’0

6
2
.w

l0
.g

.0
.,
,.

ã
9

(
0.

22
2

0.
02

0
2

4
0
1

2,
04

2
1
0

29
92

3
13

2

33
2
2
4
0
g
0
6
0
.

0.
22

4
0.

05
2.

00
3
2

60
2

23
00

2

40
0
4
o
,.

3
2
0

4
.g

s0
2
0
.g

k
)

0.
22

2
0.

02
2,

04
0
1

2.
00

4
0.

05
2.

2
0.

07
0
1
0

29
9,

23
0.

30

42
2

.1
2

3
.)

..
0.

22
4

0.
05

0.
00

2
4

0
0
6

0,
22

60
2

0.
02

43
(I

V

44
00

2)
46

2
P

ip
,

43
0.

02
V

.6
2,

46
V

o
4
l.

6
0
0
9
.6

k
’

47
0
4
.,
..
(2

0
4
..
..
3
6
.(

40
2
4
.3

1
$
,

49
So

m
ig

hI
O

p
.

50
9

0
’0

2
6

4
*

)R
,r

d
$

,s
á
o

o
)

52
60

21
06

20
19

.
52

1
,.

33
O

0
2
lg

h
($

p
,

52
0
4
1
,4

..
(2

2
4
’o

”
.o

&
’)

56
S

22
oM

O
p
.

57
9

0
’0

1
6

4
.4

9
3

.0
9

4
,,
.4

4
0
(

50
O

.d
o

,.
3

O
O

d
..
o

.o
k
)

62
04

1g
M

P
ip

,
62

O
O

’f
lh

’)
R

’r
4

”
0

6
(

—
.

.
—

..
.

—
—

-
—

0.
23

0.
22

0.
22

0.
22

2.
22

0.
22

0
1
2

7.
22

0.
22

0.
22

6
(2

0.
03

0.
03

02
3

02
3

09
3

0,
72

17
2

00
0

2
1

3

0
0
0

0,
04

0
0

4
0.

04

0
0

2
0

0
4

0
0

4

0
2

0

2.
60

0.
27

2
1

0
2

0
2

6
3

0
2

0
1

0
1

2
2

2
2

4
1

2.
30

6
6
1
6

66
11

66
10

64
10

0
0
3
7

60
.0

0
7

0
4

0

70
10

70
.0

7
70

10
70

.3
0

77
20

7
7
,”

7
7
.”

77
40

77
,0

5
25

23
f
is

t
77

.7
0

.4
4
,
S

.
1
,
4
1
-
.

00
5.

60

00
04

0

6
-9

1
L

3
.p

.,
p

q
.’

S
..

9
.4

.4
—

20
16

2-
E

l.
25

2i
02

C
14

4g
.

—
2

6
4

2
T

h
0
1
A

+
0

50
0.

60

60
2

0.
0

0.
22

00
0

0.
22

6.
02

0.
02

0,
06

0,
22

6.
02

0.
02

2.
24

4
0
2
9

2.
0

0.
91

0
1
0

29
9.

21
0

2
0

2,
94

0.
22

29
33

3
0.

06
29

2.
23

6
1

21
2

26
4

0
1
0

29
9,

25
02

2
29

9.
27

4.
7

0.
04

2,
04

0
2
0

29
2.

21
01

2
29

02
3

21
0

3
0

20
2

02
5

29
9,

21
50

4

20
2

4
04

6
2
1

0
9
7

0
3
0

(9
92

3
63

2

60
2

0
1

0
0

6
00

6
0
1
0

00
2

02
2

0
0
6

02
2

00
2

0,
0)

0
0
6

0
0,

35
0
3

02
4

0
2
0

60
2

00
2

03
3

2
0.

00

20
p

.
2

0
,s

4
0

S
Y

6
W

,p
..
l’

’
20

64
3
a
..
..
..
4
j
.0

4
.,

7
2
4
.9

20
p

.a
0

.—
4

0
.9

2
Y

4
W

,p
.0

’
I
0
9
0
3
r
..

2
0
4
..

-
0
..

2

7
0

00



Appendix B

Well Pump Cutsheets and Curves



TECHNICAL DATA 85GPM MODEL 855

DIMENSIONS AND WEIGHTS
3,

MOTOR DISCH. DIMENSIONS IN INCHES APPROX.
MODEL NO. FIG. HP SIZE SIZE A B C D E SHIPWT.

85515-1 A 1 1/2 4” 3’ NPT 25.9 13.6 12.3 3.75 5.2 37

85S30-2 A 3 4’ 3” NPT 35.3 20.6 14.7 3.75 5.2 61

85S50-3 A 5 4” 3” NPT 40.7 23.6 17.1 3.75 5.2 75

85550-4 A 5 4” 3” NPT 43.1 23.6 19.5 3.75 5.2 77

85575-5 A 7 1/2 4” 3” NPT 51.5 29.6 21.9 3.75 5.2 95

85S75-6 A 7 1/2 4” 3” NPT 53.9 29.6 24.3 3.75 5.2 97
855100-7 A 10 4” 3” NPT 70.5 43.9 26.6 3.75 5.2 151

85S100-8 A 10 4” 3’ NPT 72.9 43.9 29.0 3.75 5.2 154
85S100-9 A 70 4” 3” NPT 75.3 43.9 31.4 3.75 5.2 156

85S75-5 A 7 1/2 6” 3” NPT 46.7 24.2 22.5 5.38 5.6 135

85S75-6 A 7 1/2 6” 3” NPT 49.1 24.2 24.9 5.38 5.6 137
85S100-7 A 10 6” 3” NPT 52.7 25.4 27.3 5.38 5.6 148

85S100-8 A 10 6” 3” NPT 55.0 25.4 29.6 5.38 5.6 151

85S100-9 A 10 6’ 3” NPT 57.4 25.4 32.0 5.38 5.6 153

855150-10 A 15 6” 3” NPT 62.4 28.0 34.4 5.38 5.6 170
85S150-11 A 15 6’ 3” NPT 64.8 28.0 36.8 5.38 5.6 174

85S750-12 A 15 6” 3” NPT 67.2 28.0 39.2 5.38 5.6 176

85S150-13 A 15 6” 3” NPT 69.6 28.0 41.6 5.38 5.6 178

855200-14 A 20 6” 3” NPT 74.5 30.6 43.9 5.38 5.6 193
85S200-15 A 20 6” 3” NPT 16.9 30.6 46.3 5.38 5.6 198

85S200-16 A 20 6’ 3” NPT 79.3 30.6 48.7 5.38 5.6 200

85S200-17 A 20 6” 3”NPT 81.7 30.6 51.1 5.38 5.6 202

85S200-18 A 20 6” 3” NPT 84.1 30.6 53.5 5.38 5.6 204

85S250-19 A 25 6’ 3” NPT 88.9 33.1 55.8 5.38 5.6 240

85S250-20 A 25 6” 3” NPT 91 .9 33.1 58.8 5.38 5.6 244

85S250-21 A 25 6’ 3” NPT 94.3 33.1 61.2 5.38 5.6 246

855250-22 A 25 6” 3” NPT 96.7 33.1 63.6 5.38 5.6 249

85S300-23 A 30 6” 3” NPT 101.9 35.7 66.2 5.38 5.6 264
85S300-24 A 30 6” 3” NPT 104.1 35.7 68.4 5.38 5.6 266

85S300-25 A 30 6’ 3” NPT 106.4 35.7 70.7 5.38 5.6 271

85S300-26 A 30 6” 3” NPT 1 08.8 35.7 73.1 5.38 5.6 273

85S300-27 A 30 6” 3” NPT 116.3 40.8 75.5 5.38 5.6 278

85S400-28 A 40 6’ 3” NPT 11 8.7 40.8 77.9 5.38 5.6 281

85S400-29 A 40 6’ 3” NPT 121.1 40.8 80.3 5.38 5.6 283

85S400-30 A 40 6” 3” NPT 123.4 40.8 82.6 5.38 5.6 287
85S40033* B 40 6” 3” NPT 139.7 40.8 98.9 5.38 6.9 343
855400-36” B 40 6” 3” NPT 146.9 40.8 106.1 5.38 6.9 354
85S50039* B 50 6’ 3” NPT 171.0 57.8 113.2 5.38 6.9 448
85S400-33” B 40 8’ 3” NPT 1 34.7 35.8 98.9 7.5 6.9 377

85S400-36” B 40 8’ 3” NPT 141.9 35.8 106.1 7.5 6.9 390

85S500-39” B 50 8’ 3” NPT 152.0 38.8 113.2 7.5 6.9 498

Fig.A

AC

I
Fig. B

NOTES: All models suitable for use in 6” wells, unless otherwise noted.
Weights include pump end with motor in lbs.

Built into sleeve 3” NPT discharge, 8” mm. well dia.

5-2



MODEL85S 85GPM TECHNICAL DATA

MATERIALS OF CONSTRUCTION
COMPONENT CYLINDRICAL SHAFT (1-39 Stgs.)
Check Valve Housing 304 Stainless Steel
Check Valve 304 Stainless Steel
Diffuser Chamber 304 Stainless Steel
Split Cone Nut 304 Stainless Steel
Split Cone 304 Stainless Steel
Impeller 304 Stainless Steel
Suction Interconnector 304 Stainless Steel
Seal Ring Support 304 Stainless Steel
Inlet Screen 304 Stainless Steel
Straps 304 Stainless Steel
Cable Guard 304 Stainless Steel
Priming Inducer 304 Stainless Steel
Coupling 316/329 Stainless Steel**

Pump Shaft 431 Stainless Steel
Intermediate Bearings NBR
Impeller Seal Ring NBR/PPS
Check Valve Seat NBRJ31 6 Stainless Steel
Upthrust Disc Carbon/Graphite
Upthrust Stop Washer 304 Stainless Steel
8 Motor Adaptor Plate 304 Stainless Steel
Sleeve * 316 Stainless Steel
Sleeve Flange * 316 Stainless Steel
NOTES: Specifications are subject to change without notice.
* Required for 33-39 stages.
** 4’ Coupling made of 316 Stainless Steel

z 10

5

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110 120

CAPACITY fGPM)

GIwr.c,Fcs< 5-3



PERFORMANCE CURVES 85GPM MODEL 855

FLOW RANGE: 18-118 GPM OUTLET SIZE: 3” NPT NOMINAL DIA. 6”

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110

CAPACITY (GPM)

SPECIFICATIONS SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE.
4” MOTOR STANDARD, 1.5-5 HP/3450 RPM
6” MOTOR STANDARD, 7.5-50 HP/3450 RPM.
* Alternate motor sizes available.

Performance conforms to ISO 9906 Annex A
@ 5 ft. mm. submergence.

Fw
w
IL

0

w
I

1000

900

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

0

80

70

60

50

40

>-
0
z
w
0
U
IL
w

• ! .! ! ! !! !•! ! • !• •

iri345O
- - L L3525

85S200-17 2OHP - - - - - L - RPM
. MC)cT EFFICIENT RANGE: 60 to 118 GPM Lb.

cAPAcITIEs BELOW 60 GPM I I I
85S200-16 2OHP 5E 4INCP’C’DF1

T -

Hi L[II ] I
‘20015 20

-j- EFF.% j
85S200-14 20 HP - 1

85S150-13(15HP : -

85S150-12 15 HP -

- a
85S150-7l 15HP j 4’f.J.’tj4 I
•IIi

—

85S150-10 15HP - - - -

m “

II It — — ——
85S100-9 1OHP - . -

.IIi I — — I

85S100-8 1OHP - -

85S100-7 1OHP -

I - -

85S75-6 7112 HP - -

85S75-5 (7’!2 HP - - -

“_I,l

II 1 ii - - -
j 85S504 (5 HP) - - - -
11.t - - -

85S50-3 (5 HP - - - -

II I I’ — ri
II — T —

85S30-23HP - - -

- -r
85S15-1 (7112 HP) - - -
:ii— i— r— — .

— I I
- I- - IIIIIIJ
. IIIIIIIV - 11111111111

5-4 GILJI1EFcIS



WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 
 

Town of Lewisboro Site Development and Wetland Activity Permit 
Application for Well #4 and Well #6 

 
 
 

Attachment 12 
 

72 Hour Pump Tests for Well #4, Well #5, and Well #6



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

	

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GROUNDWATER EXPLORATION AND 
PUMPING TEST PROGRAM 

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 (T) LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 

 
  
 
 
 

Prepared For: 
 

New York American Water 
 

August 2016  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 
 Professional Groundwater and Environmental Engineering Services 

4 Research Drive, Suite 204 
Shelton, CT  06484 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
Page 

 
INTRODUCTION ...........................................................................................................................1 
 
EXISTING SUPPLY SOURCE AND WATER DEMAND ...........................................................1 
 
HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING .....................................................................................................2 
 Surficial Geology .................................................................................................................2 
 Bedrock Geology .................................................................................................................3 
 
GROUNDWATER EXPLORATION .............................................................................................3 
 
PUMPING TEST PROGRAMS ......................................................................................................4 
 
MAY 2015 72-HOUR PUMPING TESTS – WELLS 4 AND 5 .....................................................5 
 Well 4 ...................................................................................................................................5 
 Well 5 ...................................................................................................................................6 
 Existing Sand and Gravel Production Wells 1 and 2 ...........................................................7 
 Overburden Monitoring Wells .............................................................................................7 
 Piezometers ..........................................................................................................................8 
 Bedrock Monitoring Wells ................................................................................................10 
 Stream Gaging ...................................................................................................................11 
 Precipitation .......................................................................................................................11 
 
JUNE 2016 72-HOUR PUMPING TEST – WELL 6 ...................................................................12 
 Well 6 .................................................................................................................................12 
 Existing Sand and Gravel Production Wells 1 and 2 .........................................................13 
 Overburden Monitoring Wells ...........................................................................................13 
 Piezometers ........................................................................................................................14 
 Bedrock Monitoring Wells ................................................................................................15 
 Stream Gaging ...................................................................................................................15 
 Precipitation .......................................................................................................................16 
 
WATER-QUALITY RESULTS ....................................................................................................16 
 
CONCLUSIONS............................................................................................................................18 
 
 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

 
FIGURE 

(at end of report) 
 

Figure 
 
    1 Site Location Map and Offsite Well Monitoring Program 

 
 
 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
(at end of report) 

 
Appendix 
 
 I WCDH – Well Site Approvals 
 II Well Completion Reports 
 III Pumping Wells 
 IV 180-Day Water-Level Projections 
 V Onsite Well Monitoring Wells 
 VI Piezometers 
 VII Offsite Monitoring Wells  
 VIII Stream Gaging 
 IX Water Quality  
 X Physical Parameters 
 
 
 

PLATE 
(in pocket at end of report) 

 
 

Plate 
 
     1  Pumping Test Program



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

GROUNDWATER EXPLORATION AND 
PUMPING TEST PROGRAM 

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 
 (T) LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 The following are the results of the groundwater exploration and pumping test programs 

conducted by Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. (LBG) for New York American Water at the 

Wild Oaks Water System on Nash Road in Lewisboro, New York (figure 1).  The groundwater 

exploration program was initiated in 2014 to identify bedrock well locations that could 

potentially replace the existing sand and gravel production wells that currently supply the water 

system because of deteriorating yield and water quality. 

 LBG completed a hydrogeologic assessment of well field and identified bedrock test well 

locations that targeted favorable geologic features and accommodated the New York State 

Department of Health (NYSDOH) well siting guidelines where feasible.  A well site application 

for two wells, Wells 4 and 5, was submitted to the Westchester County Department of Health 

and approval from WCDH was received in September 2015 (Appendix I).  Wells 4 and 5 were 

drilled and a 72-hour pumping test program was conducted on the wells in May 2015.   

 Based on the results of the May 2015 pumping tests, it was determined that an additional 

bedrock test well should be drilled at the well field.  A well site application was submitted to the 

WCDH for Well 6 and approval to drill the well was received in October 2015 (Appendix I).  

Well 6 was drilled and a 72-hour pumping test was conducted in June 2016. 

 

EXISTING SUPPLY SOURCE AND WATER DEMAND 

 

 Prior to the completion of the groundwater exploration program, the Wild Oaks Water 

System had three existing wells (figure 1 and Plate 1).   Wells 1 and 2 are sand and gravel 

production wells located inside the existing pump house building on the well field parcel.  The 

wells are 38 and 39 feet deep, respectively, and both were reported to have previously yielded 

about 90 gpm (gallons per minute) to 100 gpm.  Due to the close proximity of the two wells, they 

cannot be pumped simultaneously.  The third well is a bedrock well located approximately 

2,500 feet west of Wells 1 and 2.  Well 3 is reported to be 450 feet deep and had an original yield 

of 14 gpm.   



	 	 -2-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

Well completion reports and construction details are not available for Wells 1, 2 and 3.  

Presently, the yields of Wells 1 and 2 are reported to be diminishing, and are less than 50 gpm.  

Because of the proximity of the wells (within 10 feet of each other), attempting well 

redevelopment, particularly chemical redevelopment, would be difficult to complete without 

taking both well offline.  In addition, Well 3 has been taken out of service due to a significant 

reduction in yield. 

 The water demands for the system from 2013 through 2015 are provided on the table 

below. 

 

Year Average Daily Water Demand (gpd) Maximum Day Water Demand (gpd) 
2013 52,727 114,400 
2014 43,200 89,080 
2015 44,500 91,000 

gpd gallons per day 

 

   
HYDROGEOLOGIC SETTING 

 

 The Wild Oaks well field parcel is located on the south side of Nash Road in Lewisboro, 

New York (figure 1).  A tributary stream of the Croton River flows through the well field parcel 

from east to west.  A small man-made pond is located on the east side of the well field and a 

larger man-made lake on the west side.  There are also Town of Lewisboro regulated wetland 

areas on the well field parcel (Plate 1). 

  

Surficial Geology 

 Published surficial material maps for the area depict glacial till as underlying the well 

field parcel and surrounding area.  Till is an unstratified, heterogenous, relatively impermeable 

mixture of clay, unsorted sand, gravel and stone to boulder size material.  Till has low 

permeability and is considered a poor aquifer due to low yields, even for domestic use.   

Although not depicted in the published maps, the existing sand and gravel production 

wells and other overburden test wells previously drilled on the well field parcel demonstrate that 

sand and gravel deposits are present.  Although the regional extent of the stratified-drift aquifer 

is unknown, the boundary of the sand and gravel aquifer would likely be along the valley setting 



	 	 -3-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

topographic boundary and parallel the stream corridor, with till covering the upland settings to 

the north and south of the well field.  Geologic logs from test wells completed on the well field 

parcel indicate that the aquifer is unconfined and, in areas where suitable aquifer material is 

encountered, the material is predominately medium to coarse sand and gravel.   

  

Bedrock Geology  

 Published bedrock aquifer maps report that the well field parcel is underlain by Fordham 

Gneiss and Inwood Marble.  The geologic contact of the two units bisects the valley setting and 

passes through the southern portion of the well field parcel, with the Inwood Marble on the south 

side of the contact and the Fordham Gneiss on the north side.   

Inwood Marble (OCi) consists of white-whitish gray calcite and dolomite marble.  The 

unit typically occurs along valley settings, paralleling river and stream corridors in the study 

area.  The metamorphism of limestone and dolomite forms marble.  The marble unit exhibits 

similar characteristics to other carbonate units; however, fewer solution cavities are reported.  

The marble bedrock typically exhibits low primary permeability based on the porosity of the 

bedrock; and secondary permeability caused by the presence of many interconnected fractures, 

joints and bedding planes can be moderate to high.  The bedrock unit is less resistant to erosion 

than adjacent bedrock rock units and, as a result, occurs in the valley areas.  The unit is brittle 

and under deformational stress forms numerous open fractures.  Water is contained in the many 

interconnected fractures, joints and other secondary openings.   

Fordham Gneiss (f) consists of undifferentiated gneiss bedrock.  The general appearance 

of the rock shows light and dark minerals.  The gneiss appears as randomly-speckled layers.  The 

unit is highly resistant to weathering and to erosion from previous glaciation. The erosion 

resistance is reflected by the more rugged topography and higher altitudes in areas underlain by 

this rock type. In general, gneiss exhibits very low primary permeability and secondary 

permeability caused by the presence of interconnected fractures is low to moderate.   

  

GROUNDWATER EXPLORATION 

 

The groundwater exploration program began with the drilling of Wells 4 and 5 in January 

and May 2015.  Northern Drilling, Inc. drilled Wells 4 and 5.  Copies of the well logs for Wells 4 



	 	 -4-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

and 5 are included in Appendix II.  Bedrock was encountered at a depth of 54 ft bg (feet below 

grade) in Well 4.  The well was completed with a 12-inch outer diameter casing set to 54 feet and 

an 8-inch inner diameter casing set to 104 feet.  The well was drilled to a total depth of 425 feet 

with an 8-inch diameter borehole.  The main water-bearing fracture encountered during drilling 

was reported at a depth of 385 feet in the well. 

Bedrock was encountered at a depth of 70 ft bg in Well 5.  The well was completed with 

a 12-inch diameter casing set to 55 feet, 8-inch diameter casing set to 70 feet, and a 6-inch 

diameter casing set to 84 feet. The well was drilled to a total depth of 465 feet with a 6-inch 

diameter borehole.  Following the completion of the 72-hour pumping test program in May 2015, 

the borehole of Well 5 was deepened to a depth of 625 feet in an effort to increase the yield of 

the well. However, no additional water-bearing fractures were encountered during the well 

deepening. The main water-bearing fracture encountered in Well 5 was reported at a depth of 

350 feet. 

 Well 6 was drilled in May 2016 by Frey Drilling, Inc.  A copy of the well log for Well 6 

is also included in Appendix II.  Bedrock was encountered at a depth of 50 feet in Well 6.  The 

well was completed with 12-inch outer diameter casing set to 38 feet and 8-inch inner diameter 

casing set to 100 feet.  The well was drilled to a total depth of 420 feet with an 8-inch diameter 

borehole. The main water-bearing fracture encountered during drilling was reported at a depth of 

378 feet in Well 6. 

  

PUMPING TEST PROGRAMS 

 

A 72-hour pumping test program was conducted on Wells 4 and 5 from May 18 through 

May 30, 2015 and on Well 6 from June 13 through June 17, 2016 to determine the stabilized 

yields of the new wells, to assess potential water-level impact to existing wells and surface-water 

features, and to assess water quality.   

The yields of Wells 4 and 5 demonstrated during the May 2015 pumping test program 

were 80 gpm and 28 gpm, respectively.  The yield demonstrated in Well 6 during the June 2016 

pumping test was 75 gpm. Hydrographs and summary tables of water-level measurements 

collected from Wells 4, 5 and 6 during their respectively pumping test periods are included in 



	 	 -5-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

Appendix III.  Graphs for the 180-day water-level drawdown projections for Wells 4, 5 and 6 are 

included in Appendix IV.    

During the pumping tests in May 2015 and June 2016, water-level measurements were 

collected from the onsite bedrock pumping wells; the existing Wild Oak sand and gravel 

Production Wells 1 and 2 (Appendix V); three onsite small-diameter overburden monitoring 

wells (Appendix V); six onsite piezometers (Appendix VI); and offsite bedrock wells, four in 

May 2015 and three in June 2016 (Appendix VII).  In addition, stream flow measurements were 

collected from two locations in the small tributary stream of the Croton River that flows east to 

west through the well field during both pumping test periods and surface-water level 

measurements were collected from a staff gage set in the tributary stream during the May 2015 

tests (Appendix VIII).  The locations of the onsite wells and surface-water monitoring points 

measured during the pumping tests are shown on the Plate 1 and the locations of the offsite wells 

monitored are shown on figure 1. 

 

MAY 2015 72-HOUR PUMPING TESTS - WELLS 4 AND 5 

 

Well 4 

 The 72-hour pumping test on Well 4 was started on May 26, 2015 and ended on May 30, 

2015.  The water level in Well 4 prior to the start of pumping was at the top of the casing and the 

well was flowing artesian.  The well pump was started at 10:08 on May 26.  The initial pumping 

rate in the well was 47 gpm and was incrementally increased to a rate of 110 gpm by 12:50 on 

May 26.  Following the last rate increase to 110 gpm, the well was allowed to pump with no 

further rate adjustments.  As the water level in the well declined, the pumping rate slowed as a 

result of the loss of pressure head over the top of the pump.  At 6:30 on the morning of May 27, 

the pumping rate in Well 4 reached 80 gpm where it stabilized. 

 At approximately 20:00 on May 27, the generator at Well 4 was struck by lightning.  The 

lightning strike damaged the pump motor, so the generator was shut off at 22:00 and the pump 

was pulled from the well to complete repairs.  On the morning of May 28, the pump was 

reinstalled in Well 4 and pumping was resumed at 7:26.  The pumping rate in Well 4 was set at 

80 gpm upon restart of the pump.  One manual rate increase was completed at 15:00 on May 28 

to raise the rate back to 80 gpm after a slight drop occurred.  No further rate adjustments were 



	 	 -6-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

conducted and the pumping rate remained at 80 gpm for the duration of the test until shut down 

on May 30. 

 Following the restart of the well pump after the lightning strike, LBG contacted 

Mr. James Garry at the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) 

Division of Water to discuss the effect of the 8.5 hour shutdown on the test duration.  Because 

Well 4 had demonstrated a trend toward pumping rate and water-level stabilization prior to the 

lightning strike, it was decided that an additional 48 hours of pumping with 6 hours of stabilized 

yield and drawdown at the end of the test would be sufficient.   

The pump in Well 4 was shut down at 8:02 on May 30.  The pumping water level in 

Well 4 just prior to the end of the test was 321.74 ft btoc (feet below top of casing).  After shut 

off of the well pump, the water level in the well recovered rapidly. The well achieved 90% 

water-level recovery to the pre-test static level approximately 13 hours after shutdown of the 

pump and the well was flowing over the top of casing by the following morning on May 31. 

 Well 4 was pumped for total of 84 hours and 37 minutes (not including the period of time 

the pump was off due to the lightning strike).  The stabilized pumping rate in Well 4 at the end of 

the test was 80 gpm and the water-level drawdown in the well was less than 0.5 foot per 100 feet 

of available drawdown in the well over the last 6+ hours of the test period.   

A 180-day water-level drawdown projection has been completed on Well 4 using the data 

from after the restart of the well following the lightning strike.  The projection shows a pumping 

water level of 367.34 ft btoc after 180 days of pumping.  This water level is above the major 

water-bearing fracture in the well reported at a depth of 385 feet. 

 

Well 5 

The 72-hour pumping test on Well 5 was started on May 18, 2015 and ended on May 21, 

2015.  The water level in Well 5 prior to the start of pumping was 3.10 ft btoc.  The pump in the 

well was started at 11:38 on May 18.  The pumping rate in the well at the start of the test was set 

at 84 gpm.  However, rapid drawdown was observed at this initial pumping rate so the rate was 

reduced to 28 gpm by 12:09 on May 18.  The pumping rate in Well 5 remained at 28 gpm for the 

duration of the test period. 

The test on Well 5 was ended at 12:14 on May 21.  The pumping water level in Well 5 

just prior to shut down of the pump was 300.39 ft btoc, which is total drawdown of 297.29 feet.  



	 	 -7-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

The water level in the well recovered rapidly and the well achieved 90% water-level recovery to 

the pre-test static level approximately one hour after shutdown of the pump.  The well reached 

100% recovery at approximately 23:00 on May 21. 

 Well 5 was pumped for total of 72 hours and 36 minutes.  The stabilized pumping rate at 

the end of the test in Well 5 was 28 gpm and the water-level drawdown in the well was less than 

0.5 foot per 100 feet of available drawdown in the well over the last 6+ hours of the test period.   

A 180-day water-level drawdown projection has been completed on Well 5.  The 

projection shows a pumping water level of 301.32 ft btoc after 180 days of pumping. This water 

level is above the major water-bearing fracture in the well reported at a depth of 350 feet. 

 

Existing Sand and Gravel Production Wells 1 and 2 

 Manual water-level measurements were collected from the Wild Oaks Production 

Wells 1 and 2 at the well field during the pumping tests on Wells 4 and 5.  Well 2 remained in-

service pumping in the range of 50 to 54 gpm during the data collection period to supply water to 

the District.  The pumping cycles in Well 2 can be seen in a patterned rising and falling of the 

water levels in Production Wells 1 and 2; in the three onsite 2½-inch diameter overburden 

monitoring wells; in the groundwater level in piezometers PZ-B, PZ-C and PZ-E; and in the 

water level in bedrock Well 5. 

 During the pumping tests conducted on Wells 4 and 5, no discernible water-level 

drawdown was measured in the existing Production Wells 1 and 2 that is attributed pumping in 

the Wells 4 and 5. 

 

Overburden Monitoring Wells 

 Three existing 2½-inch diameter monitoring wells, MW-1, MW-2 and MW-3, are located 

at the Wild Oaks well field.  The monitoring wells were installed during a previous groundwater 

exploration program conducted at the site in the late 1980s.  The monitoring wells are screened 

in the overburden material at the well field, but the depth settings of the well screens are 

unknown.   

During the background period prior to the start of the pumping tests on Wells 4 and 5, 

fluctuations can be seen in the water levels in the overburden monitoring wells that correspond 

with the pumping cycles in the existing Wild Oaks Production Well 2.  During the pumping test 



	 	 -8-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

conducted on Well 4, additional water-level drawdown of about 2 feet was measured in MW-3, 

which is the closest monitoring well location to Well 4.  No discernible drawdown was measured 

in MW-1 or MW-2 during this test. 

 During the pumping test on Well 5, water-level drawdown was measured in all three of 

the overburden monitoring wells.  The drawdown in the MW-1 was 0.2 foot, in MW-2 was 

0.1 foot, and in MW-3 was 0.5 foot.  The table below is a summary of the drawdown observed in 

the overburden monitoring wells at the well field during the pumping tests. 

 

Well ID 
Measured Well Depth 

(feet below top of casing) 
Drawdown Observed During 
Pumping Test of Well 4 (feet) 

Drawdown Observed During the 
Pumping Test of Well 5 (feet) 

MW-1 45.5 ND 0.2 
MW-2 29.5 ND 0.1 
MW-3 24.5 2.0 0.5 

ND None discernible 

 

Piezometers 

 Surface-water and shallow groundwater measurements were collected from six onsite 

piezometer locations during the pumping tests.  Surface-water measurements were collected 

from the outside of the piezometer casing and shallow groundwater measurements were collected 

from the interior of the piezometers.  The piezometers were constructed with a 5-foot length of 

galvanized steel pipe attached to a 1-foot long, 10-slot screened drive point that was driven in the 

overburden material.   

 Two piezometer locations, PZ-A and PZ-F, were installed in the stream channel that 

flows through the well field from east to west.  PZ-A was placed in the channel close to Well 5 

and PZ-F was installed approximately 200 feet upstream.  The surface water and shallow 

groundwater in PZ-A and PZ-F showed no effects from the pumping of the existing sand and 

gravel Production Well 2 during the data collection period and no water-level drawdown was 

measured in either PZ-A or PZ-F during the pumping tests on Wells 4 and 5 that is attributed to 

pumping in the bedrock wells. 

 Two piezometer locations, PZ-B and PZ-D, were installed in the smaller pond at the well 

field. PZ-B was installed near Well 5 and PZ-D was installed near Well 4.  During the 

background monitoring period, water-level fluctuations in the shallow groundwater in PZ-B were 

observed that correlate to pumping in the existing Production Well 2, but no corresponding 

water-level fluctuation was discernible in the surface water at PZ-B.  No water-level change was 



	 	 -9-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

measured in the surface water or groundwater in PZ-D from pumping in Well 2.  During the 

72-hour pumping tests, no water-level drawdown was measured in the surface water or 

groundwater in PZ-B or PZ-D that correspond to pumping in the bedrock Wells 4 and 5. 

 Two piezometer locations, PZ-C and PZ-E, were installed in the lake at the well field.  

PZ-C was installed near Well 5 and PZ-E was installed near Well 4.  During the background 

monitoring period, water-level fluctuations were measured in the groundwater in both PZ-C and 

PZ-E that correlate to pumping in Production Well 2, but no corresponding water-level 

fluctuation was discernible in the surface water at either PZ-C or PZ-E.   

Drawdown in the groundwater level in PZ-E was also measured during the pumping tests 

that may be attributed to pumping in bedrock Wells 4 and 5.  During the test on Well 4, there 

was potentially 0.25 foot of drawdown measured in the groundwater at PZ-E and during the test 

on Well 5 potentially 0.1 foot of drawdown was measured in PZ-E.  No corresponding 

drawdown in the surface-water level was measured on the exterior of PZ-E during either 

pumping test. There was no water-level drawdown measured in the surface water or groundwater 

at PZ-C during either of the pumping tests on Wells 4 and 5. 

The table below is a summary of the drawdown observed in the piezometers at the well 

field during the pumping tests. 

 

Piezometer 
ID 

Approximate Drawdown Observed During 
Pumping Test of Well 4 (feet)  
(Surface Water/Groundwater) 

Approximate Drawdown Observed During the 
Pumping Test of Well 5 (feet)  
(Surface Water/Groundwater) 

PZ-A ND/ND ND/ND 
PZ-B ND/ND ND/ND 
PZ-C ND/ND ND/ND 
PZ-D ND/ND ND/ND 
PZ-E ND/0.25 ND/0.1 
PZ-F ND/ND ND/ND 

ND None discernible 
 

 The minimal drawdown measured in the groundwater during the bedrock well pumping 

tests was limited to the area near PZ-E in the lake.  No surface-water impacts were measured at 

any of the monitoring locations that are attributed to pumping in the bedrock wells.  The data 

from the May 2015 pumping tests indicates that the bedrock wells have much less of an effect on 

the shallow groundwater at the well field than the existing sand and gravel production wells.  No 



	 	 -10-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

significant impact on the shallow groundwater or surface water at the well field from use of the 

bedrock wells is anticipated. 

 

Bedrock Monitoring Wells 

 Water-level measurements were collected from four offsite bedrock wells located near 

the well field during the pumping test program on Wells 4 and 5.  Three of the wells monitored 

were residential supply wells located on neighboring properties that are not part of the Wild 

Oaks Water District service area.  The fourth well was the Wild Oaks Well 3, which is a supply 

well for the Water District that is not currently in service due to low yield.  Wells 4 and 5 were 

also used as bedrock monitoring well locations when they were not actively being pumped.   

Water-level drawdown was measured in the offsite well at 73 Nash Road as a result of 

pumping in both Wells 4 and 5.  During the test on Well 4, approximately 3 feet of drawdown 

was measured in the well at 73 Nash Road that is attributed to pumping at the well field, and 

during the test on Well 5 approximately 7 feet of drawdown was measured.  Based on the 

hydrograph for the well at 73 Nash Road, the drawdown measured during the pumping tests did 

not appear to have a significant effect on the well and future use of Wells 4 and 5 to supply the 

District will not likely impact the use of this residential supply well. 

No discernible water-level drawdown was measured in the wells at 79 Nash Road, 

195 Waccabuc Road or in Wild Oaks Well 3 during the pumping test program that is attributed 

to pumping in Wells 4 and 5.   

In the onsite bedrock test wells, approximately 60 feet of drawdown was measured in 

Well 5 during the pumping test on Well 4, and 8 feet of drawdown was measured in Well 4 

during the test on Well 5.  The table below is a summary of the drawdown observed in the 

bedrock monitoring wells. 

 

Well ID 
Drawdown Observed During Pumping 

Test of Well 4 (feet) 
Drawdown Observed During the 

Pumping Test of Well 5 (feet) 
Onsite Wells 

Well 4 -- 8 
Well 5 60 -- 

Offsite Wells 
73 Nash Road 3 7 
79 Nash Road ND ND 

195 Waccabuc Road ND ND 
Well 3 ND ND 

ND  None discernible 



	 	 -11-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

Stream Gaging 

 Streamflow measurements were collected from gaging location SG-1 located about 

100 feet downstream of Well 5, and from SG-2 located about 200 feet upstream of Well 5.  No 

discernible change in flow was measured in the stream at the well field that is attributed to 

pumping in Wells 4 and 5 during the pumping test period.   

 A staff gage was also installed in the stream channel at the location of SG-1 to measure 

the water-level height during the test period.  The measurements from the staff gage (Staff-1) 

showed no change in water-level height that is attributed to pumping in the bedrock wells during 

the test period.   

 

Precipitation  

Daily precipitation totals from a nearby weather station that published hourly data on the 

internet are provided in the table below.  These precipitation totals have also been overlain on the 

hydrographs for the pumping wells, monitoring wells, and piezometers. 

Date Precipitation Total (inches) Date Precipitation Total (inches) 
5/15/2015 0.00 5/26/2015 0.00 
5/16/2015 0.74 5/27/2015 0.41 
5/17/2015 0.00 5/28/2015 0.32 
5/18/2015 0.00 5/29/2015 0.00 
5/19/2015 0.10 5/30/2015 0.00 
5/20/2015 0.00 5/31/2015 0.50 
5/21/2015 0.00 6/1/2015 3.16 
5/22/2015 0.00 6/2/2015 0.33 
5/23/2015 0.00 6/3/2015 0.00 
5/24/2015 0.00 6/4/2015 0.00 
5/25/2015 0.00 -- -- 

 

Precipitation was received during the pre-test period on May 16 (0.74 inch) and the post-

test period on May 31/June 1/June 2 (3.99 inches total).  These precipitation events caused a 

measurable rise in water level in all of the monitoring points, except Well 4 which was flowing 

artesian and no change could be measured.   

The water-level rise in response to the May 16 rain event was of short duration in the 

monitoring locations.  Overall, the water level rise in response to this rain event did not last long 

after the rain ended and the water levels in the monitoring locations returned to the trends they 

were on before the rain occurred.  



	 	 -12-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

The rain event which occurred after the pumping test on Well 4 was completed was of 

longer duration and magnitude than the pre-test event.  The water-level rise in the monitoring 

locations in response to the post-test rain event did not dissipate after the rain event ended and 

the water levels in the monitoring locations at the well field remained high. 

Precipitation also was measured during the 72-hour pumping test.  During the test on 

Well 5, 0.10 inch of rain was recorded on May 19; and during the test on Well 4, a total of 

0.73 inch of rain was recorded between May 27 and 28 . A slight rise in water levels was 

observed in the piezometers and the overburden monitoring wells in response to these rain events 

during the 72-hour tests, but the rises were of short duration, and the water levels in the 

monitoring locations resumed their prior trends before the ends of the test periods were reached.  

No significant response to these rain events that occurred during the 72-hour pumping tests were 

observed in the bedrock wells.  

 

JUNE 2016 72-HOUR PUMPING TEST – WELL 6 

 

Well 6 

 The 72-hour pumping test on Well 6 was started on June 14, 2016 and ended on June 17, 

2016.  The water level in Well 6 prior to the start of pumping was 0.47 ft btoc (foot below top of 

casing).  The pump in the well was started at 10:20 on June 14.  The pumping rate at the start of 

the test in Well 6 was above 100 gpm.  As the test progressed, the pumping rate declined as a 

result of the decreasing pressure head over the well pump.  Manual rate adjustments were made 

at 14:31 on June 14, and at 8:25 and 15:13 on June 15 in an attempt to maintain a pumping rate 

of 80 gpm. However, by approximately 18:00 on June 15, the pumping rate in Well 6 had 

declined to 75 gpm. No further rate adjustments could be made because the well pump was 

operating at its maximum capacity.  Well 6 pumped at 75 gpm for the duration of the test period. 

The test on Well 6 was ended at 10:54 on June 17, 2016.  The pumping water level in 

Well 6 just prior to shut down of the pump was 223.35 ft btoc, which is total drawdown of 

222.87 feet.  The water level in the well recovered rapidly and the well achieved 100% 

water-level recovery to the pre-test static level approximately 25 hours after shut down of the 

pump.   



	 	 -13-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

 Well 6 was pumped for total of 72 hours and 34 minutes.  The stabilized pumping rate at 

the end of the test in Well 6 was 75 gpm and the water-level drawdown in the well was less than 

0.5 foot per 100 feet of available drawdown in the well over the last 6+ hours of the test period.   

A 180-day water-level drawdown projection has been completed on Well 6.  The 

projection shows a pumping water level of 230.95 ft btoc after 180 days of pumping. This leaves 

approximately 147 feet of available drawdown above the major water-bearing fracture in the 

well reported at a depth of 378 feet.  Based on the available drawdown, it is likely that Well 6 

could be pumped at a higher rate than 75 gpm. 

 

Existing Sand and Gravel Production Wells 1 and 2 

 Manual water-level measurements were collected from the Wild Oaks Production 

Wells 1 and 2 at the well field during the pumping test on Well 6.  Well 2 remained in-service 

pumping at about 46 gpm during the test period to supply water to the District.  The pump in 

Well 2 remained on throughout most of the data collection period, with only very brief shut 

downs on June 9, 11, 17 and 22.  

 Water-level drawdown was measured in Wells 1 and 2 during the test period that is 

attributed to pumping in Well 6.  Drawdown of about 0.3 foot was measured in Well 1 and about 

0.4 foot was measured in Well 2. 

 

Overburden Monitoring Wells 

 Water-level data was collected from monitoring wells MW-1, MW-2 and MW-3 during 

the pumping test on Well 6. Water-level drawdown of 0.15 feet was measured in MW-1 and 2.0 

feet in MW-3 that is attributed to pumping in Well 6.  No water-level drawdown from Well 6 

was measured in MW-2. The table below is a summary of the drawdown observed in the 

overburden monitoring wells at the well field during the pumping test. 

 

Well ID 
Measured Well Depth  

(feet below top of casing) 
Drawdown Observed During 
Pumping Test of Well 6 (feet) 

MW-1 45.5 0.15 
MW-2 29.5 ND 
MW-3 24.5 2.0 

ND None discernible 

 

  



	 	 -14-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

Piezometers 

 Surface-water and shallow groundwater measurements were collected from six onsite 

piezometer locations during the pumping test on Well 6.  Surface-water measurements were 

collected from the outside of the piezometer casing and shallow groundwater measurements were 

collected from the interior of the piezometers.   

 Piezometers PZ-A and PZ-F were installed in the stream channel that flows through the 

well field from east to west.  No drawdown was measured in the surface water or groundwater at 

PZ-A or PZ-F during the test that is attributed to pumping in Well 6. 

 Piezometers PZ-B and PZ-D were installed in the smaller pond at the well field.  During 

the 72-hour pumping test, no water-level drawdown was measured in the surface water or 

groundwater in PZ-B or PZ-D that correspond to pumping in Well 6. 

 Piezometers PZ-C and PZ-E were installed in the lake at the well field.  PZ-C was 

installed near the pump house and PZ-E was installed near Wells 4 and 6.  Drawdown of 

approximately 0.09 foot was measured in the groundwater level in PZ-E that may be attributed to 

pumping in Well 6.  No corresponding drawdown in the surface-water level was measured on the 

exterior of PZ-E during the pumping test. There was no water-level drawdown measured in the 

surface water or groundwater at PZ-C that is attributed to pumping in Well 6. 

The table below is a summary of the drawdown observed in the piezometers at the well 

field during the test on Well 6. 

 

Piezometer ID 
Approximate Drawdown Observed During Pumping Test of Well 6 (feet) 

(Surface Water/Groundwater) 
PZ-A ND/ND 
PZ-B ND/ND 
PZ-C ND/ND 
PZ-D ND/ND 
PZ-E ND/0.09 
PZ-F ND/ND 

ND None discernible 
 

 The minimal drawdown measured in the groundwater during the pumping test was 

limited to the area near PZ-E in the lake.  No surface-water impacts were measured at any of the 

monitoring locations that are attributed to pumping in Well 6.  Based on this data and the data 

from the May 2015 pumping tests, the bedrock wells have much less of an effect on the shallow 

groundwater at the well field than the existing sand and gravel production wells.  No significant 



	 	 -15-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

impact on the shallow groundwater or surface water at the well field from use of the bedrock 

wells is anticipated. 

 

Bedrock Monitoring Wells 

 Water-level measurements were collected from three offsite bedrock wells located near 

the well field during the pumping test program on Well 6.  Two of the wells monitored were 

residential supply wells located at 73 Nash Road and 79 Nash Road, and the third well was Wild 

Oaks Well 3.  Onsite Wells 4 and 5 were also measured during the pumping test period.   

Water-level drawdown was measured in the two offsite residential wells at 73 Nash Road 

and 79 Nash Road as a result of pumping Well 6.  The drawdown at 73 Nash Road was 2.8 feet 

and at 79 Nash Road was 3.0 feet.  No discernible water-level drawdown was measured in Wild 

Oaks Well 3 that is attributed to pumping in Well 6.   

During the pumping test on Well 6, 224.1 feet of drawdown was measured in Well 4 and 

44 feet of drawdown was measured in Well 5.  The table below is a summary of the drawdown 

observed in the bedrock monitoring wells. 

Well ID 
Drawdown Observed During Pumping 

Test of Well 6 (feet) 
Onsite Wells

Well 4 224.1 
Well 5 44 

Offsite Wells
73 Nash Road 2.8 
79 Nash Road 3.0 

Well 3 ND 
ND None discernible 

 

Stream Gaging 

 Streamflow measurements were collected from the stream channel that flows through the 

well field near the existing pump house.  Stream gaging location SG-1 was positioned in the 

channel approximately 100 feet downstream of Well 5 and SG-2 was located about 200 feet 

upstream of Well 5.  No discernible change in flow was measured in the stream at the well field 

that is attributed to pumping in Well 6.   

  

  



	 	 -16-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

Precipitation  

Daily precipitation totals from a nearby weather station that published hourly data on the 

internet are provided in the table below.  These precipitation totals have also been overlain on the 

hydrographs for the pumping wells, monitoring wells, and piezometers. 

Date Precipitation Total (inches) Date Precipitation Total (inches) 
6/6/2016 0.00 6/16/2016 0.00 
6/7/2016 0.00 6/17/2016 0.00 
6/8/2016 0.02 6/18/2016 0.00 
6/9/2016 0.00 6/19/2016 0.00 

6/10/2016 0.00 6/20/2016 0.00 
6/11/2016 0.09 6/21/2016 0.00 
6/12/2016 0.00 6/22/2016 0.00 
6/13/2016 0.00 6/23/2016 0.00 
6/14/2016 0.00 6/24/2016 0.00 
6/15/2016 0.00 -- -- 

 

 

Precipitation was received during the pre-test period on June 8 (0.02 inch) and on June 11 

(0.09 inch). No precipitation was received during the pumping test on Well 6 or post-test 

recovery period. 

 A slight rise in the surface-water and groundwater levels in the piezometers, the 

groundwater levels in the overburden monitoring wells, and in bedrock Well 5 was measured in 

response to the 0.09 inch rain event on June 11.  The pre-test precipitation had no discernible 

effect on the water levels in the offsite bedrock wells and onsite Wells 4 and 6. 

This rise in water level the piezometers and overburden wells was short in duration and 

the water levels in these monitoring points quickly resumed the slight downward trend observed 

prior to the rain event.  This slight downward trend in these monitoring locations continued into 

the start of the pumping test period on Well 6 and throughout the post-test recovery period. 

 

WATER-QUALITY RESULTS 

 

 Water samples were collected from Wells 4, 5 and 6 during their respective 72-hour 

pumping tests.  The water samples were submitted to Envirotest Laboratories, Inc. in Newburgh, 

NY for analysis for all parameters listed in the New York State Department of Health 

(NYSDOH) Sanitary Code, Part 5, Subpart 5-1 and for microscopic particulate analysis (MPA) 



	 	 -17-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

and giardia and cryptosporidium analyses.  Copies of the laboratory reports for Wells 4, 5, and 6 

are included in Appendix IX.   

 The samples collected from Well 4 met all NYSDOH drinking water standards with the 

exception of the presence of total coliform.  The well will need to be disinfected and resample 

for total coliform prior to being placed into service.  Additionally, the total dissolved solids 

(TDS) concentration in Well 4 was elevated at 974 mg/L (milligrams per liter). 

The samples collected from Well 5 also met all NYSDOH drinking water standards with 

the exception of the presence of total coliform.  Well 5 will need to be disinfected and resample 

for total coliform prior to being placed into service.  

The samples collected from Well 6 met all NYSDOH drinking water standards with the 

exception of the presence of total coliform and color.  The color value reported was 20 units, 

which is above the maximum contaminant level (MCL) of 15 units.  The turbidity concentration 

in Well 6 was 0.26 nephelometric turbidity units (NTU), which is relatively low, so the cause of 

the elevated color is unclear.   

A trace detection of toluene was reported in Well 6 at a concentration of 0.618 ug/L 

(micrograms per liter).  This concentration is below the MCL of 5 ug/l for toluene and no other 

VOCs were detected in the sample collected.  The trace toluene detection is likely a remnant 

from the use of electrical tape and/or new electrical wiring in the well with the setting of the 

temporary well pump.  Both the tape adhesive and the color coating on electrical wiring can 

contain trace amounts of toluene. 

Well 6 was disinfected, pump to waste, and a second total coliform sample was collected 

after the pumping test program was completed.  The results for the resampling event were 

negative for the presence of total coliform.  A copy of the laboratory results from the resampling 

event is included in Appendix IX.	

Samples from Wells 4, 5 and 6 were all negative for giardia and cryptosporidium.  The 

MPA results for Well 4 reported the presence of pollen, but no primary indicator organisms (i.e., 

diatoms, algae, etc.) were detected.  The sample from Well 4 indicates a low potential risk for 

GWUDI (groundwater under the direct influence of surface water).   

The MPA for Well 5 reported the presence of green algae exhibiting chlorophyll 

fluorescence, pollen and plant debris.  This sample from Well 5 indicates a moderate to high 

potential risk for GWUDI.   



	 	 -18-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

No primary or secondary GWUDI indictor organisms were detected in the MPA sample 

collected from Well 6.  The sample from Well 6 indicates a low potential risk for GWUDI.  

Physical parameters were measured in Wells 4, 5 and 6 and the nearby surface water 

during their respective pumping test periods.  Graphs and tables of measurements collected are 

included in Appendix X.   

The temperature readings from Wells 4 and 5 showed no significant changes during the 

test period compared to the nearby surface water which showed daily fluctuation.   Conductivity 

and TDS values measured in Well 4 were less than the concentrations from the nearby pond, but 

similar to the concentrations in the adjacent lake.  No significant changes in TDS or conductivity 

occurred during the test period to assess whether Well 4 and lake surface water would show a 

corresponding change.  The conductivity and TDS values measured in Well 5 did not show a 

similarity in concentrations with any of the adjacent water bodies.  The pH values measured in 

the wells and surface-water bodies showed minor fluctuations during the test period.  This was 

likely the result of the changing ambient air temperature affecting the accuracy of the hand-held 

water-quality meter.  

During the pumping test on Well 6, temperature was measured in Well 6 and the surface-

water in the adjacent pond and lake.  The temperature in Well 6 was approximately 7 degrees 

less than the surface water in the lake and about 11 degrees lower than the surface water in the 

pond.  The surface water in the pond and lake showed a slight upward trend (warmed) 

throughout the test period.  The temperature in Well 6 showed some minor fluctuation 

throughout the data collection period, but the temperature in Well 6 did not show a similar 

warming trend as the nearby surface water.  

Conductivity values measured in Well 6 were less than the concentrations from the 

nearby pond, but similar to the concentrations in the adjacent lake.  The pH values measured in 

the wells and surface-water bodies showed minor fluctuations during the test period.  This was 

likely the result of the changing ambient air temperature affecting the accuracy of the hand-held 

water-quality meter.  

 
CONCLUSIONS 

 
 

 The stabilized pumping rate in Well 4 at the end of the test of the 72-hour pumping test 

completed in May 2015 was 80 gpm.  The water-level drawdown in the well was less than 



	 	 -19-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

0.5 foot per 100 feet of available drawdown in the well over the last 6+ hours of the test 

period.  The 180-day water-level drawdown projection completed on the data collected from 

Well 4 shows a pumping water level of 367.34 ft btoc after 180 days of pumping.  This water 

level is above the major water-bearing fracture in the well reported at a depth of 385 feet. 

 

 The stabilized pumping rate in Well 5 at the end of the 72-hour pumping test completed in 

May 2015 was 28 gpm. The water-level drawdown in the well was less than 0.5 foot per 

100 feet of available drawdown in the well over the last 6+ hours of the test period.  The 180-

day water-level drawdown projection completed on the data collected from Well 5 shows a 

pumping water level of 301.32 ft btoc after 180 days of pumping. This water level is above 

the major water-bearing fracture in the well reported at a depth of 350 feet. 

 

 The stabilized pumping rate in Well 6 at the end of the 72-hour pumping test completed in 

June 2016 was 75 gpm.  The water-level drawdown in the well was less than 0.5 foot per 

100 feet of available drawdown in the well over the last 6+ hours of the test period. The 

180-day water-level drawdown projection completed on Well 6 shows a pumping water level 

of 230.95 ft btoc after 180 days of pumping. This leave approximately 147 feet of available 

drawdown above the major water-bearing fracture in the well reported at a depth of 378 feet.  

Based on the available drawdown, it is likely that Well 6 could be pumped at a higher rate 

than 75 gpm. 

 

 Pre-test water-level data collected during the May 2015 pumping tests from the onsite 

monitoring locations showed that the existing Production Well 2 caused water-level 

fluctuation in the groundwater level in the onsite overburden monitoring wells, in the 

piezometer in the pond closest to Well 2 (PZ- B) and the two piezometers in the lake (PZ-C 

and PZ-E), and in bedrock Well 5.  The water-level data collected during the June 2016 

pumping test showed similar findings.   

 

 During the pumping tests conducted on Wells 4 and 5, water-level drawdown was measured 

in one of the four offsite bedrock monitoring well locations. Approximately 3 feet of 

drawdown was measured in the well at 73 Nash Road during the test on Well 4 and 



	 	 -20-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

approximately 7 feet during the test on Well 5.  During the pumping test on Well 6, water-

level drawdown of 2.8 feet was measured at 73 Nash Road and 3.0 feet at 79 Nash Road.  

Based on the hydrographs for the offsite wells, the drawdown measured during the pumping 

tests did not appear to have a significant effect on the wells and future use of Wells 4, 5 and 6 

to supply the Wild Oaks Water District will not likely impact the use of these residential 

supply well. 

 

 No discernible water-level drawdown was measured in Production Wells 1 and 2 during the 

pumping tests on Wells 4 and 5 that was attributed to these bedrock wells pumping.  During 

the pumping test on Well 6, approximately 0.3 feet of drawdown was measured in Well 1 and 

0.4 foot was measured in Well 2. 

 

 During the pumping test on Well 4, approximately 2.0 feet of water-level drawdown was 

measured in overburden monitoring well MW-3.  No drawdown was measured in the other 

two onsite overburden monitoring wells during the test on Well 4.  During the test on Well 5, 

water-level drawdown was measured in all three of the overburden monitoring wells which 

ranged from 0.1 to 0.5 foot.  During the test on Well 6, water-level drawdown of 0.15 foot 

was measured in MW-1 and 1.3 feet in MW-3.  No drawdown was measured in MW-2. 

 

 Water-level drawdown which is attributed to pumping in the bedrock wells was measured in 

the groundwater at one piezometer location, PZ-E set in the lake near Wells 4 and 6, during 

the three pumping tests. The drawdown measured in the groundwater level at PZ-E during 

the tests on Wells 4, 5 and 6 was 0.25, 0.10 and 0.09 foot, respectively.  No water-level 

drawdown was measured in the groundwater at any of the other piezometers during the 

pumping tests, and no surface-water level changes from pumping the bedrock wells was 

measured at any of the piezometer locations.  Based on pumping test data, the bedrock wells 

have much less of an effect on the shallow groundwater at the well field than the existing 

sand and gravel production wells.  No significant impact on the shallow groundwater or 

surface water at the well field from use of the bedrock wells is anticipated. 

 

  



	 	 -21-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

 Stream gaging was conducted in the stream channel that flows through the well field during 

the three pumping tests.  The data shows no discernible effect on stream flow from pumping 

of the bedrock wells. 

 

 The water-quality results from the samples collected from Wells 4 and 5 during the pumping 

tests met all NYSDOH drinking water standards with the exception of the presence of total 

coliform was detected in both wells.  The wells will need to be disinfected and resampled to 

demonstrate the absence of total coliform prior to being placed into service.  Additionally, 

the TDS concentration in Well 4 was elevated at 974 mg/L. 

 

 The water-quality results from Well 6 meet all NYSDOH drinking water standards with the 

exception of the presence of total coliform and color.  Well 6 was disinfected and resampled 

for total coliform after the pumping test was completed.  The resample was absent for the 

presence of total coliform. The color value reported was 20 units, which is above the 

NYSDOH MCL of 15 units. The turbidity concentration in Well 6 was 0.26 NTU, which is 

relatively low, so the cause of the elevated color is unclear.   

 

 A trace detection of toluene was reported in Well 6 at a concentration of 0.618 ug/L.  The 

concentration is below the MCL of 5 ug/l for toluene and no other VOCs were detected in the 

sample collected.  The trace toluene detection is likely a remnant from the use of electrical 

tape and/or new electrical wiring in the well with the setting of the temporary pump.  Both 

the tape adhesive and the color coating on electrical wiring can contain trace amounts of 

toluene. 

 

 The giardia and cryptosporidium sample results for Wells 4, 5, and 6 were negative.  The 

MPA for Well 4 reported no primary indictor organisms which indicate a low potential risk 

of GWUDI.  The MPA for Well 5 reported the presence of green algae exhibiting chlorophyll 

fluorescence, pollen and plant debris.  The MPA sample from Well 5 indicates a moderate to 

high potential risk for GWUDI.  No primary or secondary GWUDI indictor organisms were 

detected in the MPA sample collected from Well 6.  The sample from Well 6 indicates a low 

potential risk for GWUDI.  



	 	 -22-	
	

LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

 The moderate to high risk MPA sample result for Well 5 will likely result in a positive 

GWUDI designation for the well.  Because of the water treatment requirements associated 

with GWUDI, New York American Water could consider not connecting Well 5 to the water 

system at this time.  The tested yields of Wells 4 and 6 at 80 gpm and 75 gpm, respectively, 

are able to individually meet the 2015 maximum day system demand of 91,000 gpd (63.2 

gpm).  Higher maximum day demand values for the system have been reported in the past 

(114,400 gpd (79.4 gpm) in 2013).  A retest of Well 6 could be conducted using the installed 

well appurtenance once the well is in operation to demonstrate a higher yield for this well if 

needed. 

 

      LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 
 
 
      Stacy Stieber, CPG 
      Associate/Hydrogeologist 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
Thomas P. Cusack, CPG 
Senior Vice President 
 
Nv 
August 17, 2016 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2016\Final PT report Aug 2016.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

FIGURE



Site Location

Wild Oaks
WELL 3

73 Nash Rd
79 Nash Rd

195 Waccabuc Rd

SOURCE: USGS TOPOGRAPHIC QUADRANGLE CROTON FALLS, NEW YORK (PHOTOREVISED 1981).

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
NEW YORK

QUADRANGLE LOCATION

LEGEND

LOCATION OF EXISTING
WELL FIELD EASEMENT

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
OF OFFSITE WELL
MONITORED DURING
72-HOUR PUMPING TEST

73 Nash Rd
SITE LOCATION MAP AND OFFSITE WELL

MONITORING PROGRAM

O
:\D

W
G

\W
ild

O
ak

s\
20

16
\F

ig
1.

dw
g,

La
yo

ut
1,

7/
26

/2
01

6
8:

01
:4

5
AM

,A
cr

oP
lot

.p
c3



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX I 

WCDH – WELL SITE APPROVALS













LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX II 

WELL COMPLETION REPORTS









LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX III 

PUMPING WELLS



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PUMPING WELLS  

WELL 4



5/2
3/1

5

5/2
4/1

5

5/2
5/1

5

5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5

6/1
1/1

5

400

300

200

100

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 4 from May 26 Through May 30, 2015

5/2
3/1

5

5/2
4/1

5

5/2
5/1

5

5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5

6/1
1/1

5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Well 4 clippedgrf

Lightning strike, pump
removed from well for repair.



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

400

300

200

100

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Well4.grf

Lightning strike, pump
removed from well for repair.



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

5/12/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00 Prior to start of pumping in Well 5, Well 4 was flowing artesian. 
5/14/2015 13:27 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/15/2015 17:14 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/16/2015 18:07 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/18/2015 13:06 0.00 -- 0.00 Pumping in Well 5 started at 11:38. 
5/18/2015 13:17 0.16 -- 0.16 Well 4 no longer flowing, pressure transducer installed in well. 
5/18/2015 14:00 0.87 -- 0.87  
5/18/2015 15:00 1.78 -- 1.78  
5/18/2015 16:00 2.51 -- 2.51  
5/18/2015 17:00 3.10 -- 3.10  
5/18/2015 18:00 3.60 -- 3.60  
5/18/2015 19:00 4.03 -- 4.03  
5/18/2015 20:00 4.44 -- 4.44  
5/18/2015 21:00 4.81 -- 4.81  
5/18/2015 22:00 5.18 -- 5.18  
5/18/2015 23:00 5.47 -- 5.47  
5/19/2015 0:00 5.73 -- 5.73  
5/19/2015 1:00 5.93 -- 5.93  
5/19/2015 2:00 6.12 -- 6.12  
5/19/2015 3:00 6.22 -- 6.22  
5/19/2015 4:00 6.34 -- 6.34  
5/19/2015 5:00 6.41 -- 6.41  
5/19/2015 6:00 6.49 -- 6.49  
5/19/2015 7:00 6.62 -- 6.62  
5/19/2015 8:00 6.73 -- 6.73  
5/19/2015 9:00 6.85 -- 6.85  
5/19/2015 10:00 6.95 -- 6.95  
5/19/2015 11:00 7.08 -- 7.08  
5/19/2015 12:00 7.15 -- 7.15  
5/19/2015 13:00 7.23 -- 7.23  
5/19/2015 14:00 7.26 -- 7.26  
5/19/2015 15:00 7.23 -- 7.23  
5/19/2015 16:00 7.21 -- 7.21  
5/19/2015 17:00 7.19 -- 7.19  
5/19/2015 18:00 7.16 -- 7.16  
5/19/2015 19:00 7.15 -- 7.15  
5/19/2015 20:00 7.15 -- 7.15  
5/19/2015 21:00 7.18 -- 7.18  
5/19/2015 22:00 7.26 -- 7.26  
5/19/2015 23:00 7.30 -- 7.30  
5/20/2015 0:00 7.37 -- 7.37  
5/20/2015 1:00 7.40 -- 7.40  
5/20/2015 2:00 7.47 -- 7.47  
5/20/2015 3:00 7.45 -- 7.45  
5/20/2015 4:00 7.45 -- 7.45  
5/20/2015 5:00 7.43 -- 7.43  
5/20/2015 6:00 7.44 -- 7.44  
5/20/2015 7:00 7.45 -- 7.45  
5/20/2015 8:00 7.51 -- 7.51  
5/20/2015 9:00 7.58 -- 7.58  
5/20/2015 10:00 7.65 -- 7.65  
5/20/2015 11:00 7.72 -- 7.72  
5/20/2015 12:00 7.74 -- 7.74  
5/20/2015 13:00 7.80 -- 7.80  
5/20/2015 14:00 7.84 -- 7.84  
5/20/2015 15:00 7.79 -- 7.79  
5/20/2015 16:00 7.78 -- 7.78  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

5/20/2015 17:00 7.75 -- 7.75  
5/20/2015 18:00 7.71 -- 7.71  
5/20/2015 19:00 7.68 -- 7.68  
5/20/2015 20:00 7.68 -- 7.68  
5/20/2015 21:00 7.69 -- 7.69  
5/20/2015 22:00 7.73 -- 7.73  
5/20/2015 23:00 7.76 -- 7.76  
5/21/2015 0:00 7.82 -- 7.82  
5/21/2015 1:00 7.85 -- 7.85  
5/21/2015 2:00 7.89 -- 7.89  
5/21/2015 3:00 7.88 -- 7.88  
5/21/2015 4:00 7.88 -- 7.88  
5/21/2015 5:00 7.88 -- 7.88  
5/21/2015 6:00 7.87 -- 7.87  
5/21/2015 7:00 7.85 -- 7.85  
5/21/2015 8:00 7.86 -- 7.86  
5/21/2015 9:00 7.88 -- 7.88  
5/21/2015 10:00 7.91 -- 7.91  
5/21/2015 11:00 7.95 -- 7.95  
5/21/2015 12:00 8.03 -- 8.03 Pump in Well 5 shut down at 12:14. 
5/21/2015 13:00 4.67 -- 4.67  
5/21/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00 Well 4 flowing artesian. 
5/21/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/21/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/22/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00 Well 4 flowing artesian. 
5/22/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00 Transducer removed from Well 4. 
5/26/2015 9:13 0.00 -- 0.00 Transducer reinstalled in Well 4. 
5/26/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/26/2015 10:05 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/26/2015 10:06 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/26/2015 10:07 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/26/2015 10:08 1.90 1 1.90 Pump in Well 4 started. 
5/26/2015 10:09 45.46 2 45.46 Pumping rate 47 gpm. 
5/26/2015 10:10 49.30 3 49.30  
5/26/2015 10:11 48.40 4 48.40  
5/26/2015 10:12 48.36 5 48.36  
5/26/2015 10:13 48.38 6 48.38  
5/26/2015 10:14 48.93 7 48.93  
5/26/2015 10:15 49.53 8 49.53  
5/26/2015 10:16 50.09 9 50.09  
5/26/2015 10:17 50.76 10 50.76  
5/26/2015 10:18 51.29 11 51.29 Pumping rate 47 gpm. 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

5/26/2015 10:19 52.05 12 52.05 Pumping rate 47 gpm. 
5/26/2015 10:20 52.58 13 52.58  
5/26/2015 10:21 53.25 14 53.25  
5/26/2015 10:22 53.52 15 53.52  
5/26/2015 10:23 54.26 16 54.26  
5/26/2015 10:24 54.87 17 54.87  
5/26/2015 10:25 55.55 18 55.55  
5/26/2015 10:30 57.54 23 57.54 Pumping rate 47 gpm. 
5/26/2015 10:35 59.84 28 59.84 Pumping rate increased to 60 gpm. 
5/26/2015 10:40 72.28 33 72.28  
5/26/2015 10:45 79.73 38 79.73  
5/26/2015 10:50 83.74 43 83.74  
5/26/2015 10:55 86.70 48 86.70 Pumping rate increased to 70 gpm. 
5/26/2015 11:00 101.55 53 101.55  
5/26/2015 11:10 116.77 63 116.77 Pumping rate 70 gpm. 
5/26/2015 11:20 123.57 73 123.57 Pumping rate 70 gpm. 
5/26/2015 11:30 128.26 83 128.26 Pumping rate 70 gpm. 
5/26/2015 11:40 132.34 93 132.34 Pumping rate 70 gpm. 
5/26/2015 11:50 135.90 103 135.90 Pumping rate 70 gpm. 
5/26/2015 12:00 139.02 113 139.02 Pumping rate increased to 105 gpm at 12:42. 
5/26/2015 13:00 244.20 173 244.20 Pumping rate increased to 110 gpm at 12:50. 
5/26/2015 14:00 272.37 233 272.37 Pumping rate 100 gpm. 
5/26/2015 15:00 283.21 293 283.21 Pumping rate 95 gpm. 
5/26/2015 16:00 290.80 353 290.80 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/26/2015 17:00 295.85 413 295.85 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/26/2015 18:00 299.33 473 299.33 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/26/2015 19:00 300.77 533 300.77 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/26/2015 20:00 302.24 593 302.24 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/26/2015 21:00 303.87 653 303.87 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/26/2015 22:00 304.73 713 304.73 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/26/2015 23:00 305.44 773 305.44 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 0:00 306.19 833 306.19 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 1:00 306.51 893 306.51 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 2:00 307.60 953 307.60 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 3:00 307.99 1013 307.99 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 4:00 308.25 1073 308.25 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 5:00 308.58 1133 308.58 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 6:00 309.65 1193 309.65 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/27/2015 7:00 309.48 1253 309.48 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 8:29 312.17 1342 312.17 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 9:00 310.84 1373 310.84 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 10:00 311.33 1433 311.33 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 11:00 311.25 1493 311.25 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 12:00 312.31 1553 312.31 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 13:00 312.29 1613 312.29 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 14:00 312.31 1673 312.31 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 15:00 313.30 1733 313.30 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 16:00 313.17 1793 313.17 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 17:00 313.21 1853 313.21 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 18:00 313.31 1913 313.31 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 19:00 310.74 1973 310.74 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/27/2015 20:00 307.07 2033 307.07 Lightning strike, pump motor damaged. 
5/27/2015 21:00 308.12 2093 308.12  
5/27/2015 22:00 306.03 2153 306.03  
5/27/2015 22:15 -- 2168 -- Generator shut down, pump pulled from well. 
5/28/2015 7:25 38.31 2878 38.31 Pump motor replaced, pump and transducer reinstalled. 
5/28/2015 7:26 38.26 2879 38.26 Pump in Well 4 restarted. 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

5/28/2015 7:27 45.35 2880 45.35 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 7:28 54.38 2881 54.38 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 7:29 60.30 2882 60.30 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 7:30 64.14 2883 64.14 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 8:00 121.19 2913 121.19 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 9:00 183.65 2973 183.65 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 10:00 198.46 3033 198.46 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 11:00 206.93 3093 206.93 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 12:00 213.16 3153 213.16 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 13:00 217.78 3213 217.78 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/28/2015 14:00 221.37 3273 221.37 Pumping rate 70 gpm. 
5/28/2015 15:00 223.88 3333 223.88 Manual rate increase completed. 
5/28/2015 16:00 292.18 3393 292.18 Pumping rate 90 gpm. 
5/28/2015 17:00 298.24 3453 298.24 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/28/2015 18:00 301.76 3513 301.76 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/28/2015 19:00 303.70 3573 303.70 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/28/2015 20:00 305.41 3633 305.41 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/28/2015 21:00 306.89 3693 306.89 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/28/2015 22:00 308.00 3753 308.00 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/28/2015 23:00 309.09 3813 309.09 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 0:00 309.84 3873 309.84 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 1:00 311.04 3933 311.04 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 2:00 311.73 3993 311.73 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 3:00 312.44 4053 312.44 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 4:00 313.07 4113 313.07 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 5:00 313.59 4173 313.59 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 6:00 314.17 4233 314.17 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 7:00 314.77 4293 314.77 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 8:00 315.13 4353 315.13 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 9:00 315.50 4413 315.50 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 10:00 315.75 4473 315.75 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 11:00 315.96 4533 315.96 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
5/29/2015 12:00 316.38 4593 316.38 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 13:00 316.58 4653 316.58 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 14:00 316.79 4713 316.79 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 15:00 316.97 4773 316.97 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 16:00 316.50 4833 316.50 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 17:00 317.18 4893 317.18 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 18:00 317.76 4953 317.76 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 19:00 318.38 5013 318.38 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 20:00 318.38 5073 318.38 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 21:00 318.75 5133 318.75 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 22:00 319.33 5193 319.33 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/29/2015 23:00 319.41 5253 319.41 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 0:00 319.73 5313 319.73 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 1:00 320.10 5373 320.10 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 2:00 320.61 5433 320.61 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 3:00 320.73 5493 320.73 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 4:00 320.97 5553 320.97 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 5:00 321.11 5613 321.11 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 6:00 321.67 5673 321.67 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 7:00 321.75 5733 321.75 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 8:00 321.93 5793 321.93 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 8:01 321.74 5794 321.74 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
5/30/2015 8:02 316.73 -- 316.73 Pump in Well 4 shut down. 
5/30/2015 8:03 296.50 -- 296.50  
5/30/2015 8:04 277.34 -- 277.34  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

5/30/2015 8:05 259.32 -- 259.32  
5/30/2015 8:06 242.72 -- 242.72  
5/30/2015 8:07 227.97 -- 227.97  
5/30/2015 8:08 215.27 -- 215.27  
5/30/2015 8:09 204.74 -- 204.74  
5/30/2015 8:10 196.09 -- 196.09  
5/30/2015 8:11 189.31 -- 189.31  
5/30/2015 8:12 184.22 -- 184.22  
5/30/2015 8:13 180.54 -- 180.54  
5/30/2015 8:14 177.98 -- 177.98  
5/30/2015 8:15 176.23 -- 176.23  
5/30/2015 8:16 174.89 -- 174.89  
5/30/2015 8:17 173.86 -- 173.86  
5/30/2015 8:18 172.90 -- 172.90  
5/30/2015 8:19 172.08 -- 172.08  
5/30/2015 8:20 171.44 -- 171.44  
5/30/2015 8:25 168.55 -- 168.55  
5/30/2015 8:30 166.04 -- 166.04  
5/30/2015 8:35 163.82 -- 163.82  
5/30/2015 8:40 161.62 -- 161.62  
5/30/2015 8:45 159.59 -- 159.59  
5/30/2015 8:50 157.55 -- 157.55  
5/30/2015 8:55 155.51 -- 155.51  
5/30/2015 9:00 153.46 -- 153.46  
5/30/2015 9:10 149.13 -- 149.13  
5/30/2015 9:20 144.48 -- 144.48  
5/30/2015 9:30 139.86 -- 139.86  
5/30/2015 9:40 135.68 -- 135.68  
5/30/2015 9:50 131.84 -- 131.84  
5/30/2015 10:00 128.43 -- 128.43  
5/30/2015 11:00 113.17 -- 113.17  
5/30/2015 12:00 102.77 -- 102.77  
5/30/2015 13:00 94.42 -- 94.42  
5/30/2015 14:00 87.02 -- 87.02  
5/30/2015 15:00 80.10 -- 80.10  
5/30/2015 16:00 72.51 -- 72.51  
5/30/2015 17:00 63.61 -- 63.61  
5/30/2015 18:00 53.20 -- 53.20  
5/30/2015 19:00 44.56 -- 44.56  
5/30/2015 20:00 37.62 -- 37.62  
5/30/2015 21:00 31.87 -- 31.87 90% water-level recovery 
5/30/2015 22:00 26.89 -- 26.89  
5/30/2015 23:00 22.58 -- 22.58  
5/31/2015 0:00 18.70 -- 18.70  
5/31/2015 1:00 15.25 -- 15.25  
5/31/2015 2:00 12.22 -- 12.22  
5/31/2015 3:00 9.62 -- 9.62  
5/31/2015 4:00 7.42 -- 7.42  
5/31/2015 5:00 5.37 -- 5.37  
5/31/2015 6:00 3.64 -- 3.64  
5/31/2015 7:00 2.17 -- 2.17  
5/31/2015 8:00 0.86 -- 0.86  
5/31/2015 9:00 0.10 -- 0.10  
5/31/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00 Well 4 flowing artesian. 
5/31/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

5/31/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
5/31/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/1/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/2/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/2/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/3/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/4/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/5/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/5/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/6/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/7/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/7/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/8/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/9/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 4 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/10/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 13:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 14:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 15:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 16:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 17:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 18:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 19:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 20:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 21:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 22:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/10/2015 23:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 0:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 1:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 2:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 3:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 4:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 5:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 6:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 7:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 8:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 9:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 10:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 11:00 0.00 -- 0.00  
6/11/2015 12:00 0.00 -- 0.00 Pressure transducer removed from Well 4. 
ft btoc feet below top of casing 
gpm gallons per minute 
min minutes 
 
 
 K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\Well 4 table_revised.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PUMPING WELLS  

WELL 5



5/1
2/1

5

5/1
3/1

5

5/1
4/1

5

5/1
5/1

5

5/1
6/1

5

5/1
7/1

5

5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

5/2
3/1

5

5/2
4/1

5

5/2
5/1

5

400

300

200

100

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 5 from May 18 Through May 21, 2015

5/1
2/1

5

5/1
3/1

5

5/1
4/1

5

5/1
5/1

5

5/1
6/1

5

5/1
7/1

5

5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

5/2
3/1

5

5/2
4/1

5

5/2
5/1

5

0

20

40

60

80

100

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Well 5 clipped.grf



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

400

300

200

100

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)

Depth to Water - Transducer Data
Depth to Water - Manual Measurements
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Well 5grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/15/2015 18:00 2.52 -- -- Pressure transducers installed in Well 5. 
5/15/2015 19:00 2.71 -- --  
5/15/2015 20:00 2.78 -- --  
5/15/2015 21:00 2.87 -- --  
5/15/2015 22:00 2.92 -- --  
5/15/2015 23:00 2.94 -- --  
5/16/2015 0:00 2.56 -- --  
5/16/2015 1:00 2.41 -- --  
5/16/2015 2:00 2.29 -- --  
5/16/2015 3:00 2.68 -- --  
5/16/2015 4:00 2.80 -- --  
5/16/2015 5:00 2.90 -- --  
5/16/2015 6:00 2.92 -- --  
5/16/2015 7:00 3.00 -- --  
5/16/2015 8:00 3.03 -- --  
5/16/2015 9:00 2.66 -- --  
5/16/2015 10:00 2.45 -- --  
5/16/2015 11:00 2.36 -- --  
5/16/2015 12:00 2.65 -- --  
5/16/2015 13:00 2.79 -- --  
5/16/2015 14:00 2.83 -- --  
5/16/2015 15:00 2.85 -- --  
5/16/2015 16:00 2.76 -- --  
5/16/2015 17:00 2.83 -- --  
5/16/2015 18:00 2.47 -- --  
5/16/2015 19:00 2.19 -- --  
5/16/2015 20:00 2.12 -- --  
5/16/2015 21:00 2.48 -- --  
5/16/2015 22:00 2.57 -- --  
5/16/2015 23:00 2.64 -- --  
5/17/2015 0:00 2.62 -- --  
5/17/2015 1:00 2.57 -- --  
5/17/2015 2:00 2.55 -- --  
5/17/2015 3:00 2.12 -- --  
5/17/2015 4:00 1.91 -- --  
5/17/2015 5:00 1.72 -- --  
5/17/2015 6:00 2.07 -- --  
5/17/2015 7:00 2.19 -- --  
5/17/2015 8:00 2.22 -- --  
5/17/2015 9:00 2.31 -- --  
5/17/2015 10:00 2.35 -- --  
5/17/2015 11:00 2.34 -- --  
5/17/2015 12:00 1.94 -- --  
5/17/2015 13:00 1.74 -- --  
5/17/2015 14:00 1.59 -- --  
5/17/2015 15:00 1.92 -- --  
5/17/2015 16:00 2.00 -- --  
5/17/2015 17:00 2.05 -- --  
5/17/2015 18:00 2.10 -- --  
5/17/2015 19:00 2.12 -- --  
5/17/2015 20:00 2.14 -- --  
5/17/2015 21:00 1.77 -- --  
5/17/2015 22:00 1.58 -- --  
5/17/2015 23:00 1.53 -- --  
5/18/2015 0:00 1.82 -- --  
5/18/2015 1:00 1.98 -- --  
5/18/2015 2:00 2.03 -- --  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/18/2015 3:00 2.03 -- --  
5/18/2015 4:00 2.04 -- --  
5/18/2015 5:00 2.01 -- --  
5/18/2015 6:00 1.68 -- --  
5/18/2015 7:00 1.50 -- --  
5/18/2015 8:00 1.40 -- --  
5/18/2015 9:00 1.76 -- --  
5/18/2015 10:00 1.97 -- --  
5/18/2015 11:00 3.12 -- --  
5/18/2015 11:37 3.10 -- --  
5/18/2015 11:38 96.25 1 93.15 Pump in Well 5 started. 
5/18/2015 11:39 96.25 2 93.15 Pumping rate 84 gpm. 
5/18/2015 11:40 142.32 3 139.22  
5/18/2015 11:41 194.58 4 191.48  
5/18/2015 11:44 263.46 7 260.36  
5/18/2015 11:49 305.37 12 302.27  
5/18/2015 11:50 -- 13 -- Pump shut down. 
5/18/2015 11:58 288.85 21 285.75  
5/18/2015 11:59 187.63 22 184.53  
5/18/2015 12:00 213.27 23 210.17 Pump restarted. 
5/18/2015 12:01 237.36 24 234.26  
5/18/2015 12:02 258.33 25 255.23  
5/18/2015 12:03 278.19 26 275.09  
5/18/2015 12:04 291.91 27 288.81  
5/18/2015 12:05 293.38 28 290.28  
5/18/2015 12:08 296.65 31 293.55  
5/18/2015 12:09 298.93 32 295.83 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 12:12 298.05 35 294.95  
5/18/2015 12:13 296.09 36 292.99  
5/18/2015 12:14 295.50 37 292.40  
5/18/2015 12:15 294.50 38 291.40 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 12:20 291.38 43 288.28  
5/18/2015 12:25 290.90 48 287.80 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 12:30 290.85 53 287.75  
5/18/2015 12:35 291.58 58 288.48 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 12:40 292.25 63 289.15  
5/18/2015 12:45 292.95 68 289.85 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 12:55 294.33 73 291.23 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 13:00 295.07 78 291.97  
5/18/2015 13:05 295.54 83 292.44 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 13:10 296.50 88 293.40  
5/18/2015 13:15 297.05 93 293.95 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 13:25 297.73 103 294.63  
5/18/2015 13:35 298.95 113 295.85 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 13:45 299.57 123 296.47 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 13:55 299.42 133 296.32 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 14:00 300.60 138 297.50 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 15:00 301.56 198 298.46 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 16:00 300.93 258 297.83 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 17:00 301.47 318 298.37 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 18:00 301.58 378 298.48 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 19:00 301.81 438 298.71 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 20:00 300.61 498 297.51 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 21:00 301.24 558 298.14 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 22:00 302.51 618 299.41 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/18/2015 23:00 302.86 678 299.76 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 0:00 302.84 738 299.74 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/19/2015 1:00 302.64 798 299.54 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 2:00 302.62 858 299.52 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 3:00 302.07 918 298.97 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 4:00 302.19 978 299.09 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 5:00 302.20 1038 299.10 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 6:00 302.14 1098 299.04 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 7:00 302.28 1158 299.18 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 8:00 302.17 1218 299.07 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 9:00 302.13 1278 299.03 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 10:00 302.18 1338 299.08 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 11:00 301.98 1398 298.88 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 12:00 301.78 1458 298.68 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 13:00 301.74 1518 298.64 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 14:00 302.00 1578 298.90 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 15:00 301.72 1638 298.62 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 16:00 301.68 1698 298.58 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 17:00 301.70 1758 298.60 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 18:00 302.02 1818 298.92 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 19:00 301.81 1878 298.71 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 20:00 300.97 1938 297.87 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 21:00 300.25 1998 297.15 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 22:00 300.48 2058 297.38 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/19/2015 23:00 300.14 2118 297.04 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 0:00 300.01 2178 296.91 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 1:00 301.28 2238 298.18 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 2:00 301.34 2298 298.24 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 3:00 300.98 2358 297.88 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 4:00 300.72 2418 297.62 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 5:00 300.65 2478 297.55 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 6:00 301.47 2538 298.37 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 7:00 301.43 2598 298.33 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 8:00 301.29 2658 298.19 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 9:00 301.50 2718 298.40 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 10:00 300.96 2778 297.86 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 11:00 300.61 2838 297.51 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 12:00 300.67 2898 297.57 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 13:00 302.94 2958 299.84 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 14:00 300.84 3018 297.74 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 15:00 300.64 3078 297.54 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 16:00 300.71 3138 297.61 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 17:00 300.37 3198 297.27 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 18:00 300.77 3258 297.67 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 19:00 300.98 3318 297.88 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 20:00 300.93 3378 297.83 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 21:00 300.91 3438 297.81 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 22:00 300.95 3498 297.85 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/20/2015 23:00 300.94 3558 297.84 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 0:00 301.23 3618 298.13 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 1:00 301.11 3678 298.01 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 2:00 300.87 3738 297.77 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 3:00 300.64 3798 297.54 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 4:00 300.72 3858 297.62 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 5:00 300.62 3918 297.52 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 6:00 300.51 3978 297.41 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 7:00 300.14 4038 297.04 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 8:00 300.08 4098 296.98 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 9:00 300.03 4158 296.93 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/21/2015 10:00 300.29 4218 297.19 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 11:00 300.28 4278 297.18 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 12:00 301.06 4338 297.96 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 12:12 300.41 4350 297.31 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 12:13 300.39 4351 297.29 Pumping rate 28 gpm. 
5/21/2015 12:14 293.96 -- 290.86 Pump in Well 5 shut down. 
5/21/2015 12:15 275.64 -- 272.54  
5/21/2015 12:16 259.16 -- 256.06  
5/21/2015 12:17 243.99 -- 240.89  
5/21/2015 12:18 229.86 -- 226.76  
5/21/2015 12:19 216.73 -- 213.63  
5/21/2015 12:20 205.32 -- 202.22  
5/21/2015 12:21 193.86 -- 190.76  
5/21/2015 12:22 187.09 -- 183.99  
5/21/2015 12:23 176.31 -- 173.21  
5/21/2015 12:24 166.37 -- 163.27  
5/21/2015 12:25 157.44 -- 154.34  
5/21/2015 12:26 148.60 -- 145.50  
5/21/2015 12:27 140.16 -- 137.06  
5/21/2015 12:28 132.49 -- 129.39  
5/21/2015 12:29 125.33 -- 122.23  
5/21/2015 12:30 118.87 -- 115.77  
5/21/2015 12:35 92.71 -- 89.61  
5/21/2015 12:40 72.47 -- 69.37  
5/21/2015 12:45 55.64 -- 52.54  
5/21/2015 12:50 43.72 -- 40.62  
5/21/2015 12:55 35.24 -- 32.14  
5/21/2015 13:00 29.11 -- 26.01 90% water-level recovery 
5/21/2015 13:10 21.21 -- 18.11  
5/21/2015 13:20 16.66 -- 13.56  
5/21/2015 13:30 13.74 -- 10.64  
5/21/2015 13:40 11.68 -- 8.58  
5/21/2015 13:50 10.12 -- 7.02  
5/21/2015 14:00 8.86 -- 5.76  
5/21/2015 15:00 5.83 -- 2.73  
5/21/2015 16:00 4.54 -- 1.44  
5/21/2015 17:00 3.80 -- 0.70  
5/21/2015 18:00 3.80 -- 0.70  
5/21/2015 19:00 3.63 -- 0.53  
5/21/2015 20:00 3.49 -- 0.39  
5/21/2015 21:00 3.33 -- 0.23  
5/21/2015 22:00 3.21 -- 0.11  
5/21/2015 23:00 3.09 -- -0.01  
5/22/2015 0:00 2.73 -- -0.37  
5/22/2015 1:00 2.44 -- -0.66  
5/22/2015 2:00 2.34 -- -0.77  
5/22/2015 3:00 2.59 -- -0.51  
5/22/2015 4:00 2.62 -- -0.48  
5/22/2015 5:00 2.73 -- -0.37  
5/22/2015 6:00 2.73 -- -0.37  
5/22/2015 7:00 2.73 -- -0.37  
5/22/2015 8:00 2.76 -- -0.34  
5/22/2015 9:00 2.43 -- -0.67  
5/22/2015 16:00 2.80 -- -0.30  
5/22/2015 17:00 2.33 -- -0.77  
5/22/2015 18:00 2.14 -- -0.96  
5/22/2015 19:00 2.43 -- -0.67  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/22/2015 20:00 2.58 -- -0.53  
5/22/2015 21:00 2.63 -- -0.48  
5/22/2015 22:00 2.66 -- -0.44  
5/22/2015 23:00 2.68 -- -0.42  
5/23/2015 0:00 2.69 -- -0.41  
5/23/2015 1:00 2.29 -- -0.81  
5/23/2015 2:00 2.10 -- -1.00  
5/23/2015 3:00 2.42 -- -0.68  
5/23/2015 4:00 2.58 -- -0.52  
5/23/2015 5:00 2.62 -- -0.48  
5/23/2015 6:00 2.64 -- -0.46  
5/23/2015 7:00 2.65 -- -0.45  
5/23/2015 8:00 2.66 -- -0.44  
5/23/2015 9:00 2.27 -- -0.83  
5/23/2015 10:00 2.12 -- -0.99  
5/23/2015 11:00 2.44 -- -0.66  
5/23/2015 12:00 2.58 -- -0.52  
5/23/2015 13:00 2.61 -- -0.49  
5/23/2015 14:00 2.66 -- -0.44  
5/23/2015 15:00 2.68 -- -0.42  
5/23/2015 16:00 2.67 -- -0.43  
5/23/2015 17:00 2.26 -- -0.84  
5/23/2015 18:00 2.07 -- -1.03  
5/23/2015 19:00 2.39 -- -0.71  
5/23/2015 20:00 2.51 -- -0.59  
5/23/2015 21:00 2.58 -- -0.52  
5/23/2015 22:00 2.60 -- -0.50  
5/23/2015 23:00 2.62 -- -0.48  
5/24/2015 0:00 2.64 -- -0.46  
5/24/2015 1:00 2.25 -- -0.85  
5/24/2015 2:00 2.07 -- -1.03  
5/24/2015 3:00 2.40 -- -0.70  
5/24/2015 4:00 2.53 -- -0.57  
5/24/2015 5:00 2.58 -- -0.52  
5/24/2015 6:00 2.63 -- -0.48  
5/24/2015 7:00 2.63 -- -0.47  
5/24/2015 8:00 2.65 -- -0.45  
5/24/2015 9:00 2.69 -- -0.41  
5/24/2015 10:00 2.69 -- -0.41  
5/24/2015 11:00 2.29 -- -0.82  
5/24/2015 12:00 2.11 -- -0.99  
5/24/2015 13:00 2.04 -- -1.06  
5/24/2015 14:00 2.39 -- -0.71  
5/24/2015 15:00 2.55 -- -0.55  
5/24/2015 16:00 2.60 -- -0.50  
5/24/2015 17:00 2.64 -- -0.46  
5/24/2015 18:00 2.66 -- -0.44  
5/24/2015 19:00 2.67 -- -0.43  
5/24/2015 20:00 2.68 -- -0.42  
5/24/2015 21:00 2.69 -- -0.41  
5/24/2015 22:00 2.29 -- -0.81  
5/24/2015 23:00 2.12 -- -0.98  
5/25/2015 0:00 2.03 -- -1.07  
5/25/2015 1:00 2.39 -- -0.71  
5/25/2015 2:00 2.54 -- -0.56  
5/25/2015 3:00 2.59 -- -0.51  
5/25/2015 4:00 2.64 -- -0.46  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/25/2015 5:00 2.67 -- -0.43  
5/25/2015 6:00 2.68 -- -0.42  
5/25/2015 7:00 2.69 -- -0.41  
5/25/2015 8:00 2.68 -- -0.43  
5/25/2015 9:00 2.67 -- -0.43  
5/25/2015 10:00 2.72 -- -0.38  
5/25/2015 11:00 2.74 -- -0.36  
5/25/2015 12:00 2.74 -- -0.36  
5/25/2015 13:00 2.75 -- -0.35  
5/25/2015 14:00 2.76 -- -0.34  
5/25/2015 15:00 2.77 -- -0.34  
5/25/2015 16:00 2.78 -- -0.32  
5/25/2015 17:00 2.79 -- -0.31  
5/25/2015 18:00 2.79 -- -0.31  
5/25/2015 19:00 2.81 -- -0.29  
5/25/2015 20:00 2.82 -- -0.28  
5/25/2015 21:00 2.81 -- -0.30  
5/25/2015 22:00 2.82 -- -0.29  
5/25/2015 23:00 2.80 -- -0.30  
5/26/2015 0:00 2.83 -- -0.27  
5/26/2015 1:00 2.80 -- -0.30  
5/26/2015 2:00 2.80 -- -0.30  
5/26/2015 3:00 2.81 -- -0.29  
5/26/2015 4:00 2.81 -- -0.29  
5/26/2015 5:00 2.80 -- -0.30  
5/26/2015 6:00 2.81 -- -0.29  
5/26/2015 7:00 2.36 -- -0.74  
5/26/2015 8:00 2.23 -- -0.87  
5/26/2015 9:00 2.16 -- -0.94  
5/26/2015 10:00 2.52 -- -0.58  
5/26/2015 11:00 9.03 -- 5.93 Pump in Well 4 started at 10:08. 
5/26/2015 12:00 15.86 -- 12.76  
5/26/2015 13:00 23.91 -- 20.81  
5/26/2015 14:00 38.97 -- 35.87  
5/26/2015 15:00 45.44 -- 42.34  
5/26/2015 16:00 48.24 -- 45.14  
5/26/2015 17:00 49.57 -- 46.47  
5/26/2015 18:00 50.69 -- 47.59  
5/26/2015 19:00 51.44 -- 48.34  
5/26/2015 20:00 52.60 -- 49.50  
5/26/2015 21:00 53.66 -- 50.56  
5/26/2015 22:00 54.25 -- 51.15  
5/26/2015 23:00 54.49 -- 51.39  
5/27/2015 0:00 54.51 -- 51.41  
5/27/2015 1:00 54.82 -- 51.72  
5/27/2015 2:00 55.18 -- 52.08  
5/27/2015 3:00 55.65 -- 52.55  
5/27/2015 4:00 55.83 -- 52.73  
5/27/2015 5:00 55.91 -- 52.81  
5/27/2015 6:00 56.22 -- 53.12  
5/27/2015 7:00 56.39 -- 53.29  
5/27/2015 8:00 56.79 -- 53.69  
5/27/2015 9:00 57.12 -- 54.02  
5/27/2015 10:00 57.25 -- 54.15  
5/27/2015 11:00 57.47 -- 54.37  
5/27/2015 12:00 57.71 -- 54.61  
5/27/2015 13:00 57.87 -- 54.77  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/27/2015 14:00 58.06 -- 54.96  
5/27/2015 15:00 58.12 -- 55.02  
5/27/2015 16:00 58.21 -- 55.11  
5/27/2015 17:00 58.17 -- 55.07  
5/27/2015 18:00 58.29 -- 55.19  
5/27/2015 19:00 58.40 -- 55.30  
5/27/2015 20:00 58.35 -- 55.25  
5/27/2015 21:00 58.28 -- 55.18  
5/27/2015 22:00 58.00 -- 54.90 Pump in Well 4 removed 22:15. 
5/27/2015 23:00 57.95 -- 54.85  
5/28/2015 0:00 51.73 -- 48.63  
5/28/2015 1:00 40.15 -- 37.05  
5/28/2015 2:00 34.04 -- 30.94  
5/28/2015 3:00 29.93 -- 26.83  
5/28/2015 4:00 26.50 -- 23.40  
5/28/2015 5:00 22.99 -- 19.89  
5/28/2015 6:00 19.41 -- 16.31  
5/28/2015 7:00 16.10 -- 13.00  
5/28/2015 8:00 16.55 -- 13.45 Pump in Well 4 reinstalled and restarted at 7:26. 
5/28/2015 9:00 27.56 -- 24.46  
5/28/2015 10:00 33.29 -- 30.19  
5/28/2015 11:00 36.78 -- 33.68  
5/28/2015 12:00 38.95 -- 35.85  
5/28/2015 13:00 40.57 -- 37.47  
5/28/2015 14:00 41.81 -- 38.71  
5/28/2015 15:00 42.82 -- 39.72  
5/28/2015 16:00 47.08 -- 43.98  
5/28/2015 17:00 50.65 -- 47.55  
5/28/2015 18:00 52.60 -- 49.50  
5/28/2015 19:00 53.85 -- 50.75  
5/28/2015 20:00 54.79 -- 51.69  
5/28/2015 21:00 55.55 -- 52.45  
5/28/2015 22:00 55.88 -- 52.78  
5/28/2015 23:00 56.23 -- 53.13  
5/29/2015 0:00 56.64 -- 53.54  
5/29/2015 1:00 57.36 -- 54.26  
5/29/2015 2:00 57.65 -- 54.55  
5/29/2015 3:00 58.01 -- 54.91  
5/29/2015 4:00 58.31 -- 55.21  
5/29/2015 5:00 58.66 -- 55.56  
5/29/2015 6:00 58.82 -- 55.72  
5/29/2015 7:00 59.16 -- 56.06  
5/29/2015 8:00 59.90 -- 56.80  
5/29/2015 9:00 60.22 -- 57.12  
5/29/2015 10:00 60.48 -- 57.38  
5/29/2015 11:00 60.66 -- 57.56  
5/29/2015 12:00 60.79 -- 57.69  
5/29/2015 13:00 60.97 -- 57.87  
5/29/2015 14:00 61.11 -- 58.01  
5/29/2015 15:00 61.18 -- 58.08  
5/29/2015 16:00 61.24 -- 58.14  
5/29/2015 17:00 61.43 -- 58.33  
5/29/2015 18:00 61.70 -- 58.60  
5/29/2015 19:00 61.81 -- 58.71  
5/29/2015 20:00 61.90 -- 58.80  
5/29/2015 21:00 61.98 -- 58.88  
5/29/2015 22:00 62.13 -- 59.03  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

5/29/2015 23:00 62.31 -- 59.21  
5/30/2015 0:00 62.29 -- 59.19  
5/30/2015 1:00 62.21 -- 59.11  
5/30/2015 2:00 62.23 -- 59.13  
5/30/2015 3:00 62.53 -- 59.43  
5/30/2015 4:00 62.75 -- 59.65  
5/30/2015 5:00 62.91 -- 59.81  
5/30/2015 6:00 63.06 -- 59.96  
5/30/2015 7:00 63.17 -- 60.07  
5/30/2015 8:00 63.34 -- 60.24 Pump in Well 4 shut down at 8:02. 
5/30/2015 9:00 53.64 -- 50.54  
5/30/2015 10:00 45.45 -- 42.35  
5/30/2015 11:00 39.59 -- 36.49  
5/30/2015 12:00 35.63 -- 32.53  
5/30/2015 13:00 32.60 -- 29.50  
5/30/2015 14:00 30.06 -- 26.96  
5/30/2015 15:00 27.80 -- 24.70  
5/30/2015 16:00 25.56 -- 22.46  
5/30/2015 17:00 23.08 -- 19.98  
5/30/2015 18:00 20.04 -- 16.94  
5/30/2015 19:00 17.09 -- 13.99  
5/30/2015 20:00 14.56 -- 11.46  
5/30/2015 21:00 12.44 -- 9.34  
5/30/2015 22:00 10.68 -- 7.58  
5/30/2015 23:00 9.11 -- 6.01  
5/31/2015 0:00 8.08 -- 4.98  
5/31/2015 1:00 7.33 -- 4.23  
5/31/2015 2:00 6.69 -- 3.59  
5/31/2015 3:00 5.68 -- 2.58  
5/31/2015 4:00 4.95 -- 1.85  
5/31/2015 5:00 4.34 -- 1.24  
5/31/2015 6:00 4.17 -- 1.07  
5/31/2015 7:00 3.85 -- 0.75  
5/31/2015 8:00 3.53 -- 0.43  
5/31/2015 9:00 3.25 -- 0.15  
5/31/2015 10:00 3.12 -- 0.02  
5/31/2015 11:00 3.04 -- -0.06  
5/31/2015 12:00 3.02 -- -0.08  
5/31/2015 13:00 2.95 -- -0.15  
5/31/2015 14:00 2.51 -- -0.59  
5/31/2015 15:00 2.35 -- -0.75  
5/31/2015 16:00 2.20 -- -0.91  
5/31/2015 17:00 2.06 -- -1.04  
5/31/2015 18:00 2.04 -- -1.06  
5/31/2015 19:00 1.99 -- -1.11  
5/31/2015 20:00 1.94 -- -1.16  
5/31/2015 21:00 1.90 -- -1.21  
5/31/2015 22:00 1.82 -- -1.28  
5/31/2015 23:00 1.78 -- -1.32  
6/1/2015 0:00 1.73 -- -1.37  
6/1/2015 1:00 1.64 -- -1.46  
6/1/2015 2:00 1.59 -- -1.51  
6/1/2015 3:00 1.54 -- -1.56  
6/1/2015 4:00 1.52 -- -1.58  
6/1/2015 5:00 1.48 -- -1.62  
6/1/2015 6:00 1.39 -- -1.71  
6/1/2015 7:00 1.40 -- -1.70  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 5 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Elapsed Time (min) Drawdown (feet) Comments 

6/1/2015 8:00 1.38 -- -1.72  
6/1/2015 9:00 1.34 -- -1.76  
6/1/2015 10:00 1.32 -- -1.78  
6/1/2015 11:00 1.26 -- -1.84  
6/1/2015 12:00 1.23 -- -1.87  
6/1/2015 13:00 1.17 -- -1.93  
6/1/2015 14:00 1.12 -- -1.98  
6/1/2015 15:00 1.49 -- -1.62  
6/1/2015 16:00 1.55 -- -1.56  
6/1/2015 17:00 1.55 -- -1.56  
6/1/2015 18:00 1.58 -- -1.52  
6/1/2015 19:00 1.55 -- -1.55  
6/1/2015 20:00 1.57 -- -1.54  
6/1/2015 21:00 1.60 -- -1.50  
6/1/2015 22:00 1.53 -- -1.57  
6/1/2015 23:00 1.49 -- -1.61  
6/2/2015 0:00 1.50 -- -1.60  
6/2/2015 1:00 1.51 -- -1.59  
6/2/2015 2:00 1.42 -- -1.68  
6/2/2015 3:00 1.40 -- -1.70  
6/2/2015 4:00 1.39 -- -1.71  
6/2/2015 5:00 1.39 -- -1.71  
6/2/2015 6:00 1.38 -- -1.72  
6/2/2015 7:00 1.37 -- -1.73  
6/2/2015 8:00 1.39 -- -1.71  
6/2/2015 9:00 1.40 -- -1.70  
6/2/2015 10:00 1.41 -- -1.69  
6/2/2015 11:00 1.40 -- -1.70  
6/2/2015 12:00 1.42 -- -1.68  
6/2/2015 13:00 1.38 -- -1.72  
6/2/2015 14:00 1.36 -- -1.74  
6/2/2015 15:00 1.32 -- -1.78  
ft btoc  feet below top of casing 
gpm gallons per minute 
min minute 
 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Well 5.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PUMPING WELLS  

WELL 6



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

300

250

200

150

100

50

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 6 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Pumping Well\Well 6.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/8/2016 14:00 0.53 -- -- Pressure transducer installed. 
6/8/2016 15:00 0.46 -- --  
6/8/2016 16:00 0.46 -- --  
6/8/2016 17:00 0.43 -- --  
6/8/2016 18:00 0.47 -- --  
6/8/2016 19:00 0.41 -- --  
6/8/2016 20:00 0.41 -- --  
6/8/2016 21:00 0.41 -- --  
6/8/2016 22:00 0.41 -- --  
6/8/2016 23:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 0:00 0.41 -- --  
6/9/2016 1:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 2:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 3:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 4:00 0.41 -- --  
6/9/2016 5:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 6:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 7:00 0.41 -- --  
6/9/2016 8:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 9:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 10:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 11:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 12:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 13:00 0.39 -- --  
6/9/2016 14:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 15:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 16:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 17:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 18:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 19:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 20:00 0.36 -- --  
6/9/2016 21:00 0.37 -- --  
6/9/2016 22:00 0.36 -- --  
6/9/2016 23:00 0.36 -- --  

6/10/2016 0:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 1:00 0.34 -- --  
6/10/2016 2:00 0.38 -- --  
6/10/2016 3:00 0.41 -- --  
6/10/2016 4:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 5:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 6:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 7:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 8:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 9:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 10:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 11:00 0.36 -- --  
6/10/2016 12:00 0.38 -- --  
6/10/2016 13:00 0.35 -- --  
6/10/2016 14:00 0.36 -- --  
6/10/2016 15:00 0.36 -- --  
6/10/2016 16:00 0.35 -- --  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/10/2016 17:00 0.35 -- --  
6/10/2016 18:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 19:00 0.36 -- --  
6/10/2016 20:00 0.36 -- --  
6/10/2016 21:00 0.37 -- --  
6/10/2016 22:00 0.35 -- --  
6/10/2016 23:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 0:00 0.37 -- --  
6/11/2016 1:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 2:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 3:00 0.36 -- --  
6/11/2016 4:00 0.37 -- --  
6/11/2016 5:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 6:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 7:00 0.37 -- --  
6/11/2016 8:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 9:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 10:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 11:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 12:00 0.32 -- --  
6/11/2016 13:00 0.36 -- --  
6/11/2016 14:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 15:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 16:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 17:00 0.35 -- --  
6/11/2016 18:00 0.37 -- --  
6/11/2016 19:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 20:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 21:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 22:00 0.34 -- --  
6/11/2016 23:00 0.32 -- --  
6/12/2016 0:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 1:00 0.36 -- --  
6/12/2016 2:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 3:00 0.32 -- --  
6/12/2016 4:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 5:00 0.32 -- --  
6/12/2016 6:00 0.35 -- --  
6/12/2016 7:00 0.32 -- --  
6/12/2016 8:00 0.35 -- --  
6/12/2016 9:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 10:00 0.35 -- --  
6/12/2016 11:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 12:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 13:00 0.32 -- --  
6/12/2016 14:00 0.35 -- --  
6/12/2016 15:00 0.32 -- --  
6/12/2016 16:00 0.37 -- --  
6/12/2016 17:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 18:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 19:00 0.34 -- --  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/12/2016 20:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 21:00 0.38 -- --  
6/12/2016 22:00 0.34 -- --  
6/12/2016 23:00 0.32 -- --  
6/13/2016 0:00 0.34 -- --  
6/13/2016 1:00 0.32 -- --  
6/13/2016 2:00 0.34 -- --  
6/13/2016 3:00 0.34 -- --  
6/13/2016 4:00 0.32 -- --  
6/13/2016 5:00 0.34 -- --  
6/13/2016 6:00 0.34 -- --  
6/13/2016 7:00 0.35 -- --  
6/13/2016 8:00 0.32 -- --  
6/13/2016 9:00 0.32 -- --  
6/13/2016 10:00 0.35 -- --  
6/13/2016 11:00 0.34 -- --  
6/13/2016 16:00 0.61 -- --  
6/13/2016 17:00 0.58 -- --  
6/13/2016 18:00 0.56 -- --  
6/13/2016 19:00 0.51 -- --  
6/13/2016 20:00 0.53 -- --  
6/13/2016 21:00 0.51 -- --  
6/13/2016 22:00 0.51 -- --  
6/13/2016 23:00 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 0:00 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 1:00 0.51 -- --  
6/14/2016 2:00 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 3:00 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 4:00 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 5:00 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 6:00 0.46 -- --  
6/14/2016 7:00 0.46 -- --  
6/14/2016 8:00 0.47 -- --  
6/14/2016 9:00 0.46 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:00 0.45 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:15 0.47 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:16 0.47 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:17 0.45 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:18 0.45 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:19 0.49 -- --  
6/14/2016 10:20 0.47 -- -- Pump in Well 6 started. 
6/14/2016 10:21 13.93 1 13.45 Initial pumping rate 146 gpm. 
6/14/2016 10:22 29.41 2 28.93  
6/14/2016 10:23 41.78 3 41.30  
6/14/2016 10:24 52.07 4 51.59  
6/14/2016 10:25 60.71 5 60.23  
6/14/2016 10:26 68.12 6 67.64  
6/14/2016 10:27 74.53 7 74.05  
6/14/2016 10:28 80.10 8 79.62  
6/14/2016 10:29 84.20 9 83.72  
6/14/2016 10:30 86.98 10 86.50 Pumping rate 128 gpm. 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/14/2016 10:31 88.84 11 88.36  
6/14/2016 10:32 90.71 12 90.23  
6/14/2016 10:33 92.44 13 91.96  
6/14/2016 10:34 94.10 14 93.62  
6/14/2016 10:35 95.57 15 95.09  
6/14/2016 10:40 100.94 20 100.46 Pumping rate 102 gpm. 
6/14/2016 10:45 103.13 25 102.65  
6/14/2016 10:50 106.20 30 105.72  
6/14/2016 10:55 109.35 35 108.87  
6/14/2016 11:00 112.44 40 111.96  
6/14/2016 11:05 115.30 45 114.82 Pumping rate 94 gpm. 
6/14/2016 11:10 117.88 50 117.40  
6/14/2016 11:15 120.29 55 119.81  
6/14/2016 11:20 122.64 60 122.16 Pumping rate 91 gpm. 
6/14/2016 12:00 137.72 100 137.24 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
6/14/2016 13:00 152.58 160 152.10 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
6/14/2016 14:00 162.56 220 162.08 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
6/14/2016 14:31 166.49 251 166.01 Pumping rate manually increased to 85 gpm. 
6/14/2016 15:00 178.04 280 177.56 Pumping rate 85 gpm. 
6/14/2016 16:00 189.28 340 188.80  
6/14/2016 17:00 194.68 400 194.20 Pumping rate 83 gpm. 
6/14/2016 18:00 198.17 460 197.69  
6/14/2016 19:00 200.65 520 200.17 Pumping rate 82 gpm. 
6/14/2016 20:00 202.45 580 201.97  
6/14/2016 21:00 203.90 640 203.42 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
6/14/2016 22:00 204.84 700 204.36  
6/14/2016 23:00 205.76 760 205.28 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
6/15/2016 0:00 206.51 820 206.03  
6/15/2016 1:00 207.19 880 206.71 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
6/15/2016 2:00 207.75 940 207.27  
6/15/2016 3:00 208.29 1000 207.81 Pumping rate 78 gpm. 
6/15/2016 4:00 208.79 1060 208.31  
6/15/2016 5:00 209.18 1120 208.70 Pumping rate 76 gpm. 
6/15/2016 6:00 209.96 1180 209.48  
6/15/2016 7:00 210.37 1240 209.89  
6/15/2016 8:00 210.66 1300 210.18 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/15/2016 8:25 211.17 1325 210.69 Pumping rate increase to 80 gpm. 
6/15/2016 9:00 213.37 1360 212.89  
6/15/2016 10:00 213.99 1420 213.51 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
6/15/2016 11:00 214.20 1480 213.72  
6/15/2016 12:00 214.48 1540 214.00 Pumping rate 77 gpm. 
6/15/2016 13:00 214.65 1600 214.17  
6/15/2016 14:00 214.84 1660 214.36  
6/15/2016 15:00 215.95 1720 215.47 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 

6/15/2016 15:13 218.64 1733 218.16 Pumping rate increased to 80 gpm.  Valve wide 
open, no more rate adjustments possible. 

6/15/2016 16:00 220.48 1780 220.00 Pumping rate 80 gpm. 
6/15/2016 17:00 220.14 1840 219.66  
6/15/2016 18:00 220.38 1900 219.90 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/15/2016 19:00 220.59 1960 220.11  
6/15/2016 20:00 220.74 2020 220.26 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/15/2016 21:00 220.83 2080 220.35  
6/15/2016 22:00 220.49 2140 220.01 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/15/2016 23:00 220.59 2200 220.11  
6/16/2016 0:00 220.68 2260 220.20 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 1:00 220.78 2320 220.30  
6/16/2016 2:00 221.04 2380 220.56 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 3:00 221.25 2440 220.77  
6/16/2016 4:00 221.36 2500 220.88 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 5:00 221.57 2560 221.09  
6/16/2016 6:00 221.70 2620 221.22 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 7:00 221.85 2680 221.37  
6/16/2016 8:00 221.96 2740 221.48 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 9:00 222.09 2800 221.61  
6/16/2016 10:00 222.02 2860 221.54 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 11:00 221.92 2920 221.44  
6/16/2016 12:00 221.91 2980 221.43 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 13:00 222.09 3040 221.61  
6/16/2016 14:00 222.08 3100 221.60 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 15:00 221.98 3160 221.50  
6/16/2016 16:00 222.01 3220 221.53 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 17:00 222.22 3280 221.74  
6/16/2016 18:00 222.28 3340 221.80 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 19:00 222.63 3400 222.15  
6/16/2016 20:00 222.71 3460 222.23 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 21:00 222.95 3520 222.47 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/16/2016 22:00 223.03 3580 222.55  
6/16/2016 23:00 223.10 3640 222.62 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 0:00 223.10 3700 222.62  
6/17/2016 1:00 223.18 3760 222.70 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 2:00 223.18 3820 222.70  
6/17/2016 3:00 223.18 3880 222.70 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 4:00 223.16 3940 222.68  
6/17/2016 5:00 223.29 4000 222.81 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 6:00 223.29 4060 222.81  
6/17/2016 7:00 223.39 4120 222.91 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 8:00 223.35 4180 222.87  
6/17/2016 9:00 223.31 4240 222.83 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 10:00 223.43 4300 222.95  
6/17/2016 10:50 223.37 4350 222.89 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 10:51 223.39 4351 222.91  
6/17/2016 10:52 223.37 4352 222.89 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 10:53 223.37 4353 222.89  
6/17/2016 10:54 223.35 4354 222.87 Pumping rate 75 gpm. 
6/17/2016 10:55 215.46 -- 214.98 Pump in Well 6 shut down. 
6/17/2016 10:56 206.53 -- 206.05  
6/17/2016 10:57 198.43 -- 197.95  
6/17/2016 10:58 191.20 -- 190.72  
6/17/2016 10:59 184.99 -- 184.51  
6/17/2016 11:00 179.54 -- 179.06  
6/17/2016 11:01 175.02 -- 174.54  
6/17/2016 11:02 171.36 -- 170.88  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/17/2016 11:03 168.44 -- 167.96  
6/17/2016 11:04 166.24 -- 165.76  
6/17/2016 11:05 164.55 -- 164.07  
6/17/2016 11:10 159.07 -- 158.59  
6/17/2016 11:15 154.85 -- 154.37  
6/17/2016 11:20 151.05 -- 150.57  
6/17/2016 11:25 147.59 -- 147.11  
6/17/2016 11:30 144.34 -- 143.86  
6/17/2016 11:35 141.39 -- 140.91  
6/17/2016 11:40 138.62 -- 138.14  
6/17/2016 11:45 135.99 -- 135.51  
6/17/2016 11:50 133.58 -- 133.10  
6/17/2016 11:55 131.35 -- 130.87  
6/17/2016 12:00 129.20 -- 128.72  
6/17/2016 13:00 110.90 -- 110.42  
6/17/2016 14:00 99.40 -- 98.92  
6/17/2016 15:00 90.20 -- 89.72  
6/17/2016 16:00 82.37 -- 81.89  
6/17/2016 17:00 74.81 -- 74.33  
6/17/2016 18:00 65.91 -- 65.43  
6/17/2016 19:00 55.05 -- 54.57  
6/17/2016 20:00 45.59 -- 45.11  
6/17/2016 21:00 38.06 -- 37.58  
6/17/2016 22:00 31.95 -- 31.47  
6/17/2016 23:00 27.00 -- 26.52  
6/18/2016 0:00 22.80 -- 22.32  
6/18/2016 1:00 19.24 -- 18.76  
6/18/2016 2:00 16.16 -- 15.68  
6/18/2016 3:00 13.47 -- 12.99  
6/18/2016 4:00 11.17 -- 10.69  
6/18/2016 5:00 9.14 -- 8.66  
6/18/2016 6:00 7.41 -- 6.93  
6/18/2016 7:00 5.85 -- 5.37  
6/18/2016 8:00 4.49 -- 4.01  
6/18/2016 9:00 3.28 -- 2.80  
6/18/2016 10:00 2.15 -- 1.67  
6/18/2016 11:00 1.16 -- 0.68  
6/18/2016 12:00 0.29 -- -0.19 100% Water-level recovery to pre-test static. 
6/18/2016 13:00 0.33 -- -0.15  
6/18/2016 14:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/18/2016 15:00 0.31 -- -0.17  
6/18/2016 16:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/18/2016 17:00 0.26 -- -0.22  
6/18/2016 18:00 0.31 -- -0.17  
6/18/2016 19:00 0.32 -- -0.16  
6/18/2016 20:00 0.30 -- -0.18  
6/18/2016 21:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/18/2016 22:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/18/2016 23:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/19/2016 0:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/19/2016 1:00 0.29 -- -0.19  



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Pumping Well 6 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time Depth to Water 
(ft btoc) 

Elapsed Time 
(min) 

Drawdown 
(feet) Comments 

6/19/2016 2:00 0.31 -- -0.17  
6/19/2016 3:00 0.29 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 4:00 0.29 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 5:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 6:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 7:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 8:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 9:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 10:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 11:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 12:00 0.28 -- -0.20  
6/19/2016 13:00 0.27 -- -0.21  
6/19/2016 14:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/19/2016 15:00 0.27 -- -0.21  
6/19/2016 16:00 0.27 -- -0.21  
6/19/2016 17:00 0.32 -- -0.17  
6/19/2016 18:00 0.27 -- -0.21  
6/19/2016 19:00 0.27 -- -0.21  
6/19/2016 20:00 0.27 -- -0.21  
6/19/2016 21:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/19/2016 22:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/19/2016 23:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/20/2016 0:00 0.26 -- -0.22  
6/20/2016 1:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/20/2016 2:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/20/2016 3:00 0.31 -- -0.17  
6/20/2016 4:00 0.29 -- -0.19  
6/20/2016 5:00 0.26 -- -0.22  
6/20/2016 6:00 0.26 -- -0.22  
6/20/2016 7:00 0.30 -- -0.18  
6/20/2016 8:00 0.26 -- -0.22 Pressure transducer removed from well. 
ft btoc feet below top of casing 
min minutes 
gpm  gallons per minute 
 
K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\Well 6 water levels_ss.doc 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX IV 

180-DAY WATER-LEVEL PROJECTIONS



1 10 100 1000 10000 100000 1000000
Elapsed Time (minutes)

500

400

300

200

100

0

W
at

er
 - 

Le
ve

l D
ra

w
do

w
n 

(f
ee

t)

Water-Level Drawdown
180 Days
180-Day Water-Level Drawdown Projection

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NY
____________________

180 Day Water-Level Drawdown Projection for Well 4 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 4, May 26 Through May 30, 2015

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\180 Day- Well 4_SSworking.grf

Water-Bearing Fracture

Total Well Depth

Equation Y = 10.17732008 * ln(X) + 240.4729494
Pumping Rate = 80 gpm

Drawdown at 180 Days = 367.34 feet (aka 367.34 feet below top of casing)



1 10 100 1000 10000 100000 1000000
Elapsed Time (minutes)

500

400

300

200

100

0

W
at

er
 - 

Le
ve

l D
ra

w
do

w
n 

(f
ee

t)

Water-Level Drawdown
180 Days
180-Day Water-Level Drawdown Projection

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
___________________

180 Day Water-Level Drawdown Projection for Well 5 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 5, May 18 Through May 21, 2015

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\180 Day - Well 5_SS.grf

Water-Bearing Fracture

Total Well Depth

Equation Y = 0.038340347 * ln(X) + 297.7456525
Pumping Rate = 28 gpm

Drawdown at 180 Days = 298.22 feet (aka 301.32 feet below top of casing)



1 10 100 1000 10000 100000 1000000
Elapsed Time (minutes)

500

400

300

200

100

0

W
at

er
 - 

Le
ve

l D
ra

w
do

w
n 

(f
ee

t)

180 Days
180-Day Water-Level Drawdown Projection
Water-Level Drawdown

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
___________________

180 Day Water-Level Drawdown Projection for Well 6 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Pumping Well\Well 6 180 Day.grf

Water-Bearing Fracture

Total Well Depth

Equation Y = 1.844553273 * ln(X) + 207.4821905
Pumping Rate = 75 gpm

Drawdown at 180 Days = 230.47 feet (aka 230.95 feet below top of casing)



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX V 

ONSITE WELL MONITORING WELLS



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

ONSITE MONITORING WELLS 

MAY 2015



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 1 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\onsite wells.Well 1.grf



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 2 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\onsite wells\Well 2.grf



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

20

16

12

8

4

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from MW-1 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\onsite wells\MW-1.grf



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

20

16

12

8

4

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from MW-2 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\onsite wells.MW-2.grf



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

20

16

12

8

4

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from MW-3 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\onsite wells.MW-3.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Onsite Production Wells 1 and 2 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 
Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc) Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc) 

Well 1 Well 2 
5/12/2015 10:47 10.66 5/12/2015 10:42 10.15 
5/14/2015 11:59 9.10 5/14/2015 11:58 9.64 
5/15/2015 13:08 11.60 5/15/2015 13:03 26.54 
5/18/2015 10:55 10.76 5/18/2015 10:52 25.18 
5/18/2015 15:42 8.98 5/18/2015 15:41 8.79 
5/19/2015 8:34 8.75 5/19/2015 8:32 9.45 
5/19/2015 11:54 8.85 5/19/2015 11:51 24.82 
5/19/2015 15:55 10.91 5/19/2015 15:52 25.20 
5/19/2015 16:54 11.03 5/19/2015 16:56 25.12 
5/19/2015 17:57 8.59 5/19/2015 17:55 9.15 
5/19/2015 19:14 8.32 5/19/2015 19:12 8.89 
5/20/2015 8:15 10.85 5/20/2015 8:13 24.89 
5/20/2015 11:16 11.08 5/20/2015 11:15 25.19 
5/20/2015 12:16 8.45 5/20/2015 12:15 9.00 
5/20/2015 13:31 8.28 5/20/2015 13:30 8.80 
5/20/2015 13:58 8.22 5/20/2015 13:57 8.75 
5/20/2015 14:58 10.32 5/20/2015 14:58 24.82 
5/20/2015 15:58 10.75 5/20/2015 15:57 25.00 
5/20/2015 17:23 10.90 5/20/2015 17:21 25.08 
5/20/2015 17:59 10.87 5/20/2015 17:58 25.09 
5/20/2015 18:59 10.96 5/20/2015 18:58 25.15 
5/21/2015 8:16 8.25 5/21/2015 8:15 8.75 
5/21/2015 9:16 10.80 5/21/2015 9:15 24.85 
5/21/2015 10:21 10.85 5/21/2015 10:20 25.00 
5/21/2015 11:01 10.88 5/21/2015 11:00 25.04 
5/21/2015 12:01 10.96 5/21/2015 12:00 25.08 
5/21/2015 13:47 10.95 5/21/2015 13:46 25.10 
5/21/2015 15:07 8.41 5/21/2015 15:05 8.98 
5/21/2015 16:23 8.18 5/21/2015 16:21 8.72 
5/22/2015 10:08 8.22 5/22/2015 10:06 8.69 
5/22/2015 11:40 10.70 5/22/2015 11:38 24.76 
5/22/2015 13:15 10.79 5/22/2015 13:00 24.88 
5/22/2015 17:16 8.40 5/22/2015 17:14 9.05 
5/23/2015 5:35 10.94 5/23/2015 5:32 24.81 
5/26/2015 8:48 8.49 5/26/2015 8:47 9.10 
5/26/2015 12:24 11.26 5/26/2015 12:23 25.18 
5/26/2015 14:17 11.32 5/26/2015 14:15 25.30 
5/26/2015 15:54 11.34 5/26/2015 15:53 25.36 
5/26/2015 17:59 9.05 5/26/2015 17:57 9.56 
5/27/2015 10:00 11.36 5/27/2015 9:58 25.26 
5/27/2015 13:30 11.44 5/27/2015 13:28 25.38 
5/27/2015 14:59 11.51 5/27/2015 14:58 25.40 
5/27/2015 16:18 9.05 5/27/2015 16:16 9.62 
5/27/2015 17:22 8.89 5/27/2015 17:21 9.35 
5/28/2015 8:41 11.40 5/28/2015 8:40 25.24 
5/28/2015 12:42 8.83 5/28/2015 12:41 9.37 
5/28/2015 14:04 8.75 5/28/2015 14:03 9.29 
5/28/2015 16:08 11.30 5/28/2015 16:07 25.11 
5/28/2015 17:21 11.33 5/28/2015 17:19 25.19 
5/28/2015 18:19 11.52 5/28/2015 18:18 25.24 
5/29/2015 8:45 11.11 5/29/2015 8:41 24.90 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Onsite Production Wells 1 and 2 During  
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 
Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc) Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc) 

Well 1 (continued) Well 2 (continued) 
5/29/2015 14:17 11.50 5/29/2015 14:16 25.27 
5/29/2015 15:20 9.02 5/29/2015 15:18 9.50 
5/29/2015 17:08 8.77 5/29/2015 17:05 9.38 
5/29/2015 17:57 11.11 5/29/2015 17:55 24.85 
5/29/2015 19:16 11.35 5/29/2015 19:12 25.06 
5/30/2015 8:38 9.30 5/30/2015 8:35 9.90 
5/30/2015 12:20 11.22 5/30/2015 12:17 25.00 
5/30/2015 13:35 11.33 5/30/2015 13:33 25.10 
5/31/2015 11:32 11.46 5/31/2015 11:29 25.20 
5/31/2015 12:40 11.57 5/31/2015 12:39 25.26 
6/1/2015 16:17 10.16 6/1/2015 16:15 24.04 
6/2/2015 15:01 10.05 6/2/2015 15:00 23.86 
6/4/2015 13:20 10.19 6/4/2015 13:17 23.63 

6/11/2015 13:33 10.09 6/11/2015 13:31 23.00 
 
 ft btoc  feet below top of casing 
 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Onsite System Wells Manual WL table.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

ONSITE MONITORING WELLS 

JUNE 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\Well 1.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Existing Sand and Gravel Production Well 1
During 72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

40

38

36

34

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\Well 2.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Existing Production Well 2 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

Manual measurement on 6/22, water level below 30.5 ft btoc.
M-scope could not get past 30.5 ft.



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

300

270

240

210

180

150

120

90

60

30

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\Well 4.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Bedrock Well 4 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

Well was flowing artesian prior to start of pump in Well 6.



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\Well 5.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Bedrock Well 5 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\MW-1_.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Overburden MW-1 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\MW-2_.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Overburden MW-2 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\MW-3.grf

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Overburden MW-3 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Onsite and Offsite Wells Monitored During  
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 
Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc)

Well 1 
6/8/2016 12:47 10.29 
6/9/2016 13:56 10.36 

6/13/2016 14:18 10.78 
6/14/2016 9:30 10.74 
6/14/2016 12:10 10.84 
6/14/2016 13:24 10.97 
6/14/2016 14:10 10.91 
6/14/2016 16:55 11.10 
6/15/2016 10:30 11.27 
6/15/2016 13:45 11.28 
6/15/2016 16:07 11.29 
6/16/2016 13:28 11.36 
6/16/2016 15:34 11.42 
6/16/2016 17:27 11.41 
6/17/2016 9:41 11.38 
6/17/2016 13:29 11.42 
6/22/2016 12:45 12.30 

Well 2
6/8/2016 12:50 24.03 
6/9/2016 13:55 24.12 

6/13/2016 14:16 24.34 
6/14/2016 9:27 24.40 
6/14/2016 12:08 24.57 
6/14/2016 13:22 24.56 
6/14/2016 14:08 24.61 
6/14/2016 16:53 24.63 
6/15/2016 10:46 24.81 
6/15/2016 13:43 24.76 
6/15/2016 16:04 24.80 
6/16/2016 13:26 24.83 
6/16/2016 15:35 24.82 
6/16/2016 17:26 24.80 
6/17/2016 9:39 24.98 
6/17/2016 13:26 25.00 
6/22/2016 12:43 Dry to 30.5 ft 

Well 4 
6/8/2016 13:00 Flowing 
6/9/2016 14:24 Flowing 

6/14/2016 9:56 Flowing 
6/17/2016 13:21 106.47 
6/20/2016 8:03 Flowing 
6/22/2016 10:47 Flowing 

Well 5 
6/8/2016 11:36 0.77 
6/8/2016 12:24 0.69 
6/9/2016 14:04 0.85 

6/13/2016 14:03 1.16 
6/14/2016 9:47 1.30 
6/14/2016 12:11 17.62 
6/14/2016 14:16 23.09 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Onsite and Offsite Wells Monitored During  
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 
Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc)

Well 5 (continued)
6/15/2016 9:41 32.31 
6/15/2016 13:33 32.83 
6/16/2016 15:15 45.08 
6/17/2016 9:43 45.95 
6/17/2016 13:31 32.14 
6/22/2016 10:33 2.43 

MW-1 
6/8/2016 10:47 8.90 
6/8/2016 10:56 8.67 
6/9/2016 14:19 8.84 

6/13/2016 14:22 9.23 
6/14/2016 9:50 9.38 
6/14/2016 12:15 9.46 
6/14/2016 14:19 9.55 
6/15/2016 9:50 9.78 
6/15/2016 13:51 9.80 
6/16/2016 15:20 9.83 
6/17/2016 9:46 9.90 
6/17/2016 13:45 9.93 
6/22/2016 10:22 9.43 

MW-2 
6/8/2016 10:07 10.35 
6/9/2016 14:11 10.35 

6/13/2016 14:17 10.68 
6/14/2016 9:52 10.77 
6/14/2016 12:13 10.80 
6/14/2016 14:18 10.85 
6/15/2016 9:44 11.01 
6/15/2016 13:49 11.04 
6/16/2016 15:24 11.04 
6/17/2016 9:44 11.10 
6/17/2016 13:37 11.13 
6/22/2016 10:28 10.96 

MW-3 
6/8/2016 11:19 9.92 
6/9/2016 14:44 10.06 

6/14/2016 9:55 10.33 
6/14/2016 12:04 10.74 
6/14/2016 14:05 10.71 
6/15/2016 10:07 11.37 
6/15/2016 13:56 11.43 
6/16/2016 15:42 11.61 
6/17/2016 9:36 11.85 
6/17/2016 13:45 11.90 
6/22/2016 10:43 10.95 

    ft btoc  feet below top of casing 
 
K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\Monitoring Well WL table.doc 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX VI 

PIEZOMETERS



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PIEZOMETERS 

MAY 2015



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-A During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-A.grf

Stream Bed



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-B During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-B.grf

Pond Bottom
Transducer malfuntioned

in PZ-B interior.

PZ submerged
(6/1-6/4)



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-C During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-C.grf

Lake Bottom



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-D During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-D.grf

Pond Bottom

Original PZ-D became submerged because of rain prior to test,
installed new PZ-D on 5/20.



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-E During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-E.grf

Lake Bottom



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-F.grf

Streambed

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-F During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-A 

5/14/2015 13:32 2.89 2.79 -0.10 Downward 
5/14/2015 14:45 2.85 2.79 -0.06 Downward 
5/15/2015 13:22 2.86 2.80 -0.06 Downward 
5/15/2015 15:54 2.85 2.79 -0.06 Downward 
5/16/2015 18:12 2.54 2.46 -0.08 Downward 
5/18/2015 8:52 2.43 2.37 -0.06 Downward 
5/18/2015 10:24 2.45 2.42 -0.03 Downward 
5/18/2015 13:30 2.50 2.42 -0.08 Downward 
5/18/2015 15:02 2.50 2.43 -0.07 Downward 
5/19/2015 7:24 2.62 2.59 -0.03 Downward 
5/19/2015 11:28 2.64 2.58 -0.06 Downward 
5/19/2015 12:47 2.65 2.58 -0.07 Downward 
5/19/2015 14:16 2.65 2.58 -0.07 Downward 
5/19/2015 17:18 2.66 2.59 -0.07 Downward 
5/19/2015 18:31 2.66 2.59 -0.07 Downward 
5/20/2015 7:36 2.60 2.55 -0.05 Downward 
5/20/2015 9:18 2.59 2.55 -0.04 Downward 
5/20/2015 12:32 2.58 2.51 -0.07 Downward 
5/20/2015 13:33 2.57 2.50 -0.07 Downward 
5/20/2015 15:14 2.55 2.50 -0.05 Downward 
5/20/2015 17:34 2.57 2.50 -0.07 Downward 
5/20/2015 18:12 2.57 2.50 -0.07 Downward 
5/20/2015 19:14 2.57 2.50 -0.07 Downward 
5/21/2015 7:53 2.54 2.58 0.04 Upward 
5/21/2015 10:15 2.64 2.55 -0.09 Downward 
5/21/2015 11:51 2.64 2.56 -0.08 Downward 
5/21/2015 13:19 2.64 2.57 -0.07 Downward 
5/21/2015 15:58 2.65 2.58 -0.07 Downward 
5/21/2015 16:29 2.64 2.58 -0.06 Downward 
5/22/2015 10:15 2.71 2.63 -0.08 Downward 
5/22/2015 11:45 2.71 2.64 -0.07 Downward 
5/22/2015 13:33 2.72 2.65 -0.07 Downward 
5/22/2015 16:56 2.74 2.66 -0.08 Downward 
5/23/2015 5:57 2.76 2.68 -0.08 Downward 
5/23/2015 6:59 2.76 2.69 -0.07 Downward 
5/26/2015 9:20 2.85 2.79 -0.06 Downward 
5/26/2015 12:29 2.84 2.79 -0.05 Downward 
5/26/2015 14:33 2.85 2.79 -0.06 Downward 
5/26/2015 15:40 2.86 2.79 -0.07 Downward 
5/26/2015 17:53 2.85 2.79 -0.06 Downward 
5/27/2015 8:52 2.93 2.86 -0.07 Downward 
5/27/2015 10:38 2.88 2.85 -0.03 Downward 
5/27/2015 13:33 2.89 2.81 -0.08 Downward 
5/27/2015 14:46 2.88 2.81 -0.07 Downward 
5/27/2015 18:17 2.87 2.81 -0.06 Downward 
5/28/2015 8:55 2.81 2.78 -0.03 Downward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-A (continued) 

5/28/2015 13:14 2.78 2.71 -0.07 Downward 
5/28/2015 14:28 2.78 2.71 -0.07 Downward 
5/28/2015 17:24 2.79 2.71 -0.08 Downward 
5/28/2015 18:33 2.78 2.71 -0.07 Downward 
5/29/2015 7:50 2.62 2.57 -0.05 Downward 
5/29/2015 9:26 2.64 2.55 -0.09 Downward 
5/29/2015 11:40 2.63 2.55 -0.08 Downward 
5/29/2015 13:26 2.63 2.55 -0.08 Downward 
5/29/2015 15:22 2.63 2.56 -0.07 Downward 
5/29/2015 18:14 2.65 2.57 -0.08 Downward 
5/30/2015 7:31 2.73 2.65 -0.08 Downward 
5/30/2015 9:19 2.73 2.65 -0.08 Downward 
5/30/2015 11:13 2.74 2.68 -0.06 Downward 
5/30/2015 13:06 2.75 2.68 -0.07 Downward 
5/31/2015 10:30 2.83 2.74 -0.09 Downward 
5/31/2015 11:58 2.82 2.74 -0.08 Downward 
6/1/2015 14:37 1.78 1.82 0.04 Upward 
6/4/2015 11:39 2.36 2.3 -0.06 Downward 
6/4/2015 14:02 2.38 2.31 -0.07 Downward 
6/11/2015 10:25 2.61 2.53 -0.08 Downward 

PZ-B 

5/14/2015 13:34 4.18 2.45 -1.73 Downward 
5/14/2015 14:51 4.38 2.46 -1.92 Downward 
5/15/2015 13:51 4.78 2.61 -2.17 Downward 
5/15/2015 16:03 4.41 2.63 -1.78 Downward 
5/16/2015 18:15 4.35 2.43 -1.92 Downward 
5/18/2015 10:33 2.85 0.10 -2.75 Downward 
5/18/2015 13:32 2.93 0.10 -2.83 Downward 
5/18/2015 15:05 2.61 0.10 -2.51 Downward 
5/19/2015 7:30 3.01 0.20 -2.81 Downward 
5/19/2015 11:31 2.64 0.21 -2.43 Downward 
5/19/2015 12:49 2.91 0.21 -2.70 Downward 
5/19/2015 14:19 2.97 0.22 -2.75 Downward 
5/19/2015 17:20 3.04 0.24 -2.80 Downward 
5/19/2015 18:35 2.65 0.24 -2.41 Downward 
5/20/2015 7:41 2.97 0.23 -2.74 Downward 
5/20/2015 9:21 3.00 0.20 -2.80 Downward 
5/20/2015 12:34 2.65 0.19 -2.46 Downward 
5/20/2015 13:34 2.56 0.19 -2.37 Downward 
5/20/2015 15:18 2.86 0.19 -2.67 Downward 
5/20/2015 17:40 2.99 0.18 -2.81 Downward 
5/20/2015 18:15 3.00 0.18 -2.82 Downward 
5/20/2015 19:16 3.03 0.18 -2.85 Downward 
5/21/2015 8:11 2.56 0.18 -2.38 Downward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-B (continued) 

5/21/2015 10:18 2.98 0.18 -2.80 Downward 
5/21/2015 11:53 3.04 0.18 -2.86 Downward 
5/21/2015 13:21 3.06 0.18 -2.88 Downward 
5/21/2015 15:44 2.64 0.20 -2.44 Downward 
5/21/2015 16:25 2.60 0.20 -2.40 Downward 
5/22/2015 10:19 2.66 0.30 -2.36 Downward 
5/22/2015 11:47 3.03 0.31 -2.72 Downward 
5/22/2015 13:36 3.11 0.32 -2.79 Downward 
5/22/2015 16:59 2.88 0.36 -2.52 Downward 
5/23/2015 5:59 3.27 0.47 -2.80 Downward 
5/23/2015 7:00 3.29 0.48 -2.81 Downward 
5/26/2015 9:28 3.42 1.17 -2.25 Downward 
5/26/2015 12:26 3.80 1.19 -2.61 Downward 
5/26/2015 14:25 3.87 1.21 -2.66 Downward 
5/26/2015 15:38 3.89 1.22 -2.67 Downward 
5/26/2015 17:54 3.65 1.24 -2.41 Downward 
5/27/2015 9:00 3.92 1.38 -2.54 Downward 
5/27/2015 10:44 3.98 1.39 -2.59 Downward 
5/27/2015 13:34 4.04 1.42 -2.62 Downward 
5/27/2015 14:42 4.06 1.43 -2.63 Downward 
5/27/2015 18:20 3.60 1.47 -2.13 Downward 
5/28/2015 9:10 4.09 1.59 -2.50 Downward 
5/28/2015 13:16 3.71 1.60 -2.11 Downward 
5/28/2015 14:25 3.69 1.61 -2.08 Downward 
5/28/2015 17:25 4.12 1.63 -2.49 Downward 
5/28/2015 18:34 4.16 1.64 -2.52 Downward 
5/29/2015 7:32 3.75 1.65 -2.10 Downward 
5/29/2015 9:22 4.02 1.64 -2.38 Downward 
5/29/2015 11:42 4.13 1.61 -2.52 Downward 
5/29/2015 13:24 4.16 1.59 -2.57 Downward 
5/29/2015 15:23 3.82 1.58 -2.24 Downward 
5/29/2015 18:15 3.99 1.56 -2.43 Downward 
5/30/2015 7:27 4.04 1.58 -2.46 Downward 
5/30/2015 9:25 3.82 1.57 -2.25 Downward 
5/30/2015 11:10 3.69 1.58 -2.11 Downward 
5/30/2015 13:05 4.10 1.60 -2.50 Downward 
5/31/2015 10:31 4.27 1.76 -2.51 Downward 
5/31/2015 12:02 4.30 1.78 -2.52 Downward 
6/11/2015 10:37 2.59 0.12 -2.47 Downward 
5/14/2015 13:28 1.19 1.40 0.21 Upward 
5/14/2015 14:43 1.12 1.40 0.28 Upward 
5/15/2015 14:08 0.95 1.41 0.46 Upward 
5/15/2015 16:13 1.09 1.42 0.33 Upward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-C 

5/16/2015 18:24 1.04 1.38 0.34 Upward 
5/18/2015 9:34 1.05 1.38 0.33 Upward 
5/18/2015 10:17 1.05 1.38 0.33 Upward 
5/18/2015 13:42 1.07 1.38 0.31 Upward 
5/18/2015 15:08 1.02 1.38 0.36 Upward 
5/19/2015 7:20 1.06 1.39 0.33 Upward 
5/19/2015 11:35 1.02 1.39 0.37 Upward 
5/19/2015 12:53 1.06 1.39 0.33 Upward 
5/19/2015 14:23 1.07 1.39 0.32 Upward 
5/19/2015 17:23 1.08 1.39 0.31 Upward 
5/19/2015 18:42 1.02 1.39 0.37 Upward 
5/20/2015 7:24 1.07 1.39 0.32 Upward 
5/20/2015 9:14 1.08 1.39 0.31 Upward 
5/20/2015 12:43 1.02 1.40 0.38 Upward 
5/20/2015 13:43 1.02 1.40 0.38 Upward 
5/20/2015 15:26 1.07 1.40 0.33 Upward 
5/20/2015 17:48 1.09 1.40 0.31 Upward 
5/20/2015 18:22 1.10 1.42 0.32 Upward 
5/20/2015 19:24 1.10 1.41 0.31 Upward 
5/21/2015 7:46 1.03 1.43 0.40 Upward 
5/21/2015 10:33 1.10 1.43 0.33 Upward 
5/21/2015 12:01 1.10 1.43 0.33 Upward 
5/21/2015 13:31 1.11 1.43 0.32 Upward 
5/21/2015 15:41 1.05 1.43 0.38 Upward 
5/21/2015 16:18 1.04 1.43 0.39 Upward 
5/22/2015 10:31 1.05 1.43 0.38 Upward 
5/22/2015 12:10 1.10 1.44 0.34 Upward 
5/22/2015 14:00 1.11 1.44 0.33 Upward 
5/22/2015 17:08 1.06 1.44 0.38 Upward 
5/23/2015 6:09 1.12 1.44 0.32 Upward 
5/23/2015 7:09 1.12 1.44 0.32 Upward 
5/26/2015 9:04 1.09 1.46 0.37 Upward 
5/26/2015 12:24 1.14 1.46 0.32 Upward 
5/26/2015 14:23 1.14 1.46 0.32 Upward 
5/26/2015 15:36 1.15 1.45 0.30 Upward 
5/26/2015 18:19 1.09 1.45 0.36 Upward 
5/27/2015 8:41 1.17 1.48 0.31 Upward 
5/27/2015 10:24 1.14 1.48 0.34 Upward 
5/27/2015 13:42 1.16 1.46 0.30 Upward 
5/27/2015 14:41 1.15 1.46 0.31 Upward 
5/27/2015 18:28 1.08 1.46 0.38 Upward 
5/28/2015 9:36 1.02 1.46 0.44 Upward 
5/28/2015 13:24 1.05 1.45 0.40 Upward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-C (continued) 

5/28/2015 14:23 1.05 1.45 0.40 Upward 
5/28/2015 17:34 1.13 1.45 0.32 Upward 
5/28/2015 18:42 1.14 1.45 0.31 Upward 
5/29/2015 7:50 1.05 1.46 0.41 Upward 
5/29/2015 9:26 1.13 1.46 0.33 Upward 
5/29/2015 11:46 1.14 1.46 0.32 Upward 
5/29/2015 13:22 1.15 1.46 0.31 Upward 
5/29/2015 15:26 1.09 1.46 0.37 Upward 
5/29/2015 18:23 1.13 1.46 0.33 Upward 
5/30/2015 7:37 1.16 1.47 0.31 Upward 
5/30/2015 9:14 1.10 1.46 0.36 Upward 
5/30/2015 11:18 1.10 1.47 0.37 Upward 
5/30/2015 13:15 1.14 1.47 0.33 Upward 
5/31/2015 10:39 1.15 1.48 0.33 Upward 
5/31/2015 12:20 1.15 1.47 0.32 Upward 
6/1/2015 14:59 0.99 1.36 0.37 Upward 
6/2/2015 14:10 0.89 1.32 0.43 Upward 
6/4/2015 14:23 1.00 1.42 0.42 Upward 
6/11/2015 10:50 0.96 1.46 0.50 Upward 

PZ-D 

5/20/2015 12:20 1.28 1.26 -0.02 Downward 
5/20/2015 13:37 1.27 1.26 -0.01 Downward 
5/20/2015 15:20 1.25 1.25 0.00 Neutral 
5/20/2015 17:43 1.25 1.24 -0.01 Downward 
5/20/2015 18:17 1.25 1.24 -0.01 Downward 
5/20/2015 19:19 1.25 1.23 -0.02 Downward 
5/21/2015 7:09 1.24 1.24 0.00 Neutral 
5/21/2015 10:26 1.24 1.23 -0.01 Downward 
5/21/2015 11:55 1.25 1.24 -0.01 Downward 
5/21/2015 13:25 1.25 1.24 -0.01 Downward 
5/21/2015 15:35 1.27 1.25 -0.02 Downward 
5/21/2015 16:09 1.27 1.25 -0.02 Downward 
5/22/2015 10:23 1.37 1.36 -0.01 Downward 
5/22/2015 12:05 1.39 1.37 -0.02 Downward 
5/22/2015 13:40 1.40 1.38 -0.02 Downward 
5/22/2015 17:02 1.43 1.42 -0.01 Downward 
5/23/2015 6:02 1.54 1.53 -0.01 Downward 
5/23/2015 7:03 1.55 1.54 -0.01 Downward 
5/26/2015 9:43 2.25 2.23 -0.02 Downward 
5/26/2015 12:19 2.26 2.26 0.00 Neutral 
5/26/2015 14:20 2.28 2.27 -0.01 Downward 
5/26/2015 15:34 2.30 2.28 -0.02 Downward 
5/26/2015 18:17 2.33 2.31 -0.02 Downward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-D (continued) 

5/27/2015 7:52 2.45 2.45 0.00 Neutral 
5/27/2015 10:19 2.47 2.54 0.07 Downward 
5/27/2015 13:37 2.50 2.48 -0.02 Downward 
5/27/2015 14:38 2.51 2.50 -0.01 Downward 
5/27/2015 18:23 2.54 2.53 -0.01 Downward 
5/28/2015 10:40 2.65 2.65 0.00 Neutral 
5/28/2015 13:11 2.68 2.66 -0.02 Downward 
5/28/2015 14:11 2.68 2.67 -0.01 Downward 
5/28/2015 17:29 2.71 2.70 -0.01 Downward 
5/28/2015 18:37 2.72 2.71 -0.01 Downward 
5/29/2015 7:17 2.60 2.72 0.12 Downward 
5/29/2015 9:18 2.70 2.70 0.00 Neutral 
5/29/2015 13:09 2.67 2.65 -0.02 Downward 
5/29/2015 15:33 2.65 2.64 -0.01 Downward 
5/29/2015 18:31 2.63 2.62 -0.01 Downward 
5/30/2015 7:23 2.63 2.63 0.00 Neutral 
5/30/2015 9:07 2.64 2.64 0.00 Neutral 
5/30/2015 11:06 2.75 2.66 -0.09 Downward 
5/30/2015 13:17 2.67 2.65 -0.02 Downward 
5/31/2015 10:34 2.85 2.84 -0.01 Downward 
5/31/2015 12:08 2.86 2.85 -0.01 Downward 
6/1/2015 14:45 0.90 0.89 -0.01 Downward 
6/2/2015 14:04 0.88 0.88 0.00 Neutral 
6/4/2015 11:43 1.04 1.02 -0.02 Downward 
6/4/2015 14:10 1.05 1.03 -0.02 Downward 
6/11/2015 11:08 1.20 1.17 -0.03 Downward 

PZ-E 

5/14/2015 13:20 1.05 1.50 0.45 Upward 
5/14/2015 14:38 1.05 1.50 0.45 Upward 
5/15/2015 14:38 1.08 1.50 0.42 Upward 
5/15/2015 16:32 1.06 1.50 0.44 Upward 
5/16/2015 18:36 1.01 1.45 0.44 Upward 
5/18/2015 9:05 1.00 1.45 0.45 Upward 
5/18/2015 10:08 1.00 1.45 0.45 Upward 
5/18/2015 13:36 1.02 1.45 0.43 Upward 
5/18/2015 15:13 1.00 1.45 0.45 Upward 
5/19/2015 7:12 1.03 1.48 0.45 Upward 
5/19/2015 11:40 1.01 1.46 0.45 Upward 
5/19/2015 12:57 1.03 1.46 0.43 Upward 
5/19/2015 14:27 1.03 1.46 0.43 Upward 
5/19/2015 17:27 1.05 1.46 0.41 Upward 
5/19/2015 18:38 1.03 1.46 0.43 Upward 
5/20/2015 7:12 1.04 1.48 0.44 Upward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-E (continued) 

5/20/2015 9:11 1.05 1.48 0.43 Upward 
5/20/2015 12:39 1.05 1.47 0.42 Upward 
5/20/2015 13:48 1.04 1.47 0.43 Upward 
5/20/2015 15:23 1.06 1.46 0.40 Upward 
5/20/2015 17:45 1.07 1.47 0.40 Upward 
5/20/2015 18:19 1.08 1.49 0.41 Upward 
5/20/2015 19:21 1.08 1.48 0.40 Upward 
5/21/2015 7:34 1.06 1.50 0.44 Upward 
5/21/2015 10:29 1.08 1.50 0.42 Upward 
5/21/2015 11:57 1.09 1.50 0.41 Upward 
5/21/2015 13:27 1.10 1.50 0.40 Upward 
5/21/2015 15:30 1.07 1.51 0.44 Upward 
5/21/2015 16:03 1.06 1.51 0.45 Upward 
5/22/2015 10:27 0.99 1.51 0.52 Upward 
5/22/2015 12:07 1.00 1.51 0.51 Upward 
5/22/2015 13:43 1.00 1.52 0.52 Upward 
5/22/2015 17:04 0.99 1.50 0.51 Upward 
5/23/2015 6:05 1.00 1.52 0.52 Upward 
5/23/2015 7:05 1.00 1.52 0.52 Upward 
5/26/2015 9:47 0.98 1.52 0.54 Upward 
5/26/2015 12:16 1.04 1.52 0.48 Upward 
5/26/2015 14:17 1.06 1.52 0.46 Upward 
5/26/2015 15:28 1.08 1.52 0.44 Upward 
5/26/2015 18:14 1.08 1.54 0.46 Upward 
5/27/2015 7:40 1.12 1.54 0.42 Upward 
5/27/2015 10:12 1.15 1.53 0.38 Upward 
5/27/2015 13:39 1.16 1.53 0.37 Upward 
5/27/2015 14:36 1.17 1.53 0.36 Upward 
5/27/2015 18:25 1.15 1.53 0.38 Upward 
5/28/2015 10:49 1.18 1.53 0.35 Upward 
5/28/2015 13:09 1.15 1.52 0.37 Upward 
5/28/2015 14:10 1.15 1.52 0.37 Upward 
5/28/2015 17:31 1.18 1.52 0.34 Upward 
5/28/2015 18:39 1.19 1.52 0.33 Upward 
5/29/2015 7:12 1.19 1.54 0.35 Upward 
5/29/2015 9:16 1.20 1.55 0.35 Upward 
5/29/2015 13:07 1.22 1.54 0.32 Upward 
5/29/2015 15:35 1.21 1.53 0.32 Upward 
5/29/2015 18:34 1.22 1.54 0.32 Upward 
5/30/2015 7:14 1.25 1.56 0.31 Upward 
5/30/2015 9:03 1.24 1.56 0.32 Upward 
5/30/2015 11:03 1.23 1.56 0.33 Upward 
5/30/2015 13:20 1.24 1.55 0.31 Upward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-E (continued) 

5/31/2015 10:36 1.24 1.55 0.31 Upward 
5/31/2015 12:13 1.23 1.55 0.32 Upward 
6/1/2015 14:48 0.99 1.45 0.46 Upward 
6/2/2015 14:06 0.93 1.40 0.47 Upward 
6/4/2015 11:45 0.99 1.49 0.50 Upward 
6/4/2015 14:15 1.02 1.49 0.47 Upward 
6/11/2015 11:30 1.03 1.53 0.50 Upward 

PZ-F 

5/14/2015 13:44 2.81 2.67 -0.14 Downward 
5/14/2015 14:56 2.81 2.67 -0.14 Downward 
5/15/2015 15:00 2.84 2.70 -0.14 Downward 
5/15/2015 16:46 2.85 2.70 -0.15 Downward 
5/16/2015 18:47 2.58 2.31 -0.27 Downward 
5/18/2015 10:40 2.45 2.25 -0.20 Downward 
5/18/2015 13:46 2.49 2.27 -0.22 Downward 
5/18/2015 15:27 2.50 2.29 -0.21 Downward 
5/19/2015 7:44 2.56 2.43 -0.13 Downward 
5/19/2015 10:36 2.60 2.43 -0.17 Downward 
5/19/2015 13:17 2.60 2.43 -0.17 Downward 
5/19/2015 14:32 2.62 2.43 -0.19 Downward 
5/19/2015 16:24 2.62 2.43 -0.19 Downward 
5/19/2015 18:53 2.63 2.44 -0.19 Downward 
5/20/2015 8:37 2.54 2.40 -0.14 Downward 
5/20/2015 9:28 2.54 2.36 -0.18 Downward 
5/20/2015 11:23 2.55 2.36 -0.19 Downward 
5/20/2015 13:47 2.59 2.35 -0.24 Downward 
5/20/2015 15:30 2.54 2.35 -0.19 Downward 
5/20/2015 17:52 2.54 2.35 -0.19 Downward 
5/20/2015 18:26 2.54 2.35 -0.19 Downward 
5/20/2015 19:28 2.54 2.35 -0.19 Downward 
5/21/2015 8:20 2.56 2.40 -0.16 Downward 
5/21/2015 10:37 2.60 2.40 -0.20 Downward 
5/21/2015 12:09 2.60 2.41 -0.19 Downward 
5/21/2015 13:36 2.61 2.42 -0.19 Downward 
5/21/2015 14:54 2.61 2.43 -0.18 Downward 
5/21/2015 15:57 2.61 2.44 -0.17 Downward 
5/22/2015 10:36 2.67 2.50 -0.17 Downward 
5/22/2015 11:31 2.67 2.50 -0.17 Downward 
5/22/2015 14:05 2.68 2.51 -0.17 Downward 
5/22/2015 16:38 2.69 2.53 -0.16 Downward 
5/23/2015 6:16 2.74 2.56 -0.18 Downward 
5/23/2015 7:13 2.72 2.56 -0.16 Downward 
5/26/2015 8:40 2.85 2.71 -0.14 Downward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from the Onsite Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 
4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time 
Depth to Water – 

Groundwater  
(ft btoc) 

Depth to Water – 
Surface Water  

(ft btoc) 

Gradient 
 (surface water – 
 groundwater) 

Gradient  
Direction 

PZ-F (continued) 

5/26/2015 9:26 2.83 2.71 -0.12 Downward 
5/26/2015 12:33 2.86 2.69 -0.17 Downward 
5/26/2015 14:30 2.86 2.70 -0.16 Downward 
5/26/2015 15:44 2.86 2.70 -0.16 Downward 
5/26/2015 17:23 2.88 2.71 -0.17 Downward 
5/27/2015 9:13 2.88 2.72 -0.16 Downward 
5/27/2015 10:32 2.89 2.75 -0.14 Downward 
5/27/2015 12:22 2.90 2.73 -0.17 Downward 
5/27/2015 13:45 2.89 2.73 -0.16 Downward 
5/27/2015 14:49 2.89 2.73 -0.16 Downward 
5/27/2015 15:49 2.90 2.73 -0.17 Downward 
5/27/2015 18:32 2.89 2.74 -0.15 Downward 
5/28/2015 10:14 2.76 2.65 -0.11 Downward 
5/28/2015 12:48 2.79 2.64 -0.15 Downward 
5/28/2015 14:31 2.79 2.64 -0.15 Downward 
5/28/2015 16:28 2.79 2.64 -0.15 Downward 
5/28/2015 17:38 2.78 2.63 -0.15 Downward 
5/28/2015 18:46 2.76 2.60 -0.16 Downward 
5/29/2015 7:58 2.59 2.45 -0.14 Downward 
5/29/2015 9:34 2.59 2.41 -0.18 Downward 
5/29/2015 10:38 2.60 2.41 -0.19 Downward 
5/29/2015 11:50 2.60 2.41 -0.19 Downward 
5/29/2015 13:30 2.60 2.41 -0.19 Downward 
5/29/2015 14:50 2.60 2.41 -0.19 Downward 
5/29/2015 15:29 2.60 2.41 -0.19 Downward 
5/29/2015 18:27 2.62 2.43 -0.19 Downward 
5/30/2015 7:43 2.69 2.55 -0.14 Downward 
5/30/2015 9:34 2.70 2.56 -0.14 Downward 
5/30/2015 11:22 2.71 2.56 -0.15 Downward 
5/30/2015 13:11 2.71 2.58 -0.13 Downward 
5/31/2015 10:44 2.84 2.67 -0.17 Downward 
5/31/2015 12:27 2.83 2.68 -0.15 Downward 
6/1/2015 15:03 1.84 1.76 -0.08 Downward 
6/4/2015 12:06 2.42 2.15 -0.27 Downward 
6/4/2015 14:30 2.42 2.17 -0.25 Downward 
6/11/2015 11:39 2.54 2.35 -0.19 Downward 

 
ft btoc feet below top of casing 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\all PZ WL table.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PIEZOMETERS 

JUNE 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-A.grf

Stream Bed

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-A During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-B.grf

Pond Bottom

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-B During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Dry

Dry



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-C.grf

Lake Bottom

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-C During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)



6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-D.grf

Pond Bottom

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-D During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Surface Water Dry

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-E.grf

Lake Bottom

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-E During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 p

ie
zo

m
et

er
)

0

0.5

1

0.25

0.75

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Piezometers\PZ-F.grf

Streambed

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
____________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from PZ-F During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Test  
Conducted on Well 6 June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time 
Depth to 

Groundwater 
(ft btoc) 

Depth to 
Surface Water 

(ft btoc) 
Gradient Value Gradient Direction 

PZ-A 

6/8/2016 10:50 2.77 2.74 -0.03 Downward 
6/9/2016 15:21 2.83 2.80 -0.03 Downward 

6/13/2016 13:32 2.93 2.90 -0.03 Downward 
6/14/2016 9:51 2.96 2.92 -0.04 Downward 
6/14/2016 11:40 2.95 2.94 -0.01 Downward 
6/14/2016 12:54 2.96 2.94 -0.02 Downward 
6/14/2016 14:11 2.95 2.95 0.00 Neutral 
6/15/2016 12:56 2.98 2.94 -0.04 Downward 
6/15/2016 14:37 2.98 2.98 0.00 Neutral 
6/15/2016 16:35 2.98 2.98 0.00 Neutral 
6/16/2016 9:11 2.98 2.98 0.00 Neutral 
6/16/2016 14:10 2.98 2.98 0.00 Neutral 
6/16/2016 17:06 3.01 2.98 -0.03 Downward 
6/17/2016 9:55 3.02 2.96 -0.06 Downward 
6/17/2016 13:58 3.02 2.96 -0.06 Downward 
6/22/2016 11:07 3.10 2.99 -0.11 Downward 

PZ-B 

6/8/2016 11:05 2.84 0.67 -2.17 Downward 
6/9/2016 15:09 3.12 0.96 -2.16 Downward 

6/13/2016 13:36 4.03 1.75 -2.28 Downward 
6/14/2016 9:55 4.12 1.91 -2.21 Downward 
6/14/2016 11:41 4.14 1.94 -2.20 Downward 
6/14/2016 13:08 4.17 1.95 -2.22 Downward 
6/14/2016 14:13 4.18 1.96 -2.22 Downward 
6/15/2016 12:54 4.49 2.00 -2.49 Downward 
6/15/2016 14:32 4.50 2.20 -2.30 Downward 
6/15/2016 16:33 4.51 2.23 -2.28 Downward 
6/16/2016 9:10 4.70 2.38 -2.32 Downward 
6/16/2016 14:01 4.71 2.42 -2.29 Downward 
6/16/2016 17:05 4.72 2.46 -2.26 Downward 
6/17/2016 9:57 4.92 2.59 -2.33 Downward 
6/17/2016 14:05 4.95 2.64 -2.31 Downward 
6/22/2016 11:13 Dry Dry -- -- 

PZ-C 

6/8/2016 12:30 1.47 1.93 0.46 Upward 
6/9/2016 15:05 1.50 1.97 0.47 Upward 

6/13/2016 13:49 1.50 1.96 0.46 Upward 
6/14/2016 10:00 1.50 1.95 0.45 Upward 
6/14/2016 11:44 1.51 1.96 0.45 Upward 
6/14/2016 13:06 1.49 1.96 0.47 Upward 
6/14/2016 14:18 1.51 1.96 0.45 Upward 
6/15/2016 12:50 1.54 1.96 0.42 Upward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Test  
Conducted on Well 6 June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time 
Depth to 

Groundwater 
(ft btoc) 

Depth to 
Surface Water 

(ft btoc) 
Gradient Value Gradient Direction 

PZ-C (continued) 

6/15/2016 14:30 1.54 1.96 0.42 Upward 
6/15/2016 16:30 1.54 1.96 0.42 Upward 
6/16/2016 9:07 1.53 1.97 0.44 Upward 
6/16/2016 13:54 1.53 1.97 0.44 Upward 
6/16/2016 17:03 1.54 1.97 0.43 Upward 
6/17/2016 10:00 1.54 1.97 0.43 Upward 
6/17/2016 14:24 1.54 1.97 0.43 Upward 
6/22/2016 11:43 1.58 1.98 0.40 Upward 

PZ-D 

6/8/2016 11:32 1.70 1.69 -0.01 Downward 
6/9/2016 14:54 1.96 1.96 0.00 Neutral 

6/13/2016 13:48 2.76 2.76 0.00 Neutral 
6/14/2016 10:06 2.93 2.95 0.02 Upward 
6/14/2016 11:46 2.95 2.95 0.00 Neutral 
6/14/2016 13:02 2.96 2.96 0.00 Neutral 
6/14/2016 14:23 2.96 2.97 0.01 Upward 
6/15/2016 12:43 3.18 3.18 0.00 Neutral 
6/15/2016 14:27 3.20 3.21 0.01 Upward 
6/15/2016 16:27 3.23 3.23 0.00 Neutral 
6/16/2016 9:04 3.38 Dry -- -- 
6/16/2016 13:49 3.42 Dry -- -- 
6/16/2016 17:01 3.45 Dry -- -- 
6/17/2016 10:03 3.61 Dry -- -- 
6/17/2016 14:13 3.65 Dry -- -- 
6/22/2016 11:25 4.57 Dry -- -- 

PZ-E 

6/8/2016 11:05 1.31 1.77 0.46 Upward 
6/9/2016 14:49 1.35 1.79 0.44 Upward 

6/13/2016 14:05 1.37 1.81 0.44 Upward 
6/14/2016 10:10 1.37 1.80 0.43 Upward 
6/14/2016 11:51 1.38 1.81 0.43 Upward 
6/14/2016 12:59 1.39 1.82 0.43 Upward 
6/14/2016 14:26 1.39 1.81 0.36 Upward 
6/15/2016 12:39 1.45 1.82 0.36 Upward 
6/15/2016 14:23 1.46 1.82 0.35 Upward 
6/15/2016 16:24 1.47 1.82 0.33 Upward 
6/16/2016 9:04 1.49 1.81 0.32 Upward 
6/16/2016 13:39 1.49 1.81 0.31 Upward 
6/16/2016 16:59 1.50 1.80 0.29 Upward 
6/17/2016 10:08 1.51 1.80 0.28 Upward 
6/17/2016 14:18 1.52 1.81 0.31 Upward 
6/22/2016 11:33 1.50 1.83 0.33 Upward 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Piezometers During 72-Hour Pumping Test  
Conducted on Well 6 June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 

Date Time 
Depth to 

Groundwater 
(ft btoc) 

Depth to 
Surface Water 

(ft btoc) 
Gradient Value Gradient Direction 

PZ-F 

6/8/2016 15:32 2.82 2.72 -0.10 Downward 
6/9/2016 13:09 2.96 2.80 -0.16 Downward 

6/13/2016 9:34 2.97 2.80 -0.17 Downward 
6/14/2016 11:58 2.99 2.81 -0.18 Downward 
6/14/2016 13:14 2.99 2.80 -0.19 Downward 
6/14/2016 14:47 2.98 2.81 -0.17 Downward 
6/15/2016 14:40 3.00 2.85 -0.15 Downward 
6/15/2016 16:41 3.01 2.85 -0.16 Downward 
6/16/2016 9:16 3.04 2.85 -0.19 Downward 
6/16/2016 14:16 3.03 2.85 -0.18 Downward 
6/16/2016 17:10 3.03 2.86 -0.17 Downward 
6/17/2016 10:28 3.06 2.87 -0.19 Downward 
6/17/2016 14:53 3.07 2.88 -0.19 Downward 
6/22/2016 12:15 3.18 2.97 -0.21 Downward 

ft btoc feet below top of casing 
 
K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\PZ Table.doc 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX VII 

OFFSITE MONITORING WELLS



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

OFFSITE WELLS 

MAY 2015



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

100

80

60

40

20

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)

Depth to Water - Transducer Data
Depth to Water - Manual Measurements
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well at 73 Nash Road During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\offsite wells\73 Nash Rd.grf



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

100

80

60

40

20

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well at 79 Nash Road During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\offsite wells\79 Nash Rd.grf



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well at 195 Waccabuc Road During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\offsite wells\195 Waccabuc.grf



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well 3 During 72-Hour Pumping Test Program
Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5 from May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

6/5
/15

6/6
/15

6/7
/15

6/8
/15

6/9
/15

6/1
0/1

5
6/1

1/1
5

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping
Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\offsite wells\Well 3.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Offsite Monitoring Wells During 72-Hour 
Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Date Time Depth to Water 

 (ft btoc) 

73 Nash Road 79 Nash Road 

5/14/2015 10:54 33.44 5/14/2015 10:22 33.16 

5/14/2015 11:15 33.65 5/15/2015 10:53 35.19 

5/15/2015 11:04 36.91 5/16/2015 17:33 33.08 

5/16/2015 17:24 38.96 5/18/2015 8:10 41.68 

5/18/2015 8:34 35.00 5/19/2015 10:25 32.20 

5/19/2015 10:33 41.21 5/19/2015 15:11 32.34 

5/19/2015 15:19 41.30 5/20/2015 10:34 34.74 

5/20/2015 10:43 41.87 5/20/2015 16:36 33.75 

5/20/2015 16:43 42.02 5/21/2015 9:41 35.00 

5/21/2015 9:45 42.02 5/21/2015 16:59 32.00 

5/21/2015 17:07 40.00 5/22/2015 17:41 33.23 

5/22/2015 17:48 36.94 5/26/2015 7:54 37.58 

5/26/2015 8:02 36.08 5/26/2015 14:48 32.37 

5/26/2015 14:53 36.25 5/27/2015 11:19 34.11 

5/27/2015 11:29 38.64 5/27/2015 16:27 32.99 

5/27/2015 16:57 38.19 5/28/2015 11:24 35.28 

5/28/2015 11:31 37.55 5/28/2015 14:32 32.40 

5/28/2015 19:47 37.78 5/29/2015 10:37 39.85 

5/29/2015 10:46 39.00 5/29/2015 13:49 37.68 

5/29/2015 13:52 40.28 5/30/2015 10:22 33.98 

5/30/2015 10:37 39.50 5/31/2015 12:47 36.50 

5/31/2015 12:54 36.29 6/2/2015 15:38 33.46 

6/2/2015 15:44 33.83 6/4/2015 14:51 31.87 

6/4/2015 15:02 33.74 6/11/2015 9:06 32.39 

6/11/2015 9:20 34.04 -- -- -- 

195 Waccabuc Road Well 3 

5/14/2015 12:28 10.18 5/14/2015 11:41 2.77 

5/14/2015 12:40 14.64 5/15/2015 17:46 2.54 

5/15/2015 10:34 9.60 5/16/2015 17:15 2.50 

5/16/2015 16:54 9.19 5/18/2015 9:04 2.53 

5/18/2015 8:47 10.38 5/19/2015 10:44 2.48 

5/19/2015 11:23 9.65 5/19/2015 14:45 2.60 

5/19/2015 14:31 8.85 5/20/2015 10:58 2.50 

5/20/2015 11:23 8.44 5/20/2015 16:49 2.65 

5/20/2015 16:58 8.58 5/21/2015 9:54 2.50 

5/21/2015 10:03 12.39 5/21/2015 17:16 2.70 

5/21/2015 17:25 10.23 5/22/2015 17:55 2.80 

5/22/2015 18:08 8.94 5/26/2015 8:16 3.10 

5/26/2015 8:46 11.02 5/26/2015 15:00 2.98 

5/26/2015 15:10 8.79 5/26/2015 18:48 2.95 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Offsite Monitoring Wells During 72-Hour 
Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Depth to Water  
(ft btoc) Date Time Depth to Water 

 (ft btoc) 

195 Waccabuc Road (continued) Well 3 (continued) 

5/27/2015 13:06 9.35 5/27/2015 11:43 3.15 

5/27/2015 16:46 9.09 5/27/2015 16:35 2.99 

5/28/2015 11:51 13.17 5/27/2015 18:45 2.96 

5/28/2015 14:58 11.44 5/28/2015 11:40 2.20 

5/29/2015 11:06 10.00 5/28/2015 14:46 2.15 

5/29/2015 13:17 9.27 5/28/2015 17:54 3.13 

5/30/2015 11:14 9.62 5/29/2015 10:59 3.17 

5/31/2015 13:13 9.32 5/29/2015 13:28 3.15 

6/2/2015 16:00 6.66 5/29/2015 18:45 3.19 

6/4/2015 15:28 7.60 5/30/2015 10:55 3.19 

6/11/2015 9:50 14.30 5/31/2015 13:05 3.14 

-- -- -- 6/1/2015 16:40 0.27 

-- -- -- 6/2/2015 15:50 0.75 

-- -- -- 6/4/2015 15:15 2.39 

-- -- -- 6/11/2015 9:37 2.59 

 
ft btoc feet below top of casing 
 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Offsite MW Manual WL table.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

OFFSITE WELLS 

JUNE 2016



6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

10

8

6

4

2

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

Precipitation (inches)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\Well 3.grf

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Bedrock Well 3 During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

Depth to Water - Transducer Data
Depth to Water - Manual Measurements
Precipitation

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\73 Nash Road_ss.grf

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well at 73 Nash Road During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

Pumping Test Conducted
on Wild Oaks Well 6



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

100

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

D
ep

th
 to

 W
at

er
 (f

ee
t b

el
ow

 to
p 

of
 c

as
in

g)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)

Depth to Water - Transducer Data
Depth to Water - Manual Measurements
Precipitation

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Monitoring Wells\79 Nash Road_ss.grf

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of Water-Level Measurements Collected from Well at 79 Nash Road During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

Pumping Test Conducted
on Wild Oaks Well 6



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Summary of Manual Water-Level Measurements Collected from Offsite Wells Monitored During  
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, June 14 Through June 17, 2016 

 
Date Time Depth to Water (ft btoc)

Well 3 
6/9/2016 13:22 2.52 
6/13/2016 14:48 2.86 
6/14/2016 9:13 2.84 
6/14/2016 12:45 2.90 
6/14/2016 15:26 2.93 
6/15/2016 10:22 2.98 
6/15/2016 13:08 3.00 
6/15/2016 16:56 2.97 
6/16/2016 9:27 2.91 
6/16/2016 14:39 2.88 
6/17/2016 8:40 3.32 
6/17/2016 15:47 3.05 
6/22/2016 9:43 3.38 

73 Nash Road 
6/9/2016 13:39 34.40 
6/13/2016 14:30 35.16 
6/14/2016 9:03 35.16 
6/15/2016 10:27 37.39 
6/16/2016 14:48 38.19 
6/17/2016 8:55 38.06 
6/17/2016 15:35 37.94 
6/22/2016 10:12 36.20 

79 Nash Road 
6/9/2016 13:47 32.35 
6/13/2016 14:38 32.74 
6/14/2016 8:51 36.71 
6/15/2016 10:34 34.39 
6/16/2016 14:54 33.79 
6/17/2016 8:48 37.94 
6/17/2016 15:28 34.25 
6/22/2016 9:57 34.75 

    ft btoc  feet below top of casing 
 
K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\Offsite Monitoring Well WL table.doc 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX VIII 

STREAM GAGING



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

STREAM GAGING 

MAY 2015



5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

0

10

20

30

40

50

St
re

am
 F

lo
w

 (c
ub

ic
 fe

et
 p

er
 se

co
nd

)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)

SG-1 (Downstream)
SG-2 (Upstream)
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Graph of Stream Flow Measurements Collected from Stream Gaging Locations During
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
2/1

5
5/1

3/1
5

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Stream Flow.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Stream Flow Measurements Collected from Onsite Stream Gaging Locations During 
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, from May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Stream Flow at 
SG-1 (cfs) Date Time Stream Flow at 

SG-2 (cfs) 

5/12/2015 13:12 1.21 5/12/2015 14:10 1.39 
5/14/2015 14:17 1.13 5/14/2015 13:53 0.64 
5/15/2015 15:22 1.26 5/15/2015 15:02 1.06 
5/16/2015 19:15 5.48 5/16/2015 18:53 4.46 
5/18/2015 9:45 5.52 5/18/2015 10:10 3.61 
5/19/2015 10:09 2.42 5/19/2015 10:38 1.70 
5/19/2015 15:21 2.10 5/19/2015 16:28 1.24 
5/20/2015 10:42 3.31 5/20/2015 11:24 3.11 
5/20/2015 14:22 3.36 5/20/2015 14:40 2.26 
5/21/2015 8:50 2.85 5/21/2015 9:11 2.01 
5/21/2015 14:19 2.60 5/21/2015 14:40 2.08 
5/22/2015 10:50 2.37 5/22/2015 11:15 1.67 
5/22/2015 16:00 2.13 5/22/2015 16:21 1.5 
5/23/2015 6:39 1.98 5/23/2015 6:19 1.31 
5/26/2015 7:58 1.20 5/26/2015 8:24 1.07 
5/26/2015 16:38 1.13 5/26/2015 17:28 1.12 
5/27/2015 11:17 1.11 5/27/2015 12:09 0.88 
5/27/2015 15:18 1.10 5/27/2015 15:34 0.88 
5/28/2015 11:22 1.51 5/28/2015 12:17 1.27 
5/28/2015 16:13 1.46 5/28/2015 16:29 1.30 
5/29/2015 10:02 3.18 5/29/2015 10:20 2.61 
5/29/2015 14:20 3.31 5/29/2015 14:37 2.54 
5/30/2015 6:31 2.07 5/30/2015 7:15 1.36 
5/30/2015 14:05 1.43 5/30/2015 14:30 1.12 
5/31/2015 11:05 1.58 5/31/2015 10:51 1.50 
6/1/2015 16:00 28.45 6/1/2015 15:05 18.83 
6/2/2015 14:45 39.82 6/2/2015 14:27 40.86 
6/4/2015 14:45 6.69 6/4/2015 12:11 5.35 

 
cfs cubic feet per second 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Stream Flow Table.docx 



5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

0

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.6

2

Su
rf

ac
e-

W
at

er
 D

ep
th

 (f
ee

t)

0

2

4

1

3

Precipitation (inches)

Depth of Stream - Staff Gauge Measurements
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Hydrograph of  Surface-Water Depth Measured at Staff-1 (Staff Gage) During
72-Hour Pumping Test Program Conducted on Well 4 and Well 5, May 18 Through May 30, 2015

5/1
4/1

5
5/1

5/1
5

5/1
6/1

5
5/1

7/1
5

5/1
8/1

5
5/1

9/1
5

5/2
0/1

5
5/2

1/1
5

5/2
2/1

5
5/2

3/1
5

5/2
4/1

5
5/2

5/1
5

5/2
6/1

5
5/2

7/1
5

5/2
8/1

5
5/2

9/1
5

5/3
0/1

5
5/3

1/1
5

6/1
/15

6/2
/15

6/3
/15

6/4
/15

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oak\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Staff Gage.grf

Stream Bed



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Staff Gage Measurements Collected from During the 
72-Hour Pumping Tests Conducted on Wells 4 and 5, from May 18 Through May 30, 2015 

 

Date Time Surface-Water 
Depth (feet) 

5/14/2015 14:14 0.36 
5/15/2015 15:23 0.36 
5/16/2015 19:16 0.54 
5/18/2015 10:02 0.61 
5/19/2015 10:10 0.45 
5/19/2015 15:41 0.44 
5/20/2015 10:41 0.5 
5/20/2015 14:22 0.5 
5/21/2015 8:44 0.48 
5/21/2015 14:34 0.46 
5/22/2015 11:07 0.43 
5/22/2015 16:15 0.4 
5/23/2015 6:38 0.38 
5/26/2015 7:57 0.33 
5/26/2015 16:37 0.33 
5/27/2015 11:30 0.32 
5/27/2015 15:16 0.32 
5/28/2015 11:21 0.36 
5/28/2015 16:12 0.36 
5/29/2015 10:02 0.47 
5/29/2015 14:19 0.49 
5/31/2015 11:05 0.36 
6/1/2015 15:58 1.07 
6/2/2015 14:43 1.23 
6/4/2015 12:47 0.77 

 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Staff Gage Table.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

STREAM GAGING 

JUNE 2016



6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

To
ta

l S
tre

am
flo

w
 (c

ub
ic

 fe
et

 p
er

 se
co

nd
)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Graph of Streamflow Measurements Collected from Onsite Stream Gaging Locations During 72-Hour Pumping Test
Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/8
/16

6/9
/16

6/1
0/1

6

6/1
1/1

6

6/1
2/1

6

6/1
3/1

6

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

6/1
8/1

6

6/1
9/1

6

6/2
0/1

6

6/2
1/1

6

6/2
2/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Stream gauging\Stream Gauging.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Stream Flow Measurements Collected from Onsite Stream Gaging Locations During 
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, from June 14 Through 17, 2015 

 

Date Time 

Stream Flow  
SG-1,  

Upstream  
(cfs) 

Time 

Stream Flow 
 SG-2,  

Downstream 
(cfs) 

Comments 

6/8/2016 14:23 1.751 13:19 2.004 Pre-test background period. 
6/9/2016 15:47 0.969 15:26 1.317 Pre-test background period. 

6/10/2016 15:49 0.951 15:28 0.960 Pre-test background period. 
6/13/2016 12:49 0.483 12:14 0.614 Pre-test background period. 
6/14/2016 9:18 0.176 8:49 0.593 Pre-test background period.  
6/14/2016 16:04 0.316 15:49 0.818 Well 6 pump started at 10:20. Well 6 pumping. 
6/15/2016 11:40 0.373 11:14 0.551 Well 6 pumping. 
6/16/2016 11:14 0.334 10:09 0.486 Well 6 pumping. 
6/17/2016 10:25 0.205 10:15 0.459 Well 6 pumping. 
6/17/2016 14:55 0.207 14:40 0.474 Post-test period.  Well 6 shut down at 10:54. 
6/22/2016 12:25 0.200 12:00 0.169 Post-test period. 
cfs cubic feet per second 
 
K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\Stream Flow Table.doc 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX IX 

WATER QUALITY



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WATER QUALITY 

WELL 4



ANALYTICAL REPORT

Job Number:  420-90837-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oak

Job Description:  LBG, Inc.

For:

Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

4 Research Drive

Shelton, CT  06464

Attention: Stacy Stieber

Debra Bayer

Customer Service Manager

dbayer@envirotestlaboratories.com

06/16/2015

NYSDOH ELAP does not certify for all parameters. EnviroTest Laboratories does hold certification for all analytes where certification 

is offered by ELAP unless otherwise specified. Pursuant to NELAP, this report may not be reproduced, except in full, without written 

approval of the laboratory. EnviroTest Laboratories Inc. certifies that the analytical results contained herein apply only to the samples 

tested as received by our laboratory. All questions regarding this report should be directed to the EnviroTest Customer Service 

Representative.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Certifications and Approvals: NYSDOH 10142, NJDEP NY015, CTDOPH PH-0554

315 Fullerton Avenue, Newburgh, NY  12550

Tel (845) 562-0890  Fax (845) 562-0841  www.envirotestlaboratories.com

Envirotest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 1 of 18



Job Narrative

420-J90837-1

Receipt 

All samples were received in good condition within temperature requirements.

GC/MS VOA 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

Metals 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

General Chemistry 

Method SM 4500 H+ B: The holding time for pH is 15 minutes, the samples were received outside of the holding time.

No other analytical or quality issues were noted.

Biology 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

Page 2 of 18



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-90837-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

SDG Number: Wild Oak

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Matrix: Water

EPA 200.7 Rev 4.4ICP Metals by 200.7 EnvTest

FILTRATIONEnvTestSample Filtration

EPA 200EnvTest200 Series Drinking Water Prep Determination Step

EPA 200.7EnvTestTotal Metals Digestion for 200.7

EPA 200.8 Rev.5.4ICPMS Metals by 200.8 EnvTest

EPA 200EnvTest200 Series Drinking Water Prep Determination Step

EPA 200.8EnvTestTotal Metals Digestion for 200.8

EPA 245.1 Rev.3.0Mercury in Water by CVAA EnvTest

EPA 245.1EnvTestDigestion for CVAA Mercury in Waters

MCAWW 300.0Anions by Ion Chromatography EnvTest

EPA 300.0 Rev. 2.1Anions by Ion Chromatography EnvTest

EPA 504.1EPA 504.1 EDB Pace

EPA 505EPA 505 Pesticide/PCB Pace

EPA 515EPA 515 Chlorinated Acids Pace

EPA-DW 524.2Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS EnvTest

EPA 525.2EPA 525.2 Semivolatile Organics Pace

EPA 531.1EPA 531.1 Carbamate Pesticides in Drinki Pace

EPA 900EPA 900 Series GA/GB/RA226/RA228/Gamma Pace

STL-STL EPAUranium Pace

IDEXX SIMPLATEHeterotropic Plate Count EnvTest

SM20 SM 2150BOdor, Threshold Test EnvTest

SM21 SM 2320B-97,-11Alkalinity, Titration Method EnvTest

SM20 SM 2330BCorrosivity LSI Calculation EnvTest

SM20 SM 2340B-97,-11Hardness by Calculation EnvTest

SM19 SM 4500 H+ BpH EnvTest

SM20 SM 4500BNitrite by Colormetric EnvTest

SMWW SM 9223Total Coliform and Escherichia coli by Colilert - 

Presence/Absence

EnvTest

SM21 SM2120B-01,11Apparent Color EnvTest

SM21 SM2130B-01,11Turbidity EnvTest

SM21 SM2540C-97,11Total Dissolved Solids (Dried at 180 °C) EnvTest

SM21 SM4500 CN E-99Cyanide, Total: Colorimetric Method EnvTest

SM21 SM 4500 CN CEnvTestCyanide: Distillation

SubcontractGeneral Sub Contract Method Pace

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 3 of 18



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-90837-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

SDG Number: Wild Oak

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Lab References:

EnvTest = EnviroTest

Pace = Pace Analytical - Ormond Beach

Method References:

EPA = US Environmental Protection Agency

EPA-DW = "Methods For The Determination Of Organic Compounds In Drinking Water", EPA/600/4-88/039, December 1988 And 

Its Supplements.

IDEXX = 

MCAWW = "Methods For Chemical Analysis Of Water And Wastes", EPA-600/4-79-020, March 1983 And Subsequent Revisions.

SM19 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 19Th Edition, 1995."

SM20 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 20th Edition."

SM21 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 21st Edition

SMWW = "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater"

STL-STL = Severn Trent Laboratories, St. Louis, Facility Standard Operating Procedure.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 4 of 18



METHOD / ANALYST  SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Method Analyst Analyst ID

SDG Number:  Wild Oak

Andersen, Eric C ECAEPA-DW   524.2

Goldstein, Amy AGEPA   200.7 Rev 4.4

McPhillips, Julie JMEPA   200.8 Rev.5.4

Palentino, Gus J GJPEPA   200.8 Rev.5.4

Goldstein, Amy AGEPA   245.1 Rev.3.0

Goldstein, Amy AGSM20   SM 2340B-97,-11

Sirico, Derek DSMCAWW   300.0

Sirico, Derek DSEPA   300.0 Rev. 2.1

Travis, Lyndsey LTIDEXX   SIMPLATE

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM20   SM 2150B

Sirico, Derek DSSM21   SM 2320B-97,-11

Cusack, Renee RCSM20   SM 2330B

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM19   SM 4500 H+ B

Sirico, Derek DSSM20   SM 4500B

Travis, Lyndsey LTSMWW   SM 9223

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM21   SM2120B-01,11

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM21   SM2130B-01,11

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM21   SM2540C-97,11

Sirico, Derek DSSM21   SM4500 CN E-99

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 5 of 18



SAMPLE SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oak

Client Sample IDLab Sample ID Client Matrix

Date/Time 

Sampled

Date/Time 

Received

05/29/2015  1110 05/29/2015  1225Well 4 - 5/29420-90837-1 Water

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 6 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak
Client Sample ID:

Lab Sample ID: Date Sampled:

Date Received:

Well 4 - 5/29

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225Client Matrix:

524.2 Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS

420-90837-1

Water

Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed:

Dilution:

Preparation:

Method:

06/01/2015  1348

1.0

524.2

N/A

N/A

Analysis Batch: 420-87368

Final Weight/Volume:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Lab File ID:

Instrument ID: Agilent 7890A/5975C 

X060107.D

5   mL

5   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) RLQualifier

<0.500 0.5001,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,1-Trichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,2-Trichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.5001,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2,3-Trichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,3-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,4-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5002,2-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.500Benzene

<0.500 0.500Bromobenzene

<0.500 0.500Bromochloromethane

<0.500 0.500Bromomethane

<0.500 0.500n-Butylbenzene

<0.500 0.500cis-1,2-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.500cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.500Carbon tetrachloride

<0.500 0.500Chlorobenzene

<0.500 0.500Chloroethane

<0.500 0.500Chloromethane

<0.500 0.500Dibromomethane

<0.500 0.500Ethylbenzene

<0.500 0.500Dichlorodifluoromethane

<0.500 0.500Hexachlorobutadiene

<0.500 0.500Isopropylbenzene

<0.500 0.500p-Isopropyltoluene

<0.500 0.500Methylene Chloride

<1.00 1.00m-Xylene & p-Xylene

<0.500 0.500Methyl tert-butyl ether

<0.500 0.500o-Xylene

<0.500 0.500Tetrachloroethene

<0.500 0.500Toluene

<0.500 0.500trans-1,2-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.500trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.500Trichloroethene

<0.500 0.500tert-Butylbenzene

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 7 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak
Client Sample ID:

Lab Sample ID: Date Sampled:

Date Received:

Well 4 - 5/29

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225Client Matrix:

524.2 Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS

420-90837-1

Water

Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed:

Dilution:

Preparation:

Method:

06/01/2015  1348

1.0

524.2

N/A

N/A

Analysis Batch: 420-87368

Final Weight/Volume:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Lab File ID:

Instrument ID: Agilent 7890A/5975C 

X060107.D

5   mL

5   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) RLQualifier

<0.500 0.500Trichlorofluoromethane

<0.500 0.500Vinyl chloride

<1.50 1.50Xylenes, Total

<0.500 0.500Styrene

<0.500 0.500sec-Butylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

<0.500 0.500N-Propylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,3-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5002-Chlorotoluene

<0.500 0.5004-Chlorotoluene

Surrogate %Rec Acceptance Limits

101 71 - 1204-Bromofluorobenzene

103 79 - 121Toluene-d8 (Surr)

112 70 - 1281,2-Dichloroethane-d4 (Surr)

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 8 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

Client Sample ID: Well 4 - 5/29

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225

420-90837-1

Water

200.7 Rev 4.4 ICP Metals by 200.7

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/02/2015  2253

06/01/2015  1732

Thermo ICP

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87414

200 Prep Batch: 420-87349

<60.0 60.0Iron

18.8 10.0Manganese

6600 200Sodium

<20.0 20.0Zinc

200.7 Rev 4.4 ICP Metals by 200.7-Dissolved

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/04/2015  0119

05/29/2015  1740

Thermo ICP

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87466

200.7 Prep Batch: 420-87282

<60.0 60.0Iron

17.9 10.0Manganese

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 9 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

Client Sample ID: Well 4 - 5/29

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225

420-90837-1

Water

200.8 Rev.5.4 ICPMS Metals by 200.8

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/02/2015  1609

06/01/2015  1732

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87394

200 Prep Batch: 420-87349

<1.00 1.00Lead

<1.40 1.40Arsenic

<0.300 0.300Beryllium

<1.00 1.00Cadmium

<7.00 7.00Chromium

1.99 0.500Nickel

<0.400 0.400Antimony

<0.300 0.300Thallium

6.77 2.00Barium

3.43 2.00Selenium

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/05/2015  2030

06/02/2015  1030

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87536

200.8 Prep Batch: 420-87387

<1.00 1.00Silver

245.1 Rev.3.0 Mercury in Water by CVAA

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/11/2015  1108

06/10/2015  1220

Perkin Elmer FIMS

N/A

25   mL

25   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

245.1 Rev.3.0 Analysis Batch: 420-87715

245.1 Prep Batch: 420-87645

<0.200 0.200Mercury

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 10 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

Client Sample ID: Well 4 - 5/29

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225

420-90837-1

Water

SM 2340B-97,-11 Hardness by Calculation

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/02/2015  2253

None

N/A

Analyte Result (mg/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

SM 2340B-97,-11 Analysis Batch: 420-87417

N/A

N/A

63.0 1.25Calcium hardness as calcium carbonate

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 11 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

Biology

Client Sample ID: Well 4 - 5/29

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225

420-90837-1

Water

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

05/29/2015  1735

Present CFU/100mL SM 9223g

Anly Batch: 420-87279

1.0

Date Analyzed

Coliform, Total

05/29/2015  1735

Absent CFU/100mL SM 9223

Anly Batch: 420-87279

1.0

Date Analyzed

Escherichia coli

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

05/29/2015  1655

<2.00 CFU/mL SIMPLATE2.00

Anly Batch: 420-87322

1.0

Date Analyzed

Heterotrophic Plate Count

General Chemistry

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 12 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

General Chemistry

Client Sample ID: Well 4 - 5/29

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225

420-90837-1

Water

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

05/29/2015  2037

<0.250 mg/L 300.00.250

Anly Batch: 420-87335

1.0

Date Analyzed

Nitrate as N

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

06/12/2015  1344

0.410 NONE SM 2330B

Anly Batch: 420-87767

1.0

Date Analyzed

Langelier Index

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 13 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

General Chemistry

Client Sample ID: Well 4 - 5/29

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/29/2015  1110

05/29/2015  1225

420-90837-1

Water

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

06/08/2015  1525

81.7 mg/L SM 2320B-97,-115.00

Anly Batch: 420-87607

1.0

Date Analyzed

Alkalinity

06/05/2015  1510

974 mg/L SM2540C-97,115.00

Anly Batch: 420-87552

1.0

Date Analyzed

Total Dissolved Solids

05/29/2015  2037

2.69 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.11.50

Anly Batch: 420-87335

1.0

Date Analyzed

Chloride

05/29/2015  2037

17.1 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.15.00

Anly Batch: 420-87335

1.0

Date Analyzed

Sulfate

05/29/2015  2037

<0.500 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.10.500

Anly Batch: 420-87335

1.0

Date Analyzed

Fluoride

06/11/2015  1030

<0.00500 mg/L SM4500 CN E-990.00500

Anly Batch: 420-87713

1.0

06/01/2015  1000Prep Batch: 420-87545 Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed

Cyanide, Total

05/29/2015  1736

<2.00 Pt-Co SM2120B-01,112.00

Anly Batch: 420-87312

1.0

Date Analyzed

Apparent Color

05/29/2015  1736

7.83 SU SM2120B-01,112.00

Anly Batch: 420-87312

1.0

Date Analyzed

pH@color measurement

05/29/2015  1725

0.199 NTU SM2130B-01,110.100

Anly Batch: 420-87310

1.0

Date Analyzed

Turbidity

05/29/2015  1730

1.00 T.O.N. SM 2150B1.00

Anly Batch: 420-87311

1.0

Date Analyzed

Odor

05/29/2015  1730

60.0 Degrees C SM 2150B5.00

Anly Batch: 420-87311

1.0

Date Analyzed

Temp @ Odor Measurement

05/29/2015  1715

7.83 SU SM 4500 H+ BH 0.200

Anly Batch: 420-87313

1.0

Date Analyzed

pH

05/29/2015  1715

19.3 Degrees C SM 4500 H+ B5.00

Anly Batch: 420-87313

1.0

Date Analyzed

Temp @ pH Measurement

05/29/2015  1700

<0.0100 mg/L SM 4500B0.0100

Anly Batch: 420-87330

1.0

Date Analyzed

Nitrite as N

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 14 of 18



 DATA REPORTING QUALIFIERS

Lab Section Qualifier Description

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

General Chemistry

H Sample was prepped or analyzed beyond the specified holding 

time

Biology

g Result fails applicable NYS drinking water standards

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 15 of 18



Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oak

Definitions and Glossary

Abbreviation These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.

%R

DL, RA, RE

EPA

MDL

ND

QC

RL

RPD

Percent Recovery

Indicates a Dilution, Reanalysis or Reextraction.

United States Environmental Protection Agency

Method Detection Limit - an estimate of the minimum amount of a substance that an analytical 

process can reliably detect. A MDL is analyte- and matrix-specific and may be 

laboratory-dependent.

Not detected at the reporting limit (or MDL if shown).

Quality Control

Reporting Limit - the minimum levels, concentrations, or quantities of a target variable (e.g., 

target analyte) that can be reported with a specified degree of confidence.

Relative Percent Difference - a measure of the relative difference between two points.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 16 of 18



Page 17 of 18



LOGIN SAMPLE RECEIPT CHECK LIST

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90837-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oak

Question T/F/NA Comment

Login Number:  90837 

Samples were collected by ETL employee as per SOP-SAM-1 NA

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. False

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or tampered with. True

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. 5.4CTrue

Cooler Temp. is within method specified range.(0-6 C PW, 0-8 C NPW, or BAC <10 

C

True

If false, was sample received on ice within 6 hours of collection. NA

Based on above criteria cooler temperature is acceptable. True

COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

There are no discrepancies between the sample IDs on the containers and the 

COC.

True

Samples are received within Holding Time. True

Sample containers have legible labels. True

Containers are not broken or leaking. True

Sample collection date/times are provided. True

Appropriate sample containers are used. True

Sample bottles are completely filled. True

There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested MS/MSDs True

VOA sample vials do not have headspace or bubble is <6mm (1/4") in diameter. True

If necessary, staff have been informed of any short hold time or quick TAT needs True

Multiphasic samples are not present. True

Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.
Page 18 of 18



















#=CL#

June 09, 2015

LIMS USE: FR - RON BAYER
LIMS OBJECT ID: 35190843

35190843
Project:
Pace Project No.:

RE:

Ron Bayer
EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
315 Fullerton Avenue
Newburgh, NY 12550

LBG Inc

Dear Ron Bayer:
Enclosed are the analytical results for sample(s) received by the laboratory on June 02, 2015.  The
results relate only to the samples included in this report.  Results reported herein conform to the
most current TNI standards and the laboratory's Quality Assurance Manual, where applicable, unless
otherwise noted in the body of the report.

If you have any questions concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Bo Garcia
bo.garcia@pacelabs.com
Project Manager

Enclosures

cc: Debra Bayer, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Renee Cusack, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Joyce Esposito, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Janine Rader, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Meredith Ruthven, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 1 of 23



#=CP#

CERTIFICATIONS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Pennsylvania Certification IDs
1638 Roseytown Rd Suites 2,3&4, Greensburg, PA 15601
ACLASS DOD-ELAP Accreditation #: ADE-1544
Alabama Certification #: 41590
Arizona Certification #: AZ0734
Arkansas Certification
California/TNI Certification #: 04222CA
Colorado Certification
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0694
Delaware Certification
Florida/TNI Certification #: E87683
Guam/PADEP Certification
Hawaii/PADEP Certification
Idaho Certification
Illinois/PADEP Certification
Indiana/PADEP Certification
Iowa Certification #: 391
Kansas/TNI Certification #: E-10358
Kentucky Certification #: 90133
Louisiana DHH/TNI Certification #: LA140008
Louisiana DEQ/TNI Certification #: 4086
Maine Certification #: PA00091
Maryland Certification #: 308
Massachusetts Certification #: M-PA1457
Michigan/PADEP Certification
Missouri Certification #: 235

Montana Certification #: Cert 0082
Nebraska Certification #: NE-05-29-14
Nevada Certification
New Hampshire/TNI Certification #: 2976
New Jersey/TNI Certification #: PA 051
New Mexico Certification
New York/TNI Certification #: 10888
North Carolina Certification #: 42706
North Dakota Certification #: R-190
Oregon/TNI Certification #: PA200002
Pennsylvania/TNI Certification #: 65-00282
Puerto Rico Certification #: PA01457
South Dakota Certification
Tennessee Certification #: TN2867
Texas/TNI Certification #: T104704188
Utah/TNI Certification #: PA014572014-4
Vermont Dept. of Health: ID# VT-0282
Virgin Island/PADEP Certification
Virginia/VELAP Certification #: 460198
Washington Certification #: C868
West Virginia DEP Certification #: 143
West Virginia DHHR Certification #: 9964C
Wisconsin/PADEP Certification
Wyoming Certification #: 8TMS-Q

Ormond Beach Certification IDs
8 East Tower Circle, Ormond Beach, FL  32174
Alabama Certification #: 41320
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0216
Delaware Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Florida Certification #: E83079
Georgia Certification #: 955
Guam Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Hawaii Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Illinois Certification #: 200068
Indiana Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Kansas Certification #: E-10383
Kentucky Certification #: 90050
Louisiana Certification #: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Louisiana Environmental Certificate #: 05007
Maryland Certification: #346
Massachusetts Certification #: M-FL1264
Michigan Certification #: 9911
Mississippi Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Missouri Certification #: 236

Montana Certification #: Cert 0074
Nebraska Certification: NE-OS-28-14
Nevada Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
New Hampshire Certification #: 2958
New Jersey Certification #: FL765
New York Certification #: 11608
North Carolina Environmental Certificate #: 667
Pennsylvania Certification #: 68-00547
Puerto Rico Certification #: FL01264
South Carolina Certification: #96042001
Tennessee Certification #: TN02974
Texas Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
US Virgin Islands Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Virginia Environmental Certification #: 460165
Washington Certification #: C955
West Virginia Certification #: 9962C
Wisconsin Certification #: 399079670
Wyoming (EPA Region 8): FL NELAC Reciprocity

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 2 of 23



#=SS#

SAMPLE SUMMARY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Lab ID Sample ID Matrix Date Collected Date Received

35190843001 Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) Drinking Water 05/29/15 11:10 06/02/15 11:05

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 3 of 23



#=SA#

SAMPLE ANALYTE COUNT

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Lab ID Sample ID Method

Analytes

Reported LaboratoryAnalysts

35190843001 Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 504.1 2 PASI-OAYF

EPA 508.1 25 PASI-OJTJ

EPA 515.3 8 PASI-OLJM

EPA 531.1 9 PASI-OWFH

EPA 525.2 8 PASI-OTWB

SM 7500Rn-B 1 PASI-PAFCC

EPA 900.0 2 PASI-PAFCC

EPA 903.1 1 PASI-PAJC2

EPA 904.0 1 PASI-PAJLW

EPA 908.0 1 PASI-PAJAL

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 4 of 23



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Sample: Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) Lab ID: 35190843001 Collected: 05/29/15 11:10 Received: 06/02/15 11:05 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method: EPA 504.1  Preparation Method: EPA 504.1504.1 GCS EDB and DBCP

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane <0.0051 ug/L 06/04/15 03:03 96-12-806/03/15 18:100.021 0.0051 1
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) <0.0065 ug/L 06/04/15 03:03 106-93-406/03/15 18:100.010 0.0065 1

Analytical Method: EPA 508.1  Preparation Method: EPA 508.1508.1 GCS Pesticides

Alachlor <0.032 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 15972-60-806/04/15 12:000.19 0.032 1
Atrazine <0.020 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 1912-24-906/04/15 12:000.095 0.020 1
gamma-BHC (Lindane) <0.0028 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 58-89-906/04/15 12:000.019 0.0028 1
Butachlor <0.014 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 23184-66-906/04/15 12:000.095 0.014 1
Chlordane (Technical) <0.044 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 57-74-906/04/15 12:000.19 0.044 1
Dieldrin <0.013 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 60-57-106/04/15 12:000.095 0.013 1
Endrin <0.0019 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 72-20-806/04/15 12:000.0095 0.0019 1
Heptachlor <0.0057 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 76-44-806/04/15 12:000.038 0.0057 1
Heptachlor epoxide <0.0028 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 1024-57-306/04/15 12:000.019 0.0028 1
Hexachlorobenzene <0.010 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 118-74-106/04/15 12:000.095 0.010 1
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene <0.030 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 77-47-4 L306/04/15 12:000.095 0.030 1
Methoxychlor <0.013 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 72-43-506/04/15 12:000.095 0.013 1
Metolachlor <0.010 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 51218-45-206/04/15 12:000.095 0.010 1
PCB-1016 (Aroclor 1016) <0.076 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 12674-11-206/04/15 12:000.095 0.076 1
PCB-1221 (Aroclor 1221) <0.027 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 11104-28-206/04/15 12:000.095 0.027 1
PCB-1232 (Aroclor 1232) <0.027 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 11141-16-506/04/15 12:000.095 0.027 1
PCB-1242 (Aroclor 1242) <0.048 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 53469-21-906/04/15 12:000.095 0.048 1
PCB-1248 (Aroclor 1248) <0.059 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 12672-29-606/04/15 12:000.095 0.059 1
PCB-1254 (Aroclor 1254) <0.022 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 11097-69-106/04/15 12:000.095 0.022 1
PCB-1260 (Aroclor 1260) <0.062 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 11096-82-506/04/15 12:000.095 0.062 1
PCB, Total <0.076 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 1336-36-306/04/15 12:000.095 0.076 1
Propachlor <0.0095 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 1918-16-706/04/15 12:000.095 0.0095 1
Simazine <0.042 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 122-34-906/04/15 12:000.066 0.042 1
Toxaphene <0.57 ug/L 06/05/15 09:08 8001-35-206/04/15 12:000.95 0.57 1
Surrogates
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) 127 % 06/05/15 09:08 2051-24-306/04/15 12:0070-130 1

Analytical Method: EPA 515.3  Preparation Method: EPA 515.3515.3 Chlorinated Herbicides

2,4-D <0.081 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 94-75-706/03/15 08:500.10 0.081 1
Dalapon <0.89 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 75-99-006/03/15 08:501.0 0.89 1
Dicamba <0.067 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 1918-00-906/03/15 08:500.10 0.067 1
Dinoseb <0.16 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 88-85-706/03/15 08:500.20 0.16 1
Pentachlorophenol <0.030 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 87-86-506/03/15 08:500.040 0.030 1
Picloram <0.094 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 1918-02-106/03/15 08:500.10 0.094 1
2,4,5-TP (Silvex) <0.16 ug/L 06/04/15 01:57 93-72-106/03/15 08:500.20 0.16 1
Surrogates
2,4-DCAA (S) 85 % 06/04/15 01:57 19719-28-906/03/15 08:5070-130 1

Analytical Method: EPA 531.1531.1 HPLC Carbamates

Aldicarb <0.70 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 116-06-32.0 0.70 1
Aldicarb sulfone <0.60 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 1646-88-42.0 0.60 1
Aldicarb sulfoxide <0.67 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 1646-87-32.0 0.67 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 5 of 23



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Sample: Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) Lab ID: 35190843001 Collected: 05/29/15 11:10 Received: 06/02/15 11:05 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method: EPA 531.1531.1 HPLC Carbamates

Carbofuran <0.75 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 1563-66-22.0 0.75 1
3-Hydroxycarbofuran <0.51 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 16655-82-62.0 0.51 1
Methomyl <0.57 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 16752-77-52.0 0.57 1
Oxamyl <0.47 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 23135-22-02.0 0.47 1
Carbaryl <0.28 ug/L 06/05/15 16:44 63-25-22.0 0.28 1
Surrogates
Propoxur (S) 104 % 06/05/15 16:44 114-26-1 P480-120 1

Analytical Method: EPA 525.2  Preparation Method: EPA 525.2525.2 Base Neutral Extractable

Aldrin <0.034 ug/L 06/04/15 23:01 309-00-206/04/15 12:000.095 0.034 1
Benzo(a)pyrene <0.018 ug/L 06/04/15 23:01 50-32-806/04/15 12:000.095 0.018 1
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate <0.36 ug/L 06/04/15 23:01 103-23-106/04/15 12:001.5 0.36 1
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate <0.47 ug/L 06/04/15 23:01 117-81-706/04/15 12:001.9 0.47 1
Metribuzin <0.029 ug/L 06/04/15 23:01 21087-64-906/04/15 12:000.28 0.029 1
Surrogates
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) 110 % 06/04/15 23:01 8120906/04/15 12:0070-130 1
Perylene-d12 (S) 80 % 06/04/15 23:01 152096306/04/15 12:0070-130 1
Triphenylphosphate (S) 103 % 06/04/15 23:01 115-86-606/04/15 12:0070-130 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 6 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

GCSV/14781
EPA 531.1

EPA 531.1
531.1 HPLC Carbamate

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1231925
Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L <0.51 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Aldicarb ug/L <0.70 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L <0.60 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L <0.67 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Carbaryl ug/L <0.28 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Carbofuran ug/L <0.75 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Methomyl ug/L <0.57 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Oxamyl ug/L <0.47 2.0 06/05/15 10:37
Propoxur (S) % 106 80-120 06/05/15 10:37

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1231926LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L 10.110 101 80-120
Aldicarb ug/L 10.010 100 80-120
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L 9.810 98 80-120
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L 11.810 118 80-120
Carbaryl ug/L 10.310 103 80-120
Carbofuran ug/L 10.710 107 80-120
Methomyl ug/L 9.910 99 80-120
Oxamyl ug/L 9.110 91 80-120
Propoxur (S) % 101 80-120

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1231927MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35190710006

1231928

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L 10 102 80-120112 9 20100.51U 10.2 11.2
Aldicarb ug/L 10 102 80-120107 4 20100.70U 10.2 10.7
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L 10 98 80-120112 14 20100.60U 9.8 11.2
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L M110 99 80-120121 20 20100.67U 9.9 12.1
Carbaryl ug/L M110 107 80-120125 15 20100.28U 10.7 12.5
Carbofuran ug/L M110 114 80-120123 8 20100.75U 11.4 12.3
Methomyl ug/L 10 104 80-120116 11 20100.57U 10.4 11.6
Oxamyl ug/L 10 90 80-120103 14 20100.47U 9.0 10.3
Propoxur (S) % 104 80-120112

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 7 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22680
EPA 504.1

EPA 504.1
504 EDB DBCP

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1230701
Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane ug/L <0.0049 0.020 06/04/15 01:02
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L <0.0062 0.010 06/04/15 01:02

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1230702LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE & LCSD:
LCSSpike LCSD

% Rec RPD
Max
RPD

LCSD
Result

1231131

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane ug/L 0.23.25 94 70-130870.22 7 40
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L 0.22.25 88 70-130820.20 8 40

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1231132MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35190496001

1231133

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

1,2-Dibromo-3-
chloropropane

ug/L .44 127 65-135130 2 40.44<0.0050 0.56 0.57

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L .44 116 65-135119 2 40.44<0.0064 0.51 0.52

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 8 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22691
EPA 508.1

EPA 508.1
508 GCS Pesticide

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1231092
Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Alachlor ug/L <0.034 0.20 06/05/15 04:11
Atrazine ug/L <0.021 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Butachlor ug/L <0.015 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Chlordane (Technical) ug/L <0.047 0.20 06/05/15 04:11
Dieldrin ug/L <0.014 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Endrin ug/L <0.0020 0.010 06/05/15 04:11
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L <0.0030 0.020 06/05/15 04:11
Heptachlor ug/L <0.0060 0.040 06/05/15 04:11
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L <0.0030 0.020 06/05/15 04:11
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L <0.011 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L <0.032 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Methoxychlor ug/L <0.014 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Metolachlor ug/L <0.011 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB, Total ug/L <0.080 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1016 (Aroclor 1016) ug/L <0.080 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1221 (Aroclor 1221) ug/L <0.029 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1232 (Aroclor 1232) ug/L <0.029 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1242 (Aroclor 1242) ug/L <0.051 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1248 (Aroclor 1248) ug/L <0.062 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1254 (Aroclor 1254) ug/L <0.023 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
PCB-1260 (Aroclor 1260) ug/L <0.066 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Propachlor ug/L <0.010 0.10 06/05/15 04:11
Simazine ug/L <0.044 0.070 06/05/15 04:11
Toxaphene ug/L <0.61 1.0 06/05/15 04:11
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 133 70-130 S306/05/15 04:11

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1231093LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Alachlor ug/L 1.21 118 70-130
Atrazine ug/L 1.31.2 105 70-130
Butachlor ug/L 0.57.5 114 70-130
Dieldrin ug/L 0.59.5 118 70-130
Endrin ug/L 0.059.05 119 70-130
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L 0.11.1 113 70-130
Heptachlor ug/L 0.21.2 105 70-130
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L 0.13.1 130 70-130
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L 0.50.5 100 70-130
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L 0.68 L0.5 137 70-130
Methoxychlor ug/L 0.57.5 114 70-130

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 9 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1231093LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Metolachlor ug/L 0.59.5 118 70-130
Propachlor ug/L 0.56.5 112 70-130
Simazine ug/L 0.82.88 93 70-130
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 130 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1231805MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35190843001

1231806

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Alachlor ug/L 2 121 65-135117 3 402<0.032 2.4 2.3
Atrazine ug/L 2.5 109 65-135103 5 402.5<0.020 2.7 2.6
Butachlor ug/L 1 119 65-135111 6 401<0.014 1.2 1.1
Dieldrin ug/L 1 118 65-135116 3 401<0.013 1.2 1.2
Endrin ug/L .1 115 65-135111 3 40.1<0.0019 0.11 0.11
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L .2 112 65-135110 1 40.2<0.0028 0.22 0.22
Heptachlor ug/L .4 100 65-13598 2 40.4<0.0057 0.40 0.39
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L .2 128 65-135126 2 40.2<0.0028 0.26 0.25
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L 1 96 65-13592 5 401<0.010 0.96 0.92
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L 1 116 65-135108 8 401<0.030 1.2 1.1
Methoxychlor ug/L 1 112 65-135107 4 401<0.013 1.1 1.1
Metolachlor ug/L 1 113 65-135106 6 401<0.010 1.1 1.1
Propachlor ug/L 1 111 65-135108 3 401<0.0095 1.1 1.1
Simazine ug/L 1.8 94 65-13599 5 401.8<0.042 1.6 1.7
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % S0133 70-130125 40

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 10 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22664
EPA 515.3

EPA 515.3
5153 GCS Herbicides

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1229221
Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L <0.16 0.20 06/02/15 23:36
2,4-D ug/L <0.081 0.10 06/02/15 23:36
Dalapon ug/L <0.89 1.0 06/02/15 23:36
Dicamba ug/L <0.067 0.10 06/02/15 23:36
Dinoseb ug/L <0.16 0.20 06/02/15 23:36
Pentachlorophenol ug/L <0.030 0.040 06/02/15 23:36
Picloram ug/L <0.094 0.10 06/02/15 23:36
2,4-DCAA (S) % 86 70-130 06/02/15 23:36

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1229222LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 0.961 96 70-130
2,4-D ug/L 0.58.5 115 70-130
Dalapon ug/L 4.05 80 70-130
Dicamba ug/L 0.46.5 92 70-130
Dinoseb ug/L 0.901 90 70-130
Pentachlorophenol ug/L 0.18.2 88 70-130
Picloram ug/L 0.45.5 91 70-130
2,4-DCAA (S) % 85 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1229473MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

92251692001

1229474

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1 89 70-13095 7 401ND 0.89 0.95
2,4-D ug/L .5 106 70-130105 1 40.5ND 0.53 0.53
Dalapon ug/L 5 85 70-13092 8 405ND 4.3 4.6
Dicamba ug/L .5 102 70-13093 8 40.5ND 0.51 0.47
Dinoseb ug/L 1 89 70-13089 0 401ND 0.89 0.89
Pentachlorophenol ug/L .2 88 70-13088 0 40.2ND 0.18 0.18
Picloram ug/L .5 87 70-13093 6 40.5ND 0.43 0.46
2,4-DCAA (S) % 81 70-13086

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 11 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1230655MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35190849003

1230656

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1 97 70-13095 2 4010.16U 0.97 0.95
2,4-D ug/L .5 118 70-130120 1 40.50.081U 0.59 0.60
Dalapon ug/L 5 87 70-13085 2 4050.89U 4.3 4.2
Dicamba ug/L .5 82 70-13099 18 40.50.067U 0.41 0.49
Dinoseb ug/L 1 86 70-13088 3 4010.16U 0.86 0.88
Pentachlorophenol ug/L .2 83 70-13081 2 40.20.030U 0.17 0.16
Picloram ug/L .5 94 70-13089 5 40.50.094U 0.47 0.45
2,4-DCAA (S) % 84 70-13084

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 12 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22692
EPA 525.2

EPA 525.2
525.2 Base Neutral Extractables

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1231096
Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Aldrin ug/L <0.036 0.10 06/04/15 15:45
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L <0.019 0.10 06/04/15 15:45
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L <0.38 1.6 06/04/15 15:45
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L <0.50 2.0 06/04/15 15:45
Metribuzin ug/L <0.031 0.30 06/04/15 15:45
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) % 115 70-130 06/04/15 15:45
Perylene-d12 (S) % 104 70-130 06/04/15 15:45
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 102 70-130 06/04/15 15:45

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1231097LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Aldrin ug/L 0.29.4 72 70-130
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L 0.37.4 93 70-130
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L 6.36.4 98 70-130
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L 9.18 113 70-130
Metribuzin ug/L 1.11.2 88 70-130
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) % 112 70-130
Perylene-d12 (S) % 101 70-130
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 105 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1231807MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35190350001

1231808

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Aldrin ug/L .8 98 70-13091 6 40.80.034U 0.78 0.73
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L .8 92 70-13095 4 40.80.018U 0.73 0.76
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L 12.8 97 70-13081 18 4012.80.36U 12.5 10.4
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L 16 108 70-130102 6 40160.47U 17.3 16.3
Metribuzin ug/L 2.4 88 70-130101 13 402.40.029U 2.1 2.4
1,3-Dimethyl-2-
nitrobenzene(S)

% 91 70-130119

Perylene-d12 (S) % 112 70-130111
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 107 70-13090

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 13 of 23



#=ARR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Sample: Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) Lab ID: 35190843001 Collected: 05/29/15 11:10 Received: 06/02/15 11:05 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Act ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Units Analyzed CAS No. QualMethod

PWS: Site ID: Sample Type:

Radon 2,469 ± 98.1   (60.1)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/01/15 19:53 10043-92-2SM 7500Rn-B

Gross Alpha 3.20 ± 1.79   (2.93)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/08/15 07:42 12587-46-1EPA 900.0

Gross Beta 2.91 ± 1.02   (1.61)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/08/15 07:42 12587-47-2EPA 900.0

Radium-226 0.845U ± 0.592   (0.845)
C:NA T:89%

pCi/L 06/08/15 09:35 13982-63-3EPA 903.1

Radium-228 0.801 ± 0.384   (0.731)
C:85% T:83%

pCi/L 06/08/15 13:11 15262-20-1EPA 904.0

Total Uranium 3.17 ± 0.340   (0.297)
C:NA T:76%

pCi/L 06/05/15 20:03 7440-61-1EPA 908.0

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 14 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24673
EPA 903.1

EPA 903.1
903.1 Radium-226

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 902263

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radium-226 pCi/L 06/08/15 09:240.0475 ± 0.487   (0.987) C:NA T:95%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 15 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24676
EPA 904.0

EPA 904.0
904.0 Radium 228

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 902266

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radium-228 pCi/L 06/08/15 13:110.164 ± 0.403   (0.859) C:84% T:81%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 16 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24637
SM 7500Rn-B

SM 7500Rn-B
7500Rn B Radon

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 900706

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radon pCi/L 06/01/15 17:08-2.3 ± 18.6   (32.6) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 17 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24688
EPA 900.0

EPA 900.0
900.0 Gross Alpha/Beta

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 902278

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Gross Alpha pCi/L 06/08/15 07:41-0.364 ± 0.773   (2.25) C:NA T:NA
Gross Beta pCi/L 06/08/15 07:41-0.530 ± 0.609   (1.75) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 18 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24682
EPA 908.0

EPA 908.0
908.0 Total Uranium

Associated Lab Samples: 35190843001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 902272

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Total Uranium pCi/L 06/05/15 17:17-0.0990 ± 0.163   (0.300) C:NA T:91%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 19 of 23



#=QL#

QUALIFIERS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

DEFINITIONS

DF - Dilution Factor, if reported, represents the factor applied to the reported data due to dilution of the sample aliquot.
ND - Not Detected at or above adjusted reporting limit.
J - Estimated concentration above the adjusted method detection limit and below the adjusted reporting limit.
MDL - Adjusted Method Detection Limit.
PQL - Practical Quantitation Limit.
RL - Reporting Limit.
S - Surrogate
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine decomposes to and cannot be separated from Azobenzene using Method 8270. The result for each analyte is
a combined concentration.
Consistent with EPA guidelines, unrounded data are displayed and have been used to calculate % recovery and RPD values.
LCS(D) - Laboratory Control Sample (Duplicate)
MS(D) - Matrix Spike (Duplicate)
DUP - Sample Duplicate
RPD - Relative Percent Difference
NC - Not Calculable.
SG - Silica Gel - Clean-Up
U - Indicates the compound was analyzed for, but not detected.
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine decomposes and cannot be separated from Diphenylamine using Method 8270.  The result reported for
each analyte is a combined concentration.
Act - Activity
Unc - Uncertainty: SDWA = 1.96 sigma count uncertainty, all other matrices = Expanded Uncertainty (95% confidence interval).
Gamma Spec = Expanded Uncertainty (95.4% Confidence Interval)
(MDC) - Minimum Detectable Concentration
Trac - Tracer Recovery (%)
Carr - Carrier Recovery (%)
Pace Analytical is TNI accredited. Contact your Pace PM for the current list of accredited analytes.
TNI - The NELAC Institute.

LABORATORIES

Pace Analytical Services - Ormond BeachPASI-O
Pace Analytical Services - GreensburgPASI-PA

ANALYTE QUALIFIERS

Analyte recovery in the laboratory control sample (LCS) was outside QC limits.L0
Analyte recovery in the laboratory control sample (LCS) exceeded QC limits. Analyte presence below reporting limits in
associated samples.  Results unaffected by high bias.

L3

Matrix spike recovery exceeded QC limits.  Batch accepted based on laboratory control sample (LCS) recovery.M1
Sample field preservation does not meet EPA or method recommendations for this analysis.P4
Surrogate recovery outside laboratory control limits.S0
Surrogate recovery exceeded laboratory control limits. Analyte presence below reporting limits in associated samples.
Results unaffected by high bias.

S3

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 20 of 23



#=CR#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA CROSS REFERENCE TABLE

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35190843
LBG Inc

Lab ID Sample ID QC Batch Method QC Batch Analytical Method

Analytical

Batch

35190843001 OEXT/22680 GCSV/14773Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 504.1 EPA 504.1

35190843001 OEXT/22691 GCSV/14787Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 508.1 EPA 508.1

35190843001 OEXT/22664 GCSV/14759Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 515.3 EPA 515.3

35190843001 GCSV/14781Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 531.1

35190843001 OEXT/22692 MSSV/7901Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 525.2 EPA 525.2

35190843001 RADC/24637Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) SM 7500Rn-B

35190843001 RADC/24688Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 900.0

35190843001 RADC/24673Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 903.1

35190843001 RADC/24676Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 904.0

35190843001 RADC/24682Well 4 5/29 (420-90837-1) EPA 908.0

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/09/2015 03:42 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 21 of 23



Page 22 of 23



Page 23 of 23



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WATER QUALITY  

WELL 5



ANALYTICAL REPORT

Job Number:  420-90570-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Job Description:  LBG, Inc.

For:

Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

4 Research Drive

Shelton, CT  06464

Attention: Stacy Stieber

Debra Bayer

Customer Service Manager

dbayer@envirotestlaboratories.com

06/16/2015

NYSDOH ELAP does not certify for all parameters. EnviroTest Laboratories does hold certification for all analytes where certification 

is offered by ELAP unless otherwise specified. Pursuant to NELAP, this report may not be reproduced, except in full, without written 

approval of the laboratory. EnviroTest Laboratories Inc. certifies that the analytical results contained herein apply only to the samples 

tested as received by our laboratory. All questions regarding this report should be directed to the EnviroTest Customer Service 

Representative.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Certifications and Approvals: NYSDOH 10142, NJDEP NY015, CTDOPH PH-0554

315 Fullerton Avenue, Newburgh, NY  12550

Tel (845) 562-0890  Fax (845) 562-0841  www.envirotestlaboratories.com

Envirotest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 1 of 18



Job Narrative

420-J90570-1

Receipt 

All samples were received in good condition within temperature requirements.

GC/MS VOA 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

Metals 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

General Chemistry 

Method SM 4500 H+ B: The holding time for pH is 15 minutes, the samples were received outside of the holding time.

No other analytical or quality issues were noted.

Biology 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

Page 2 of 18



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-90570-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

SDG Number: Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Matrix: Water

EPA 200.7 Rev 4.4ICP Metals by 200.7 EnvTest

FILTRATIONEnvTestSample Filtration

EPA 200EnvTest200 Series Drinking Water Prep Determination Step

EPA 200.7EnvTestTotal Metals Digestion for 200.7

EPA 200.8 Rev.5.4ICPMS Metals by 200.8 EnvTest

EPA 200EnvTest200 Series Drinking Water Prep Determination Step

EPA 200.8EnvTestTotal Metals Digestion for 200.8

EPA 245.1 Rev.3.0Mercury in Water by CVAA EnvTest

EPA 245.1EnvTestDigestion for CVAA Mercury in Waters

MCAWW 300.0Anions by Ion Chromatography EnvTest

EPA 300.0 Rev. 2.1Anions by Ion Chromatography EnvTest

EPA 504.1EPA 504.1 EDB Pace

EPA 505EPA 505 Pesticide/PCB Pace

EPA 515EPA 515 Chlorinated Acids Pace

EPA-DW 524.2Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS EnvTest

EPA 525.2EPA 525.2 Semivolatile Organics Pace

EPA 531.1EPA 531.1 Carbamate Pesticides in Drinki Pace

EPA 900EPA 900 Series GA/GB/RA226/RA228/Gamma Pace

STL-STL EPAUranium Pace

IDEXX SIMPLATEHeterotropic Plate Count EnvTest

SM20 SM 2150BOdor, Threshold Test EnvTest

SM21 SM 2320B-97,-11Alkalinity, Titration Method EnvTest

SM20 SM 2330BCorrosivity LSI Calculation EnvTest

SM20 SM 2340B-97,-11Hardness by Calculation EnvTest

SM19 SM 4500 H+ BpH EnvTest

SM20 SM 4500BNitrite by Colormetric EnvTest

SMWW SM 9223Total Coliform and Escherichia coli by Colilert - 

Presence/Absence

EnvTest

SM21 SM2120B-01,11Apparent Color EnvTest

SM21 SM2130B-01,11Turbidity EnvTest

SM21 SM2540C-97,11Total Dissolved Solids (Dried at 180 °C) EnvTest

SM21 SM4500 CN E-99Cyanide, Total: Colorimetric Method EnvTest

SM21 SM 4500 CN CEnvTestCyanide: Distillation

SubcontractGeneral Sub Contract Method Pace

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 3 of 18



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-90570-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

SDG Number: Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Lab References:

EnvTest = EnviroTest

Pace = Pace Analytical - Ormond Beach

Method References:

EPA = US Environmental Protection Agency

EPA-DW = "Methods For The Determination Of Organic Compounds In Drinking Water", EPA/600/4-88/039, December 1988 And 

Its Supplements.

IDEXX = 

MCAWW = "Methods For Chemical Analysis Of Water And Wastes", EPA-600/4-79-020, March 1983 And Subsequent Revisions.

SM19 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 19Th Edition, 1995."

SM20 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 20th Edition."

SM21 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 21st Edition

SMWW = "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater"

STL-STL = Severn Trent Laboratories, St. Louis, Facility Standard Operating Procedure.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 4 of 18



METHOD / ANALYST  SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Method Analyst Analyst ID

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Andersen, Eric C ECAEPA-DW   524.2

Goldstein, Amy AGEPA   200.7 Rev 4.4

McPhillips, Julie JMEPA   200.8 Rev.5.4

Goldstein, Amy AGEPA   245.1 Rev.3.0

Goldstein, Amy AGSM20   SM 2340B-97,-11

Sirico, Derek DSMCAWW   300.0

Cusack, Renee RCEPA   300.0 Rev. 2.1

Sirico, Derek DSEPA   300.0 Rev. 2.1

Travis, Lyndsey LTIDEXX   SIMPLATE

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM20   SM 2150B

Luis, Carlos CLSM21   SM 2320B-97,-11

Cusack, Renee RCSM20   SM 2330B

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM19   SM 4500 H+ B

Sirico, Derek DSSM20   SM 4500B

Travis, Lyndsey LTSMWW   SM 9223

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM21   SM2120B-01,11

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM21   SM2130B-01,11

Travis, Lyndsey LTSM21   SM2540C-97,11

Sirico, Derek DSSM21   SM4500 CN E-99

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 5 of 18



SAMPLE SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Client Sample IDLab Sample ID Client Matrix

Date/Time 

Sampled

Date/Time 

Received

05/21/2015  1130 05/21/2015  1334Well 5-5/21420-90570-1 Drinking Water

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 6 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY
Client Sample ID:

Lab Sample ID: Date Sampled:

Date Received:

Well 5-5/21

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334Client Matrix:

524.2 Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed:

Dilution:

Preparation:

Method:

05/21/2015  2006

1.0

524.2

N/A

N/A

Analysis Batch: 420-87011

Final Weight/Volume:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Lab File ID:

Instrument ID: Agilent 7890A/5975C 

X052123.D

5   mL

5   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) RLQualifier

<0.500 0.5001,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,1-Trichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,2-Trichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.5001,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2,3-Trichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,3-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,4-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5002,2-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.500Benzene

<0.500 0.500Bromobenzene

<0.500 0.500Bromochloromethane

<0.500 0.500Bromomethane

<0.500 0.500n-Butylbenzene

<0.500 0.500cis-1,2-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.500cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.500Carbon tetrachloride

<0.500 0.500Chlorobenzene

<0.500 0.500Chloroethane

<0.500 0.500Chloromethane

<0.500 0.500Dibromomethane

<0.500 0.500Ethylbenzene

<0.500 0.500Dichlorodifluoromethane

<0.500 0.500Hexachlorobutadiene

<0.500 0.500Isopropylbenzene

<0.500 0.500p-Isopropyltoluene

<0.500 0.500Methylene Chloride

<1.00 1.00m-Xylene & p-Xylene

<0.500 0.500Methyl tert-butyl ether

<0.500 0.500o-Xylene

<0.500 0.500Tetrachloroethene

<0.500 0.500Toluene

<0.500 0.500trans-1,2-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.500trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.500Trichloroethene

<0.500 0.500tert-Butylbenzene

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 7 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY
Client Sample ID:

Lab Sample ID: Date Sampled:

Date Received:

Well 5-5/21

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334Client Matrix:

524.2 Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed:

Dilution:

Preparation:

Method:

05/21/2015  2006

1.0

524.2

N/A

N/A

Analysis Batch: 420-87011

Final Weight/Volume:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Lab File ID:

Instrument ID: Agilent 7890A/5975C 

X052123.D

5   mL

5   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) RLQualifier

<0.500 0.500Trichlorofluoromethane

<0.500 0.500Vinyl chloride

<1.50 1.50Xylenes, Total

<0.500 0.500Styrene

<0.500 0.500sec-Butylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

<0.500 0.500N-Propylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,3-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5002-Chlorotoluene

<0.500 0.5004-Chlorotoluene

Surrogate %Rec Acceptance Limits

98 71 - 1204-Bromofluorobenzene

111 79 - 121Toluene-d8 (Surr)

119 70 - 1281,2-Dichloroethane-d4 (Surr)

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 8 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Client Sample ID: Well 5-5/21

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

200.7 Rev 4.4 ICP Metals by 200.7

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/26/2015  2326

05/22/2015  1745

Thermo ICP

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87149

200 Prep Batch: 420-87055

<60.0 60.0Iron

<10.0 10.0Manganese

<20.0 20.0Zinc

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/28/2015  0403

05/22/2015  1745

Thermo ICP

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87196

200 Prep Batch: 420-87055

7850 200Sodium

200.7 Rev 4.4 ICP Metals by 200.7-Dissolved

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/29/2015  1820

05/22/2015  1830

None

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87384

200.7 Prep Batch: 420-87061

<60.0 60.0Iron

<10.0 10.0Manganese

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 9 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Client Sample ID: Well 5-5/21

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

200.8 Rev.5.4 ICPMS Metals by 200.8

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/27/2015  1950

05/22/2015  1145

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87181

200.8 Prep Batch: 420-87063

<1.00 1.00Silver

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/27/2015  2134

05/22/2015  1745

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87181

200 Prep Batch: 420-87055

<1.00 1.00Lead

<1.40 1.40Arsenic

<0.300 0.300Beryllium

<1.00 1.00Cadmium

<7.00 7.00Chromium

1.52 0.500Nickel

<0.400 0.400Antimony

<0.300 0.300Thallium

<2.00 2.00Selenium

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/28/2015  1325

05/22/2015  1745

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-87222

200 Prep Batch: 420-87055

14.1 2.00Barium

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 10 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Client Sample ID: Well 5-5/21

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

245.1 Rev.3.0 Mercury in Water by CVAA

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/27/2015  1506

05/26/2015  1206

Perkin Elmer FIMS

N/A

25   mL

25   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

245.1 Rev.3.0 Analysis Batch: 420-87163

245.1 Prep Batch: 420-87100

<0.200 0.200Mercury

SM 2340B-97,-11 Hardness by Calculation

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:05/26/2015  2216

None

N/A

Analyte Result (mg/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

SM 2340B-97,-11 Analysis Batch: 420-87162

N/A

N/A

84.8 1.25Calcium hardness as calcium carbonate

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 11 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Biology

Client Sample ID: Well 5-5/21

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

05/21/2015  1725

Present CFU/100mL SM 9223g

Anly Batch: 420-87006

1.0

Date Analyzed

Coliform, Total

05/21/2015  1725

Absent CFU/100mL SM 9223

Anly Batch: 420-87006

1.0

Date Analyzed

Escherichia coli

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

05/21/2015  1615

62.0 CFU/mL SIMPLATE2.00

Anly Batch: 420-87103

1.0

Date Analyzed

Heterotrophic Plate Count

General Chemistry

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 12 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

General Chemistry

Client Sample ID: Well 5-5/21

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

05/22/2015  1710

0.504 mg/L 300.00.250

Anly Batch: 420-87083

1.0

Date Analyzed

Nitrate as N

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

06/12/2015  1344

0.210 NONE SM 2330B

Anly Batch: 420-87767

1.0

Date Analyzed

Langelier Index

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 13 of 18



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

General Chemistry

Client Sample ID: Well 5-5/21

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

05/21/2015  1130

05/21/2015  1334

420-90570-1

Drinking Water

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

06/01/2015  1530

91.9 mg/L SM 2320B-97,-115.00

Anly Batch: 420-87378

1.0

Date Analyzed

Alkalinity

05/26/2015  1425

222 mg/L SM2540C-97,115.00

Anly Batch: 420-87191

1.0

Date Analyzed

Total Dissolved Solids

05/22/2015  0019

41.2 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.110.0

Anly Batch: 420-87015

2.0

Date Analyzed

Sulfate

05/22/2015  0019

<1.00 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.11.00

Anly Batch: 420-87015

2.0

Date Analyzed

Fluoride

05/22/2015  1723

17.7 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.115.0

Anly Batch: 420-87083

10

Date Analyzed

Chloride

05/29/2015  1520

<0.00500 mg/L SM4500 CN E-990.00500

Anly Batch: 420-87277

1.0

05/28/2015  1200Prep Batch: 420-87273 Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed

Cyanide, Total

05/22/2015  0834

<2.00 Pt-Co SM2120B-01,112.00

Anly Batch: 420-87112

1.0

Date Analyzed

Apparent Color

05/22/2015  0834

7.70 SU SM2120B-01,112.00

Anly Batch: 420-87112

1.0

Date Analyzed

pH@color measurement

05/22/2015  0822

0.324 NTU SM2130B-01,110.100

Anly Batch: 420-87109

1.0

Date Analyzed

Turbidity

05/22/2015  0930

1.00 T.O.N. SM 2150B1.00

Anly Batch: 420-87111

1.0

Date Analyzed

Odor

05/22/2015  0930

60.0 Degrees C SM 2150B5.00

Anly Batch: 420-87111

1.0

Date Analyzed

Temp @ Odor Measurement

05/21/2015  1806

7.70 SU SM 4500 H+ BH 0.200

Anly Batch: 420-87045

1.0

Date Analyzed

pH

05/21/2015  1806

16.6 Degrees C SM 4500 H+ B5.00

Anly Batch: 420-87045

1.0

Date Analyzed

Temp @ pH Measurement

05/21/2015  1545

<0.0100 mg/L SM 4500B0.0100

Anly Batch: 420-87089

1.0

Date Analyzed

Nitrite as N

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Page 14 of 18



 DATA REPORTING QUALIFIERS

Lab Section Qualifier Description

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

General Chemistry

H Sample was prepped or analyzed beyond the specified holding 

time

Biology

g Result fails applicable NYS drinking water standards

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 15 of 18



Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Definitions and Glossary

Abbreviation These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.

%R

DL, RA, RE

EPA

MDL

ND

QC

RL

RPD

Percent Recovery

Indicates a Dilution, Reanalysis or Reextraction.

United States Environmental Protection Agency

Method Detection Limit - an estimate of the minimum amount of a substance that an analytical 

process can reliably detect. A MDL is analyte- and matrix-specific and may be 

laboratory-dependent.

Not detected at the reporting limit (or MDL if shown).

Quality Control

Reporting Limit - the minimum levels, concentrations, or quantities of a target variable (e.g., 

target analyte) that can be reported with a specified degree of confidence.

Relative Percent Difference - a measure of the relative difference between two points.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

Page 16 of 18



Page 17 of 18



LOGIN SAMPLE RECEIPT CHECK LIST

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-90570-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Lewisboro, NY

Question T/F/NA Comment

Login Number:  90570 

Samples were collected by ETL employee as per SOP-SAM-1 NA

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. NA

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or tampered with. True

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. 6.5CTrue

Cooler Temp. is within method specified range.(0-6 C PW, 0-8 C NPW, or BAC <10 

C

True

If false, was sample received on ice within 6 hours of collection. NA

Based on above criteria cooler temperature is acceptable. True

COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

There are no discrepancies between the sample IDs on the containers and the 

COC.

True

Samples are received within Holding Time. True

Sample containers have legible labels. True

Containers are not broken or leaking. True

Sample collection date/times are provided. True

Appropriate sample containers are used. True

Sample bottles are completely filled. True

There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested MS/MSDs True

VOA sample vials do not have headspace or bubble is <6mm (1/4") in diameter. True

If necessary, staff have been informed of any short hold time or quick TAT needs True

Multiphasic samples are not present. True

Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.
Page 18 of 18

















#=CL#

June 03, 2015

LIMS USE: FR - RON BAYER
LIMS OBJECT ID: 35189601

35189601
Project:
Pace Project No.:

RE:

Ron Bayer
EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
315 Fullerton Avenue
Newburgh, NY 12550

LBG, Inc.

Dear Ron Bayer:
Enclosed are the analytical results for sample(s) received by the laboratory on May 22, 2015.  The
results relate only to the samples included in this report.  Results reported herein conform to the
most current TNI standards and the laboratory's Quality Assurance Manual, where applicable, unless
otherwise noted in the body of the report.

If you have any questions concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Bo Garcia
bo.garcia@pacelabs.com
Project Manager

Enclosures

cc: Debra Bayer, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Renee Cusack, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Joyce Esposito, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Janine Rader, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Meredith Ruthven, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 1 of 23



#=CP#

CERTIFICATIONS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Pennsylvania Certification IDs
1638 Roseytown Rd Suites 2,3&4, Greensburg, PA 15601
ACLASS DOD-ELAP Accreditation #: ADE-1544
Alabama Certification #: 41590
Arizona Certification #: AZ0734
Arkansas Certification
California/TNI Certification #: 04222CA
Colorado Certification
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0694
Delaware Certification
Florida/TNI Certification #: E87683
Guam/PADEP Certification
Hawaii/PADEP Certification
Idaho Certification
Illinois/PADEP Certification
Indiana/PADEP Certification
Iowa Certification #: 391
Kansas/TNI Certification #: E-10358
Kentucky Certification #: 90133
Louisiana DHH/TNI Certification #: LA140008
Louisiana DEQ/TNI Certification #: 4086
Maine Certification #: PA00091
Maryland Certification #: 308
Massachusetts Certification #: M-PA1457
Michigan/PADEP Certification
Missouri Certification #: 235

Montana Certification #: Cert 0082
Nebraska Certification #: NE-05-29-14
Nevada Certification
New Hampshire/TNI Certification #: 2976
New Jersey/TNI Certification #: PA 051
New Mexico Certification
New York/TNI Certification #: 10888
North Carolina Certification #: 42706
North Dakota Certification #: R-190
Oregon/TNI Certification #: PA200002
Pennsylvania/TNI Certification #: 65-00282
Puerto Rico Certification #: PA01457
South Dakota Certification
Tennessee Certification #: TN2867
Texas/TNI Certification #: T104704188
Utah/TNI Certification #: PA014572014-4
Vermont Dept. of Health: ID# VT-0282
Virgin Island/PADEP Certification
Virginia/VELAP Certification #: 460198
Washington Certification #: C868
West Virginia DEP Certification #: 143
West Virginia DHHR Certification #: 9964C
Wisconsin/PADEP Certification
Wyoming Certification #: 8TMS-Q

Ormond Beach Certification IDs
8 East Tower Circle, Ormond Beach, FL  32174
Alabama Certification #: 41320
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0216
Delaware Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Florida Certification #: E83079
Georgia Certification #: 955
Guam Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Hawaii Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Illinois Certification #: 200068
Indiana Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Kansas Certification #: E-10383
Kentucky Certification #: 90050
Louisiana Certification #: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Louisiana Environmental Certificate #: 05007
Maryland Certification: #346
Massachusetts Certification #: M-FL1264
Michigan Certification #: 9911
Mississippi Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Missouri Certification #: 236

Montana Certification #: Cert 0074
Nebraska Certification: NE-OS-28-14
Nevada Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
New Hampshire Certification #: 2958
New Jersey Certification #: FL765
New York Certification #: 11608
North Carolina Environmental Certificate #: 667
Pennsylvania Certification #: 68-00547
Puerto Rico Certification #: FL01264
South Carolina Certification: #96042001
Tennessee Certification #: TN02974
Texas Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
US Virgin Islands Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Virginia Environmental Certification #: 460165
Washington Certification #: C955
West Virginia Certification #: 9962C
Wisconsin Certification #: 399079670
Wyoming (EPA Region 8): FL NELAC Reciprocity

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 2 of 23



#=SS#

SAMPLE SUMMARY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Lab ID Sample ID Matrix Date Collected Date Received

35189601001 90570-1 Drinking Water 05/21/15 11:30 05/22/15 10:55

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 3 of 23



#=SA#

SAMPLE ANALYTE COUNT

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Lab ID Sample ID Method

Analytes

Reported LaboratoryAnalysts

35189601001 90570-1 EPA 504.1 2 PASI-OAYF

EPA 508.1 18 PASI-OJTJ

EPA 515.3 8 PASI-OLJM

EPA 531.1 9 PASI-OWFH

EPA 525.2 8 PASI-OWFH

SM 7500Rn-B 1 PASI-PAFCC

EPA 900.0 2 PASI-PAFCC

EPA 903.1 1 PASI-PAJC2

EPA 904.0 1 PASI-PAJLW

EPA 908.0 1 PASI-PALAL

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 4 of 23



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Sample: 90570-1 Lab ID: 35189601001 Collected: 05/21/15 11:30 Received: 05/22/15 10:55 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method: EPA 504.1  Preparation Method: EPA 504.1504.1 GCS EDB and DBCP

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane <0.0051 ug/L 05/27/15 00:25 96-12-805/26/15 12:100.021 0.0051 1
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) <0.0064 ug/L 05/27/15 00:25 106-93-405/26/15 12:100.010 0.0064 1

Analytical Method: EPA 508.1  Preparation Method: EPA 508.1508.1 GCS Pesticides

Alachlor <0.032 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 15972-60-805/28/15 10:000.19 0.032 1
Atrazine <0.020 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 1912-24-905/28/15 10:000.095 0.020 1
gamma-BHC (Lindane) <0.0028 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 58-89-905/28/15 10:000.019 0.0028 1
Butachlor <0.014 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 23184-66-905/28/15 10:000.095 0.014 1
Chlordane (Technical) <0.045 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 57-74-905/28/15 10:000.19 0.045 1
Dieldrin <0.013 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 60-57-105/28/15 10:000.095 0.013 1
Endrin <0.0019 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 72-20-805/28/15 10:000.0095 0.0019 1
Heptachlor <0.0057 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 76-44-805/28/15 10:000.038 0.0057 1
Heptachlor epoxide <0.0028 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 1024-57-305/28/15 10:000.019 0.0028 1
Hexachlorobenzene <0.010 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 118-74-105/28/15 10:000.095 0.010 1
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene <0.030 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 77-47-405/28/15 10:000.095 0.030 1
Methoxychlor <0.013 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 72-43-505/28/15 10:000.095 0.013 1
Metolachlor <0.010 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 51218-45-205/28/15 10:000.095 0.010 1
PCB, Total <0.076 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 1336-36-305/28/15 10:000.095 0.076 1
Propachlor <0.0095 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 1918-16-705/28/15 10:000.095 0.0095 1
Simazine <0.042 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 122-34-905/28/15 10:000.066 0.042 1
Toxaphene <0.58 ug/L 05/29/15 04:48 8001-35-205/28/15 10:000.95 0.58 1
Surrogates
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) 127 % 05/29/15 04:48 2051-24-305/28/15 10:0070-130 1

Analytical Method: EPA 515.3  Preparation Method: EPA 515.3515.3 Chlorinated Herbicides

2,4-D <0.081 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 94-75-706/01/15 09:000.10 0.081 1
Dalapon <0.89 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 75-99-006/01/15 09:001.0 0.89 1
Dicamba <0.067 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 1918-00-906/01/15 09:000.10 0.067 1
Dinoseb <0.16 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 88-85-706/01/15 09:000.20 0.16 1
Pentachlorophenol <0.030 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 87-86-506/01/15 09:000.040 0.030 1
Picloram <0.094 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 1918-02-106/01/15 09:000.10 0.094 1
2,4,5-TP (Silvex) <0.16 ug/L 06/02/15 02:27 93-72-106/01/15 09:000.20 0.16 1
Surrogates
2,4-DCAA (S) 82 % 06/02/15 02:27 19719-28-906/01/15 09:0070-130 1

Analytical Method: EPA 531.1531.1 HPLC Carbamates

Aldicarb <0.70 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 116-06-32.0 0.70 1
Aldicarb sulfone <0.60 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 1646-88-42.0 0.60 1
Aldicarb sulfoxide <0.67 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 1646-87-32.0 0.67 1
Carbofuran <0.75 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 1563-66-22.0 0.75 1
3-Hydroxycarbofuran <0.51 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 16655-82-62.0 0.51 1
Methomyl <0.57 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 16752-77-52.0 0.57 1
Oxamyl <0.47 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 23135-22-02.0 0.47 1
Carbaryl <0.28 ug/L 05/28/15 18:47 63-25-22.0 0.28 1
Surrogates
Propoxur (S) 103 % 05/28/15 18:47 114-26-180-120 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 5 of 23



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Sample: 90570-1 Lab ID: 35189601001 Collected: 05/21/15 11:30 Received: 05/22/15 10:55 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method: EPA 525.2  Preparation Method: EPA 525.2525.2 Base Neutral Extractable

Aldrin <0.034 ug/L 05/28/15 17:15 309-00-205/28/15 10:000.095 0.034 1
Benzo(a)pyrene <0.018 ug/L 05/28/15 17:15 50-32-805/28/15 10:000.095 0.018 1
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate <0.36 ug/L 05/28/15 17:15 103-23-105/28/15 10:001.5 0.36 1
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate <0.47 ug/L 05/28/15 17:15 117-81-705/28/15 10:001.9 0.47 1
Metribuzin <0.029 ug/L 05/28/15 17:15 21087-64-905/28/15 10:000.28 0.029 1
Surrogates
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) 648 % 05/28/15 17:15 81209 IS,S305/28/15 10:0070-130 1
Perylene-d12 (S) 108 % 05/28/15 17:15 152096305/28/15 10:0070-130 1
Triphenylphosphate (S) 112 % 05/28/15 17:15 115-86-605/28/15 10:0070-130 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 6 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

GCSV/14703
EPA 531.1

EPA 531.1
531.1 HPLC Carbamate

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1224530
Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L <0.51 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Aldicarb ug/L <0.70 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L <0.60 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L <0.67 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Carbaryl ug/L <0.28 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Carbofuran ug/L <0.75 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Methomyl ug/L <0.57 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Oxamyl ug/L <0.47 2.0 05/28/15 12:40
Propoxur (S) % 108 80-120 05/28/15 12:40

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1224531LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L 10.410 104 80-120
Aldicarb ug/L 11.310 113 80-120
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L 9.910 99 80-120
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L 12.010 120 80-120
Carbaryl ug/L 10.710 107 80-120
Carbofuran ug/L 11.710 117 80-120
Methomyl ug/L 10.510 105 80-120
Oxamyl ug/L 9.410 94 80-120
Propoxur (S) % 102 80-120

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1224532MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

92250781001

1224533

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L 10 106 80-12096 10 2010ND 10.6 9.6
Aldicarb ug/L 10 113 80-120104 9 2010ND 11.3 10.4
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L 10 109 80-12097 11 2010ND 10.9 9.7
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L M110 130 80-120117 10 2010ND 13.0 11.7
Carbaryl ug/L 10 112 80-120100 11 2010ND 11.2 10
Carbofuran ug/L 10 120 80-120105 14 2010ND 12.0 10.5
Methomyl ug/L 10 107 80-12096 11 2010ND 10.7 9.6
Oxamyl ug/L 10 100 80-12087 14 2010ND 10.0 8.7
Propoxur (S) % 111 80-120101

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 7 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22548
EPA 504.1

EPA 504.1
504 EDB DBCP

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1223205
Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane ug/L <0.0049 0.020 05/26/15 19:52
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L <0.0062 0.010 05/26/15 19:52

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1223206LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE & LCSD:
LCSSpike LCSD

% Rec RPD
Max
RPD

LCSD
Result

1223207

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane ug/L 0.24.25 97 70-130950.24 2 40
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L 0.23.25 93 70-130900.22 3 40

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1223208MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

40155183005

1223209

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

1,2-Dibromo-3-
chloropropane

ug/L .44 96 65-135102 6 40.44ND 0.42 0.45

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L .44 92 65-13598 7 40.44ND 0.40 0.43

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 8 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22565
EPA 508.1

EPA 508.1
508 GCS Pesticide

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1223969
Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Alachlor ug/L <0.034 0.20 05/29/15 01:18
Atrazine ug/L <0.021 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Butachlor ug/L <0.015 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Chlordane (Technical) ug/L <0.047 0.20 05/29/15 01:18
Dieldrin ug/L <0.014 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Endrin ug/L <0.0020 0.010 05/29/15 01:18
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L <0.0030 0.020 05/29/15 01:18
Heptachlor ug/L <0.0060 0.040 05/29/15 01:18
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L <0.0030 0.020 05/29/15 01:18
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L <0.011 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L <0.032 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Methoxychlor ug/L <0.014 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Metolachlor ug/L <0.011 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
PCB, Total ug/L <0.080 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Propachlor ug/L <0.010 0.10 05/29/15 01:18
Simazine ug/L <0.044 0.070 05/29/15 01:18
Toxaphene ug/L <0.61 1.0 05/29/15 01:18
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 126 70-130 05/29/15 01:18

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1223970LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Alachlor ug/L 1.21 121 70-130
Atrazine ug/L 1.61.2 126 70-130
Butachlor ug/L 0.55.5 110 70-130
Dieldrin ug/L 0.59.5 119 70-130
Endrin ug/L 0.061.05 122 70-130
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L 0.11.1 114 70-130
Heptachlor ug/L 0.22.2 112 70-130
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L 0.13.1 127 70-130
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L 0.50.5 100 70-130
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L 0.46.5 92 70-130
Methoxychlor ug/L 0.61.5 121 70-130
Metolachlor ug/L 0.55.5 110 70-130
Propachlor ug/L 0.58.5 116 70-130
Simazine ug/L 1.0.88 115 70-130
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 114 70-130

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 9 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1224284MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35189786002

1224285

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Alachlor ug/L P42 117 65-135118 1 4020.035U 2.3 2.4
Atrazine ug/L 2.5 88 65-13595 8 402.50.022U 2.2 2.4
Butachlor ug/L 1 109 65-135113 4 4010.015U 1.1 1.1
Dieldrin ug/L 1 117 65-135116 2 4010.014U 1.2 1.2
Endrin ug/L .1 127 65-135128 1 40.10.0020U 0.13 0.13
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L .2 115 65-135111 4 40.20.0031U 0.23 0.22
Heptachlor ug/L .4 114 65-135108 6 40.40.0061U 0.46 0.43
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L .2 132 65-135125 5 40.20.0031U 0.26 0.25
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L 1 100 65-13596 4 4010.011U 1.0 0.96
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L 1 100 65-13588 13 4010.033U 1.0 0.88
Methoxychlor ug/L 1 122 65-135122 0 4010.014U 1.2 1.2
Metolachlor ug/L 1 115 65-135106 8 4010.011U 1.1 1.1
Propachlor ug/L 1 100 65-135106 7 4010.010U 1.0 1.1
Simazine ug/L M11.8 130 65-135136 5 401.80.045U 2.3 2.4
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 115 70-130123 40

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 10 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22619
EPA 515.3

EPA 515.3
5153 GCS Herbicides

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1227028
Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L <0.16 0.20 06/01/15 20:44
2,4-D ug/L <0.081 0.10 06/01/15 20:44
Dalapon ug/L <0.89 1.0 06/01/15 20:44
Dicamba ug/L <0.067 0.10 06/01/15 20:44
Dinoseb ug/L <0.16 0.20 06/01/15 20:44
Pentachlorophenol ug/L <0.030 0.040 06/01/15 20:44
Picloram ug/L <0.094 0.10 06/01/15 20:44
2,4-DCAA (S) % 85 70-130 06/01/15 20:44

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1227029LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 0.911 91 70-130
2,4-D ug/L 0.54.5 107 70-130
Dalapon ug/L 4.15 82 70-130
Dicamba ug/L 0.52.5 103 70-130
Dinoseb ug/L 0.891 89 70-130
Pentachlorophenol ug/L 0.18.2 88 70-130
Picloram ug/L 0.43.5 86 70-130
2,4-DCAA (S) % 82 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1228488MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35189337001

1228489

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1 94 70-13087 8 401<0.16 0.94 0.87
2,4-D ug/L .5 104 70-130101 3 40.5<0.081 0.52 0.50
Dalapon ug/L 5 83 70-13081 3 405<0.89 4.2 4.0
Dicamba ug/L .5 103 70-13092 11 40.5<0.067 0.51 0.46
Dinoseb ug/L 1 89 70-13084 5 401<0.16 0.89 0.84
Pentachlorophenol ug/L .2 84 70-13086 2 40.2<0.030 0.17 0.17
Picloram ug/L .5 80 70-13079 2 40.5<0.094 0.40 0.40
2,4-DCAA (S) % 80 70-13080

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 11 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1228490MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35190350001

1228491

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1 81 70-13077 5 4010.16U 0.81 0.77
2,4-D ug/L .5 89 70-13087 3 40.50.081U 0.45 0.44
Dalapon ug/L 5 85 70-13078 9 4050.89U 4.3 3.9
Dicamba ug/L .5 98 70-13093 5 40.50.067U 0.49 0.47
Dinoseb ug/L 1 80 70-13077 4 4010.16U 0.80 0.77
Pentachlorophenol ug/L .2 82 70-13077 6 40.20.030U 0.16 0.15
Picloram ug/L .5 86 70-13084 1 40.50.094U 0.43 0.42
2,4-DCAA (S) % 76 70-13073

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 12 of 23



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/22566
EPA 525.2

EPA 525.2
525.2 Base Neutral Extractables

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1223971
Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Aldrin ug/L <0.036 0.10 05/28/15 11:03
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L <0.019 0.10 05/28/15 11:03
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L <0.38 1.6 05/28/15 11:03
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L <0.50 2.0 05/28/15 11:03
Metribuzin ug/L <0.031 0.30 05/28/15 11:03
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) % 98 70-130 05/28/15 11:03
Perylene-d12 (S) % 88 70-130 05/28/15 11:03
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 97 70-130 05/28/15 11:03

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1223972LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Aldrin ug/L 0.30.4 75 70-130
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L 0.40.4 99 70-130
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L 6.66.4 103 70-130
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L 8.48 105 70-130
Metribuzin ug/L 1.21.2 97 70-130
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) % 92 70-130
Perylene-d12 (S) % 106 70-130
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 107 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1224286MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35189845001

1224287

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Aldrin ug/L .8 109 70-13080 31 40.80.035U 0.87 0.64
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L .8 91 70-13086 5 40.80.018U 0.72 0.69
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L 12.8 97 70-13096 1 4012.80.37U 12.4 12.2
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L 16 101 70-130100 0 40160.48U 16.4 16.3
Metribuzin ug/L 2.4 113 70-130103 10 402.40.030U 2.7 2.5
1,3-Dimethyl-2-
nitrobenzene(S)

% 92 70-13097

Perylene-d12 (S) % 99 70-13096
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 104 70-130101

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 13 of 23



#=ARR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Sample: 90570-1 Lab ID: 35189601001 Collected: 05/21/15 11:30 Received: 05/22/15 10:55 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Act ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Units Analyzed CAS No. QualMethod

PWS: Site ID: Sample Type:

Radon 3,819 ± 100   (43.9)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 05/23/15 00:54 10043-92-2SM 7500Rn-B

Gross Alpha 5.32 ± 2.16   (2.93)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/01/15 07:21 12587-46-1EPA 900.0

Gross Beta 2.13U ± 1.14   (2.13)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/01/15 07:21 12587-47-2EPA 900.0

Radium-226 0.672U ± 0.492   (0.672)
C:NA T:90%

pCi/L 06/01/15 09:57 13982-63-3EPA 903.1

Radium-228 0.728U ± 0.319   (0.728)
C:77% T:82%

pCi/L 06/01/15 13:04 15262-20-1EPA 904.0

Total Uranium 4.85 ± 0.406   (0.345)
C:NA T:84%

pCi/L 05/29/15 19:22 7440-61-1EPA 908.0

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 14 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24569
EPA 903.1

EPA 903.1
903.1 Radium-226

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 898090

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radium-226 pCi/L 06/01/15 09:250.382 ± 0.499   (0.823) C:NA T:93%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 15 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24551
SM 7500Rn-B

SM 7500Rn-B
7500Rn B Radon

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 897076

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radon pCi/L 05/22/15 22:09-11.5 ± 18.5   (33.1) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 16 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24578
EPA 904.0

EPA 904.0
904.0 Radium 228

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 898452

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radium-228 pCi/L 06/01/15 12:56-0.177 ± 0.369   (0.898) C:70% T:80%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 17 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24608
EPA 900.0

EPA 900.0
900.0 Gross Alpha/Beta

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 898977

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Gross Alpha pCi/L 06/01/15 07:21-0.841 ± 0.578   (2.12) C:NA T:NA
Gross Beta pCi/L 06/01/15 07:21-0.093 ± 0.680   (1.78) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 18 of 23



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

RADC/24605
EPA 908.0

EPA 908.0
908.0 Total Uranium

Associated Lab Samples: 35189601001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 898974

Associated Lab Samples:

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Total Uranium pCi/L 05/29/15 19:22-0.0481 ± 0.204   (0.366) C:NA T:81%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 19 of 23



#=QL#

QUALIFIERS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

DEFINITIONS

DF - Dilution Factor, if reported, represents the factor applied to the reported data due to dilution of the sample aliquot.
ND - Not Detected at or above adjusted reporting limit.
J - Estimated concentration above the adjusted method detection limit and below the adjusted reporting limit.
MDL - Adjusted Method Detection Limit.
PQL - Practical Quantitation Limit.
RL - Reporting Limit.
S - Surrogate
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine decomposes to and cannot be separated from Azobenzene using Method 8270. The result for each analyte is
a combined concentration.
Consistent with EPA guidelines, unrounded data are displayed and have been used to calculate % recovery and RPD values.
LCS(D) - Laboratory Control Sample (Duplicate)
MS(D) - Matrix Spike (Duplicate)
DUP - Sample Duplicate
RPD - Relative Percent Difference
NC - Not Calculable.
SG - Silica Gel - Clean-Up
U - Indicates the compound was analyzed for, but not detected.
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine decomposes and cannot be separated from Diphenylamine using Method 8270.  The result reported for
each analyte is a combined concentration.
Act - Activity
Unc - Uncertainty: SDWA = 1.96 sigma count uncertainty, all other matrices = Expanded Uncertainty (95% confidence interval).
Gamma Spec = Expanded Uncertainty (95.4% Confidence Interval)
(MDC) - Minimum Detectable Concentration
Trac - Tracer Recovery (%)
Carr - Carrier Recovery (%)
Pace Analytical is TNI accredited. Contact your Pace PM for the current list of accredited analytes.
TNI - The NELAC Institute.

LABORATORIES

Pace Analytical Services - Ormond BeachPASI-O
Pace Analytical Services - GreensburgPASI-PA

ANALYTE QUALIFIERS

The internal standard response is below criteria. Results may be biased high.IS
Matrix spike recovery exceeded QC limits.  Batch accepted based on laboratory control sample (LCS) recovery.M1
Sample field preservation does not meet EPA or method recommendations for this analysis.P4
Surrogate recovery exceeded laboratory control limits. Analyte presence below reporting limits in associated samples.
Results unaffected by high bias.

S3

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 20 of 23



#=CR#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA CROSS REFERENCE TABLE

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35189601
LBG, Inc.

Lab ID Sample ID QC Batch Method QC Batch Analytical Method

Analytical

Batch

35189601001 OEXT/22548 GCSV/1469590570-1 EPA 504.1 EPA 504.1

35189601001 OEXT/22565 GCSV/1471790570-1 EPA 508.1 EPA 508.1

35189601001 OEXT/22619 GCSV/1474190570-1 EPA 515.3 EPA 515.3

35189601001 GCSV/1470390570-1 EPA 531.1

35189601001 OEXT/22566 MSSV/785790570-1 EPA 525.2 EPA 525.2

35189601001 RADC/2455190570-1 SM 7500Rn-B

35189601001 RADC/2460890570-1 EPA 900.0

35189601001 RADC/2456990570-1 EPA 903.1

35189601001 RADC/2457890570-1 EPA 904.0

35189601001 RADC/2460590570-1 EPA 908.0

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 06/03/2015 12:24 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 21 of 23



Page 22 of 23



Page 23 of 23



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WATER QUALITY  

WELL 6



ANALYTICAL REPORT

Job Number:  420-105965-1

Job Description:  LBG, Inc.

For:

Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

4 Research Drive

Shelton, CT  06464

Attention: Stacy Stieber

Debra Bayer

Customer Service Manager

dbayer@envirotestlaboratories.com

07/23/2016

NYSDOH ELAP does not certify for all parameters. EnviroTest Laboratories does hold certification for all analytes where certification 

is offered by ELAP unless otherwise specified. Pursuant to NELAP, this report may not be reproduced, except in full, without written 

approval of the laboratory. EnviroTest Laboratories Inc. certifies that the analytical results contained herein apply only to the samples 

tested as received by our laboratory. All questions regarding this report should be directed to the EnviroTest Customer Service 

Representative.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Certifications and Approvals: NYSDOH 10142, NJDEP NY015, CTDOPH PH-0554

315 Fullerton Avenue, Newburgh, NY  12550

Tel (845) 562-0890  Fax (845) 562-0841  www.envirotestlaboratories.com

Envirotest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 1 of 21



Job Narrative

420-J105965-1

Comments

No additional comments. 

Receipt 

All samples were received in good condition within temperature requirements.

GC/MS VOA 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

Metals 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

General Chemistry 

Method SM 4500 H+ B: The holding time for pH is 15 minutes, the samples were received outside of the holding time.

No other analytical or quality issues were noted.

Biology 

No analytical or quality issues were noted.

07/23/2016Page 2 of 21



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-105965-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Matrix: Water

EPA 200.7 Rev 4.4ICP Metals by 200.7 EnvTest

FILTRATIONEnvTestSample Filtration

EPA 200EnvTest200 Series Drinking Water Prep Determination Step

EPA 200.7EnvTestTotal Metals Digestion for 200.7

EPA 200.8 Rev.5.4ICPMS Metals by 200.8 EnvTest

EPA 200EnvTest200 Series Drinking Water Prep Determination Step

EPA 200.8EnvTestTotal Metals Digestion for 200.8

EPA 245.1 Rev.3.0Mercury in Water by CVAA EnvTest

EPA 245.1EnvTestDigestion for CVAA Mercury in Waters

MCAWW 300.0Anions by Ion Chromatography EnvTest

EPA 300.0 Rev. 2.1Anions by Ion Chromatography EnvTest

EPA 504.1EPA 504.1 EDB Pace

EPA 505EPA 505 Pesticide/PCB Pace

EPA 515EPA 515 Chlorinated Acids Pace

EPA-DW 524.2Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS EnvTest

EPA 525.2EPA 525.2 Semivolatile Organics Pace

EPA 531.1EPA 531.1 Carbamate Pesticides in Drinki Pace

EPA 900EPA 900 Series GA/GB/RA226/RA228/Gamma Pace

STL-STL EPAUranium Pace

IDEXX SIMPLATEHeterotropic Plate Count EnvTest

SM20 SM 2150BOdor, Threshold Test EnvTest

SM21 SM 2320B-97,-11Alkalinity, Titration Method EnvTest

SM20 SM 2330BCorrosivity LSI Calculation EnvTest

SM20 SM 2340B-97,-11Hardness by Calculation EnvTest

SM19 SM 4500 H+ BpH EnvTest

SM20 SM 4500 NO2 BNitrite by Colormetric EnvTest

SMWW SM 9223Total Coliform and Escherichia coli by Colilert - 

Presence/Absence

EnvTest

SM21 SM2120B-01,11Apparent Color EnvTest

SM21 SM2130B-01,11Turbidity EnvTest

SM21 SM2540C-97,11Total Dissolved Solids (Dried at 180 °C) EnvTest

SM21 SM4500 CN E-99Cyanide, Total: Colorimetric Method EnvTest

SM21 SM 4500 CN CEnvTestCyanide: Distillation

SubcontractGeneral Sub Contract Method

SubcontractGeneral Sub Contract Method Pace

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 3 of 21



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-105965-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Lab References:

 = 

EnvTest = EnviroTest

Pace = Pace Analytical - Ormond Beach

Method References:

EPA = US Environmental Protection Agency

EPA-DW = "Methods For The Determination Of Organic Compounds In Drinking Water", EPA/600/4-88/039, December 1988 And 

Its Supplements.

IDEXX = 

MCAWW = "Methods For Chemical Analysis Of Water And Wastes", EPA-600/4-79-020, March 1983 And Subsequent Revisions.

SM19 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 19Th Edition, 1995."

SM20 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 20th Edition."

SM21 = "Standard Methods For The Examination Of Water And Wastewater", 21st Edition

SMWW = "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater"

STL-STL = Severn Trent Laboratories, St. Louis, Facility Standard Operating Procedure.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 4 of 21



METHOD / ANALYST  SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Method Analyst Analyst ID

Andersen, Eric C ECAEPA-DW   524.2

Sirico, Derek DSEPA   200.7 Rev 4.4

Sirico, Derek DSEPA   200.8 Rev.5.4

Sirico, Derek DSEPA   245.1 Rev.3.0

Sirico, Derek DSSM20   SM 2340B-97,-11

Luis, Carlos CLMCAWW   300.0

Luis, Carlos CLEPA   300.0 Rev. 2.1

O'Driscoll, Kate KOIDEXX   SIMPLATE

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSM20   SM 2150B

Lerro, Matthew N MnLSM21   SM 2320B-97,-11

Cusack, Renee RCSM20   SM 2330B

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSM19   SM 4500 H+ B

Osborne, Amy AOSM20   SM 4500 NO2 B

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSMWW   SM 9223

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSM21   SM2120B-01,11

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSM21   SM2130B-01,11

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSM21   SM2540C-97,11

Osborne, Amy AOSM21   SM4500 CN E-99

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 5 of 21



SAMPLE SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Client Sample IDLab Sample ID Client Matrix

Date/Time 

Sampled

Date/Time 

Received

06/16/2016  1025 06/16/2016  1220Well 6420-105965-1 Water

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 6 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Client Sample ID:

Lab Sample ID: Date Sampled:

Date Received:

Well 6

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220Client Matrix:

524.2 Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS

420-105965-1

Water

Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed:

Dilution:

Preparation:

Method:

06/16/2016  1634

1.0

524.2

N/A

N/A

Analysis Batch: 420-99239

Final Weight/Volume:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Lab File ID:

Instrument ID: Agilent 7890A/5975C 

X061617.D

5   mL

5   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) RLQualifier

<0.500 0.5001,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,1-Trichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1,2-Trichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.5001,1-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.5001,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2,3-Trichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichloroethane

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5001,2-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,3-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.5001,4-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5002,2-Dichloropropane

<0.500 0.500Benzene

<0.500 0.500Bromobenzene

<0.500 0.500Bromochloromethane

<0.500 0.500Bromomethane

<0.500 0.500n-Butylbenzene

<0.500 0.500cis-1,2-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.500cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.500Carbon tetrachloride

<0.500 0.500Chlorobenzene

<0.500 0.500Chloroethane

<0.500 0.500Chloromethane

<0.500 0.500Dibromomethane

<0.500 0.500Ethylbenzene

<0.500 0.500Dichlorodifluoromethane

<0.500 0.500Hexachlorobutadiene

<0.500 0.500Isopropylbenzene

<0.500 0.500p-Isopropyltoluene

<0.500 0.500Methylene Chloride

<1.00 1.00m-Xylene & p-Xylene

<0.500 0.500Methyl tert-butyl ether

<0.500 0.500o-Xylene

<0.500 0.500Tetrachloroethene

0.618 0.500Toluene

<0.500 0.500trans-1,2-Dichloroethene

<0.500 0.500trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

<0.500 0.500Trichloroethene

<0.500 0.500tert-Butylbenzene

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 7 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Client Sample ID:

Lab Sample ID: Date Sampled:

Date Received:

Well 6

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220Client Matrix:

524.2 Purgeable Organic Compounds in Water by GC/MS

420-105965-1

Water

Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed:

Dilution:

Preparation:

Method:

06/16/2016  1634

1.0

524.2

N/A

N/A

Analysis Batch: 420-99239

Final Weight/Volume:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Lab File ID:

Instrument ID: Agilent 7890A/5975C 

X061617.D

5   mL

5   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) RLQualifier

<0.500 0.500Trichlorofluoromethane

<0.500 0.500Vinyl chloride

<1.50 1.50Xylenes, Total

<0.500 0.500Styrene

<0.500 0.500sec-Butylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

<0.500 0.500N-Propylbenzene

<0.500 0.5001,3-Dichlorobenzene

<0.500 0.5002-Chlorotoluene

<0.500 0.5004-Chlorotoluene

Surrogate %Rec Acceptance Limits

95 71 - 1204-Bromofluorobenzene

103 79 - 121Toluene-d8 (Surr)

96 70 - 1281,2-Dichloroethane-d4 (Surr)

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 8 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220

420-105965-1

Water

200.7 Rev 4.4 ICP Metals by 200.7

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/28/2016  1512

06/27/2016  1240

Thermo ICP

N/A

   mL

   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-99630

200 Prep Batch: 420-99606

<60.0 60.0Iron

28.5 10.0Manganese

6770 200Sodium

<20.0 20.0Zinc

200.7 Rev 4.4 ICP Metals by 200.7-Dissolved

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/23/2016  1657

06/21/2016  1700

Thermo ICP

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.7 Rev 4.4 Analysis Batch: 420-99485

200.7 Prep Batch: 420-99415

<60.0 60.0Iron

28.5 10.0Manganese

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 9 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220

420-105965-1

Water

200.8 Rev.5.4 ICPMS Metals by 200.8

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/21/2016  1719

06/17/2016  1530

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

50   mL

50   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-99388

200.8 Prep Batch: 420-99356

<1.00 1.00Silver

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/23/2016  0233

06/22/2016  1020

Perkin Elmer ELAN 

N/A

   mL

   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

200.8 Rev.5.4 Analysis Batch: 420-99441

200 Prep Batch: 420-99428

2.07 1.00Pb

<1.40 1.40Arsenic

<0.300 0.300Beryllium

<1.00 1.00Cadmium

<7.00 7.00Chromium

2.06 0.500Nickel

<0.400 0.400Antimony

<0.300 0.300Thallium

8.26 2.00Barium

<2.00 2.00Selenium

245.1 Rev.3.0 Mercury in Water by CVAA

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/24/2016  1617

06/23/2016  1500

Perkin Elmer FIMS

N/A

25   mL

25   mL

Analyte Result (ug/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

245.1 Rev.3.0 Analysis Batch: 420-99521

245.1 Prep Batch: 420-99518

<0.200 0.200Mercury

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 10 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220

420-105965-1

Water

SM 2340B-97,-11 Hardness by Calculation

Method:

Preparation:

Dilution:

Date Analyzed:

Date Prepared:

Instrument ID:

Lab File ID:

Initial Weight/Volume:

Final Weight/Volume:06/28/2016  1512

None

N/A

Analyte Result (mg/L) Qualifier RL

1.0

SM 2340B-97,-11 Analysis Batch: 420-99634

N/A

N/A

63.5 1.25Calcium hardness as calcium carbonate

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 11 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Biology

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220

420-105965-1

Water

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

06/16/2016  1728

Present CFU/100mL SM 9223g

Anly Batch: 420-99217

1.0

Date Analyzed

Coliform, Total

06/16/2016  1728

Absent CFU/100mL SM 9223

Anly Batch: 420-99217

1.0

Date Analyzed

Escherichia coli

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

06/16/2016  1805

68.0 CFU/mL SIMPLATE2.00

Anly Batch: 420-99255

1.0

Date Analyzed

Heterotrophic Plate Count

General Chemistry

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 12 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

General Chemistry

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220

420-105965-1

Water

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

06/16/2016  1741

<0.250 mg/L 300.00.250

Anly Batch: 420-99303

1.0

Date Analyzed

Nitrate as N

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

06/30/2016  0830

-0.410 NONE SM 2330B

Anly Batch: 420-99680

1.0

Date Analyzed

Langelier Index

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 13 of 21



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

General Chemistry

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/16/2016  1025

06/16/2016  1220

420-105965-1

Water

Analyte MethodDilRLUnitsQualResult

06/29/2016  0931

88.2 mg/L SM 2320B-97,-115.00

Anly Batch: 420-99671

1.0

Date Analyzed

Alkalinity

06/22/2016  1720

150 mg/L SM2540C-97,115.00

Anly Batch: 420-99447

1.0

Date Analyzed

Total Dissolved Solids

06/16/2016  1741

3.22 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.11.50

Anly Batch: 420-99303

1.0

Date Analyzed

Chloride

06/16/2016  1741

16.1 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.15.00

Anly Batch: 420-99303

1.0

Date Analyzed

Sulfate

06/16/2016  1741

<0.500 mg/L 300.0 Rev. 2.10.500

Anly Batch: 420-99303

1.0

Date Analyzed

Fluoride

06/21/2016  1444

<0.00500 mg/L SM4500 CN E-990.00500

Anly Batch: 420-99371

1.0

06/17/2016  0830Prep Batch: 420-99232 Date Prepared:

Date Analyzed

Cyanide, Total

06/16/2016  1701

20.0 Pt-Co SM2120B-01,112.00

Anly Batch: 420-99259

1.0

Date Analyzed

Apparent Color

06/16/2016  1701

7.59 SU SM2120B-01,112.00

Anly Batch: 420-99259

1.0

Date Analyzed

pH@color measurement

06/16/2016  1655

0.260 NTU SM2130B-01,110.100

Anly Batch: 420-99261

1.0

Date Analyzed

Turbidity

06/16/2016  1720

1.00 T.O.N. SM 2150B1.00

Anly Batch: 420-99260

1.0

Date Analyzed

Odor

06/16/2016  1720

60.0 Degrees C SM 2150B5.00

Anly Batch: 420-99260

1.0

Date Analyzed

Temp @ Odor Measurement

06/16/2016  1703

7.59 SU SM 4500 H+ BH 0.200

Anly Batch: 420-99257

1.0

Date Analyzed

pH

06/16/2016  1703

20.3 Degrees C SM 4500 H+ B5.00

Anly Batch: 420-99257

1.0

Date Analyzed

Temp @ pH Measurement

06/16/2016  1645

<0.0100 mg/L SM 4500 NO2 B0.0100

Anly Batch: 420-99238

1.0

Date Analyzed

Nitrite as N

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 07/23/2016Page 14 of 21



 DATA REPORTING QUALIFIERS

Lab Section Qualifier Description

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   

General Chemistry

H Sample was prepped or analyzed beyond the specified holding 

time

Biology

g Result fails applicable NYS drinking water standards

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 15 of 21



Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   

The following analytes are Not Part of the ELAP scope of accreditation:

Sulfur, Tungsten, Silicon, Bicarbonate Alkalinity, 7 Day BOD 5210C, 28 Day BOD, Soluble BOD, Carbon Dioxide, 

carbonate Alkalinity, CBOD Soluble, Chlorine, Cyanide (WAD), Ferrous Iron, Ferric Iron, Total Nitrogen, Total 

Organic Nitrogen, Dissolved Oxygen, pH, Phenolpthalien Alkalinity, Solids (Fixed), Solids (Percent), Solids (Percent 

Moisture) , Solids (Percent Volatile), Solids (Volatile Suspended), Temperature, TKN (Soluble), Total Inorganic 

Carbon, Volatile Acids as Acetic Acid, 2-Aminopyridine, 3-Picoline, 1-Methyl-2-pyrrilidinone, Aziridine, Dimethyl 

sulfoxide, Fluorobenzene, 1-Chlorohexane, Iron Bacteria, Salmonella, & Sulfur Reducing Bacteria.

The following analytes are Not Part of ELAP Potable Water scope of accreditation:

Cobalt (200.7, 200.8), Tin (200.7), Strontium (200.7), Gold (200.7), Platinium (200.7), Palladium (200.7), Titanium 

(200.7), Phosphorus (365.3), Nitrate-Nitrite (10-107-4-1C, 353.2), m-Xylene & p-Xylene (502.2, 524), Naphthalene 

(502.2), o-Xylene (502.2, 524), & Fecal Coliform (9222D).

The following analytes are Not Part of ELAP Solid and Hazardous Waste scope of accreditation:

Ammonia (SM 4500NH3G), Nitrate-Nitrite (353.2, 10-107-4-1C), TKN (351.2), Phosphorus (365.3), Total Cresols 

(8270), 1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2-trifluoroethane (8260), & Chlorodifluoromethane (8260).

The following analytes are Not Part of ELAP Non Potable Water scope of accreditation:

Dissolved Organic Carbon (5310C), Mecoprop (8151A), & MCPA (8151A).

The following analytes are Part of ELAP scope of accreditation but not for the noted methods:

alpha-Chlordane (608), Endrin Ketone (608), gamma-Chlordane (608), PCB-1262 (608), PCB-1268 (608), 

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine (625), 2-MethylNapthalene (625), 3-Methylphenol (625), 4-Nitoaniline (625), 1,1,1,2- 

Tetrachloroethane (624,601), 1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (601,624), 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene (624, 601), 

1,2,3-Trichloropropane (624),1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene (601,624), 1,2,4-trimethylbenzene (624), 

1,2-Dichloro-3-Chloropropane (601, 624),1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2-trifluoroethane (601, 624), 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene 

(624), 1,3-Dichloropropane (624), 2,2-dichloropropane (601,624), 2-chlorotoluene (601,624), 2-hexanone (624), 

4-Chlorotoluene (601,624), 4-Isopropyltoluene (624), Acetonitrile (624), Benzyl Chloride (624, 8021), Bromobenzene 

(601,624), Carbon disulfide (624), Bromochloromethane (624), Dibromomethane (624), 1,2-Dibromoethane (624), 

Hexachlorobutadiene (624), Isopropylbenzene (624), 2-Butanone (Methyl Ethyl Ketone) (624), 4-methyl-2-pentanone 

(624), MTBE (602), m-Xylene & p-Xylene (8021), Naphthalene (602,624), n-Butylbenzene (624), n-Propylbenzene 

(624), sec-Butylbenzene (624), tert-Butylbenzene (624), trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene (624), & Tetrahydrofuran (8260, 

624).

Certification Information

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 16 of 21



Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   

Definitions and Glossary

Abbreviation These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.

%R

DL, RA, RE

EPA

MDL

ND

QC

RL

RPD

Percent Recovery

Indicates a Dilution, Reanalysis or Reextraction.

United States Environmental Protection Agency

Method Detection Limit - an estimate of the minimum amount of a substance that an analytical 

process can reliably detect. A MDL is analyte- and matrix-specific and may be 

laboratory-dependent.

Not detected at the reporting limit (or MDL if shown).

Quality Control

Reporting Limit - the minimum levels, concentrations, or quantities of a target variable (e.g., 

target analyte) that can be reported with a specified degree of confidence.

Relative Percent Difference - a measure of the relative difference between two points.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

07/23/2016Page 17 of 21



07/23/2016Page 18 of 21



07/23/2016Page 19 of 21



07/23/2016Page 20 of 21



LOGIN SAMPLE RECEIPT CHECK LIST

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-105965-1

Question T/F/NA Comment

Login Number:  105965 

Samples were collected by ETL employee as per SOP-SAM-1 NA

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. NA

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or tampered with. True

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. True

Cooler Temp. is within method specified range.(0-6 C PW, 0-8 C NPW, or BAC <10 

C

13.0CTrue

If false, was sample received on ice within 6 hours of collection. False

Based on above criteria cooler temperature is acceptable. True

COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

There are no discrepancies between the sample IDs on the containers and the 

COC.

True

Samples are received within Holding Time. True

Sample containers have legible labels. True

Containers are not broken or leaking. True

Sample collection date/times are provided. True

Appropriate sample containers are used. True

Sample bottles are completely filled. True

There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested MS/MSDs True

VOA sample vials do not have headspace or bubble is <6mm (1/4") in diameter. True

If necessary, staff have been informed of any short hold time or quick TAT needs True

Multiphasic samples are not present. True

Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.
07/23/2016Page 21 of 21



#=CL#

July 15, 2016

LIMS USE: FR - DEBRA BAYER
LIMS OBJECT ID: 30186725

30186725
Project:
Pace Project No.:

RE:

Ms. Debra Bayer
EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.
315 Fullerton Avenue
Newburgh, NY 12550

42001269

Dear Ms. Bayer:
Enclosed are the analytical results for sample(s) received by the laboratory on June 17, 2016.  The
results relate only to the samples included in this report.  Results reported herein conform to the
most current TNI standards and the laboratory's Quality Assurance Manual, where applicable, unless
otherwise noted in the body of the report.

If you have any questions concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Jacquelyn Collins
jacquelyn.collins@pacelabs.com
Project Manager

Enclosures

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 1 of 13



#=CP#

CERTIFICATIONS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Pennsylvania Certification IDs

1638 Roseytown Rd Suites 2,3&4, Greensburg, PA 15601
L-A-B DOD-ELAP Accreditation #: L2417
Alabama Certification #: 41590
Arizona Certification #: AZ0734
Arkansas Certification
California Certification #: 04222CA
Colorado Certification
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0694
Delaware Certification
Florida/TNI Certification #: E87683
Georgia Certification #: C040
Guam Certification
Hawaii Certification
Idaho Certification
Illinois Certification
Indiana Certification
Iowa Certification #: 391
Kansas/TNI Certification #: E-10358
Kentucky Certification #: 90133
Louisiana DHH/TNI Certification #: LA140008
Louisiana DEQ/TNI Certification #: 4086
Maine Certification #: PA00091
Maryland Certification #: 308
Massachusetts Certification #: M-PA1457
Michigan/PADEP Certification
Missouri Certification #: 235

Montana Certification #: Cert 0082
Nebraska Certification #: NE-05-29-14
Nevada Certification #: PA014572015-1
New Hampshire/TNI Certification #: 2976
New Jersey/TNI Certification #: PA 051
New Mexico Certification #: PA01457
New York/TNI Certification #: 10888
North Carolina Certification #: 42706
North Dakota Certification #: R-190
Oregon/TNI Certification #: PA200002
Pennsylvania/TNI Certification #: 65-00282
Puerto Rico Certification #: PA01457
Rhode Island Certification #: 65-00282
South Dakota Certification
Tennessee Certification #: TN2867
Texas/TNI Certification #: T104704188-14-8
Utah/TNI Certification #: PA014572015-5
USDA Soil Permit #: P330-14-00213
Vermont Dept. of Health: ID# VT-0282
Virgin Island/PADEP Certification
Virginia/VELAP Certification #: 460198
Washington Certification #: C868
West Virginia DEP Certification #: 143
West Virginia DHHR Certification #: 9964C
Wisconsin Certification
Wyoming Certification #: 8TMS-L

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 2 of 13



#=SS#

SAMPLE SUMMARY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Lab ID Sample ID Matrix Date Collected Date Received

30186725001 Well 6 (420-105965-1) Drinking Water 06/16/16 10:25 06/17/16 09:30

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 3 of 13



#=SA#

SAMPLE ANALYTE COUNT

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Lab ID Sample ID Method

Analytes

ReportedAnalysts

30186725001 Well 6 (420-105965-1) SM7500RnB-07 1NEG

EPA 900.0 2NEG

EPA 903.1 1WRR

EPA 904.0 1JLW

ASTM D5174-97 1RMK

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 4 of 13



#=ARR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Sample: Well 6 (420-105965-1) Lab ID: 30186725001 Collected: 06/16/16 10:25 Received: 06/17/16 09:30 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Act ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Units Analyzed CAS No. Qual

• The sampler's name and signature were not listed on the COC.Comments:

Method

PWS: Site ID: Sample Type:

Radon 2,526 ± 90.4   (50.1)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/18/16 21:53 10043-92-2SM7500RnB-07

Gross Alpha 2.20 ± 1.55   (2.67)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/28/16 08:21 12587-46-1EPA 900.0

Gross Beta 3.05 ± 1.07   (1.62)
C:NA T:NA

pCi/L 06/28/16 08:21 12587-47-2EPA 900.0

Radium-226 0.419 ± 0.433   (0.648)
C:NA T:92%

pCi/L 07/11/16 12:21 13982-63-3EPA 903.1

Radium-228 0.307 ± 0.324   (0.683)
C:75% T:89%

pCi/L 07/08/16 16:28 15262-20-1EPA 904.0

Total Uranium 2.62 ± 0.052   (0.193)
C:NA T:NA

ug/L 07/11/16 13:07 7440-61-1ASTM D5174-97

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 5 of 13



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

224173
EPA 904.0

EPA 904.0
904.0 Radium 228

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1096989

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radium-228 pCi/L 07/08/16 16:260.175 ± 0.334   (0.733) C:76% T:91%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 6 of 13



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

224127
ASTM D5174-97

ASTM D5174-97
D5174.97 Total Uranium KPA

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1096887

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Total Uranium ug/L 06/29/16 16:460.035 ± 0.001   (0.193) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 7 of 13



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

224144
EPA 903.1

EPA 903.1
903.1 Radium-226

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1096904

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radium-226 pCi/L 07/11/16 12:090.0619 ± 0.283   (0.168) C:NA T:93%

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 8 of 13



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

223561
SM7500RnB-07

SM7500RnB-07
7500Rn B Radon

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1093883

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Radon pCi/L 06/18/16 14:416.7 ± 18.6   (32.0) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 9 of 13



#=QCR#

QUALITY CONTROL - RADIOCHEMISTRY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

224282
EPA 900.0

EPA 900.0
900.0 Gross Alpha/Beta

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Parameter UnitsAct ± Unc (MDC) Carr Trac Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1097728

Associated Lab Samples: 30186725001

Matrix: Water

Analyzed

Gross Alpha pCi/L 06/28/16 08:20-0.132 ± 0.505   (1.56) C:NA T:NA
Gross Beta pCi/L 06/28/16 08:20-0.218 ± 0.624   (1.66) C:NA T:NA

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 10 of 13



#=QL#

QUALIFIERS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

30186725
42001269

DEFINITIONS

DF - Dilution Factor, if reported, represents the factor applied to the reported data due to dilution of the sample aliquot.
ND - Not Detected at or above adjusted reporting limit.
J - Estimated concentration above the adjusted method detection limit and below the adjusted reporting limit.
MDL - Adjusted Method Detection Limit.
PQL - Practical Quantitation Limit.
RL - Reporting Limit.
S - Surrogate
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine decomposes to and cannot be separated from Azobenzene using Method 8270. The result for each analyte is
a combined concentration.
Consistent with EPA guidelines, unrounded data are displayed and have been used to calculate % recovery and RPD values.
LCS(D) - Laboratory Control Sample (Duplicate)
MS(D) - Matrix Spike (Duplicate)
DUP - Sample Duplicate
RPD - Relative Percent Difference
NC - Not Calculable.
SG - Silica Gel - Clean-Up
U - Indicates the compound was analyzed for, but not detected.
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine decomposes and cannot be separated from Diphenylamine using Method 8270.  The result reported for
each analyte is a combined concentration.
Act - Activity
Unc - Uncertainty: SDWA = 1.96 sigma count uncertainty, all other matrices = Expanded Uncertainty (95% confidence interval).
Gamma Spec = Expanded Uncertainty (95.4% Confidence Interval)
(MDC) - Minimum Detectable Concentration
Trac - Tracer Recovery (%)
Carr - Carrier Recovery (%)
Pace Analytical is TNI accredited. Contact your Pace PM for the current list of accredited analytes.
TNI - The NELAC Institute.

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/15/2016 02:03 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

1638 Roseytown Road - Suites 2,3,4
Greensburg, PA 15601

(724)850-5600

Page 11 of 13



Page 12 of 13



Page 13 of 13













#=CL#

July 08, 2016

LIMS USE: FR - RON BAYER
LIMS OBJECT ID: 35250055

35250055
Project:
Pace Project No.:

RE:

Ron Bayer
EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
315 Fullerton Avenue
Newburgh, NY 12550

LBG, Inc.42001269

Dear Ron Bayer:
Enclosed are the analytical results for sample(s) received by the laboratory on June 17, 2016.  The
results relate only to the samples included in this report.  Results reported herein conform to the
most current TNI standards and the laboratory's Quality Assurance Manual, where applicable, unless
otherwise noted in the body of the report.

If you have any questions concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Bo Garcia
bo.garcia@pacelabs.com
Project Manager

Enclosures

cc: Debra Bayer, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Renee Cusack, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Joyce Esposito, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Janine Rader, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.
Meredith Ruthven, EnviroTest Laboratories Inc.

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 1 of 17



#=CP#

CERTIFICATIONS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Ormond Beach Certification IDs

8 East Tower Circle, Ormond Beach, FL  32174
Alabama Certification #: 41320
Connecticut Certification #: PH-0216
Delaware Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Florida Certification #: E83079
Georgia Certification #: 955
Guam Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Hawaii Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Illinois Certification #: 200068
Indiana Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Kansas Certification #: E-10383
Louisiana Certification #: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Louisiana Environmental Certificate #: 05007
Maryland Certification: #346
Michigan Certification #: 9911
Mississippi Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Missouri Certification #: 236
Montana Certification #: Cert 0074

Nebraska Certification: NE-OS-28-14
Nevada Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
New York Certification #: 11608
North Carolina Environmental Certificate #: 667
North Carolina Certification #: 12710
North Dakota Certification #: R-216
Oklahoma Certification #: D9947
Pennsylvania Certification #: 68-00547
Puerto Rico Certification #: FL01264
South Carolina Certification: #96042001
Tennessee Certification #: TN02974
Texas Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
US Virgin Islands Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
Virginia Environmental Certification #: 460165
Wyoming Certification: FL NELAC Reciprocity
West Virginia Certification #: 9962C
Wisconsin Certification #: 399079670
Wyoming (EPA Region 8): FL NELAC Reciprocity

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 2 of 17



#=SS#

SAMPLE SUMMARY

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Lab ID Sample ID Matrix Date Collected Date Received

35250055001 (420-105965-1) Drinking Water 06/16/16 10:25 06/17/16 10:45

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 3 of 17



#=SA#

SAMPLE ANALYTE COUNT

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Lab ID Sample ID Method

Analytes

Reported LaboratoryAnalysts

35250055001 (420-105965-1) EPA 504.1 2 PASI-OSMH

EPA 508.1 18 PASI-OJTJ

EPA 515.3 8 PASI-OLJM

EPA 531.1 9 PASI-OCRT

EPA 525.2 8 PASI-OJTJ

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 4 of 17



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Sample: (420-105965-1) Lab ID: 35250055001 Collected: 06/16/16 10:25 Received: 06/17/16 10:45 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method: EPA 504.1  Preparation Method: EPA 504.1504.1 GCS EDB and DBCP

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane <0.0049 ug/L 06/24/16 02:50 96-12-806/23/16 16:000.020 0.0049 1
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) <0.0075 ug/L 06/24/16 02:50 106-93-406/23/16 16:000.010 0.0075 1

Analytical Method: EPA 508.1  Preparation Method: EPA 508.1508.1 GCS Pesticides

Alachlor <0.033 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 15972-60-806/23/16 08:300.19 0.033 1
Atrazine <0.060 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 1912-24-906/23/16 08:300.094 0.060 1
gamma-BHC (Lindane) <0.0028 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 58-89-906/23/16 08:300.019 0.0028 1
Butachlor <0.026 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 23184-66-906/23/16 08:300.094 0.026 1
Chlordane (Technical) <0.044 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 57-74-906/23/16 08:300.19 0.044 1
Dieldrin <0.018 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 60-57-106/23/16 08:300.094 0.018 1
Endrin <0.0066 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 72-20-806/23/16 08:300.0094 0.0066 1
Heptachlor <0.011 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 76-44-806/23/16 08:300.038 0.011 1
Heptachlor epoxide <0.0028 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 1024-57-306/23/16 08:300.019 0.0028 1
Hexachlorobenzene <0.018 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 118-74-106/23/16 08:300.094 0.018 1
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene <0.030 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 77-47-406/23/16 08:300.094 0.030 1
Methoxychlor <0.048 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 72-43-506/23/16 08:300.094 0.048 1
Metolachlor <0.044 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 51218-45-206/23/16 08:300.094 0.044 1
PCB, Total <0.076 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 1336-36-306/23/16 08:300.094 0.076 1
Propachlor <0.028 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 1918-16-706/23/16 08:300.094 0.028 1
Simazine <0.065 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 122-34-906/23/16 08:300.066 0.065 1
Toxaphene <0.57 ug/L 06/29/16 07:38 8001-35-206/23/16 08:300.94 0.57 1
Surrogates
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) 76 % 06/29/16 07:38 2051-24-306/23/16 08:3070-130 1

Analytical Method: EPA 515.3  Preparation Method: EPA 515.3515.3 Chlorinated Herbicides

2,4-D <0.081 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 94-75-706/22/16 08:000.10 0.081 1
Dalapon <0.89 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 75-99-006/22/16 08:001.0 0.89 1
Dicamba <0.067 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 1918-00-906/22/16 08:000.10 0.067 1
Dinoseb <0.16 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 88-85-706/22/16 08:000.20 0.16 1
Pentachlorophenol <0.030 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 87-86-506/22/16 08:000.040 0.030 1
Picloram <0.094 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 1918-02-106/22/16 08:000.10 0.094 1
2,4,5-TP (Silvex) <0.16 ug/L 06/24/16 22:59 93-72-106/22/16 08:000.20 0.16 1
Surrogates
2,4-DCAA (S) 92 % 06/24/16 22:59 19719-28-906/22/16 08:0070-130 1

Analytical Method: EPA 531.1531.1 HPLC Carbamates

Aldicarb <0.64 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 116-06-32.0 0.64 1
Aldicarb sulfone <0.37 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 1646-88-42.0 0.37 1
Aldicarb sulfoxide <0.30 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 1646-87-32.0 0.30 1
Carbofuran <0.32 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 1563-66-22.0 0.32 1
3-Hydroxycarbofuran <0.42 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 16655-82-62.0 0.42 1
Methomyl <0.57 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 16752-77-52.0 0.57 1
Oxamyl <0.55 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 23135-22-02.0 0.55 1
Carbaryl <0.20 ug/L 06/22/16 15:48 63-25-22.0 0.20 1
Surrogates
BDMC (S) 105 % 06/22/16 15:48 P480-120 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 5 of 17



#=AR#

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Sample: (420-105965-1) Lab ID: 35250055001 Collected: 06/16/16 10:25 Received: 06/17/16 10:45 Matrix: Drinking Water

Parameters Results Units DF Prepared Analyzed CAS No. QualMDLPQL

Analytical Method: EPA 525.2  Preparation Method: EPA 525.2525.2 Base Neutral Extractable

Aldrin <0.064 ug/L 06/27/16 19:52 309-00-206/23/16 08:300.094 0.064 1
Benzo(a)pyrene <0.012 ug/L 06/27/16 19:52 50-32-806/23/16 08:300.094 0.012 1
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate <0.36 ug/L 06/27/16 19:52 103-23-106/23/16 08:301.5 0.36 1
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate <0.53 ug/L 06/27/16 19:52 117-81-706/23/16 08:301.9 0.53 1
Metribuzin <0.14 ug/L 06/27/16 19:52 21087-64-906/23/16 08:300.28 0.14 1
Surrogates
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) 111 % 06/27/16 19:52 8120906/23/16 08:3070-130 1
Perylene-d12 (S) 100 % 06/27/16 19:52 152096306/23/16 08:3070-130 1
Triphenylphosphate (S) 140 % 06/27/16 19:52 115-86-6 S306/23/16 08:3070-130 1

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 6 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

GCSV/18716
EPA 531.1

EPA 531.1
531.1 HPLC Carbamate

Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1614340
Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L <0.42 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.42
Aldicarb ug/L <0.64 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.64
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L <0.37 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.37
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L <0.30 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.30
Carbaryl ug/L <0.20 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.20
Carbofuran ug/L <0.32 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.32
Methomyl ug/L <0.57 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.57
Oxamyl ug/L <0.55 2.0 06/22/16 07:280.55
BDMC (S) % 94 80-120 06/22/16 07:28

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1614341LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L 9.210 92 80-120
Aldicarb ug/L 9.810 98 80-120
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L 9.110 91 80-120
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L 9.010 90 80-120
Carbaryl ug/L 9.010 90 80-120
Carbofuran ug/L 9.210 92 80-120
Methomyl ug/L 8.310 83 80-120
Oxamyl ug/L 8.710 87 80-120
BDMC (S) % 95 80-120

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1614342MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

92301541007

1614343

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

3-Hydroxycarbofuran ug/L 10 101 80-120105 4 2010ND 10.1 10.5
Aldicarb ug/L 10 104 80-120109 4 2010ND 10.4 10.9
Aldicarb sulfone ug/L M1,R110 137 80-120103 29 2010ND 13.7 10.3
Aldicarb sulfoxide ug/L M1,R110 145 80-120102 35 2010ND 14.5 10.2
Carbaryl ug/L 10 99 80-120101 2 2010ND 9.9 10.1
Carbofuran ug/L 10 102 80-120105 3 2010ND 10.2 10.5
Methomyl ug/L 10 111 80-120101 10 2010ND 11.1 10.1
Oxamyl ug/L M1,R110 134 80-120103 26 2010ND 13.4 10.3
BDMC (S) % 97 80-120109

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 7 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/28748
EPA 504.1

EPA 504.1
504 EDB DBCP

Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1615650
Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane ug/L <0.0049 0.020 06/23/16 21:310.0049
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L <0.0075 0.010 06/23/16 21:310.0075

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1615651LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE & LCSD:
LCSSpike LCSD

% Rec RPD
Max
RPD

LCSD
Result

1616509

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane ug/L 0.27.25 107 70-130980.24 10 40
1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L 0.26.25 106 70-130970.24 9 40

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1616511MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35250590001

1616512

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

1,2-Dibromo-3-
chloropropane

ug/L .44 121 65-135132 9 40.440.0049U 0.53 0.58

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ug/L .44 113 65-135124 9 40.440.0075U 0.50 0.54

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 8 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/28737
EPA 508.1

EPA 508.1
508 GCS Pesticide

Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1615618
Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Alachlor ug/L <0.035 0.20 06/28/16 23:450.035
Atrazine ug/L <0.063 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.063
Butachlor ug/L <0.027 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.027
Chlordane (Technical) ug/L <0.047 0.20 06/28/16 23:450.047
Dieldrin ug/L <0.019 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.019
Endrin ug/L <0.0070 0.010 06/28/16 23:450.0070
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L <0.0030 0.020 06/28/16 23:450.0030
Heptachlor ug/L <0.012 0.040 06/28/16 23:450.012
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L <0.0030 0.020 06/28/16 23:450.0030
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L <0.019 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.019
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L <0.032 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.032
Methoxychlor ug/L <0.051 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.051
Metolachlor ug/L <0.047 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.047
Propachlor ug/L <0.030 0.10 06/28/16 23:450.030
Simazine ug/L <0.069 0.070 06/28/16 23:450.069
Toxaphene ug/L <0.61 1.0 06/28/16 23:450.61
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 57 70-130 S006/28/16 23:45

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1615619LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Alachlor ug/L 0.851 85 70-130
Atrazine ug/L 1.11.2 89 70-130
Butachlor ug/L 0.46.5 92 70-130
Dieldrin ug/L 0.44.5 88 70-130
Endrin ug/L 0.044.05 87 70-130
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L 0.080.1 80 70-130
Heptachlor ug/L 0.16.2 78 70-130
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L 0.088.1 88 70-130
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L 0.42.5 83 70-130
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L 0.36.5 71 70-130
Methoxychlor ug/L 0.46.5 93 70-130
Metolachlor ug/L 0.45.5 91 70-130
Propachlor ug/L 0.41.5 82 70-130
Simazine ug/L 0.77.88 88 70-130
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % 76 70-130

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 9 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1615883MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35250015003

1615884

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Alachlor ug/L 2 81 65-13580 1 402<0.034 1.6 1.6
Atrazine ug/L 2.5 84 65-13581 3 402.5<0.061 2.1 2.0
Butachlor ug/L 1 82 65-13582 1 401<0.026 0.82 0.82
Dieldrin ug/L 1 79 65-13579 0 401<0.018 0.79 0.79
Endrin ug/L .1 77 65-13574 5 40.1<0.0068 0.077 0.074
gamma-BHC (Lindane) ug/L .2 77 65-13577 0 40.2<0.0029 0.15 0.15
Heptachlor ug/L .4 74 65-13574 0 40.4<0.012 0.30 0.30
Heptachlor epoxide ug/L .2 82 65-13582 0 40.2<0.0029 0.16 0.16
Hexachlorobenzene ug/L 1 91 65-135104 14 401<0.018 0.91 1.0
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene ug/L 1 73 65-13572 1 401<0.031 0.73 0.72
Methoxychlor ug/L 1 82 65-13582 1 401<0.049 0.82 0.82
Metolachlor ug/L 1 88 65-13587 1 401<0.045 0.88 0.87
Propachlor ug/L 1 92 65-135113 21 401<0.029 0.92 1.1
Simazine ug/L 1.8 99 65-13593 6 401.8<0.067 1.7 1.6
Decachlorobiphenyl (S) % S061 70-13062 40

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 10 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/28722
EPA 515.3

EPA 515.3
5153 GCS Herbicides

Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1614141
Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L <0.16 0.20 06/24/16 13:420.16
2,4-D ug/L <0.081 0.10 06/24/16 13:420.081
Dalapon ug/L <0.89 1.0 06/24/16 13:420.89
Dicamba ug/L <0.067 0.10 06/24/16 13:420.067
Dinoseb ug/L <0.16 0.20 06/24/16 13:420.16
Pentachlorophenol ug/L <0.030 0.040 06/24/16 13:420.030
Picloram ug/L <0.094 0.10 06/24/16 13:420.094
2,4-DCAA (S) % 103 70-130 06/24/16 13:42

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1614142LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1.01 104 70-130
2,4-D ug/L 0.46.5 92 70-130
Dalapon ug/L 5.25 104 70-130
Dicamba ug/L 0.49.5 97 70-130
Dinoseb ug/L 1.01 101 70-130
Pentachlorophenol ug/L 0.20.2 102 70-130
Picloram ug/L 0.57.5 114 70-130
2,4-DCAA (S) % 96 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1614451MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

92299913001

1614452

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1 104 70-130103 0 401ND 1.0 1.0
2,4-D ug/L .5 100 70-130104 4 40.5ND 0.50 0.52
Dalapon ug/L 5 99 70-13096 3 405ND 4.9 4.8
Dicamba ug/L .5 107 70-130105 2 40.5ND 0.54 0.52
Dinoseb ug/L 1 100 70-130102 2 401ND 1.0 1.0
Pentachlorophenol ug/L .2 98 70-13097 1 40.2ND 0.20 0.20
Picloram ug/L .5 106 70-130125 17 40.5ND 0.53 0.63
2,4-DCAA (S) % 95 70-13094

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 11 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1614453MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35250200002

1614454

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

2,4,5-TP (Silvex) ug/L 1 90 70-13092 2 401<0.16 0.90 0.92
2,4-D ug/L .5 90 70-13091 1 40.5<0.081 0.45 0.46
Dalapon ug/L 5 98 70-13099 1 405<0.89 4.9 4.9
Dicamba ug/L .5 108 70-130104 4 40.5<0.067 0.54 0.52
Dinoseb ug/L 1 100 70-130103 2 401<0.16 1.0 1.0
Pentachlorophenol ug/L .2 96 70-13099 2 40.2<0.030 0.20 0.20
Picloram ug/L .5 107 70-130107 0 40.5<0.094 0.53 0.53
2,4-DCAA (S) % 91 70-13088

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 12 of 17



#=QC#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Results presented on this page are in the units indicated by the "Units" column except where an alternate unit is presented to the right of the result.  

QC Batch:
QC Batch Method:

Analysis Method:
Analysis Description:

OEXT/28738
EPA 525.2

EPA 525.2
525.2 Base Neutral Extractables

Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Parameter Units
Blank
Result

Reporting
Limit Qualifiers

METHOD BLANK: 1615620
Associated Lab Samples: 35250055001

Matrix: Water

AnalyzedMDL

Aldrin ug/L <0.068 0.10 06/24/16 00:260.068
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L <0.013 0.10 06/24/16 00:260.013
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L <0.38 1.6 06/24/16 00:260.38
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L <0.56 2.0 06/24/16 00:260.56
Metribuzin ug/L <0.15 0.30 06/24/16 00:260.15
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) % 111 70-130 06/24/16 00:26
Perylene-d12 (S) % 102 70-130 06/24/16 00:26
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 123 70-130 06/24/16 00:26

Parameter Units
LCS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qualifiers% RecConc.

1615621LABORATORY CONTROL SAMPLE:
LCSSpike

Aldrin ug/L 0.34.4 85 70-130
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L 0.34.4 84 70-130
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L 5.56.4 85 70-130
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L 6.28 78 70-130
Metribuzin ug/L 0.951.2 79 70-130
1,3-Dimethyl-2-nitrobenzene(S) % 106 70-130
Perylene-d12 (S) % 103 70-130
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 115 70-130

Parameter Units
MS

Result
% Rec
Limits Qual% RecConc.

1615885MATRIX SPIKE & MATRIX SPIKE DUPLICATE:

MSSpike
Result

35250015001

1615886

MSD
Result

MSD
% Rec RPD RPD

Max
MSDMS
Spike
Conc.

Aldrin ug/L .8 87 70-13098 12 40.8<0.065 0.70 0.79
Benzo(a)pyrene ug/L .8 90 70-130101 11 40.8<0.012 0.72 0.81
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)adipate ug/L 12.8 86 70-13085 1 4012.8<0.37 11.0 10.9
bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate ug/L 16 86 70-13082 5 4016<0.53 14.2 13.5
Metribuzin ug/L 2.4 93 70-13092 1 402.4<0.14 2.2 2.2
1,3-Dimethyl-2-
nitrobenzene(S)

% 103 70-130105

Perylene-d12 (S) % 102 70-130103
Triphenylphosphate (S) % 126 70-130119

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 13 of 17



#=QL#

QUALIFIERS

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

DEFINITIONS

DF - Dilution Factor, if reported, represents the factor applied to the reported data due to dilution of the sample aliquot.
ND - Not Detected at or above adjusted reporting limit.
J - Estimated concentration above the adjusted method detection limit and below the adjusted reporting limit.
MDL - Adjusted Method Detection Limit.
PQL - Practical Quantitation Limit.
RL - Reporting Limit.
S - Surrogate
1,2-Diphenylhydrazine decomposes to and cannot be separated from Azobenzene using Method 8270. The result for each analyte is
a combined concentration.
Consistent with EPA guidelines, unrounded data are displayed and have been used to calculate % recovery and RPD values.
LCS(D) - Laboratory Control Sample (Duplicate)
MS(D) - Matrix Spike (Duplicate)
DUP - Sample Duplicate
RPD - Relative Percent Difference
NC - Not Calculable.
SG - Silica Gel - Clean-Up
U - Indicates the compound was analyzed for, but not detected.
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine decomposes and cannot be separated from Diphenylamine using Method 8270.  The result reported for
each analyte is a combined concentration.
Pace Analytical is TNI accredited. Contact your Pace PM for the current list of accredited analytes.
TNI - The NELAC Institute.

LABORATORIES

Pace Analytical Services - Ormond BeachPASI-O

ANALYTE QUALIFIERS

Matrix spike recovery exceeded QC limits.  Batch accepted based on laboratory control sample (LCS) recovery.M1
Sample field preservation does not meet EPA or method recommendations for this analysis.P4
RPD value was outside control limits.R1
Surrogate recovery outside laboratory control limits.S0
Surrogate recovery exceeded laboratory control limits. Analyte presence below reporting limits in associated samples.
Results unaffected by high bias.

S3

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 14 of 17



#=CR#

QUALITY CONTROL DATA CROSS REFERENCE TABLE

Pace Project No.:
Project:

35250055
LBG, Inc.42001269

Lab ID Sample ID QC Batch Method QC Batch Analytical Method

Analytical

Batch

35250055001 OEXT/28748 GCSV/18736(420-105965-1) EPA 504.1 EPA 504.1

35250055001 OEXT/28737 GCSV/18737(420-105965-1) EPA 508.1 EPA 508.1

35250055001 OEXT/28722 GCSV/18728(420-105965-1) EPA 515.3 EPA 515.3

35250055001 GCSV/18716(420-105965-1) EPA 531.1

35250055001 OEXT/28738 MSSV/10063(420-105965-1) EPA 525.2 EPA 525.2

REPORT OF LABORATORY ANALYSIS

This report shall not be reproduced, except in full,
without the written consent of Pace Analytical Services, Inc..Date: 07/08/2016 12:19 PM

Pace Analytical Services, Inc.

8 East Tower Circle
Ormond Beach, FL 32174

(386)672-5668

Page 15 of 17



Page 16 of 17



Page 17 of 17



ANALYTICAL REPORT

Job Number:  420-106343-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Salem, NY

Job Description:  LBG, Inc.

For:

Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

4 Research Drive

Shelton, CT  06464

Attention: Stacy Stieber

Debra Bayer

Customer Service Manager

dbayer@envirotestlaboratories.com

06/28/2016

NYSDOH ELAP does not certify for all parameters. EnviroTest 

Laboratories does hold certification for all analytes where certification is offered by ELAP 

unless otherwise specified in the Certification Information section of this report. Pursuant 

to NELAP, this report may not be reproduced, except in full, without written approval of the 

laboratory. EnviroTest Laboratories Inc. certifies that the analytical results contained 

herein apply only to the samples tested as received by our laboratory. All questions 

regarding this report should be directed to the EnviroTest Customer Service Representative.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. Certifications and Approvals: NYSDOH 10142, NJDEP NY015, 

CTDOPH PH-0554

315 Fullerton Avenue, Newburgh, NY  12550

Tel (845) 562-0890  Fax (845) 562-0841  www.envirotestlaboratories.com

Envirotest Laboratories, Inc.

06/28/2016Page 1 of 10



METHOD SUMMARY

Job Number: 420-106343-1Client: Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc.

SDG Number: Wild Oaks, Salem, NY

Preparation MethodMethodLab LocationDescription

Matrix: Water

SMWW SM 9223Total Coliform and Escherichia coli by Colilert - 

Presence/Absence

EnvTest

Lab References:

EnvTest = EnviroTest

Method References:

SMWW = "Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater"

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

06/28/2016Page 2 of 10



METHOD / ANALYST  SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-106343-1

Method Analyst Analyst ID

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Salem, NY

O'Driscoll, Kate KOSMWW   SM 9223

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

06/28/2016Page 3 of 10



SAMPLE SUMMARY

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-106343-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Salem, NY

Client Sample IDLab Sample ID Client Matrix

Date/Time 

Sampled

Date/Time 

Received

06/24/2016  0920 06/24/2016  1025Well 6420-106343-1 Drinking Water

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

06/28/2016Page 4 of 10



Analytical Data

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-106343-1

Sdg Number:  Wild Oaks, Salem, NY

Biology

Client Sample ID: Well 6

Lab Sample ID:

Client Matrix:

Date Sampled:

Date Received:

06/24/2016  0920

06/24/2016  1025

420-106343-1

Drinking Water

Analyte MethodDilUnitsQualResult

06/24/2016  1658

Absent CFU/100mL SM 9223

Anly Batch: 420-99522

1.0

Date Analyzed

Coliform, Total

06/24/2016  1658

Absent CFU/100mL SM 9223

Anly Batch: 420-99522

1.0

Date Analyzed

Escherichia coli

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc. 06/28/2016Page 5 of 10



 DATA REPORTING QUALIFIERS

Lab Section Qualifier Description

06/28/2016Page 6 of 10



The following analytes are Not Part of the ELAP scope of accreditation:

Sulfur, Tungsten, Silicon, Bicarbonate Alkalinity, 7 Day BOD 5210C, 28 Day BOD, Soluble BOD, Carbon Dioxide, carbonate 

Alkalinity, CBOD Soluble, Chlorine, Cyanide (WAD), Ferrous Iron, Ferric Iron, Total Nitrogen, Total Organic Nitrogen, Dissolved 

Oxygen, pH, Phenolpthalien Alkalinity, Solids (Fixed), Solids (Percent), Solids (Percent Moisture) , Solids (Percent Volatile), 

Solids (Volatile Suspended), Temperature, TKN (Soluble), Total Inorganic Carbon, Volatile Acids as Acetic Acid, 

2-Aminopyridine, 3-Picoline, 1-Methyl-2-pyrrilidinone, Aziridine, Dimethyl sulfoxide, Fluorobenzene, 1-Chlorohexane, Iron 

Bacteria, Salmonella, & Sulfur Reducing Bacteria.

The following analytes are Not Part of ELAP Potable Water scope of accreditation:

Cobalt (200.7, 200.8), Tin (200.7), Strontium (200.7), Gold (200.7), Platinium (200.7), Palladium (200.7), Titanium (200.7), 

Phosphorus (365.3), Nitrate-Nitrite (10-107-4-1C, 353.2), m-Xylene & p-Xylene (502.2, 524), Naphthalene (502.2), o-Xylene 

(502.2, 524), & Fecal Coliform (9222D).

The following analytes are Not Part of ELAP Solid and Hazardous Waste scope of accreditation:

Ammonia (SM 4500NH3G), Nitrate-Nitrite (353.2, 10-107-4-1C), TKN (351.2), Phosphorus (365.3), Total Cresols (8270), 

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2-trifluoroethane (8260), & Chlorodifluoromethane (8260).

The following analytes are Not Part of ELAP Non Potable Water scope of accreditation:

Dissolved Organic Carbon (5310C), Mecoprop (8151A), & MCPA (8151A).

The following analytes are Part of ELAP scope of accreditation but not for the noted methods:

Nitrate (Solid & Hazardous Waste Matrix, 300), Nitrite (Solid & Hazardous Waste, 300, 4500NO2), Sulfate (Solid & Hazardous, 

300.0), alpha-Chlordane (608), Endrin Ketone (608), gamma-Chlordane (608), PCB-1262 (608), PCB-1268 (608), 

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine (625), 2-MethylNapthalene (625), 3-Methylphenol (625), 4-Nitoaniline (625), 1,1,1,2- Tetrachloroethane 

(624,601), 1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (601,624), 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene (624, 601), 1,2,3-Trichloropropane 

(624),1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene (601,624), 1,2,4-trimethylbenzene (624), 1,2-Dichloro-3-Chloropropane (601, 

624),1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2-trifluoroethane (601, 624), 1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene (624), 1,3-Dichloropropane (624), 2,2-dichloropropane 

(601,624), 2-chlorotoluene (601,624), 2-hexanone (624), 4-Chlorotoluene (601,624), 4-Isopropyltoluene (624), Acetonitrile (624), 

Benzyl Chloride (624, 8021), Bromobenzene (601,624), Carbon disulfide (624), Bromochloromethane (624), Dibromomethane 

(624), 1,2-Dibromoethane (624), Hexachlorobutadiene (624), Isopropylbenzene (624), 2-Butanone (Methyl Ethyl Ketone) (624), 

4-methyl-2-pentanone (624), MTBE (602), m-Xylene & p-Xylene (8021), Naphthalene (602,624), n-Butylbenzene (624), 

n-Propylbenzene (624), sec-Butylbenzene (624), tert-Butylbenzene (624), trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene (624), & Tetrahydrofuran 

(8260, 624).

The following analytes are Part of ELAP Scope of accreditation but not part of our certification:

Silica (6010), Free Cyanide (4500CN E), Amenable Cyanide (4500DCNG), & Vinyl Acetate (624).

The following Analytes are Part of ELAP Scope of accreditation but not part of our certification for a Non Potable Water 

Matrix:

Aluminium (200.8), Turbidity (180.1), Methanol (8015D), Dalapon (8151A), 1,2-Dichlorobenzene (601), Acetone (624), MTBE 

(624), m-Xylene & p-Xylene (602).

The following Analytes are Part of ELAP Scope of accreditation but not part of our certification for a Potable Water 

Matrix:

Bromide (300), Ethylene Glycol (8015D), Propylene Glycol (8015D).

The following Analyte(s) Part of ELAP Scope of accreditation but not part of our certification for a Solid and Hazardous 

Waste Matrix:

1,2-Diphenolhydrazine (8270).

The following Analytes are Part of ELAP Scope of accreditation but not part of our certification for an Air Matrix:

1,2-Dichlorobenzene, Carbon tetrachloride, Chlorobenzene, Chloroform, Ethylbenzene, Methylene Chloride, Tetrachloroethene, 

Toluene, & Trichloroethene.

Certification Information

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

06/28/2016Page 7 of 10



Definitions and Glossary

Abbreviation These commonly used abbreviations may or may not be present in this report.

%R

DL, RA, RE

EPA

MDL

ND

QC

RL

RPD

Percent Recovery

Indicates a Dilution, Reanalysis or Reextraction.

United States Environmental Protection Agency

Method Detection Limit - an estimate of the minimum amount of a substance that an analytical 

process can reliably detect. A MDL is analyte- and matrix-specific and may be 

laboratory-dependent.

Not detected at the reporting limit (or MDL if shown).

Quality Control

Reporting Limit - the minimum levels, concentrations, or quantities of a target variable (e.g., 

target analyte) that can be reported with a specified degree of confidence.

Relative Percent Difference - a measure of the relative difference between two points.

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.

06/28/2016Page 8 of 10



06/28/2016Page 9 of 10



LOGIN SAMPLE RECEIPT CHECK LIST

Client:   Leggette, Brashears & Graham, Inc. Job Number:   420-106343-1

SDG Number:  Wild Oaks, Salem, NY

Question T/F/NA Comment

Login Number:  106343 

Samples were collected by ETL employee as per SOP-SAM-1 NA

The cooler's custody seal, if present, is intact. NA

The cooler or samples do not appear to have been compromised or tampered with. True

Samples were received on ice. True

Cooler Temperature is recorded. 9.3 CTrue

Cooler Temp. is within method specified range.(0-6 C PW, 0-8 C NPW, or BAC <10 

C

True

If false, was sample received on ice within 6 hours of collection. NA

Based on above criteria cooler temperature is acceptable. True

COC is present. True

COC is filled out in ink and legible. True

COC is filled out with all pertinent information. True

There are no discrepancies between the sample IDs on the containers and the 

COC.

True

Samples are received within Holding Time. True

Sample containers have legible labels. True

Containers are not broken or leaking. True

Sample collection date/times are provided. True

Appropriate sample containers are used. True

Sample bottles are completely filled. True

There is sufficient vol. for all requested analyses, incl. any requested MS/MSDs True

VOA sample vials do not have headspace or bubble is <6mm (1/4") in diameter. NA

If necessary, staff have been informed of any short hold time or quick TAT needs True

Multiphasic samples are not present. True

Samples do not require splitting or compositing. True

EnviroTest Laboratories, Inc.
06/28/2016Page 10 of 10



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

APPENDIX X 

PHYSICAL PARAMETERS



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PHYSICAL PARAMETERS  

MAY 2015



5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

10

20

30

40

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

 (d
eg

re
es

 C
el

si
us

)

0

1

2

3

4 Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK

Temperature Measurements Collected from Well 4, Pond, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 4, May 26 Through May 30, 2015

5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 4 Temp.grf



5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

C
on

du
ct

iv
ity

 (m
ill

iS
ie

m
en

s p
er

 c
en

tim
et

er
)

0

1

2

3

4

Precipitation (inches)

Well 4
Lake
Pond
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Conductivity Measurements Collected from Well 4, Pond, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 4, May 26 Through May 30, 2015

5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 4 Conductivity.grf



5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

To
ta

l D
is

so
lv

ed
 S

oi
ds

 (g
ra

m
s p

er
 li

te
r)

0

1

2

3

4 Precipitation (inches)

Well 4
Lake
Pond
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK

Total Dissolved Solid Measurements Collected from Well 4, Pond, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 4, May 26 Through May 30, 2015

5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 4 TDS.grf



5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00

12
:00 18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00 12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

2

4

6

8

10

pH

0

1

2

3

4 Precipitation (inches)

Well 4
Lake
Pond
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

pH Measurements Collected from Well 4, Pond, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 4, May 26 Through May 30, 2015

5/2
6/1

5

5/2
7/1

5

5/2
8/1

5

5/2
9/1

5

5/3
0/1

5

5/3
1/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00

18
:00

06
:00 12
:00 18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

40

80

120

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 4 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 4 pH.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Physical Parameter Measurements Collected During 72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 4 from May 26 Through May 30, 2015 
 

Date Time pH 
(S.U.) 

Temperature 
(°C) 

Conductivity 
(mS/cm) TDS (g/L) Date Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Temperature 

(°C) 
Conductivity 

(mS/cm) 
TDS 
(g/L) Date Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Temperature 

(°C) 
Conductivity 

(mS/cm) 
TDS 
(g/L) 

Well 4 Pond Lake 

5/26/15 12:00 5.43 10.91 0.266 0.171 5/26/15 12:10 5.79 22.91 0.309 0.201 5/26/15 12:07 5.64 22.45 0.179 0.116 

5/26/15 13:00 6.58 10.88 0.169 0.110 5/26/15 13:10 6.48 25.49 0.304 0.197 5/26/15 13:07 6.37 25.13 0.171 0.112 

5/26/15 14:00 7.21 10.94 0.173 0.113 5/26/15 14:10 6.77 25.40 0.309 0.201 5/26/15 14:07 6.63 25.63 0.171 0.111 

5/26/15 15:00 7.28 10.95 0.178 0.116 5/26/15 15:10 6.93 26.21 0.310 0.202 5/26/15 15:07 6.86 25.80 0.173 0.112 

5/26/15 16:00 7.35 10.96 0.173 0.113 5/26/15 16:10 7.03 27.39 0.312 0.203 5/26/15 16:07 7.03 26.70 0.173 0.113 

5/26/15 17:00 7.31 10.97 0.174 0.113 5/26/15 17:10 7.16 27.03 0.314 0.204 5/26/15 17:07 7.15 26.24 0.173 0.113 

5/26/15 18:00 7.35 10.97 0.180 0.117 5/26/15 18:10 6.98 26.12 0.306 0.199 5/26/15 18:07 7.03 25.47 0.170 0.111 

5/26/15 19:00 7.28 10.97 0.178 0.115 5/26/15 19:10 6.95 25.59 0.309 0.201 5/26/15 19:07 7.02 25.01 0.172 0.112 

5/27/15 7:18 7.52 10.97 0.182 0.118 5/27/15 7:24 6.94 21.61 0.315 0.204 5/27/15 7:21 7.11 20.95 0.175 0.113 

5/27/15 8:00 7.04 10.97 0.180 0.117 5/27/15 8:10 6.83 20.52 0.319 0.207 5/27/15 8:05 7.2 22.15 0.176 0.114 

5/27/15 9:00 7.16 10.98 0.184 0.119 5/27/15 9:10 6.87 22.06 0.315 0.205 5/27/15 9:05 7.06 21.23 0.175 0.114 

5/27/15 10:00 7.18 10.98 0.182 0.118 5/27/15 10:10 6.91 22.98 0.315 0.205 5/27/15 10:05 7.2 21.87 0.174 0.113 

5/27/15 11:00 7.05 10.98 0.178 0.116 5/27/15 11:10 6.97 22.20 0.314 0.204 5/27/15 11:05 7.3 23.90 0.173 0.113 

5/27/15 12:00 7.41 10.97 0.182 0.118 5/27/15 12:10 7.08 23.72 0.311 0.202 5/27/15 12:05 7.21 22.94 0.173 0.113 

5/27/15 13:00 6.91 10.97 0.176 0.114 5/27/15 13:10 7.08 25.34 0.313 0.203 5/27/15 13:05 7.22 24.53 0.170 0.110 

5/27/15 14:00 6.97 10.98 0.179 0.116 5/27/15 14:10 6.96 25.12 0.308 0.200 5/27/15 14:05 7.03 24.23 0.172 0.112 

5/27/15 15:00 7.46 10.98 0.180 0.117 5/27/15 15:10 7.09 25.87 0.314 0.204 5/27/15 15:05 7.15 24.44 0.171 0.111 

5/27/15 16:00 7.69 10.97 0.169 0.110 5/27/15 16:10 7.15 27.04 0.311 0.202 5/27/15 16:05 7.2 26.52 0.167 0.108 

5/27/15 17:00 7.56 10.98 0.174 0.113 5/27/15 17:10 7.15 26.44 0.311 0.202 5/27/15 17:05 7.21 26.07 0.171 0.111 

5/27/15 18:00 7.54 10.97 0.179 0.116 5/27/15 18:10 7.12 25.80 0.312 0.203 5/27/15 18:05 7.14 25.22 0.170 0.111 

5/28/15 10:00 7.84 11.24 0.182 0.118 5/28/15 10:10 7.33 23.18 0.312 0.203 5/28/15 10:05 7.67 21.45 0.177 0.115 

5/28/15 11:00 7.63 11.28 0.182 0.118 5/28/15 11:10 7.11 24.06 0.308 0.200 5/28/15 11:05 7.28 23.24 0.174 0.113 

5/28/15 12:00 7.52 11.54 0.181 0.118 5/28/15 12:10 7.07 24.89 0.305 0.198 5/28/15 12:05 7.27 23.70 0.173 0.113 

5/28/15 13:00 7.42 11.57 0.174 0.113 5/28/15 13:10 6.96 26.13 0.313 0.203 5/28/15 13:05 7.16 24.41 0.172 0.111 

5/28/15 14:00 7.43 11.48 0.177 0.115 5/28/15 14:10 7.04 26.79 0.315 0.204 5/28/15 14:05 7.18 25.19 0.170 0.111 

5/28/15 15:00 7.12 11.49 0.179 0.116 5/28/15 15:10 7.11 27.42 0.311 0.202 5/28/15 15:05 7.07 25.97 0.172 0.112 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Physical Parameter Measurements Collected During 72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 4 from May 26 Through May 30, 2015 
 

Date Time pH 
(S.U.) 

Temperature 
(°C) 

Conductivity 
(mS/cm) TDS (g/L) Date Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Temperature 

(°C) 
Conductivity 

(mS/cm) 
TDS 
(g/L) Date Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Temperature 

(°C) 
Conductivity 

(mS/cm) 
TDS 
(g/L) 

Well 4 (continued) Pond (continued) Lake (continued) 

5/28/15 16:00 7.67 11.50 0.174 0.113 5/28/15 16:10 7.13 27.70 0.305 0.198 5/28/15 16:05 7.42 26.36 0.175 0.114 

5/28/15 17:00 7.30 11.53 0.174 0.113 5/28/15 17:10 7.11 26.37 0.310 0.201 5/28/15 17:05 7.16 24.85 0.172 0.112 

5/28/15 18:00 6.79 11.53 0.183 0.119 5/28/15 18:10 7.2 26.06 0.310 0.201 5/28/15 18:05 7.06 25.20 0.175 0.114 

5/28/15 19:00 7.23 11.53 0.177 0.115 5/28/15 19:10 6.92 26.12 0.308 0.200 5/28/15 19:05 6.84 25.64 0.174 0.114 

5/29/15 7:00 7.35 11.50 0.185 0.120 5/29/15 7:10 7.05 21.25 0.313 0.203 5/29/15 7:05 7.25 20.16 0.175 0.114 

5/29/15 8:00 7.06 11.52 0.193 0.126 5/29/15 8:10 6.85 20.97 0.316 0.205 5/29/15 8:05 7.01 19.86 0.177 0.115 

5/29/15 9:00 7.16 11.53 0.191 0.124 5/29/15 9:10 6.95 21.82 0.315 0.204 5/29/15 9:05 7.12 20.63 0.175 0.113 

5/29/15 10:00 7.07 11.53 0.188 0.122 5/29/15 10:10 6.89 22.73 0.316 0.205 5/29/15 10:05 7.1 20.84 0.177 0.115 

5/29/15 12:00 7.49 11.51 0.181 0.118 5/29/15 12:10 7.04 24.88 0.311 0.202 5/29/15 12:05 7.17 24.41 0.172 0.112 

5/29/15 13:00 7.13 11.51 0.181 0.118 5/29/15 13:10 6.89 24.72 0.306 0.199 5/29/15 13:05 6.96 24.85 0.175 0.115 

5/29/15 14:00 7.15 11.52 0.182 0.118 5/29/15 14:10 6.96 26.80 0.317 0.206 5/29/15 14:05 7.04 25.42 0.174 0.114 

5/29/15 15:00 7.42 11.53 0.181 0.118 5/29/15 15:10 7.08 26.71 0.316 0.206 5/29/15 15:05 7.29 26.06 0.176 0.115 

5/29/15 16:00 7.69 11.53 0.177 0.115 5/29/15 16:10 7.05 28.14 0.314 0.204 5/29/15 16:05 7.17 26.70 0.173 0.114 

5/29/15 17:00 7.44 11.53 0.180 0.117 5/29/15 17:10 7.07 26.97 0.315 0.205 5/29/15 17:05 7.18 25.93 0.175 0.114 

5/29/15 18:00 7.56 11.54 0.180 0.117 5/29/15 18:10 7.22 27.04 0.315 0.205 5/29/15 18:05 7.26 26.4 0.175 0.114 

5/29/15 19:00 7.60 11.54 0.181 0.117 5/29/15 19:10 7.22 26.27 0.314 0.204 5/29/15 19:05 7.23 25.72 0.175 0.115 

5/30/15 7:00 7.19 11.47 0.180 0.117 5/30/15 7:10 7.1 20.23 0.321 0.208 5/30/15 7:05 7.49 23.15 0.172 0.112 

 
S.U. standard units 
oC degrees Celsius 
mS/cm millisiemens per centimeter 
g/L grams per liter 
mV millivolt 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Water Parameters for Well 4 Test.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WELL 4



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WELL 5



5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

10

20

30

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

 (d
eg

re
es

 C
el

si
us

)

0

1

2

3

4

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK

Temperature Measurements Collected from Well 5, Pond, Stream, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 5, May 18 Through May 21, 2015

5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

20

40

60

80

100

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 5 Temp.grf



5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

C
on

du
ct

iv
ity

 (m
ill

iS
ie

m
en

s p
er

 c
en

tim
et

er
)

0

1

2

3

4

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Conductivity Measurements Collected from Well 5, Pond, Stream, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 5, May 18 Through May 21, 2015

5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

20

40

60

80

100

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 5 Conductivity.grf



5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

To
ta

l D
is

so
lv

ed
 S

ol
id

s (
gr

am
s p

er
 li

te
r)

0

1

2

3

4 Precipitation (inches)

Well 5
Stream
Lake
Pond
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Total Dissolved Solid Measurements Collected from Well 5, Pond, Stream, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 5, May 18 Through May 21, 2015

5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

20

40

60

80

100

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 5 TDS.grf



5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

2

4

6

8

10

pH

0

1

2

3

4

Precipitation (inches)

Well 5
Stream
Lake
Pond
Precipitation

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

pH Measurements Collected from Well 5, Pond, Stream, and Lake During 72-Hour Pumping Test of
Well 5, May 18 Through May 21, 2015

5/1
8/1

5

5/1
9/1

5

5/2
0/1

5

5/2
1/1

5

5/2
2/1

5

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00 06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

06
:00

12
:00

18
:00

0

20

40

60

80

100

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

Well 5 Pumping

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (May 2015)\Hydrographs\Surface Water Parameters\Well 5 pH.grf



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Physical Parameter Measurements Collected During 72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 5 from May 18 Through May 21, 2015 
 

Date Time pH 
(S.U.) 

Cond 
(mS/cm) 

Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Cond 

(mS/cm) 
Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Cond 

(mS/cm) 
Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Cond 

(mS/cm) 
Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) 

 Well 5 Stream Pond Lake 

5/18/15 13:31 5.15 0.285 11.44 0.182 13:33 5.59 0.356 17.82 0.230 13:38 5.97 0.310 19.86 0.200 13:41 6.31 0.178 21.27 0.115 

5/18/15 14:30 6.54 0.209 11.48 0.136 14:33 6.52 0.349 17.88 0.227 14:37 6.75 0.304 19.86 0.198 14:41 6.87 0.180 21.38 0.117 

5/18/15 15:30 6.94 0.208 11.48 0.136 15:33 6.64 0.349 17.93 0.226 15:37 6.83 0.308 19.86 0.200 15:41 7.07 0.180 21.45 0.117 

5/18/15 16:30 6.97 0.213 11.53 0.138 16:33 6.84 0.352 17.94 0.229 16:37 7.03 0.313 19.79 0.203 16:42 7.17 0.185 21.26 0.120 

5/19/15 7:00 7.50 0.234 11.67 0.152 7:03 7.10 0.351 16.08 0.227 7:07 7.06 0.315 19.22 0.206 7:10 7.33 0.176 19.78 0.114 

5/19/15 8:00 7.14 0.237 11.68 0.154 8:03 6.83 0.346 15.97 0.228 8:07 6.95 0.322 19.17 0.209 8:10 7.2 0.176 19.78 0.114 

5/19/15 10:00 7.15 0.237 11.67 0.154 10:03 6.86 0.350 15.85 0.227 10:07 7.05 0.319 19.16 0.206 10:10 7.14 0.173 19.79 0.112 

5/19/15 11:00 7.08 2.370 11.68 0.154 11:03 7.01 0.347 15.91 0.226 11:07 7.06 0.318 19.14 0.205 11:10 7.21 0.177 20.06 0.114 

5/19/15 12:00 7.05 0.238 11.68 0.155 12:03 7.00 0.349 16.05 0.227 12:07 7.09 0.317 19.20 0.207 12:10 7.19 0.181 20.37 0.117 

5/19/15 13:00 7.04 0.236 11.69 0.153 13:03 6.93 0.348 16.32 0.226 13:07 7.02 0.316 19.27 0.207 13:10 7.13 0.180 20.92 0.117 

5/19/15 14:00 7.05 0.236 11.69 0.152 14:03 6.93 0.346 16.75 0.225 14:07 7.10 0.320 19.36 0.209 14:10 7.24 0.180 21.64 0.117 

5/19/15 15:00 6.98 0.237 11.69 0.154 15:03 6.97 0.351 17.21 0.228 15:07 7.06 0.319 19.40 0.209 15:10 7.22 0.184 22.55 0.120 

5/19/15 16:00 7.02 0.236 11.69 0.153 16:03 6.98 0.347 17.71 0.226 16:07 7.10 0.317 19.49 0.207 16:10 7.26 0.181 23.79 0.118 

5/19/15 17:00 6.99 0.232 11.69 0.150 17:03 7.05 0.348 18.07 0.226 17:07 7.18 0.317 19.55 0.207 17:10 7.17 0.183 24.56 0.119 

5/19/15 18:00 7.07 0.233 11.69 0.151 18:03 7.10 0.350 18.56 0.228 18:07 7.18 0.319 19.61 0.208 18:10 7.2 0.182 24.13 0.119 

5/19/15 19:00 7.14 0.233 11.69 0.151 19:03 7.09 0.350 18.83 0.228 19:07 7.20 0.316 19.61 0.206 19:10 7.22 0.188 23.71 0.122 

5/20/15 7:00 7.28 0.251 11.70 0.163 7:03 7.06 0.335 16.03 0.217 7:07 7.19 0.321 19.31 0.208 7:10 7.32 0.177 19.87 0.114 

5/20/15 8:00 7.13 0.247 11.70 0.161 8:03 6.95 0.335 15.87 0.217 8:07 7.10 0.320 19.26 0.207 8:10 7.24 0.176 19.87 0.114 

5/20/15 9:00 7.14 0.247 11.69 0.161 9:03 6.89 0.329 15.71 0.216 9:07 6.97 0.311 19.20 0.202 9:10 7.2 0.177 19.68 0.114 

5/20/15 10:00 7.22 0.245 11.67 0.163 10:03 6.85 0.329 15.60 0.217 10:07 7.04 0.322 19.25 0.208 10:10 7.21 0.176 20.00 0.114 

5/20/15 11:00 7.25 0.251 11.67 0.163 11:03 7.10 0.334 15.50 0.217 11:07 7.13 0.318 19.31 0.209 11:10 7.27 0.179 19.96 0.117 

5/20/15 12:00 7.34 0.251 11.67 0.163 12:03 7.09 0.332 15.52 0.215 12:07 7.01 0.323 19.46 0.207 12:10 7.28 0.179 20.50 0.116 

5/20/15 13:00 7.26 0.249 11.67 0.162 13:03 7.05 0.330 15.51 0.214 13:07 7.15 0.320 19.33 0.209 13:10 7.27 0.183 20.50 0.119 

5/20/15 14:00 7.20 0.247 11.67 0.160 14:03 7.06 0.330 15.51 0.214 14:07 7.10 0.319 19.42 0.209 14:10 7.24 0.177 20.33 0.116 

5/20/15 15:00 7.21 0.252 11.67 0.164 15:03 7.19 0.330 15.74 0.215 15:07 7.21 0.318 19.73 0.209 15:10 7.29 0.182 20.86 0.119 

5/20/15 16:00 7.35 0.248 11.67 0.161 16:03 7.09 0.331 15.89 0.215 16:07 7.19 0.319 19.85 0.209 16:10 7.28 0.189 21.24 0.124 

5/20/15 17:00 7.41 0.249 11.69 0.162 17:03 7.18 0.329 15.89 0.214 17:07 7.27 0.320 19.56 0.209 17:10 7.4 0.189 21.32 0.123 

5/20/15 18:00 7.34 0.251 11.68 0.163 18:03 7.13 0.332 15.98 0.216 18:07 7.22 0.317 19.55 0.210 18:10 7.3 0.183 20.82 0.120 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Physical Parameter Measurements Collected During 72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 5 from May 18 Through May 21, 2015 
 

Date Time pH 
(S.U.) 

Cond 
(mS/cm) 

Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Cond 

(mS/cm) 
Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Cond 

(mS/cm) 
Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) Time pH 

(S.U.) 
Cond 

(mS/cm) 
Temp 
(oC) 

TDS 
(g/L) 

 Well 5 Stream Pond Lake 

5/20/15 19:00 7.23 0.251 11.69 0.163 19:03 7.04 0.332 15.98 0.216 19:07 7.17 0.320 19.49 0.209 19:10 7.36 0.176 20.38 0.115 

5/21/15 7:00 7.22 0.264 11.69 0.252 7:03 6.89 0.343 12.90 0.223 7:07 7.10 0.328 17.93 0.210 7:10 7.24 0.179 18.59 0.116 

5/21/15 8:00 7.23 0.260 11.69 0.169 8:03 6.98 0.334 12.81 0.218 8:07 6.97 0.326 17.89 0.210 8:10 7.22 0.178 18.79 0.115 

5/21/15 9:00 7.12 0.263 11.69 0.171 9:03 6.80 0.342 12.82 0.222 9:07 6.96 0.327 17.91 0.211 9:10 7.19 0.181 18.92 0.117 

5/21/15 10:00 7.21 0.259 11.68 0.168 10:03 7.03 0.338 12.86 0.220 10:07 7.13 0.321 17.95 0.211 10:10 7.27 0.180 19.04 0.118 

5/21/15 11:00 7.04 0.252 11.69 0.168 11:03 6.88 0.341 12.97 0.222 11:07 6.99 0.326 18.00 0.210 11:10 7.2 0.186 19.29 0.120 

Cond conductivity 
Temp temperature 
mS/cm millisiemens per centimeter 
NTU nephelometric turbidity units 
mg/L milligrams per liter 
g/L grams per liter 
mV millivolts 
 
 
H:\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\2015\Water Parameters for Well 5 Test.docx 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PHYSICAL PARAMETERS  

JUNE 2016



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WELL 6



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

WELL 6



6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

50

52

54

56

58

60

62

64

Te
m

pe
ra

tu
re

 (d
eg

re
es

 F
ah

re
nh

ei
t)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Graph of Temperature Measurements Collected from Well 6 Discharge Water and Nearby Surface Water During
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Physical Parameters\Well 6 temp.grf

No precipitation occurred during pumping test period.



6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

C
on

du
ct

iv
ity

 (m
S/

cm
)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Graph of Conductivity Measurements Collected from Well 6 Discharge Water and Nearby Surface Water During
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Physical Parameters\Well 6 Conductivity.grf

No precipitation occurred during pumping test period.



6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

2

4

6

8

10

pH

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1 Precipitation (inches)
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM
LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
______________________

Graph of pH Measurements Collected from Well 6 Discharge Water and Nearby Surface Water During
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6 from June 14 Through 17, 2016

6/1
4/1

6

6/1
5/1

6

6/1
6/1

6

6/1
7/1

6

0

40

80

120

160

Pu
m

pi
ng

 R
at

e 
(g

al
lo

ns
 p

er
 m

in
ut

e)

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Hydrographs\Physical Parameters\Well 6 pH.grf

No precipitation occurred during pumping test period.



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Temperature Measurements Collected from Well 6 and Surface-Water From Onsite Pond and Lake During 
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, from June 14 Through 17, 2015 

 

Date Time Well 6 Temperature 
(degrees Fahrenheit) 

PZ-D Pond Temperature 
(degrees Fahrenheit) 

PZ-E Lake Temperature 
(degrees Fahrenheit) 

6/14/2016 0:00 52.01 62.84 59.02 
6/14/2016 1:00 52.01 62.84 59.02 
6/14/2016 2:00 52.01 62.86 59.02 
6/14/2016 3:00 52.01 62.84 59.03 
6/14/2016 4:00 52.01 62.86 59.03 
6/14/2016 5:00 52.01 62.86 59.03 
6/14/2016 6:00 51.99 62.86 59.04 
6/14/2016 7:00 51.99 62.86 59.04 
6/14/2016 8:00 52.01 62.86 59.05 
6/14/2016 9:00 51.99 62.86 59.05 
6/14/2016 10:00 52.01 62.86 59.06 
6/14/2016 11:00 52.30 62.86 59.06 
6/14/2016 12:00 52.39 62.86 59.07 
6/14/2016 13:00 52.39 62.86 59.07 
6/14/2016 14:00 52.42 62.86 59.08 
6/14/2016 15:00 52.39 62.86 59.08 
6/14/2016 16:00 52.42 62.86 59.09 
6/14/2016 17:00 52.55 62.86 59.09 
6/14/2016 18:00 52.42 62.86 59.09 
6/14/2016 19:00 52.44 62.86 59.10 
6/14/2016 20:00 52.46 62.84 59.10 
6/14/2016 21:00 52.46 62.84 59.10 
6/14/2016 22:00 52.48 62.84 59.10 
6/14/2016 23:00 52.44 62.84 59.12 
6/15/2016 0:00 52.46 62.84 59.12 
6/15/2016 1:00 52.46 62.84 59.12 
6/15/2016 2:00 52.48 62.86 59.13 
6/15/2016 3:00 52.66 62.86 59.14 
6/15/2016 4:00 52.62 62.86 59.14 
6/15/2016 5:00 52.66 62.86 59.15 
6/15/2016 6:00 52.71 62.89 59.15 
6/15/2016 7:00 52.73 62.89 59.17 
6/15/2016 8:00 52.71 62.91 59.17 
6/15/2016 9:00 52.48 62.91 59.17 
6/15/2016 10:00 52.48 62.93 59.18 
6/15/2016 11:00 52.48 62.93 59.20 
6/15/2016 12:00 52.48 62.95 59.20 
6/15/2016 13:00 52.51 62.95 59.21 
6/15/2016 14:00 52.48 62.95 59.22 
6/15/2016 15:00 52.48 62.95 59.23 
6/15/2016 16:00 52.48 62.95 59.24 
6/15/2016 17:00 52.51 62.95 59.25 
6/15/2016 18:00 52.48 62.95 59.25 
6/15/2016 19:00 52.48 62.95 59.26 
6/15/2016 20:00 52.51 62.95 59.27 
6/15/2016 21:00 52.51 62.95 59.28 
6/15/2016 22:00 52.51 62.98 59.29 
6/15/2016 23:00 52.51 62.98 59.30 
6/16/2016 0:00 52.51 63.00 59.29 
6/16/2016 1:00 52.46 63.02 59.31 
6/16/2016 2:00 52.46 63.02 59.32 



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Temperature Measurements Collected from Well 6 and Surface-Water From Onsite Pond and Lake During 
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, from June 14 Through 17, 2015 

 

Date Time Well 6 Temperature 
(degrees Fahrenheit) 

PZ-D Pond Temperature 
(degrees Fahrenheit) 

PZ-E Lake Temperature 
(degrees Fahrenheit) 

6/16/2016 3:00 52.46 63.07 59.33 
6/16/2016 4:00 52.48 63.09 59.34 
6/16/2016 5:00 52.46 63.11 59.35 
6/16/2016 6:00 52.46 63.14 59.36 
6/16/2016 7:00 52.48 63.16 59.37 
6/16/2016 8:00 52.48 63.18 59.39 
6/16/2016 9:00 52.48 63.21 59.40 
6/16/2016 10:00 52.48 63.25 59.42 
6/16/2016 11:00 52.51 63.25 59.44 
6/16/2016 12:00 52.48 63.27 59.45 
6/16/2016 13:00 52.48 63.30 59.46 
6/16/2016 14:00 52.78 63.30 59.48 
6/16/2016 15:00 52.51 63.32 59.50 
6/16/2016 16:00 52.53 63.34 59.51 
6/16/2016 17:00 52.53 63.34 59.53 
6/16/2016 18:00 52.51 63.34 59.55 
6/16/2016 19:00 52.53 63.34 59.56 
6/16/2016 20:00 52.53 63.36 59.58 
6/16/2016 21:00 52.53 63.36 59.59 
6/16/2016 22:00 52.53 63.36 59.60 
6/16/2016 23:00 52.53 63.39 59.62 
6/17/2016 0:00 52.53 63.39 59.64 
6/17/2016 1:00 52.53 63.41 59.65 
6/17/2016 2:00 52.53 63.41 59.67 
6/17/2016 3:00 52.53 63.43 59.68 
6/17/2016 4:00 52.53 63.46 59.69 
6/17/2016 5:00 52.53 63.46 59.71 
6/17/2016 6:00 52.53 63.46 59.72 
6/17/2016 7:00 52.53 63.48 59.74 
6/17/2016 8:00 52.53 63.48 59.75 
6/17/2016 9:00 52.53 63.48 59.76 
6/17/2016 10:00 52.51 63.48 59.78 
6/17/2016 11:00 52.87 63.48 59.80 
6/17/2016 12:00 52.57 63.50 59.81 
6/17/2016 13:00 52.39 63.50 59.83 
6/17/2016 14:00 52.35 63.48 59.84 
6/17/2016 15:00 52.37 63.48 59.85 
6/17/2016 16:00 52.37 63.48 59.86 
6/17/2016 17:00 52.37 63.46 59.88 
6/17/2016 18:00 52.39 63.48 59.89 
6/17/2016 19:00 52.39 63.48 59.90 
6/17/2016 20:00 52.39 63.48 59.91 
6/17/2016 21:00 52.39 63.48 59.93 
6/17/2016 22:00 52.39 63.48 59.93 
6/17/2016 23:00 52.39 63.48 59.95 

     
     
     
     
     
     



NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM 

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK 
_________________ 

Temperature Measurements Collected from Well 6 and Surface-Water From Onsite Pond and Lake During 
72-Hour Pumping Test Conducted on Well 6, from June 14 Through 17, 2015 

 
     

Date Time Well 6 Conductivity 
(millisiemens per centimeter) 

PZ-D Pond Conductivity 
(millisiemens per centimeter) 

PZ-E Lake Conductivity 
(millisiemens per centimeter) 

6/14/2016 11:30 0.295 0.286 0.211 
6/14/2016 12:30 0.195 0.245 0.196 
6/14/2016 15:00 0.189 0.22 0.195 
6/15/2016 12:00 0.207 0.300 0.213 
6/16/2016 9:00 0.204 0.275 0.218 
6/16/2016 16:00 0.215 0.304 0.222 
6/17/2016 10:45 0.211 0.314 0.216 

Date Time Well 6 pH 
(standard units) 

PZ-D Pond pH 
(standard units) 

PZ-E Lake pH 
(standard units) 

6/14/2016 11:30 5.71 6.07 6.36 
6/14/2016 12:30 6.95 6.49 6.84 
6/14/2016 15:00 7.01 6.53 7.18 
6/15/2016 9:00 6.15 6.13 6.41 
6/15/2016 12:00 6.77 6.42 6.58 
6/16/2016 9:00 6.93 6.38 7.11 
6/16/2016 16:00 6.99 6.91 7.35 
6/17/2016 10:45 7.57 7.31 7.50 

K:\Jobs\American Water Co\Wild Oaks\72-Hour Pumping Test (June 2016)\Tables\Parameter meas.doc 



LEGGETTE, BRASHEARS & GRAHAM, INC. 

PLATE 



O:\DWG\Wild Oaks\2016\Plate1-May PT.dwg, Layout1, 8/1/2016 9:40:35 AM, AcroPlot.pc3

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

EXISTING EDGE OF GRAVEL

EXISTING CONTOUR LINE

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

LEGEND

EXISTING STONE WALL

EXISTING MONITOR WELL

EXISTING EDGE OF WATER

PUMPING TEST PROGRAM

NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER

LEWISBORO, NEW YORK
WILD OAKS WATER SYSTEM

SOURCE:
KIRK ROTHERS, P.E., CONSULTING ENGINEER, PLLC "TOPOGRAPHY & EXISTING CONDITIONS MAP", SHEET # 1 OF 1 DATED 06-09-14.

A.C.O.E. WETLAND BOUNDARY

BOUNDARY FOR PROPERTY OWNED BY
NEW YORK AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

BOUNDARY FOR EXISTING PROTECTIVE
EASEMENT FOR NEW YORK AMERICAN
WATER COMPANY OVERLAID FROM

EXISTING DRAINAGE COURSE

EXISTING SAND AND GRAVEL SUPPLY WELL

SILT FENCE/STRAWBALES

EXISTING SITE PLAN MAP

100-FOOT RADIUS

200-FOOT RADIUS

ACCESS ROUTE

DISCHARGE DURING 72-HOUR
PUMPING TEST

GENERAL NOTES:
1. TOWN OF LEWISBORO, COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER, STATE OF NY.
2. TOPOGRAPHY AND MAPPING BY KIRK ROTHER, P.E. CONSULTING
    ENGINEERING, PLLC.  FIELD WORK COMPLETED IN APRIL AND JUNE
    2014. TOPOGRAPHY BASED ON AN ASSUMED DATUM.

APPROXIMATE PIEZOMETER LOCATION

BEDROCK WELL LOCATION

APPROXIMATE STREAM GAGING LOCATION

APPROXIMATE STAFF GAGE LOCATION



 TOWN OF LEWISBORO 
            Westchester County, New York 

        
                                                                                                                                                                                               

      
            Planning Board        Tel:  (914) 763-5592 

PO Box 725        Fax: (914) 763-3637 
Cross River, New York 10518      Email: planning@lewisborogov.com                       

                             
 

 

TO:   Town of Lewisboro Building Inspector 
  
FROM: Jerome Kerner – Chairman, Town of Lewisboro Planning Board  
  
SUBJECT:  McGuinness Residence, 17 Schoolhouse Road, Waccabuc, NY 10597 

Sheet 22, Block 10802, Lot 35 
Cal#3-16WV    

  
DATE:  December 6, 2016 
 

 
 The Planning Board received a verbal request from Peter McGuinness at its November 15, 
2016 meeting to make the existing non-permitted openings associated with the garage and shed 
buildings weather tight.  Mr. McGuinness is before the Board in connection with the above-
referenced wetland violation. 

 
 At its meeting held on November 15, 2016, the Planning Board authorized the installation of 
windows and doors already on premises so that the unfinished space within the buildings would 
not be open to inclement weather.  This authorization is merely to avoid winter-related damage 
and is not an approval or authorization of the garage and shed buildings.  This authorization does 
not involve the issuance of a wetland permit and shall be limited to the installation of windows and 
doors already on premises within existing openings associated with the un-permitted garage and 
shed.  This authorization does not allow for any site work or ground disturbance nor does it allow 
for any carpentry work not specifically associated with the installation of windows and doors, as 
determined by the Building Inspector in consultation with the Town Wetland Inspector. 
 
 The Planning Board also requested Mr. McGuinness to submit a formal Wetland permit 
application and establish a $2,000 escrow. 

 
  
  
   

 



Ciorsdan Conran 

From: Christine Vergati <cv@homelandtowers.us> 
Sent: Monday, November 21, 2016 10:24 AM 
To: Planning@lewisborogov.com 
Cc: Manny Vicente; Eileen Tavolacci 
Subject: Homeland Towers Request for Extension -NY486 Goldens Bridge, 117 Waccabuc Road 

Good Morning Ciorsdan, 

Homeland Towers respectfully requests a 90-day extension of time to submit the Wetland Mitigation Status Report, due 
on December 1, 2016, per Planning Board Resolution Condition #41. Please note that we are currently waiting for our 
vendor to complete the report. Thank you. 

CAL. #5-12 PB 
117 Waccabuc Road 
Sheet 11, Block 11137, Lots 35 & 52 

Regards, 

e~4'ltir(!, t/e"fO-lt' 

•
HOMELAND TOWERS 

Homeland Towers, LLC 

22 Shelter Rock Lane, Building C 

Danbury, CT 06810 
Office: (203) 297-6345 
Cell: (914) 589-3750 
Fax: (203) 797-1137 
Email: cv@homelandtowers.us 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: 

This message originates from the firm of Homeland Towers, LLC. The information contained in this e-mail and any files transmitted with it may be a 
confidential communication or may otherwise be privileged and confidential and part of the work product doctrine. If the reader of this message, regardless of the 
address or routing, is not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this transmittal in error and any review, use, distribution, 
dissemination or copying is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please delete this e-mail and all files transmitted with it from your system 
and immediately notify Homeland Towers, LLC by sending a reply e-mail to the sender of this message. Thank you. 

mailto:cv@homelandtowers.us

	00 Lewisboro Planning Board 12-20-16 Agenda
	04 SilvermineSubd-Review-Memo-12-14-16
	05 PB Cover Letter 11-15-16
	06 Silvermine Full Set of Plans_11-14-2016
	1. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 EXISTING COND (1)
	2. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 PRELIMINARY PLAT 2of2 (1)
	3. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 ZONING (1)
	4. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 CONSTRUCTION PLAN (I) 30 scale (1)
	5. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 CONSTRUCTION PLAN (II) 30 scale (1)
	6. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 E. C (2)
	7. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 PHASING PLAN (1)
	8. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 PROFILES AND DETAILS (1)
	9. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 EC DETAILS (1)
	10. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 SW DETAILS (1)
	11. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 SW-1 (1)
	12. Moss - Silvermine Subdivision 11-14-16 SW-2 (1)

	07 Silvermine WLT PBSubmittal2_06.29.2016
	SilvermineEstates_PBSubmittal2_LTR
	Silvermine_TrailsConcept

	08 Silvermine WLT Silvermine_PBBackground_05.24.2016
	09 Old_Church_Lane_Final
	I. INTRODUCTION
	II. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
	III. SITE CHARACTERISTICS
	IV. STEWARDSHIP GOALS & MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS
	V. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE
	VI. APPENDICES
	INTRODUCTION
	A. Physical and Natural Resources
	B. Cultural and Historical Resources –


	10 Public Hearing Notice - Silvermine
	11 Silvermine Affi of Mailing
	12 Silvermine Affi of Mailing part two
	14 Silvermine Certified Mail Receipts
	15 Silvermine Affi of Posting and photo
	21 McPhillips&LakeKitch-DryHydr-Review-Memo-12-14-16
	22 McPhillips dry hydrant app 52-16WP
	23 Robins Court Hydrant Plans
	26 McPhillips&LakeKitch-DryHydr-Review-Memo-12-14-16
	27 Lake Kitchawan Hydrant app 55-16WP
	28 Lake Kitchawan Hydrant Plans
	30 Weisberg-Review-Memo-12-14-16
	31 CAC - Weisberg Dam 2016_12_10
	32 Weisberg cover letter 111816
	33 Weisberg CPDP approved drawings 10-28-2016
	41 WilderBalter-NoiseRep-Review-Memo-11-30-16
	42 Noise Rept Transmit Lett_12-12-16
	43 WB Lewisboro Noise Report_12-12-16
	51 VerizonWirelessLeonLevy-Review-Memo-12-14-16
	52 VZ at LL PB Filing
	64 WildOaksWells4&6-Review-Memo-12-14-16
	65 Wild Oaks Wells 4 and 6 cover letter 112916
	66 Wild Oaks Wells 4 and 6 narrative
	67 Wild Oaks Site Development and Wetland Activity Permits_Wells 4 and 6_11292016
	Wild Oaks Lewisboro Certified Copy of Resolution.pdf
	Attachment_9_WetlandReport.pdf
	Hydric Soils Westchester County Appendix C.pdf
	Table

	Hydric Soils Westchester County Appendix C.pdf
	Table

	Hydric Soils Westchester County Appendix C.pdf
	Table


	Final Pumping Test Rpt Aug 2016 - Wild Oaks.pdf
	Figure
	App I
	App II
	App III
	Well 4 
	Well 5
	Well 6

	App IV
	App V
	May 2015 
	June 2016

	App VI
	May 2015
	June 2016

	App VII
	May 2015
	June 2016

	App VIII
	May 2015
	June 2016

	App IX
	Well 4
	Well 5
	Well 6

	App X
	Well 4
	Well 5
	Well 6

	Plate


	98 McGuinness  - Memo to BI close openings in barn and shed JJ and JS revised
	99 Homeland - Extension of time request 112116



